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AMENDMEXTS TO THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965

WEDNESDAY, JULY 9, 1969
U.S. Sexare,

SuscoMMITTEE oN CoxstiTUTIONAL RIGHTS,
CoMMITTEE ON THE JUDICLARY,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met at 10 am., in room 324, Old Senate Office
Building, Senator Sam J. Ervin, Jr. (chairman of the subcommittee)
presiding.

Present : Senators Ervin, Hruska, Kennedy, Bayh, and Thurmond.

Also present: Lawrence M. Baskir, chief counsel, and Lewis W.
Tivans, counsel.

Senator Ervix, The subcommittee will conte to order.

Today the Constitutional Rights Subcommittee begins hearings on
a variety of praposals to extend or otherwise amend the Voting Rights
Act of 1965. These proposals fall into two groups. S. 818, S. 2456,
and title TV of S. 2029 are identical. They would extend the provisions
of section 4(a) for an additional 5 years. S. 2507, the administration
proposal, would make substantial revisions in section 4+ and add a
number of new provisions. The two proposals will be inserted into the
record of the hearings,

When the Voting Rights Act was first proposed to Congress, 1
declared my support for any constitutional and reasonable legislation
designed to protect and insure the right of every American, whatever
his race, to register and vote. ITowever, T opposed the Voting Rights
Act because in my judgment it was, and still is, politically motivated
and unconstitutional legislation designed to impose upon one section
of the country onerous terms applicable to no other part.

The act presumes to use authority granted Congress to implement
the terms of the 15th amendment by “apprnpriate” legislation. The
15th amendment simply prohibits the deniai of the franchise on the
arounds of race or color. Yet Congress used this limited authority to
enact legislation directly contrary to other provisions of the Constitu-
tion which give to the States the authority to establish qualifications
for voting. The Constitution must be read and applied as a whole.
One section cannot be used to nullify other scctions. Thus, even if
Congress has the power under the 15th amendment to enact this legis-
lation, it must still conform to article I, section 2, article IT, section 2,
and the 17th amendment—each of which gives the States the authority
to establish qualifications for voting.

The intent of these constitutional provisions is evident. As James
Madison said:

The right of suffrage is certainly one of the fundamental articles of republi-
can government, and ought not to be left to be regulated by the (nationat)
legislature.

)



-

De~pite tle clear meaning nl l e Contitntion, Congross ool
to enaet the Voting l\wht\ The aet v\l ablished Federal ¢rdi-
fieations for voting by p m!nlulm«r the w-v of Tierney tesrs vl
carverntiy devised Tormada- the so-ealled trigger devices which as-
sures that the prohibition will apply only to veven States nod vt of
Stc‘(('\

This i~ an abritvry fornmla designed 1o nnpmv Hpem Sout’oap
Statex- hut not all of tlwm~~lh full anight of the Federal vepaion,

The trigeering deviee s hased upon the iHogieal a-siviption - oo
dizerimination in voting has ocenrred only where Iitevacy tesis oan
he found and that wherever Bteracy tests have been nsed, they Lave
heen nsed f'm‘ the purpo<e of diserimination in voting.

Second, it Hogically assmnes that wherever vegistraiion o varing
fulls ho}uv. tlw arbitrary ligure of H0 perecit, this is conchisive pronl
that the tests have been nsed for diseriminatory por Doses. I hove nover
understood what relationship a literaey test has to the number of i.o-
i~tered voters who turn out in an election.

In aking these assumptions, the Congress legislatively doc .mli
that the \utm'r oflicials of certain States had violated the Canst’
tion. Supreme Court decisions to the contrary notwithstanding. 1 o -
sider this provision to e a bil} of attainder of the worst sort.

The absurdity of this trigger deviee s demonstrated by coneying
the 1964 voting statisties in my State of Novth Carolina w Hh o
m New York, both of which have literaey tests. Hyde County, XL,

had 40.7 percent of eligible voters voting in 1964, New Yorl County
voted 31.3 pereent. Hyde County is eonde mm-d under the !«t for thivne-

tenths of 1 percent. New York County is innocent for 1.5 percent.

But the true evidenee of the arbitrary ¢haracter of the u't is =bown
by examining the voting patterns of |t\l\ with no lteraey test:
FHE Texas connties voted less thar 50 percent in 1964 and, overadl, only
11 percent of the eligible voters of Texax cast votes in that yee:. By
vontrast, nearly 52 percent of the eligible voters of North Carolina
voted i 1964, and move than half of those counties of North Cuara-
lina covered by the act had better vecords than the entive State of
Texax Yet the act does not apply to Texas,

Not only is this legislation contrary to the Constitution and elearly
politically motivated, but it is also vepressive legislation. It places the
States .1I|v<te(l under a kind of tutelage generally veserved for con-
quered provinees rather than for full and equal States of the Union,
For instance, the act requirves that any State wishing to remove ir<elf
from the strictures of the legisk mnn mst seek a declarator v ;mlww-nt
that it has not used titerary tests in the past 5 vears for diseriminstory
purpoces. Suit must he hronght in a Federal court, hut not the Fed-
eral conrt in the district or division where the eause avises. The aet
cloges the door of all Federal conrts in the Nation =ave only one. the
Federal court in Washington, D.C.

The sponsors of the legislation evidently felt that Federal indees
who make their home in the South eannot be trusted to apply the law
of the land and the Constitution even though they take the came oath
as the Federal judges in the Nation's (*: 1]nt'11

This ])l'()\’l\lt)ll vondemns ev ery Federal judge in seven States hy
announecing that they cannot bhe trusted to do “their job. Tt requires
that State officials must travel up to a thousand miles to prove their




innocence, bringing their evidence and their witnesses with them. When
the 13 colonies declaved their independence from FEngland, one of the
grievances was “for transporting us bheyvond the seas to be tried for
prefended offenses.™ The same burdens Parlinment imposed upon the
colimies have been duplicated by the Congress 175 yvears Iater.

Another repressive feature of this legislation is the vequirement that
States wishiug to make changes in their election laws must go hat-in-
handd to Washington to heg the permission of the \ttorney General
of the United States, This 1 an extraordinary provision, for it suboy-
dinates the legislatures and Governors and oflicials of these seven
States o the whim of a politically appoeinted oflicial of the Federal
execritive department.

Laws and regulations affecting the vigld to vote ave extremely im-
portant, for they can be manipulated to serve partisan ends of partic-
nlar parties and factions of parties. By giving this power to a political
fignre in the national administration, Congress delivered an mmense
amonnt of political power and the temptation to use that power for
narrow partisan ends. One eannot be eertain how that power has been
exercised in the past 3 years, just as no one can prediet how it may be
used if conferred for another 5. In any ecase, this is a power which no
;umm'nhlo oflicial shonld destre. and no dishonorable oflivial should
e,

It iz perhaps only appropriate that such an ill-advised piece of
legislation should have produced equally ilt-advized decisions by the
Suprame Conrt, Fach of the three major cases hearving on the aci—
Nouth Cvuiolive vo Katzenbach, WKatzo wbaceh v, Morgan, and the reeent
cave of Gaston County v, IS —confirm the constitutional distortions
of Congress and even extend them,

The Nouth Curoling case fully approved of the constitutional theory
of the Voting Aet. The Conrt established the unigue and dangerouns
theory that the Constitution is a set of mutually repuenant provi-
st of unegual weight. They affivmed what is in effeet a congressional
su=puension of certain provisions of the Constitntion—those enabling
the States to set voting qualifications—on the grounds that these
State procedures might have a “tendeney™ to produce violations of
the 13th amendment. This ix a doetrine which the Court, in the classie
citse of f50 porte Milligan, deseribed as follows:

The Constitution of the United States ix a law for rulers and people. equally
in vwae amd in peace, aml covers with the <hield of itx protection all classes of
mare at all times, under all civcumstances. No doctrine, invelving more perni-
cions consequences. was ever invented by the wit of man than that any of its
provisions ean be suspended during any of the great exigencies of Government.

In the WHorgan ease, the Comrt went even further. Tt interpreted
the Fifth section of the 14th amendment as giving Congress the power
to annul a State Taw in perfeet harmony with the 1th amendment—
acearding to the Conrt’s prior ralings—and one which was enacted
undor anthority of at least three specifie provisions of the Constitu-
tior,

The Guston Coviity caze was decided by the Supreme Court on Juune
2, 1460,

To Mareh of 1966, the Mttorney General had determined that Gaston
County, N.CY, fell under the ban of the Voting Rights Act because
lesz than 30 percent of the eligible voters had vegistered and voted
in the 1961 election. This antomatically suspended the literacy test—
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a determination from which there is no appeal. In August of 1966,
pursuant to the provisions of the act, Gaston County brought an action
in the Federal distriet court in Washington, D.C., seeking to rein-
state the literacy test by showing that it had not been used during the
last 5 years for the purpose or with the effect of denying to any per-
son the right to vote on account of race or color.

In a two-to-one decision the three-judge district court held that
since Gaston County had maintained segregated schools for many
years prior to passage of the act, Negroes presently of voting age
had attended schools of inferior quality. Therefore, it followed that
the literacy tests operated to discriminate against them. The Supreme
Court in a seven-to-one decision aflirmed the district court’s deter-
mination and its reasoning.

The Court quickly brushed over Gaston County’s contention that
any person subjected to the slightest amount of education could pass
the simple literacy test established by North Carolina. The North
Carolina constitution provides that “any person presenting himself
for registration shall be able to read and write any section of the
constitution in the English language.” In practice, officials in Gaston
County made this process even simpler. The only thing a person had
to do was copy any sentence from the constitution, and he was allowed
as much time as he needed. In Gaston County this was more a test of
penmanship than of literacy.

Uncontested testimony was presented at the trial by a Negro school
prineipal to the effect that all of the schonls in Gaston County “wonld
have been able to teach any Negro child to read and write so that he
could read a newspaper, <o that he conld read any simple material.”
Obviously, any person with a third-grade education could pass the
simple North Carolina test of copying one sentence from the State
constitution. Furthermore, Judge Skelly Wright. who wrote the dis-
trict court decision. stated that the test had not heen deliherately nsed
for the purpose of discrimination.

The Voting Rights et makes it clear that Congress did not intend
to abolish all literacy tests. Furthermore, Congress did not intend
to cuspend literacy tests irrevocably even where the tricger-deviee
operated. Congress set forth detailed provisions—stringent as they
may be-—to permit States and connties to eseape from the provisions
of the act if they could show that the tests had not heen diseriminately
nsed during the previous i-vear period.

The Court, however, has added a new provision to the act by keeping
under its provisions all States and counties which, prior to 1954,
maintained a separate school system. The Conrt ignores the faet that
the “separate but equal” doctrine was the law of the land until 1954
And it should he vremembered that Plessy v. Ferguson. which estab-
lished the “separate but equal” doctrine. was not a product of Congress
or the Southern States—1t was the work of the Supreme Court.

And T might add it originated in the State of Massachusetts in
Roberts v. Oity of RBoston. in a ease in which Charles Sunmmer was
connsel.

The Justice Department apparently interprets the Guston County
ease as obligating it to sue under continuing provisions of the aect to
continue the suspension of literaey tests. Tf the Department’s veading
of the opinion is correet, this means that for all significant purposes,
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the Supreme Court has itself passed and signed into law the very legis-
Jation we are now considering,

This ease is yet another example of the Court’s habit of redoing the
work of Congress to conform with its own notions of desirable legisla-
tion. Congress could have provided that the existence of separate
schools prior to 1954 was conclusive evidence that literacy tests dis-
eriminate against Negroes. It declined to do so. To be sure this would
have been, m exsence, an e post facto law, but Congress was not re-
Juetant to do violence to the Constitution in other respects by this leg-
islation, 'The Cowrt has chosen to take State actions which were not
illegal when they were done and hiold them us cosiclusive evidence of
illegality today even though Congress chose not to do so in 1965. The
Court has rewritten the Voting Rights Act and made meaningless the
release provisions of section .

An ceditorial in the Greenshoro Daily News of June 4 described the
deciston in these terms:

By endorsing the far-fetched reasoning of the U.S. District Judge Skelly
Wright in the Gaston County literacy test case, the Supreme Court hus in a smail
but significant measure armed its crities and disarmed its defenders.

I will ask that the editorial, together with the district court and
Supreme Court opinions in this case be included in the hearing record.

In my judgment, it is well that certain provisions of this law are due
to expire. 1 sce no good reason to extend its terms any longer. Congress
had the bad judgment to enact it in 1965. 1Topefully, it will rectify this
mistake, in part at least, by allowing the act to expire next. year.

There is certainly no reason to extend the act even under the assump-
tions of its proponents. ‘F'he law has served their stated purposes and
served them well. Tach of- the States covered by the act met the H0-
percent. requirement in the 1968 election. In North Carolina only
three of the 39 affected comnties failed to register 50 percent of eligible
voters, And in only a handful more did fewer than 50 pereent vote, In
the covered States, S00,000 Negroes registered hetween 1965 and the
1968 election. This is a fignre T am certain no other comparable group
of Stafes can mateh. The proposal to extend the act 5 years more is a
cynical eflort to keep these States under Federal supervision despite
;lm fact that they have fully conformed to the terims and goals of the

aw,

The administration bill, S, 2507, is only a little less objectionable.
It proposes to dizcard the trigger device and to ban literacy tests
throughont the conntry. This at least has the virtue of applying an un-
constitutional law without dicerimination to all States and localities.
While this is a virtue, it is a small one indeed. The Constitution still
gives the States the right to presevibe qualifications for voting. This
ineludes the nse of literacy tests, which the Supreme Comt has not
vet raled imperissible. And it includes the right to set residency re-
quirements in presidential elections, which the administration bhill
would also preseribe on a national basis. The administration hill has
another virtue in that it eliminates the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Tederal Distriet Conrt in Washington, D.C. TTowever, this is hardly
enongh, in my judgment. to warrant its enactient.

The subcommittee has scheduled hearings for today and Friday on
these proposals. Additional hearvings may be scheduled later if
necessary.



6 -

(The editorial of the Greenshoro Daily “ews of June 4, above
mentioned, follows:)

{From the Greenshoro Dally News, June 4, 1984
LiTERACY TESTS IN GASTON

By ('mhn <ing the far-fetehed reasoning of U.SL District Judge Skelly Wright
in the Gaston County literacy test cixe, the \upronu- Conrt has< in a small hat
Strnificant measure arined its evities amd disared its defenders,

The least of the auestions here is the fairness or unfairness of literacy tests
per se. Naue of the judges or justices who considered the Gaston case felt that
the county had deliberately used the test to exelude Negro voters from the rolls
The ixsue. vather, is to what lengths the courts witl go, in interpreting an aet of
Congress, to achieve what they feel to be- -awhat may in fact he -~ desirable
result. The running eriticism of the federal judiciary has been that it is “result-
oriented”—-that is, amenable to hending the iws and the Constitation to achieve
politically-desirable ends. In general. this eriticism is far-fetehed : in the Gaston
vase it may not Le,

l{vumh Gaston ('uunt\. following the provisions of the 1965 Voting Rights
Act. applied to the U8, District Court in the District of Columbia to be veleased
from the sanctions nf tlu- act. In Gaston, under the law, the literacy test hias
Deen antomativally suspended besanse fewer than 30 per cent of its residents
had voted in the presidentinl eleetion of M —the more or less arbitrary guide-
tine Congress adopted.

Under the 1963 act. a connty so proseribed has to demonstrate that it has not
for five yoars used the test diseriminatorily. And even Judge Wright, who wirote
the district court decision, agreed that the test had not been used “for the
prarpose” of racial diserimination.

Why not, then, releaxe Gaston County from sanction?

That is where Judge Wright's incoenious reasoning came in, Judge Wright
fonnd that the literaey test in Gaston County letd had the “effect.” delilorare
or not, of dserimination because during the minority of some living potential
voters Gaston County schools had been segregated and the Negro schools pre-
stiably unequal.

T'his reasoning is questionable on several gronnds, In the tirst place. most il-
literates are made over the years in North Carolina by dropping out of school,
not by having to attend an inferior school, Morcover, it ix ¢lear that Congress in
1965 refusod to aholish literacey test< outrvight, The effiect of this decisxion, not-
withstanding, is to abolish them outricht in any county that ever had segrezated
~ehools, Judge Wrizht atso ignored the fact that until 19531 the “separate ot
equal™ doctrine had heen the law of the laud for 56 years

When it endorsex Judge Wright's reasoning-- and by a vote of 7 to 1 at that- -
the Supreme Conrt seems to be visiting the sins of the fatheis on the corrent
generation, Tt ix saving to Gaston County. and auy connty in the <ste tiv,
“You are to be penalized unider the nw of the land, cirea 14690, for taking advan-
tawe of the Inw of the Yand, civea 18087

The caxe may scem 2 bit academnice, especially sinee the literacy test is in
inereas~ing disuxe in Piedmont North Carvolina. But it involves a hasice principle -
the principle that if the intent of Congress is elear atd theve is po contlict with
the Caorstitution, a piece of legislation should be applicd as Cengress wrote it,
and not as the judges embellish it

It ix <uch decisions that pave the way, in pnublic sentiment, for ostriet
cotustrctionists”

PRUONING R 206, SO0 7 title TV of SO2020,0 5, 2507, the Voting

tirhts Aet of 1965, f/ushm Compby v, USONwtfe Coivolino v, [fm‘v‘u—
haeh. and Katzenbaeh v. Moiqon. above-referved to appear in the
aprendix.)

Senator Krvix. Senator Hruska.

Senator TTeesika, T would like to reserve the privilege of submitting
statement at another time.

Senator-lrvin, You have a statement ?

Senator Tovevoxn, Thank vou, Mr. Chairman,

=



My, Chairman, T am pleased to be here today for these important
hearings on the Voting Rights Act. )

In reviewing the proposed legislation, I note that S, 818 will extend
Voting Rights At presentiy in foree for 5 vears and 8. 2507, which is
known ax the Voting Rights Act Nmendment of 1969, which i= sup-
ported by the Nixon administration, provides for a more veasomable
Iaw than the one which is now on the books sud will apply equally (o
all States of the Nation, not just to the Soutl, )

The Voting Rights At of 1965 was a punitive measure designed to
punish the Statex that supported Goldwater for President. I am
pleased that this administration will not require Southern States to
clear changes in their election laws with the Depurtment of Justice
here in Washington. The voting laws of all States, not just the South-
ern States, will be subject to review hy the Justice Department.

The administration’s position on the Voting Rights Act shows it
is committed to equal treatment for all seetions of the country. If the
Supreme Court had not recently held that lteracy tests ave invalid in
the Southern States regardiess of the Voting Rights Aet, 1 am con-
fident that the administration would have allowed any State to have
literacy requirements for voters, sinee the Constitution leaves voting
qualifications to each State.

I think the Voting Rights \et of 1965, which is diseriminatory. un-
sty and anfaiv, should be allowed to expive permanently. 11 the poli-
cies it eontains shonld be extended, then sueh extension should cer-
tainly apply nationwide, as vecommended by the administration, and
not to the South zlone, in elear violation of the Constitution.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Nenator Ervix, Senator Scott vequests that his statement be inserted
inthe vecord.

{ The statement of Senator Scott, above reforved to, follows ;)

NTATEMENT OF SExNATOR Huoi Rcorr

Mr. Chairman, I weleome this apportunity to urge that the Subeommittee on
Constitutional Rightx consider, as a first priovity. the extension of the existing
Voting Rights Aet of 165 and its ban against the use of literacey tests as iustruo-
ments of racial éirerimination. Ax one who cospousored and fought for the en-
actient of this landiark levislvdon, T foel especinly empellind to urge that
your Subconnnittes not open the door to the ¢lear and present visk that this act
could expive by defanle if Congress is caught in prolonged indecision over other
afternative approaches, no matter how enticing these might at first appear.

I live previousty announced. and I restate here, my willingnoess to supnort a
total abolition of literaey tests — if considered ax separate legislation, and if Qe-
bated after an extension of the existing act hax once heen secured. T do think
that we are heading toward the elimination of all literacy tests, and 1 ¢hink that
is gool. But 1 Qo not want the issue of the extension of the Vating Rights et
of 1965 clowded by the injection of other proposals. Tt ix on this qaestion of tim-
ing, and not one of basic purpose, that T respeetfully and reluctantly take is<ue
with the Attorney General.

Atterney General Mitehell is one of the ablest mien 1 have known in public Hie,
I do not for one moment gquestion his sincerity in advoeating 2 broader approach
to the voting rights prollen I am confident great benetits could resudt from the
total ban on literaey tests which he advoeates, and 1 hope that this, too, ¢an be
considered at the nroper moment. Twontd expect to lend my support at that time.

Like the Mtorney General, Tam fally aware of the Supreme Court’s rvecent
ruling in the Gaston vase, and its ban against the use of literacy tosts whoere un-
equal educational opportunities exist. I not persuaded, however, that this de-
civion in any way relieves the Congress of its responsibility to guavantee that
the progress in voter registration, painstakingly hegun wnder the 1963 Voting
Rights Aet, is continued. Whether the Gasfon ease will be taken as precedent for
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a line of similar decisions, ix something which, at thix peint, remains to be seen.,

With the 1965 Voting Rights Act scheduled to expire next year, I do not believe
that we can fail now, as a tirst consideration, to reaffirm onr moral commitment
to the effective principles of this established Act. I urge, without reservation, its
immediate extension for a set period of years, and 1 have already cosponsored
legislation to accomplish this, without further smeidiment. It would be detri-
mental to all of our citizens if an intellectual disiagreement between a functioning
law, and a potential ideal, was to cloud the clear issue of the 1963 Voting Rights

Act's future.
Senator Frvix, Senator, I helieve you ave the fivst witness,

STATEMENT OF HON. CHARLES McC. MATHIAS, JR., A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF MARYLAND

Senator Marnras, Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,

In 1870, by ratifying the 15th amendment, Congress and the Nation
unequivocally declared that the “right of citizens of the United States
to vote shall not be denied . . . on account of race, color, or previous
condition of servitude.” But for 95 years, until the passage of the
\"otxing Rights et of 1965, that promise was often ignored and even
repudiated.

As a member of the Committee on the Judiciary in the other body
in 1965, I took part in many of the hearings, debates and conferences
which finally produced the Voting Rights Act of 1965. That act was a
milestone in our national march toward equal rights under the law. It
was a clear statement by the Congress that systematic frustration of
tho 15th amendimment would no longer be tolerated or condoned.

The central feature of the act, as I think the chairman pointed out,
i, of convse, its “automatic trigger” provision, which suspended liter-
acy tests and similar devices in any jurisdietion in which less than 50
percent of voting age persons eitlier were registered to vote on No-
vember 1, 1964, or voted in the presidential election of 1964,

In addition to suspension of the jurisdiction’s test, the act provides
that the Attorney General can designate any county in such area for
appointment of Ifederal examiners. The examiners compile lists of
persons qualified to vote under State law, which persons State and
local officials are obligated to place on their offizial voting rolls.

Section 8 of the act enables the .\ttorney General to send Federal
observers to any connty designated under section 6 to observe polling
places and vote counting.

A fourth consequence of the antomatic trigger provision prohibits
the jurisdiction from utilizing any new voting qualification or proce-
duce without first either submitting it to the .\ttorney General for
approval or obtaining a declaratory judgment in the District Court
for the Distriet of Columbia that the new procedure does or will not
have the purpose or effect—the purpose or effect—of abridging the
right to vote on account of race or color.

A jurisdiction to which the automatic trigger provision would other-
wise apply can avoid suspension and related aspects of the act by
establishing before the District Court for the Distriet of Columbia
that no “test or device has been used during the 5 years preceding the
filing of the action for the purpose or with the etfect of denying or
abridging the right to vote on account of race or color.”

It 1s this requirement which is referred to as “expiration” of the
act. If the act 1s not extended, any State which suspended a literacy
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test or similar device at its passage will, after \ugust 6, 1970, not have
wsed a test in any manner, diseriminatory or otherwise, for 5 vears
ad will be able to suceeed in the appropriate suit. Sueh a jurisdiction
will he able to reinstate all of the techniques and devices of discrimina-
tion which the act was passed to halt. Equal access to the voting booth
will then have to be regained, precinct by precinet, through the courts.

N, 818, which T introduced January 31 on my behalf and on behalf
of Senator Scott and Senator Fong, Yextends” the act by changing the
a-year requirement to 10 vears, .An identical measure, S. 2456, bears
the names of 38 cosponsors.

In the period since 1965, more than 800,000 Negro voters have heen
registered in the seven States to which the trigger provision applied.
That the act’s vegistration goal is far from attained, however, is evi-
deut from the latest available statistics, which indicate nonwhite reg-
istration laggineg well behind white vegistration in those areas:

Mr, Chairman, T have the statisties. T won’t read them fully, but I
would like to submit them for the record. ‘The source of these statis-
ticx, the Voter Eduecation Project, Voter Registration in the South:

SUMMER 1968

A county-by-county analysis indicates that less than 40 percent of
potential black voters are registered in some 90 counties and parishes
i Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, and
South Carelina, while the percentage is between 10 and 50 in 107 other
counties and parishes.

Impressive evidence of the need for continuation of the act has
heen compiled by the Civil Rights Commission in its Political Partici-
pation Study, based on work from November 1966 through April
196<, That decument indicates that the Negro vote has been diluted
by switehing to at-large elections, consolidating counties, gerryman-
deving, and by full-slate voting requirements, It further asserts that
Negro eandidates are thwarted by abolishing oflices, extending terms
of white incmmnbents, substitnting appointment for clection, increas-
ing filing fees, adding requirements for getting on the ballot, and
withholding information. '

The commission found that black citizens have been excluded from

vrty precinet meetings, wrongfully omitted from registration lists,
’mmssod by election oflicials, and vietimized by insuflicient voting fa-
cilities, Tt determined that Negro voters have been given erroneous
information and subjected to diseriminatory disqualification on tech-
nieal grounds, while Neavo poll watchers have been interfered with
and excluded.

Allegations of oflicial voting fraud to prevent election of black
candidates have been made. There has been a dearth of black election
oflicialz,

Finally, Loth physieal and economie intimidation have apparently
been nsed to frustrate the act’s attempt to implement the 15th
amendinent.

Stmilar abuces were noted by the Clivil Rights Commission oh<er-
vation of the May 13. 1969, municipal primary elections in Missi-<ippi,
and ontlined in a June 3, 1969, stafl report.
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1t is my understanding that the Commission will be before this =ub-
committee to s!llht(lll(!.llt‘ it findings, For the moment, 1 think they
speak for themselves and what Ihm say should be compelling.

The President, during the last campaign, pledged to eall up the
hest elmnonh of the new South. Surely one of the primary ways to
do =0 ix to continue the gradual, pmltn e and beneficial change Deing
wrought by the act of ]"h. That 15 not to say that other reforms
and improvements should not e considered in good seazon. But first
thing= <hould be put fivst, The contidence of the people that the posi-
tive wains of the past are to be preserved in the present slmull he
maintained. With thi< conlidence irmly fixed in our people, we can
build move curely for the future.

Thank you very nmeh. Me. Chaiviman,

CThe statisties above-referred to, follow :)

Tir the period sinee 1963, more than S0000 Negro voters hiave been registered
in the seven states to which the trigger provision applied. That the Act's registra-
tionn goat is far from attained, however, is evident from the Latest available
statistics, which indicate nonwhite registration Iagging well behind white
regixtration in thoxe areas:

?ercenl white Pen:ent LM Mhte

regutratm tegistretion
Y 3T T U U 82.% 56.7
Georgin. ... 84.7 56. 1
Louisiana . 8.9 59.3
Mississipoi 92.4 59.4
North Carolma. ... . ... .. .. 18.1 £5.3
South Carobra_... P - . . 65.6 508
Visginia L. .. . e 67.0 a4

Source: Volar education project, voter registration in the south, summer 1953,

Nenator Ervix. Tinight state these figures ave very misJeading. In
nny counties in North Carolina there was a completely new registra-
tion. There wax one in my county, and 1 would venture to sayv over 9%
pereent of the residents ave registered and Tam proud o be able to say
that about 97 pereent of them voted in the last general election. My
county is not one that is banned under the act, lho&(l North Carolina
registration figures apparvently have 61 counties ineluded in this fiznre
to which this Voting Rights Aet of 1965 doesn’t apply at all,

Senator, you made a statement about same laws which had been
passed. You don’t elaim any of thoze lvws have bheen pas<ed in North
Carolina

Senator Maviras, T owill nor dispute the ehatrman’s word. North
Carolina i= not invelved in that. no, <ir.

Senator Ervix, 1 would say as far as North Carolina is coneerned.
the way the illitevacy test ix “administered under the State hoard of
t-h'umm is that they aive each voter about the shortest sentence they

an find in the Constitution printed on a pace, and then have a blank
hw him to copy it I my judement. anybody who has been to school
for & years who ix not & complete idiot. ean pazs the North Carvolina
literaey test.

Despite the decision of the distriet comrt and the permaneney of
the Supreme Court of the United States, it i= a great shock to anyhody
in North Carolina who has any knowledge .|hn'lt the facts in Gaston
County to even realize anvbody elaims there i any voter diserimina-
tion in the county.
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Senator, where a State registers virtually every person in it 21 yvears
of age and over, ix there any relationship between the nwmber of peo-
ple who turn ont and vete in an election and the guestion of
dizerimination

Menator Marnas, There conld be. yes, sir.

Senator Kevix, How f Teltus, 1w mll(l like to know,

\olmtm Marinas, Well, of course, many factors determine the voter
turnout in any given election, the kind of candidates that ave before
the public, the kind of eampaign that has been put on, the weather.
rain,

Senator FKrvin, Yes,

Senator Marias. Al these things atlect it. But. ax I believe the
Civil Rights Commission will {e\tlf\ ple-ontl\ to this committee, theve
are also means of intimidating particular kinds of voters: vmplnu s
nmay or may not make it easy for & work crew to vote on a given day.
We have instances of this kind of economic intimidation which is used.
Other forms of suggestion are made to voters that it would or wouldn't
be a good idea for them to appear at the polls in a given election undes
given circumstances,

In my statement. I attempted !n~nm.mu.u- very briefly for the com-
nnttoc—-bw.mw I didnt want to be huln'uhm with the testimony
coming from the Civil Rights Commission, which testinzony, 1 think,
will substantiate the fact that i some cases these, practices <till
survive,

Senator Ervin. Well, I don’t give quite the eredence to the Civil
Rights Commission report that xome people do, because it reportd
very solemnly some years ago that there was dizerimination aeain-t
blacks in Graham Connty, N.C. when there wasn't a single black
residing in the county. But theve is no way a State or connty can el
people to come out and vote, i there !

Senator Marias, Not under onr svstem,

Senator Ervix. s far as the State is concerned, if it registers ali
qn‘hhml voters, there can be no dizerimination by the Ntate,

Senator \I\III!\\ That certainly ix a goal that we ought to leok
forward to, [0-pereent vegistyation of all eligible voters,

Senator Ervin. Now, vour amendment. a~ 1 construe it, merely
strikes out the word “five”™ and insert= the word “ten.”

Senator Marias, It extends the trigeer provision fer another 5
years.

Senator Kevin, But it «till operates on the bazis of the 196 election,
does it ¢

Nenator Martimas, Yes, it dooes,

Senator Esvix. And since that time. we have had another eleetion.
Now, don’'t you =ee a little inconsisteney in taking the 1964 figures aind
making them conclusive, althongh there has heen another election £

Senator Mawnmas, 1 would =ay, Mr. Chaiviman, that it the vecord
were clean in all other respects that conclusion would he correct. BBut
the fact remains that there is considerable evidenece that there hasn't
heen a total change in this picture, that there <Gl are forms of in-
timidation, forms of diserimination in connection with voting, which
are relate ! to this whole arvea covered by the 1965 act, I x(ondm;: the
tricger provision will extend other provizions of the act and will con-
tinue to give some protection against such dizerimination.

400 —F0——2
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Senator Fevix, 11 you have a teigger provision based on 1961 and
then you have a 1963 election which rebuts the trigger, how can you
say there is any relationship between the trigger of 1961 and ‘the
futuye !

Senator Matnias, Well, 1 think that establishes the base, that is
parity. I think that if the record were—if the record were otherwise
without a blemish-—mayhe we could do without the base. But there is
<o much smoke that I think we need to maintain the 1961 hase.

Now, as I have said, T don’t believe that this iz the “*be all” and
“end all” in this area. This is one of the things I think that needs
to be done to maintain confidence. People are wondering. They are
anxious. They are worried and concerned as to whether or not we
are woing to maintain the gains of the past few years in the civil
rights avea.

Now, one of the ways to do it will be to extend this act. Then let’s
consider the other steps that need to be taken, because this, I think, will
build a great deal of confidence.

Senator Ervix, We have a trigger device of 1964 and the 1968 facts
which rebut its assumptions. Tt seems to me that is a little legislative
schizophrenia.

Senator Matnras. Well. T don’t believe it is schizophrenia, M.
Chairman, at all, because the 1965 act established a fact. The trigger
which was automated in 1964 established a fact and a set of condi-
tions. T believe the testimony of the Civil Rights (‘fommission. which
will he forthcoming, will indicate that many of those conditions are
still in eflect, not only as of 1963, but as of 1969, and this is veally
what we have to operate under.

Senator Exvix. Why not amend the act to provide that the trigaer
device is going to be based on the 1968 election instead of 19647 In
other words, why condemn a State for what was done in the past ?

Senator Matinas. Well, for one thing we are dealing with the avea,
of customs and attitudes in which lasting change cannot be expeeted
to occur rapidly. T think that undev the 1965 act, using the 1964
statisties as a base, we have established the problem avea, and T be-
lieve that the current evidence which will be hefore the Senate is that
problems still exist in that avea and that therefore, to alter the base,
to «o to the 1968 figures, which alters your area of concentration, your
area of attention, would very seriously undermine the confidence of
people in the determination of Government to make the 15th amend-
nent a living, breathing part of our Constitution.

Senator Krvin. Well, how wonld you rule as a judge if you had
a case where X county in North Carolina, voted less than 50 percent
of its adult population in 1964, the presidential race. Then there comes
along evidence that in 1968 that X county voted 55 percent or 60 per-
cent. ar 70 percent of the adult population. TTow would vou rule?
That is alt the evidence you have.

Senator Marntis. Well, the act, T think, makes it very simple for
the judge to rule. It isn’t without precedent in our seeiety to establish
a_certain base period in which we express concern. AH farn. legisla-
tion velates hack to a day certain in whieh vou relate eosts and farm
produce prices.

We do set certain times within—we say that is a time whieh is a
haze period and we are going to work from that,
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Senator Ervin, I would just hike to know how you would rule if you
were  judge in that case,

Senator Maraias. Under the act it is clear the 1964 figures will be
controlling,

Senator Krvix. Don’t you think that would be rather unjust ¢

Senator Marirnas, 1 think that is primary evidence that there was
a problem,

Senator IKrviN. Yes, The problem has been cured by the 1968 vote.

Senator Mariias, 1f the problem has been cured, then there will be
no serious difliculty. But there would be evidence that there was reason
for watchfulness during at least another 3-year period. I would be
willing to be watchful for that further 5-year period.

© Senator Bayir. Would the Senator yield just a moment /

Senator lXrvix. Yes.

Senator Bayi, Senator Ervin from North Cavolina, of course, the
prominent member of the judiciary in his State, speaks from great
judicial authority.

Senator Ervix. I am from North Carolina. I wouldn’t be allowed
to rule in this case.

Senator Bavi. I would like to ask the Senator from Maryland—1I.
appreciate the Senator yielding—and perhaps if he was sitting on
the bench and was asked to rule on such a case, that he would he con-
cerned, would he not, about what was going to happen in 1972, and
perhaps might state come evidence of what had happened hetween
1964 and 1968, such as the results that have been accomplished by the
passage of the Voting Rights Act and might suggest to himsel f that if
this act were to be repealed that there would be general regression
from 1968 back to 1964 and prior to 1964, when we really want to
move forward and do a better job,

1 think the fact that we have to have this kind of legislation to
make progress in this field is not good evidence. But we are heine
rather naive to suggest that progress made bet ween 1964 and 1968 jan't
the vesult of the act itzelf,

Senator Maritras. T think the Senator is exaetly right, and the point
I made in my statement is that there is enough evidence to believe that
if the motivation provided by the act is removed, allowed to expire.
that there can be a considerable amount of backsliding. This is the
thing that is making people concerned and worried, this is the thing
which is sapping confidence ; this is the thing we can prevent by simply
extending the act for 5 vears,

Senator Ervix, You say vou want to move forward, but vou want to
stay with 1964.

Senator Marnas. T wonld like to say. Mr. Chairman, that T wait
to move forward, forward from the solid base that was established
under the 1965 act. T think that the act has proved itself in the very
fact that the Senator cites. The improvement of the 1968 figures over
the 1964 ficures elearly makes the case that the 1965 act has been an
effective piece of legislation,

On that basis, T think, having preserved that forward thrust of
1965, we ean then eo forward to think ahonut other thines,

Senator Tirviy. T doubt seriously whether a single perzon registored
in North Carolina on account of the 1965 act.

Senator Marrras. Well, the chairman is certainly the expert on
North Carolina.
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Senator Ervin, I don’t see why people should not be rewarded for
what vou consider to be good action instead of being punished. If
theyv have the past sing-————

Senator Moyrias, Moo Chairman, T think yon put yvour finger on
vour problem vight here, 11 they were all sins of the past, which has
heen repented of, and they had gone out and =inned no move, ther we
wortld have no »roblem here. I think we eonld all agree that we don™t
need this legi=lation any more,

But the evidence that ix available does indicate that, as the Senator
from Indiana suggested, if you remove the motivation of the act you
ave poing to have some backsliders. We want to keep them all up
torward of the chuveh i f we ean.

Senztor Krvix. T am sorey, but 1 don’t think the North Carolinians
are going to backslide,

Nenator Bavi. I want to get the record corveeted, if 1 gave the
inference that North Carolinians would backslide more than anyhody
el=e. 1 have no objection to the nationwide program. I don’t like to zee
a person dizcriminated against whether he iz North, South, East, or
West. [ must say, and I certainly don’t intend 10 infer that anyone
tits in this category, such as the Senator from North Carvolina, but
do intend to infer that come people represent this nationwide plan
not to provide a nationwide plan for a fanlproof system, but to pre-
vent—but an etort to try to destroy the progress that we have made.

I think we are really dealing-——and T don’t want to interrupt the
very enlightening colloquy that is going on herve—~but I think we are
veally dealing with fire, dynamite, if we permit onrselves to give the
slichtest hapression to those people who for o long have been di--
eriminated against and now have been given fivst-class citizenship.
anrd now we are going to take it from them. and T think we are asking
tor revolution, and if we proceed along that way we ave liable to get it.

I think we should he very concerned. this Congress and this Senate
and this committee, Mr. Chairman, is determined that we are going to
continue the progress that has been made. If there has been progress
made in North Carolina, we salute North Carolina. hut we don’t want
to risk giving anvone the iinpression that we are going to lower the
standard now that we have raised it

Senator Frvix, Senator, on what kind of a basis ean you justify <ay-
ing “(loze all the conrts in the land except one.” Tlow can you have
Congress condemn people by legislative Hat withont a trial. and then
=ay in order to reacquire the power fo exercize their rights inder the
U.S. Constitntion they must zojourn to one conrt ?

Don’t vou think that is a rather shabby form of due process?

Senator Marnpas, My, Chairman, again, it i= not withont precedent
under our svstem. This is the seat of Government, so designated von-
stitutionally. There are certain acts of Government of which this i< a
very important one, which are appropriately litigated in the seat of
Government, and T think it is appropriate. T would like to revert a
moment.

You place great evidence on the progress from 1964 to 1968, T put
great weight on that, too. T think it is very important. But when yon
consider that progress in the aveas covered by the act, covered in-
cidentally by general law, they just happen to fall within the statistics,
The disturbing thing is that even though there is a considerable over-
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all advance that black regi-tration is stitl 20 to 30 pereent behind white
registration in these areas.

There is Alabama, with 82 pereent white registration against 56
black: Georgia, with X1 percent white against 56 black. In all of these

cases there has been progress since 1965, but a ditfevence of 20 to 30 per-
cent between black and white persists,

I think that if 1 were the hypothetical judge—1 guezs we ave, all of
us, constitutionally ineligible to be judges, so we don’t have to be
hypothetical judges,

.'\'enntm- Erviy. You live in Maryland and the law forbids yon from
heing a judge and forbids any judges in Maryland from having any-
thing to do with it,

Senator Marias, As [ -ay, we are constitutionally ineligible for at
lea-t the terms we are elected. But in those eases, T wonld consider
not only the raw figure, not only the gress figure, but 1 would consider
the eap that exizts between your white registration and your black
registration. Fven with the advances that have been made. that isstill a
substantial figure.

Senator Frvin. Nenator. how do you justify eloging all of the courts
in the United States except one court ?

Senator Marnras. Wello my vecollection of the rationale heing first
corsidered was not that it was an attempt to deprive any conrts of
nnmllr tion, but that it was a matter which was properly dealt with
at the seat of government due to the importance of the subject, and
the necessity of being able to expeditiously resolve eases upon which
elestions might depend.

Nenator Frvix. Couldn’t you get an eavly trial in the court next deor
to vou instead of coming, as wnplo of Mississippi would have to do,
a thonsand miles to the I)Mlut of Columbia.

Nenator Marrins, Wello my understanding now—v recotleetion
over B years may not be as shavp as it should he—-but it i< my vecollec-
tion that there was some evidence suggesting at that time, or =ome
opinton =uggesting at that time, that yon might not get quite as early
a hearing at some other places,

Senator Fevix. You mivht have to produce evidence, Don't you
acree with me!?

Senator Marnnas, The Congress has to aet on its best judement in
these natters.

Nemator Kevixe Sometimes Congress aets on its worst judgment.

Senator Moarias, Sonetines we make ver Vourave ervors,

Senator Fevin. | would like to know on what basic von justifyv a
provision in the Jaw saying that Federal judges in seven States shall
not have jurisdiction of eases avising in those States. but that judees
that <it anywhere from up to a thowsand miles away should he the only
indare htl\'in;: power to act.

Senator Marnias, 1 believe, My Chatrman, what the v savs s
tha }mlwvx of 5 State~ don't sit on this

Senator Eevis. Under this kind of accheme vou could wive Congress
the power to give a Federal distriet court \INIII" in the isle of Guam
the juri-diction of every civil ease avising in the United States.

Senator Martias, Welll the Congress, we both agreed has no range
a~ that.

Senator Frvixe Don't vou think that all convts should be open to
try controversies?
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Senator Marnias, T think it is appropriate. Mr. Chajirman, to in
:ome eases, and T haven't made any exhaustive study of those cases
where legislation does provide for sole jurizdiction in the District
here, but

Senator Envix. 1 know of one «tatute, in the Yeagers case, and that
was where the surt was sitting, in effect. as an administrative hoard
on OPA to prevent it from having different rulings all over the coun-
try. There was one court, the Special Clirenit Court of A ppeals. Outside
of that, T know of no statute that gives exclusive juvisdiction to one
-court over all others.

T think it is a shabby form of due process of law, becanse T don't
think you can get a fair trial where you have to transport vonr
witnesses long distances.

T was in hopes that some of the advocates of this Jaw wounld at least
concede that Federal judges sitting in North Carolina and other
States have enough character to be trusted to try cases.

Senator Marnras. Mr. Chairman. T think that is an unfortunate
inference,

Senator Ervin. What is the inference?

Senator Marnias. T think we have tried to spell it out, that the
provision insures a desirable degree of uniformity. There is a desirable
degree of speed. T don’t think improper speed, but yon can move with
dispateh. You have your appellate system right up to the Supreme
Ceurt here. In a case with a State election, congressional election,
wamicipal election, whatever it may be. dependent upon the outcome
of a given controversy, I think you could move with comsiderable
dispatch.

You also don’t get a series of conflicting judoments.

Senator Ervix. On that argnment, you could abolish the system
of the Cirenit Comrt of Appeals by pntting all the circuits here in
Washington, D.C. T think von shounld have 10 cirenits to hand down
opinions, As a lawver, that is an intelerable provision, As a matter of
fact, when this statute first came over from the House, subpenas from
the district conrt up here were effective for only 100 miles.

Tt was amended in the Senate as the result of my agitating on this
point, but it was amended to give the judges diseretion to issue sub-
penas beyond 100 miles. Do vou think any man ought to have to de-
pend on the diseretion of the court for the right to produce witnesses?

Senator Marinas. Mr. Chairman, T can say this with the greatest
possible respeet and affection : von consider this to be an intolerable pro-
vision of the law, and T don’t think it is one that anybody weleomes
having in the law. But it addresses itself to problems which are also
intolerable. Tt is out of a deep feeling of convietion about the impos-
sibility of tolerating conditions that vou have to sometimes do hard
things. Perhaps this is one of the hard things which has to he done.

What are yvon going to tolerate?

Senator Enrvix. T would not tolerate prostitution in the judicial
process as this act does. .\ erap-shooter is given more consideration and
has got more legal rights than the State of North Carolina has under
this statute. You couldn’t try to erap-shooter shooting erap in Norvth
Cavolina in the Distriet of Columbia.

T would hope that the law would be amended so as to remove this
insult upon every Federal judge in seven States,
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Do vou think the provision that a State legislature has to come. hat-
in-hand, to the Attorney General of the United States, an exceutive
officer, before it can make its law effective—

Senator Marnnas, I think that, frankly, Mr. Chairman, is an ex-
traordinary provision of the law, but T think it is required by the ex-
tr 101dm'u'v circumstances,

Senator Iirvix. In other words, give judicial power to an executive
oﬂlce?

Senator Marirss. Mr. Chairman, 1 think that we ought to have the
record clear here, both in the case of the courts in the District and the
case of the actions of the Attorney General. T don’t know of any case
in which they have abused the powers granted in section 4.

Senator Ervix, Well, it is not a question of abuse, as Isee it. T don't
think the power ought to be vested. T think it is a question of separa-
tion of powers undor the Constitution. T am glad to say my State has
never come here, hat-in-hand, and asked formvthnm

That isall.

Do you have anything?

Senator Hrusica. I have no questions.

Senator Bay. Thank you.

Senator Ervix. Senator Thurmond.

Senator T'nvryoxn. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Mathias, T am cmhmlv in favor of everybody voting, and
that has been my record since T have been in pnb]w fife. If there is any
obstruction in my State to voting, T would certainly be in favor of it
being removed.

Do you have any evidence that there is any diserimination in Sonth
Cavolina and any people who are not allowed to vote? T am asking you
if you have any evidence of that kind ?

Renator Marnras. Senator, the report of the U.S. Commission on
Civil Rights

Senator Tuuryroxn. Who is that sitting to yvour vight? Would vou
identify him for the record?

Senator Matras. This is Mr. Darling. Tle is a member of my per-
sonal staff.

Senator Tiursoxp, Of your own staff ?

Senator Matnias. Yes,

The political participation veport of the Commission on Civil
Rights, which was submitted to the President in May of 196S, has
information on Richland County, S.C., Dorchester County, and Wil-
liamsburg County. It will all he before the committee. an(l I will he
glad to outline it. But it does mention South Carvolina, sinee that is
vour request,

Senator Tuuryoxn, What page is that mentioned on?

Senator Matinas, Well, pages 61, 62, 63,

Senator Trvratoxn, Ts the q]lo«atmn that people arve not allowed to
register or not allowed to vote?

Senator Matimas. The allegation goes to various kinds of politieal
activities, diserimination against people who are registered, exclusion
from precmct meetings, for e\fnnp]e. T just cite this as one instance.

Senator Tiuryoxn. T don't believe it is true. The Civil Rights Com-
mission a few vears ago, and T will state, made an absolutely false
statement. For instance, there is one county, McCormick County. They




18

alleged there was diserimination in the Demoeratic administration.
lnm sent the FBI people down there for weeks and they didn’t find
any diserimination at all,

[ am confident that it is incorrect here,

It is gencrally known. [ think, that anybody in South Carolina can
regicter who is (|l|‘l|]|l(‘(|. and anybody can vote who is qualified. T am
sure it is the policy of public “offieials, State, county, and Federal
oflicials, that this be done.

You wouldn’t care to elaborate any more on that point : wonld you?

Senator Marmias, 1 think that the record will speak for itself, and
T think——

Semator Tremyoxp, In the statement which you are making-—this
i~ coming from the report of the Civil Rights Commission and not
from vonr own knowledge?

Senator Mararas, That s correet,

Senator Trerroxn, And vou don't have any other information ex-
cept from the Civil Rights (’mmm::mn’

Senator Marnnas, This is the primary source.

Senator Trermoxp, Anyone in South (favolina can vote it he can

ead o write the Constitution, which is a very simple requirement. T
h ave read where many States have much higher voting requirements.
New York State, for instance, has a mueh higher htm.lo\ r(-qum-mont

Do vou think it is fair to have a literacy loqmrom(‘nt in one State
and not in another?

Senator Maruras, The Uith amendment, Senator, goes (o the gues-
tion of tests, literacy tests or otherwise, which deny the right to vote
on aceount of race, eolor, or previous condition of sevvitude,

The question is whether the New York test, for example, has heen
applied =0 as to vielate the provisions of the tith amendment.

Senator Frvix, T think the New York fest was put under the 14th
amendment,

Senator Marnms, Any test of any sort.

Senator Kuvix, It is a vather miracutous decision that the fifth
~eetion of the Hth amendment, which merely empowers Congress
to adopt Fewislation appropriate to enforee the 1 Hh amendment, alloss
Congress tonullify State law in perfeet harmony with the THh ames -
went and then to et up a Federal standard of qualification for voting
whieh the Congress is forbidden to pass by section 2 of artiele 1, the
firet section of avticle T1. the 10th amendment, and the 17th amend-
BNt

Senator, excuse me. These ficures—I will show vou what wonder-
ful ficeres they ave. In the county which adjoins my county they
have a Negro \'otnw age ;mnula(mn of 1,723. That is 19—~

Senator Mariiras, Which Tist is the chaivman veferring to?

Nenator Ervix, This Voting Registration in the South, a publica-
tion of the Sonthern Regional Council. Tn other words, although
that county has only 1,723 Dlacks of voting age, it has 1,958 registered,
according to these htrul(\. and Bwke (‘mmt\. my comty, according
to these fizures, has only 3.296 blacks of voting age, but it has 41391
of them registered. So they ave wonderful figures.

Senator Mariras. T think, Mr. Chairman—and understand, T—

Senator Ervin. You didn’t compile the figures?

Senator Marutas, T didn't eompile the hrrulox but it is my under-
standing that due to the age of the eensus tract, the fact that we are
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oy Tovear from a new censiis and some censns fmares refer loek
to the previovs figiies, You do get some avonabic: which don’t atle.:
e Lusie thinst of the conclusdons from $he =tatisties,

Senat o Frviso That theory even goes further back than the 1ot
Hawre, Tt goes to the 1960, Bur they don’t =ay that in leve,

Have you tinished?

Senator Tovearosn, No,

Senator Mathias—o

Senator Marnnas, Kxae me, Senator, for just a ninute,

H yon notice on the introductory page of the voter regi-tration
statement, it ix explained that the figwes, population fignve-. e
based on the 160 cen~us and thus registration figures mieht excoed
population figures in connties experiencing considerable growth, =
I think that explains the apparent anomalies.

Serator Thensoxn, You speke of Richland Connty. T have just
had 2 chanee vo ook at_this report. Tnotice it veads thiz way : = Newroos
reportedly pavticipated fully inprecipet meetings,”

Now, they are speaking of a Democratic precinet meetings, That i
in three countiez. The other t wo connties, Negrroes were reported elter
outright excluded or denied the richt to participate fully. That is
precinet nicetings,

Now, that 1= a meeting, a precinet mecting. I remind you that is
Democratic precinet meetingrs,

Senator Marinas, [ get the point, Senator,

Senator Tuermosn, Now, i Richland County, that = the conuty
you referved to. “Negroes maintained control of Democratic Pty
oflices in precinets they had control ing in the past, such as wards I8
and 19 in Cohimbia”

“Negro leaders also wepoited  gins in precines dominated by
whitex, in which Negroes constituted a majority of the population.”

Then further down, “approximately 200 Negroes attended the ol
iy Democratie Party precinet meeting in rural Hopkins precine
in Routh Richland County. Only three or four white people were
present. Negroes were eleeted to all the precinet offices. Two Negroes
and one white person were elected to the county convention.” I den't
see anything in here that indicates they were denied the vight to peg-
ister or the right tovote,

In some eases, it seems they arve denied or exeluded from sone of
theze Democratic precinet meetings or something of that kind.

Senator Marmias Well Senator, vou asked we what reference
there was to Sonth Carelina in this veport and I did eite YOU just n
few examples,

H you turn to the next page, you go into Dorchester Comnty, T don't
know whether we want to read this whole veport. But look at Dor-
che=ter County. The Negro voters were denied an equal chanee to
partivipate,

Senator Tremoxn, In what?

Henator Marninas, 1966 Demoervatic Party piecinet meeting in rural
Ridgeville.

Senator Tuuvryoxn. That is Democratic Pavty precinet meetine,
but that is not the right to register or vote, That is the Democrat-
denying them the right to participate.

Senator Marnigs. Seleetive examples of interference with the total
clective proces=. Tt is not just registiation. A fterall, Senator, we tallic!
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a few minutes ago ahout 100-percent registration, and the fact that
100-percent registration doesn’t produce 100-percent results at the
polls, hecause. for many reasons, including the weather, and that some
of these reasons ave very important.

That is why there is, of course, a provision for observers in the
1965

Nenator Trirenyoxn. If there is any information about anybody be-
ing denied the right to register or vote in my State, T would certainly
like to know it, and I am sure that oflicials i our State would like to
know it, because T know of no policy or any desire of any public official
to {ry to prevent people from registering or voting. In looking through
this part on South Carolina, I don’t see any such statement of any
kind, except in a few instances where it said they didn’t participate
fully in Democratic precinct meetings.

Senator Ervix. I think it is wrong to exclude people from precinet
meetings and also wrong to exclude people from the judicial system of
the United States.

Senator Tuuryoxn. I concur in the statement of the chairman on
that, and I want to state that as of October 5, 1968, this is the registra-
tion of whites and Negroes, 200,778 Negroes, 652,096 white. T have the
report here of the secretary of state. That is given on page 61 of the
supplemental report of the seeretary of state to the General Assem-
bly. ‘That is not too far from the percentage of population in South
Carolina. The pereentage of population, T believe, is about 38 percent
or around there.

This is almost a third of those who registered there to vote. So I just
want to say that there is certainly no discrimination in my State,and T
would see no reason for South Carolina to be punished when there is
no diserimination,

The only reason that South Carolina was included in this law hefore,
if T understand, were two veasons: first, they voted for Goldwater,
and second. only about 18 percent of those who registered actually
voted. If 50 percent had voted, they wouldn’t have been under the law,
as | interpreted it.

I don’t think there is any diserimination,

Now, the distingnished Senator, T am sure, is familiar with article
[, section 2, of the Constitution, which provides that the electors ineach
State shall have the qualifications of requisite to elect all the most
numerous branches of the State legislature.

Now, heis familiar with that section?

Senator Marnias, Yes,

Senator ‘Treryoxn, Tn simple words, what does that mean?

Senator Marnras. Well, T think the words speak for themselves, Sen-
ator. But T think perhaps the point that you ave getting to is that those
words certainly are to be construed in 1969 in relation to the amend-
ments to the Constitution which have succeeded over the years and that
do have impact on the oviginal body of the organic law of the Con-
stitution.

It seems to me that whatever construction the Senator might put
on those particular words would have to be in the light not only of the
words that you have just read, but also the amendments.

Senator Trurmoxn, Well, it simply means this, doesn’t it, that a
voter in each State must have the qualifications necessary for that
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same voter to vole for the Iouse of Representatives of the State
which is the most numerous body. That is what he means, isn’t it?

Senator Marmias, As amended by the 5th amendment, for example,
which would have further impact,

Senator Thnuryoxp. IHow would the 15th amendment amend that !

Senator Marnras. To the extent that a State might establish the
right to vote for the most numerous branch of the State legislature,
which was inconsistent with the 15th mmendment, that State law
would he null and void.

Senator Truryoxn. It can’t amend—-

Senator Ervix. It looks like it would be restored by the 17th, which
is exactly the smme phraseology. 'The Senator from South Carolina
has ascertained what I have ascertained, that under this act the
Supreme Court of the United States has repudiated the doctrine that,
in mterpreting the Constitution, you are to consider the Constitution
in harmony and give force and eflect to each part in the solution.

But it has held that under the 15th amendment and under section
5 of the 14th amendment, Congress now has the power to abolish any
parts of the Constitution that are displeasing to the Court or the
Congress on any subjects that these two amendments refer to, and
that means anything, because the 14th amendment protects all deal-
ingsbetween States and citizens.

Senator Tuuvryoxp. I don’t construe that the 15th amendment
amends article VI, section 1. T never heard that suggestion, but if it
did, the 17th came along and reaflirmed it. ‘There would be no question
about it. It is generally known and acknowledged by most students
of the Constitution that voting qualificaticns ave fixed by each State,
the legislative of cach State fixing voting qualifications, just as New
York State may have seventh grade or high school eduecation re-
quirements,

My State has a very simple requirement, only to be able to read
and write. Some other States may have a fifth grade requirement.
If this section is valid and States can fix voter qualifications, then
how did the 1965 Voting Rights Aet, which was a statute and not
an amendment to the Constitution, have the efleet of amending the
Constitution.

The Congress could have proposed a constitutional amendment for
consideration of the States and then three-fourths of the States conld
have adopted it and amended the Constitution in this way. But that
was not. done. This was merely a statute. T am thoroughly convinced
that this law has been unconstitutional from its very beginning.

Furthermore, doesn’t the Senator feel that in the law that applies
to all States, and if one State should be in errvor today, another State
should be in error tomorrow, and no one can tell what will happen in
the future, and shouldn’t all States reccive equal treatment ? That is
what the Constitution says.

Senator Marmras. I believe that, Senator.

Senator Trunryoxn, If that is the case, I am sure the Senator would
not have any objection to the recommendations by the Nixon adminis-
tration to treat all States alike.

Senator Matinas. s I have said, T have no objection to considering
many reforms and improvements in our election laws. I do believe it is
important to establish a basis of confidence, by extending this law,
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which T sight sax is, of conrse, a_general Inw applicabile to any of the
S Siates which happen to fall within s pardew,

Semator Thoeeyoxnp, Again, I want to <oy that T think the Vorine
Righis et of 1965 was diseriminatory, It was imjust and unfair and
should be ailowed to expire. hut if it i<to be contimied or the principies
to e continued. the poticies contained in it then, it should apply taall
States o 1f there i any dithenlty in any State, Novth, Sonth, Eastr, o
Westy the same law would apply to anybody, T think any fair-minded
man vould want that to be done.,

Thank you very mueh.

Me, Chairman, 1 have been ealled to a Rules Committee for a vote.
Will vou exense me 4

Senator fpvine T will have to disagree with my good friemd from
Maryland in one vespect. 1 think: this doesn’t apply to all Stares alike.
P think this was debberately picked ont to apply to Sonthern States,
and-—-

Senator Moavrnas, T eather that the eliaivman is making an ahserva-
tion and not a question?

Senator Fuvin, Yes: I am making an observation, which I think i-
true,

It wouldn’t have been politically possible to pass a law like this and
apply it to all States,

Senator Hevska, Me. Chairman, aven’t we about to embavk on an
ceffort to do that by the hill intraduced on.June 30 by Senator Divi:-en.
o that the Tuw will he applicable to the 51 States withont diserini-
nation?

Senator Frvix, Absolutely. As 1 stated in my opening siatenien. |
think this is an improvement in one respect beeause it applies that an-
constitutionality to all 50 States alike.

Senator Hrevska, T wonld like to addres< a auestion to the Senazor
from Maryvland. 11 section 4(a) and 4(b). +(d) and 4 (e) are repenled,
and section 5 is changed as propo<ed in S, 2397 giving the Attr ey
General expanded injunction power: wonkd this power not veach any
situation in any part of the United States where voting irvegubayiiics
or improper devices or improper practices are employed?

Nenator Marnras, Well, T wonld say. Senator, that the importuu
thrust of that propozed ehange, is that it casts the burden of proof o
the other side. It conld allow delay and in a given situation—-we liave
in Maryiand, for instanee, had election questions arise which hal to
be decided immediately, hefore the election day-—thix could a‘low
ereater delay.

And I would say further to the Senator that the power heing given
to the Attorney General to seek injunctive relief doc=n’t add anything
of great substance which isn’t already in the act.

Senator Hreska, That is not the only remedy available, however, Ax
the present faw would be amended by S, 2307, section 8 would «till
provide for examiners and observers, 1t is actually stronger i its
proposed amended form than the present law. and 1 shall read wimt
that added strength i

In the first place, part of the opening sentence in =section N read-:
“Whenever an examiner is serving under this act in any political suh-
division, the Civil Service Commission may.” This portion is striclen,
and replaced by the words, *Whenever the Attorney Genosol deter-
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miizes with respect 1o any political subdivision that in his judginens
the designation of observers is necessary or appropriate fo entoree
the guarantees of the 1ath armendment, the Civil Service Commission
shall.l™ The language then 1everts to the language of the present law as
follow:: assign at the request of the Attorney Generzl one o wore
pei=ons who may be ofticers of the United States™—uud =0 o,

At the end of the present =ection (a) S, 2507 adds: =\ determina-
tion of the Attorney General under thix section shall not be review-
able in any court.”

The efiect of thix proposed unendment ix to make this procedure
avaituble i any of the 50 States as opposed to making it available on
a trigger hasis e six or veven Ntates.

Now. in what way do vou think that the enforcement procedures
i the -ix or seven States or i all 50 States would be impairved by
reason of the amendments which arve contained in N, 2507

Sevator Marnnas, Welll vou know, Senator. the ezt suecinet
answer to that question was rriven by onr eolteage n the other hody,
Represeatative MeCultochi, of Ohio, who has a distinguished vecord
in this ield and who said—as nearly az 1 can quote him—thint the
chinnve 15w remedy that addresses itself to no existing wrong=, and
which woekens the remedies for wrongs that clearly do exist.

Poehie that that ix as short a summary as 1 ocould make, It i
theoretionlly, of conrse. desirable to have the opportunity to insure
thar there ave no deprivations of the right to vote on the ground of
corarg race, or previous condition of servitude noany one of the ib
Stuses, The et of 1960 attempted to establish where the trouble spot~
were and todeal with them, rather than to arant to the Justice Depart-
ment what may be superfluons powers, which T don’t think any one
of = wonts to grant to the Justice Department or any other depart-
tient,

Senator Hevska, Under both the existing act ant S, 2507 whenever
the Atforney General certities with respect to auy political subdivision
that he has received complaints in writing from 20 or more residents
of =1ch politieal subdivi<ion alleging they have been denied the right
to vore, then the Civil Nervice Commis<ion shall appoint as many
exaniners as neeessary to enforee the gmarantees of the 15th
anetdment.

Now, it vou eannot find 20 voters who are willine to explain that
they have heen dented the right to register or fo vote, mavhe the
cord-iions are not such as <hould be subject to eourt infunction. Bnt
wor the eomplaint of 20 peaple within that politieal sabdivision, the
=an -+ bowers may be weed that have been used <o effectively theve last
4 verrs vesalting in the regiztration of 00000 additional voters,

N inowhat way wonld the Attornev General’s powers he impatred
by the elimination of the tricoer provision contained in the existing
et !

Senator Marnnas, Ave we talkine ~trietlv about examiners and
oben ceps? ‘

Sentor Hreska. Tt is the lesiglation we are talking about.

Seator Marinias, In ease of examiners or ohservers?

Serator Hresca, Yes, Where the vights of individuals to register
and vote have heen allegedly impaired.

Senator Marnias, In the ease of provision for examiners and ob-
servers, [ see no substantial difference except in the coverage arvea.
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I would have no objection to having the Attorney General have that
power all over the country, but I just don’t see that the evidence hefore
the Congress makes it a necessary thing,

But 1 don’t see that it. is objectionable, except the chairman and I
think, at least, agree on the fact that any superfluous powers that are
granted are per se objectionable.

Senator Hruska, Well, of course, the chairman did point

Senator Matimas. 1 don’t mean to put words in the chairman’s
mouth,

Senator Iirvix. The chairman has always believed the laws ought
to be uniform and the States onght to possess some power.

Senator Hruska. The chairman did cite one example, a county in
New York—-

Senator Matnisas. I think you cited a 1.3 point difference in the
voting twrnout. That sounds like the margin by which T was first
elected to the Congress, 1.3 percent, I think. It made a lot of difference
tome,.

Senator Hruska. Well, he did cite the situation where Hyde County,
N.C. voted 49.7 percent of eligible voters in 1964, and New York
County voted 51.3 percent. If it had rained heavily that day and the
people in New York County had not come out to the polls, it would
have dropped below 30 percent. They would have been just as derelict
as anybody else.
| .ﬁonator Marnrs. Absolutely, which points ont this is a nationwide
bill.

Senator ITreska. Yet it is not covered by the present law and the
trigger device. However the law, as it would be amended by S. 2307
would make it applicable to any place.

Senator Marnias. It is applicable to any place that falls within the
test today.

Senator Ervin. If T may interject myself, the test and the trigger
device would apply to a number of congressional distriets in New
York State if it had been applied on the basis of congressional dis-
tricts instead of counties.

Senator Hruska. Well, T think, Senator Mathias, that you would
1ecognize that the law, as it would be amended by S. 2507, would
not impair the Attorney General’s power to send in observers and
examiners.

Senator Mamiias. It extends it. My only ohservation is that T am not
convinced of the necessity of the extension. T have no great objection
toit,

Senator Hruska. You are not convinced of what?

Senator Mariiras. That there is any necessity for the extension.

Senator Hruska. In this age when we don’t like to diseriminate,
wouldn’t it be better to have the law apply to all States equally ? After
all. the Southern States ave not conquered provinees or eolonies.

Senator Martnnis. T would remind the Senator the 1965 act applies
to the 50 States and sets up certain tests, and the arveas will fall
within those tests are the areas in which the act is operating. We say
under the wage and hour laws, if business does a certain volume, a
certain dollar volume in fiscal vear or ealender vear, then that business
is subject to Federal jurisdiction if they do. If they do one cent less,
they are not subject to the particularlegislation.
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Senator Ervix. I believe the Senator will find out, if he looks, that
there are several counties north of the Muason-Dixon line that fell
under this act and the Department of Justice immediately consented
to judgment that they be excluded from it. This act was deliberately
contrived to apply to Southern States and to let out the State of
'Texas, which has about. the unfairest voting record in the country.

Senator Matnras, 1 believe the Senator refers to Hawaii, Alaska,
and Arizona, which had some partial coverage under the act and
which did comply with the provisions of the act. Those instances just
prove the point that it is a nationwide act and they had to comply be-
fore the provisions of the act were held to be inoperative under the
conditions there existing, But they had to comply in Iawaii, in
Alaska, and in Arizona,

My, ITrvska. Wouldn’t the impact of S. 2507, be broader than the
present law ? The opening part of section 4 States: “Prior to January
1, 1974, no citizen shall be denied the right to vote in any Federal, State,
or local election beeause of his failure to comply with any test or
device.”

The definition of “test or device” will yemain the same as it now
stands under present law.

So, S. 2507 will apply to the same types of practices, but apply to
these practices in all 50 States rather than in just six or seven.

Senator Marnras. Well, the Senator has just a minute ago said that
we are dealing, after all, with Southern States and not with provinces
or colonies. T think what vou are suggesting, of course, is that we fur-
ther whittle down whatever sovereignty remains in the States of the
TUnion. We are saving we ean’t have these tests. All the extension
of the bill would provide is that you can’t violate the 15th amend-
ment by applying a literacy test, which teat is otherwise within the
right of the State.

That is what we are trying to get at. If Maryvland had a literacy test
or New York had a literacy test, or Vermont, or OQregon, or Washing-
ton, or Minnesota, or

Senator Hrusxa. New York has, Texas has.

Senator Matiras. They didn’t use the test to diseriminate.

What is the complaint ?

Senator TTruska. T want the record to show that this Senator is not
trying to whittle down anything, including State sovereignty. If there
isany whittling down, it is done by the Supreme Court, as in the Gaston
County case. S, 2507 is simply a reflection of what the Supreme Court
has done.

Senator Marnras. Wouldn't the Senator agree that by the act—the
Senator from South Carolina was raising the questions of the provi-
sions of article T of the Constitution, which empower the State to
establish certain standards for voting within those States.

T pointed out that that is, of course, affected by the provisions of
the 15th amendment. But when you say you can’t have any tests, then
it seems vou are really raising article T questions,

Senator TIrvska. Well, thapk you, Senator. You have contributed
a lot of useful material during the course of your testimony.

Thank youn, M. Chairman,

Senator Ervix. Thank you.

Senator Bay . Mr. Chairman, may T make one observation?
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Senator Ervin. Yes,

Senator Bayin Our distingnizhad colleague, of conrse. was a mewm-
Ler of the House Judiciary € “onmmittee \\Iwn thi= matter was dive n-\(ul
()lll colleague from South Cavoling dizeussed one reazon for the m-
clusion of this provision in triggeving qualific ations in this act is
Fecause lits St e of South Caroling voted for Goldwater.

I don't remember that ever being raized in the committec, in this
connnittee, when we diseussed it

Senator Maraeas, T have a very |m~|t|\o recollection that it was
never mentioned in the House Judiei dary Committee, but [ under=tond
thitt 10 be the Senator's oh=ervatior and not a part of collogny hetween
the witness and the commitee,

Senator Bayvie T think we failed, we omitted covering some nt the
States that M Goldwater did, in etfect, carey. T just think ic i< -
portant to elarify what we zre teying to dog beeause seldom perfection
i- obhtained.

Ax | oveeal) the direussion. or at least I should confine this to this
cite Senator’s interpretation, .md this thought being in enthusiastie
support of the Voting Rights Aet, We were “of the opinion that there
Wi n]lwl imination. Instead of taking away the vight to vote, we tried
to wive him the mosi effective tool to determine his own (lo~Im\ and
!n remove some of the other diseriminatory acts perpetrated upon a

sread mumber of people in thix country.

What we were trving to do in the 1965 Voting Rights et was to
try to use a minimum amount of Federat control And get a maximum
arount of effectiveness placed where the biggest pix oblem existed. 1
don’t think we ean very well ignove either what has been going on or
the effectiveness of this act if we realize as has been hmu'rht forward
by our distinguished witness, as well as others, that after the effective-
ness of this act, the effective date of this act, we were able to register
over 00000 American citizens and give tl.om the riehi to vote. TTow
can we be so naive as to sugrgest there wasn't anything wrong, nor
that this act didn't accomplish some worthwhile goal when we now
have £00,000 Americans who have the right to vote who weire denied
thi= right hefore.

Sonator [Kepvix. Well, the Senator—— -

Senator Bavin Mr. Chatrman, [ just elose in saying T appreciate
the fortitude and courage of onr colleague from Marvland. T coneur
in his thoughts and hope that we can extend this measwre. After we
have extended the measure and guaranteed that we are going to
continue progressing down the voad which has resulted in the addi-
tional franchize of over H00,000 American voters, then T think we ean
wo back and find ways in which we can strengthen and do an even
hetter job so that citizens, North, South, East, and West, will be eiven
the full right of citizenship, the right to vote.

Senator Envix, T think the Senator does a lot of assuming when
he as=umes that 800,000 peopie vegistered on account of this act, espe-
clallv as manv as 1("rr«fmmi m G0 counties in North Carvolina, in
which theaet didn't .lpplv

Senator Bavr. I think we are being—Ilet™s not =ay “naive ——hut lot
ne just express my own opinion.

Senator Epvixe T am naive. T never thought the Congress would
pass a law condemning people of violating a provision of the Con-



27

stitution without a judicial trial, and then provide that they be con-
dernned until they journey to one court only. I think that is as bad
dizerimination as the other.

Senator Bavr. I might disagree with my colleague’s judgment from
time to time, and he might disagree with me, but I would never call
him naive.

Senator Ervix. I couldn’t think the Congress of the United States
would pass a law condemning a whole section of the country without
a judicial trial and then tell them they can only come up and prove
their innocence in one comrt in the District of Columbia. I never
thought Congress would do a thing like that.

‘Thank the Lord they can’t do that to a crap shooter or moonshiner.
Senator Bavir. I don’t think we want to tolerate moonshing or ers
shooting. I ask this committee to look at the record. I don’t think it
is a mere matter of coincidence that they were able to get 800,000
Americans to register. L. .

Despito the fact they said there wasn’t any discrimination in this
country, this civil rights article that is full of air—but for some reason
or other, after the passage of this act, and only after the passage of
this act, we were able to bring pressure to bear to get this job done.

Senator Ervix. Hundreds of tfmnmnds of these 800,000 people were
not old enough at the passage of the act.

Senator Bavi. Well, how many hundreds of thouszands, I wonder?

Senator Ervin, I would say a considerable portion of them.

Senator TriuryMoxp. Mr. Chairman, I would like the record to note
that earh year the number of Negro voters in South Carolina has
Leen increasing. After all, years ago Negroes did not vote in many
States.

Senator Bavin Will the Senator repeat that?

Senator 'Trvryoxp. Many years ago many Negroes did not vote in
many States. They made tremendous progress. There is no race in the
history of mankind that has made as much progress as the Negro race
in America. I repeat that, too. I think each year, more and more, people
have heen getting better education. They have heen taking more in-
tevest in government. Therefore, more and more are voting. Then, as
new voters become of age, they are eligible, too. They are accounted
for. You can’t give credit to the 1965 Voting Rights Act at all. Tt may
have played some little part, T wouldn't deny it. But I think the prog-
ress in my State would have come about anyway, because we have had
large numbers of voters voting there for many, many years.

Senator Hruska. I think there is much to what the Senator from
Indiana said, and T wouldn’t want to detract from his contention in
any way if this present law has related beneficially upon voters who
otherwise would not have had a chance to vote.

But I want to call attention to the Senator from Indiana my judg-
ment that S. 2057 amendment would not impair the strength or effec-
tiveness of the present law when it is necessary to apply examiners
for registrants or whatever. It is on that basis that I say that it would
be a good bill because it would remove things that ave of some burden
and are of some odious attributes in the minds of some of the States,
and they would be treated like all other States.

If the other States do not sin or transaress, then of course the bill
would not apply to them. But it certainly would apply just as effec-

37-300—70—-3
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tively under the amended form as proposed as it can apply now. To
that extent T would speak on behalf of S, 2507.

Senator Matiias. Mr. Chairman, I am very grateful to you for the
time and courtesy and hospitality of this committee.

Mr. Baskir. Mr. Chairman, the next witness is Mrs. Frankie Free-
man, member of the Civil Rights Commission. Mrz. I'reeman is accom-
panied by Howard A. Glickstein and John Kester.

STATEMENT OF MRS. FRANKIE FREEMAN, MEMBER, CIVIL RIGHTS
COMMISSION, ACCOMPANIED BY HOWARD A. GLICKSTEIN AND
JOHN G. KESTER

Mrs. IFreeyax. Mr, Chairman and membors of the subcommittee,
I am Mrs, Frankie M. Freeman, a member of the U7.S. Conunission on
Civil Rights. I am also the associate general counsel of the St. Louis
Housing and Land Clearance Authorities. With me are Mr. Howard
A. Glickstein, stafl’ director-designate of the Commission, and My,
John G. Kester, the Commission s acting general counsel. I appreciate
the opportunity to speak to you this morning in support of S. 818 and
S. 2456, bills to continue the protection of the Voting Rights Act of
1965,

The Commission on Civil Rights was established by Congress in
1957. Its duties include investigating denials of the right to vote be-
cause of race, color, religion, or national origin, and investigating cer-
tain allegations of vote fraud. I'rom its first days, the Commission has
recognized the right to vote as crucial. The Commission’s first hearing
was held to investigate denials of voting rights.

Since that time it has conducted other hearings and issued a num-
ber of reports on voting. It has continued to watch voting procedures
carefully since the passage of the Voting Rights Act of 1965. Last
year it issued a compreliensive report on “Political Participation,”
and most recently sent staff attorneys to observe the May 1969, mu-
nicipal primary elections in Mississippi.

My experience on the Commission has convinced me that the Voting
Rights Act of 1965 must be extended, and not weakened. I should like
briefly to recall to you the events which led to passage of the 1965 act;
to describe its key provisions; and to explain the need for its con-
tinued protection.

The 15th amendment was ratified in 1870. It has two sections. The
first declares that, “The right of citizens of the United States to vote
shall not be denied or abridged by the United States or by any State
on account of race, color, or previous condition of servitude.”

The second section gives Congress power to enforce the amendment
“by appropriate legislaiion.”

et through a long series of devices, ranging from grandfather
clauses, to literacy tests to requirements of good moral character, the
Southern States continued to deny the vote to their Negro citizens. In
1956 in the 11 Southern States, only 25 percent of the 5 million Negroes
of voting age were registered.

In 1957 Congress made its first attempt since the post-Civil War era
to end the unconstitutional disfranchisement of the Negro. The Civil
Rights Aet of that year, as well as those of 1960, and 1964, included
provisions attempting to make State oflicials at least apply their re-
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strictive voting standards to white people and black people alike. But
many State and local voting ofticials continued to ignore the Constitu-
tion, and the slow and painful process of case-by-case litigation
achieved almost nothing. Iiven if the courts finally held a State law or
practice invalid, the State was free to adopt other devices to continue
the disfranchisement of its Negro citizens.

The Department of Justice brought approximately 30 lawsuits be-
tween 1957 and 1964 to enjoin discriminatory practices by registration
officials. Yet by 1964 only 23 percent of voting age Negroes were regis-
tered in Alabama; 32 percent in Louisiana; 6.7 percent in Mississippi.
And of the approximately 5 million voting age Negroes in the South,
only 36,000 had been registered in the nearly 50 counties where the
Department of Justice had brought lawsuits,

In 1965, Congress responded 1in a new way to the longstanding viola-
tions of the 15th amendment by enacting the Voting Rights Act. The
act, in the words of the Supreme Conrt, “was designed by Congress to
banish the blight of racial diserhmination in voting, which has in-
fected the electoral processes in parts of our conntry for nearly a cen-
tuey.” (Sonth Carolina v. Katzenbhack, 383 U.S. 301, 308 (1966)). Tet
me review its principal provisions.

A State or political subdivision is covered by the act if both of two
circumstances exist : first, that on November 1, 1964, it applied literacy
tests, “good moral character” prerequisities or similar requirements as
conditions to voting; and, second, either that less than 50 percent of
its persons of voting age were registered to vote on November 1,
1964, or that less than 50 percent voted in the presidential election
of 1964, Six States are now covered—Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana,
Mississippi, South Carolina, and Virginia—as are 39 counties of North
Carolina, one county in Hawaii, and one county in Arizona,

If a Stato or political subdivision is covered by the act, then four
consequences follow.

Itirst, it may not use any test or device to limit voting eligibility.

Second, the Attorney General may under specified circumstances
have Federal examiners sent to any county included in the jurisdic-
tions covered by the act. These examiners list applicants who are
found to have the qualifications prescribed by valid State law. Persons
thus listed are then fully qualified to vote,

Third, the Attorney General may send Federal observers to any
county designated for examiners, to observe the polling places and
the counting of the vote.

Finally, section 5 of the act prohibits a State or political subdi-
vision from applying any new voting qualification or procedure with-
out first obtaining either the acquiescence of the Attorney General or
a declaratory judgment from the U.S. District Court for the District
of Columbia that the new practice, “does not have the purpose and
will not have the effect of denying or abriding the right to vote on
acconnt of race or color.” The burden of proving the nondiscrimina-
tory purpose and effect is on the governmental body secking examp-
tion,

But the act contains an escape clause, which now threatens all that
the act has accomplished. To avert this danger is the purpose of S. §18
and S. 2456, in support of which T appear here today. By section 4(a)
a State or political subdivision can obtain a declaratory judgment
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removing itself from coverage on showing that for the preceding 5
vears it has not used a literacy test or other device to deny the right to
vote on account of race or color.

All the States and counties now covered by the act presumably
stopped using literacy tests and other devices upon the passage of the
Voting Rights Act in 1965. Therefore, on August 6, 1970, they will
not have done so for 5 years, and will be able to escape coverage com-
pletely by bringing the requisite suit. They could then resume the use
of literacy tests and other devises. No more examiners could be sent
to list eligible voters who had been turned away by local elections.
And the State would no longer have to show in advance the constitu-
tionality of changes in its voting laws. It could, if it chose, strike the
nanes of all voters currently on the rolls, and order new registration
under new laws which could be tested only through litigation after
the fact.

S. 818 and S. 2456 would increase the period of nondiserimination
necessavy to escape coverage from 5 to 10 years—the period suggested
in the Voting Rights .\ct as it was introduced in 1965—and thus would
keep the act effective for 3 more years.

As the Commission’s 19638 report, “Political Participation™ docu-
ments, there has heen considerable progress since the passage of the
Voting Rights Act. The increase in black registration and in the
number of?Negroes who are candidates for public office and who are
clected to oflice is impressive. But full equality is far from a reality.
This is demonstrated by low registration figures, few black oflice-
holders.. and mueh evidence of continued hostility to eiforts of black
people to vote.

Although black voter registration is much higher now than it was
before the passage of the Voting Rights Act, it still lags well behind
white registration in all the States affected by the act. Table 1 gives
the most recent voter registration statistics we have for these States.

Within these States there are many individual counties in which
black registration is especially low,

For example, in Alabama, less than half the Negroes of voting age
are registered in 27 of the 67 counties. In five counties, Negro registra-
tion is less than 35 percent.

In 24 of Mississippi’s 82 counties, Negro registration is less than
half; in six counties, it is less than 35 percent.

In half of South Carolina’s 46 countics Negro registration is less
than half. Tt is less than 35 percent in three,

I should like to submit for the record a list of the counties with low
Negro registration in the States covered by the Voting Rights Act.

("The information above referred to, follows:) ’
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COUNTIES 11i WHICH NEGRO YOTER REGISTRATION IS LESS THAN 35 PERCENT IN STATES COVERED BY THEVOTING

RIGHTS ACT 1

Oesignated . Negro
for Federal voling age Negro Percent Negro
Ceunty examinersd  population?  registration ¢ registration
ALABAMA

[ L T [ T, 4,521 1,435 3.6
Chamters........cueeen... o Noo ... 6,497 1,610 24.7
Heuston. oo ieaaaae , 899 1,951 28.3
Marshall. e 637 203 2.6
T T L T, 4,159 1,423 34.2
Te €,627 3.2
Ealdain 2,304 24,9
Eleckley 309 22.4
Broves 959 25.8
Calheun. . 674 8.1
Chattahoccher 131 1.2
inch. 3387 30.8
Daascn Q ¢
Decetut 1,235 22.3
Early. . 684 30.0
Echols. 24 8.7
Fors,th. 0 0
Glasceek. 22 6.2
Herl. ... 445 24,3
Ltonndes 2,835 33.5
Vacisen. . 269 27.1
‘faren 296 18.4
Valer ... 193 20.4
Watchel) | 1,535 30.8
Ceonee . ... 155 22.8
Cgletherpe. 476 21.9
Fulaski.. 632 342
Quitman_ 213 30.1
Eandolph. , 266 346
Steaart . 795 9.8
Talbet. ... 686 24.4
Tayiwr.. 679 31.9

Tewns Q 0
Troup 2,914 346

Yrien Q 0
Upson. .. 1,016 28.1
Webster_ | 26 21.2
werth oL 1,013 27.4
Tead e e e 80,745 22,800 28.2

LOUISIANA
FIambim i e 4,433 197 18.0
Niorehoate, 7,08 2,054 8.5
Rhland. . - . 4,603 1,110 5.4
dest Cermoll oL iiiiiiiiiaaan HO. oot 1,389 397 28.8
R 37 17,638 4,418 5.0
[T Y 2,988 783 25.3
Clay..... 4,44 1,481 335
rempsr.. 3,221 938 9.1
Lownces. .. 8,362 2,785 3.0
Uscn .. .. 1,626 408 25.1
T (L T N 3,611 123 20.2
Totel 24,252 7,103 3.3
£ EY T P 6,150 930 16.1
Onslen. ... . 5,015 1,651 32.9
hayne . .. 15,754 , 456 34.6
PN i ieeeeeeeecaee e aeeaaaecaneaaan 10,770 3,413 32.2
Tetel 37,689 11,570 30.7
SOUTH CAROLINA

9,598 2,120 28.3
3,764 1,102 2.3

10,196 3.408 33
23,558 1,230 30.7

1 Data fer Virginia are unavailable,
1 Source: Degartment of Justice,
¥ Source: 19€0 census.

s Scurce: Yetet education project, Southern Regional Council, Inc., Yoler registration in the South, summer 1368,

# Orly 39 counties in North Carolina are covered by the Voling Rights Act,
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COUNTIES IN WHICH NEGRO VOTER REGISTRATION IS 35 TO 50 PERCENT IN STATES COVERED BY THE VOTING

RIGHTS ACT!
QOesignated Negro
for Federal  voting age . HNegro Percent Negro
County examiners ! populition3  registrations registration
ALABAMA
............................................. 318 179 41.0
4,820 1,838 3.3
9,026 4,520 50.3
1,997 850 45.7
5,833 2,737 46.9
926 429 46.3
385 174 45.1
2,985 1,06% 35.8
2,816 , 036 3.7
825 126 44,2
5,685 2,322 408
1,606 645 40.2
1,027 3% 38.5
3,726 1,481 39.7
€ 8,913 3,469 38.9
Limestore._. 3,519 1,339 37.4
Macon_ .. 11,886 5,704 43,0
Pickens. _ 4313 1,769 40.5
Russell__._.... 10,531 , 292 £0.8
St Chair........ 2,035 1,002 49.2
Talladega...... 9,333 , 360 46.7
Tallapoosa 4,999 2,212 45,4
Tuscaloosa 15,332 , 123 39.9
12.496 48,282 42.9
213 81 38.0
1,332 504 37.8
2,436 1,158 41.5
6,600 2,847 43.1
2,059 1,011 48.1
1,441 603 2.1
2,456 958 39.0
2,364 1,036 43,8
1.611 784 48.7
1,736 645 36.7
3. 127 1,338 4.7
5.949 2,810 47,2
7 3 42.8
6,762 3.019 44,6
3,384 1,448 43.0
2,789 1,214 45.6
3.102 1,375 44.3
2.210 940 42,5
1.33% 650 48,6
2,740 1,245 454
4,017 ,831 449
4.9%9 2,075 41.5
2,489 1,176 47.6
St 25 43.0
22,549 10, 988 48,7
4,562 1,887 41.3
1.643 741 45.1
2,201 1,012 459
903 34 37.8
1,255 446 35.%
6,710 3,218 41.9
644 3,113 40.7
3,513 1,742 43.5
2,444 1,055 43.2
1,535 627 40.8
2,255 1,01 45.2
3,076 1,473 43,1
5, 451 , 311 2.4
1,282 628 18,9
3,101 1,092 35,2
2,279 ,038 4.7
137,687 61,650 4.8
6,847 3,338 43.8
5,032 2,154 42.8
£ast Feliciana_.._. 6, 031 2,440 40.1
Lincoln e No.... . 5,723 2,572 4.9
Orleans._. . . 125,752 , 260 471
OQuachita, . . 16,317 8,155 49.8
Plaquemines..... 2,897 1,443 50,0
West Feliciana 4,553 , 054 45.1
Total....... 123,262 81,421 4.0

Foolnotes at end of table, p. 33,
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COUNTIES IN WHICH NEGRO VOTER REGISTRATION IS 35 TO 50 PERCENT IN STATES COVERED BY THE VOTING

RIGHTS AET1—Contirued

Designated Negro
for Federal voling age Negro  Percent Negro
County examiners?  population 3  registration ¢ registration
MISSISSIPPI
9,340 4,576 49.0
6,246 2,869 45,9
S, 561 2,684 48,3
7,421 3,387 45.1
11,924 5,832 48.9
5,130 1,980 38.6
5,610 2,337 41.6
3,018 1,411 45,8
2,413 1,223 49.4
1,519 569 31.5
5,613 2,708 41.7
6,944 2,445 35.2
3,752 1,586 42.3
13,524 5,665 41.9
, 822 3,179 3.4
20,613 9,056 43.9
, 556 1,225 47.9
8,719 3.442 39.5
125,857 55,134 43,8
5,218 2,000 383
6,196 2,501 40.4
5,147 2,332 45.5
4,129 2,039 43.4
2,507 1,032 41.2
I B
Cumberland. 18,789 112 4].1
Edgecombe.. 12,330 5,103 4.4
Franklin_. 5,554 , 630 43.4
2,344 893 31
6,95 3,162 45.2
3,268 1,558 4.7
13,766 5,812 42.7
10,293 4,707 45,7
4,936 1,870 32.9
13,575 6,165 45,4
4,686 1,721 3.9
4,423 1,641 31
133,873 9,927 3.2
3,215 1,192 311
. 10,040 4,209 41.9
Calhoun......... . N 3,318 1,421 42.8
Charleston .- 35,498 12,403 43.0
Oarlington.._. 9,900 4,676 42,2
Dillon. ... 5,529 2,269 48,3
18,605 8,403 45,2
6,764 2,570 33.0
7,409 3,685 49.6
3,313 1,515 47.2
5,903 2,449 415
6,818 2,822 41,4
S, 446 2,638 43.4
2,248 1,121 49.9
7,634 3,620 2.1
4,954 2,090 2.2
2,230 1,118 50.0
2,3% 1,084 46.0
17,047 6,817 40.3
15,380 1,501 48.8
4,125 2,024 49.1
177,823 81,151 5.7

1 Data for Virginia aze unavailable,
2 Seurce: Departmant of Justice,
1 Source: 1960 census.

1Source: Voler education project, Southen Reglonat Council, 1nc., voter registration in the South, summer, 1968.
§ Although this county has been Jeslgnzted. no Federal examiners have ever been sent there,

¢ Only 33 counties {n North Carolina are covered by the Yoting Rights Act.



34

Senator Ervin. Will you tell me how you got the figures of the
population of those counties?

Mrs, Freemax. The population is from the 1960 census and the
voter registration statisties are from 1968.

Senator Ervin. But the voter registration figures do not include
all the registrations in those States for the 196S election. They stop
in the summertime.

Mrs. Freexax, Of 1968.

Senator Ervix. So the figures cannot possibly be accurate?

. ]M{s. Freeyax, They were accurate as of the time they were com-
iled.
P Senator Ervix, But, vou know that most people register—a lot of
people register in the fall. Most States have a registration book open
in the fall.

Mrs. Freesmax, That is vight.

Senator Ervix, And these figures stop in the middle of the sum:muer.

Mrs. Freeyan, Of 1968.

Senator Ervix. These figures do not disclose how many people
registered between the midsummer and the general election in
November?

Mrs, Freeasran. We will refer to other reports concerning our find-
ings as I go along with this statement. T think that that will answer
your question.

Senator Ervix. Well, the figures that you have—these figures :top
in midsummer.

Mrs. Freeyax, Of 1968.

Senator Ervin. And those figures do not show what number of
people were registered after the midsummer before the general
election?

Mrs, Freexax, They will not show 1969,

Senator Ervix. In other words, they are inaccurate?

Mrs. Freeymax., They may be incomplete. They are not inacenrate.

Senator Ervin. If they are incomplete, they are inaccurate. T
would say that things that are not complete, they are inacenrate.

Mr. Bayu. If T might interrupt just a minute. I am sorry, Mrs,
Freeman, but we need to put this in proper perspective. It is protty
difficult to keep any figure accurate with growing population and
efforts made to increase registration, T amn sure, being made in North
Carolina and other places. Tt is only fair to assume that because vou
stopped the registration figures in midsummer that those registered
in the election period were not included in the figures. as the Senator
from North Carolina specified. T think you would also have to-—mak-
ing everything consistent, the population growth from 1960 to the
summer of 1968, these numbers are not included, also?

Mrs, Freemax, This is the point T was making when T said they
were incomplete. It is almost Impossible to have completely upclated
statisties.

Senator Bavyn. It is possible the population growth would make the
percentage figures even lower than they are now.

Mrs. Freryax, It may be that they will be worse, based on some of
the things we bring out,

Senator Ervin, One thing is certain: nobody can put that perzon
on the registration hook unless that person goes to the registrar and
registers, can they ? ‘
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Mrs. Freesmax. This is true. But our findings also show that there
were people who went to the registrar, and this is what the political
participation report shows, that difficulties continue,

Senator Ervix. Do you think any North Carolinians went to the
regiztrar and weren’t allowed to register?

Mrs. Freemax, I don’t think we have any cases, specitic caces, 1
made note of what you said earvlier. If we do have any, we will cer-
tainly bring those to your attention. I don’t recall that we had any
specific complaints that they weren’t registered.

Senator Ervin. T have lived in North Carolina all my life, and since
I have been in the Senate I have never heard any complaints of any-
hody not being allowed to register, except some brought by Attorney
General Brownell, in 1957, in three precincts in North Carolina. He
claimed the basis for those cases was the I'BI. I asked for the T'BI
figures so I could interpret them and they wouldn’t give them to me.

So T ealled the State board of elections in those three precinets and
they informed me every one of those people was registered. Iiveryvone
was registered in time to vote in the primary and also the election. I
have not heard of a single person in North Carolina, since I have been
in the U.S, Senate—-and that is 15 vears—that has ever been wrong-
fullv denied the vight to register-—any person of any race.

I would like to have some evidence of our sins that exist. Fxcuse the
interruption,

Mrs, Freeman. The figures I have presented indicate that the Vot-
ing Rights Act has only partially achieved its purposze. One reason
has keen the failurve of the Department of Justice to make full use of
the power to send TFederal examiners. Of the 43 counties in the seven
Southern States in which black registration is less than 35 percent,
onlv two have had Federal examiners. There are 130 counties in which
Negro registration is between 35 and 50 percent. Examiners have been
sent to only 10 of these counties.

Even when examiners have been sent, their presence often has not
been adequately publicized. For example, staff attorneys of the Com-
mission on Civil Rights reporting on the May 1969 municipal primary
elections in Mississippi discovered that when the Tederal examiner
arrived in Holmes County in March, he apparently made no eifort
to publicize his presence. He was discovered by accident on his last
day there. Predictably, he did not list & single voter duving his visit.
T would like to submit for the record the report prepared by the Com-
mission staff attorneys, along with a letter from the Assistant Attorney
General promising better public notice in the future.

(The ({ocumonts above referred to follow:)

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Washington, June 26, 1969,

Mr. HowaArD A. GLICKSTEIN,
Staff Direclor,

U.8. Commizsion on Civll Rights,

Washkington, D.C.

DeAR MR. GLICKSTEIN: This Is to acknowledge your letter of June 4. 1969,
addressed to the Attorney General, and the accompanying report by the Com-
mission, concerning the May 13, 1969 municipal primary elections in Mississippi.

We have glven careful consideration to the recommendations made by you and
the Commission with regards to the federal examiner and observer program.
In cooperation with the Civil Service Commission, we will attempt to provide
better notice of future openings of examiner offices. As your report noted, our
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past practice of notifying leaders in the Negro community has often proven
inadequate.

We are also requesting the Civil Service Commission to devise a distinctive
name badge to be worn by federal observers to insure that they, and the function
they are serving, are clearly identifiable.

However, with regards to the suggestion that we announce in advance of
elections the polling places to which observers will be assigned, we feel that the
adoption of such a policy would too greatly restrict our flexibility. As you know,
our final determinations of the specitic polling places to which observers will be
assigned are frequently not made until twelve or less hours before the polls
open. This is necessitated by our practice of analyzing not only information
obtained during the weeks preceding the election, but also the conditions and
factors existing on the eve of the election. Of particular concern to us is the
adequacy of instructions given local polling officials. Often the meetings at which
these instructions are given are not held until the day before the election.

In addition, we Dbelieve that prior announcement of observer assignments
should be avoided because of the possible influence it may have on the election.
In Louisiana, where an unauthorized disclosure of observer assignments was
made, it appeared to have had an adverse effect on Negro candidates. It insured
a greater turnout of white voters and the casting of votes along more rigid
racial lines as a result of racial appeals made on the basis of that diseclosure.
In any event, we do not believe that the observer program should be operated in
a manner which might have a political effect on the outcome of an otherwise
fair election.

We also do not believe it is advisable to adept the recommendation that
federal observers intervene in the local election process when they believe that
an infraction of state or federal laws has occurred. To do so would clearly
exceed their authority as set out in the Voting Rights Aet. Congress has limited
their function solely to observing the election processes and to reporting on their
obxervations to the Attorney General.

Furthermore, while the observers are trained to carry out their statutory
functions, they are not qualified to make the combination factual and legal
determination the recommendation would require. As a result, we jutend to
follow our past practice of having only attorneys of this Divislon deal with local
officials concerning election day problems and irregularities.

Sincerely,
JERRI§ LLEONARD,
Assistant Attorncy General,
Civil Rights Division.

U.S. ComiissioN ox Civit Ricuts STAFF REront, May 13, 1909, MuNicipan
ErLec110Ns IN MISSISSIPPI

Primary elections were held on May 13, 1069 by numerous Mississippi
municipalities to choose candidates for the June 3, 1969 general election. The
U.8. Commission on Civi!l Rights sent two attorneys to the state for a week to
observe the electifons and speak with many of the black candidates who songht
political office and their supporters.

On May 13, 1969 Commis<ion staff attorneys observed the conduct of the
election in Fayette, Jefferson County: Woodville, Wilkinson County; Gloster,
Amite County; Lexington, Durant, Goodman, and Pickens, Holines County ; and
Belzoni, IHIumphreys County. Commission staff visited the polling places through-
out the day and kept in contact with black candidates and their supporters
in these cities. 'The rest of the week they spoke with black candidates and their
supporters in other Mississippi towns. In all they spoke with black candidates
or their campaign workers in 20 towns scattered among a total of 15 counties.

Most of the black eandidates interviewed, regardless of whether they won or
lost and regardless of whether they believed the election had been fair, believed
that there would not have been ax fair an electinn had it not been for the
presence of the Federal Observers and the presence of nmumerous lawyers and
others serving as poll watehers, Although there were criticisms of the manner
in which the Federal Observers carried out their duties, not one black candi-
date in a county where Federal Observers were present belleved the election
would have heen run in an honest manner were it not for the presence of these
obseriers. In counties where Federal Observers were not present, there was a
division of opinion as to whether there had been an honest election.
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For convenience in reporting, the problems uncovered hiave been divided into
four general areas:
1. Registration to vote,
2. Quatification as a candidate.
3. The conduct of the election.
4. The role of Federal Observers,

REGISTRATION TO VOTE

In many of the towus visited by the Commission staff, it was reported that
black persons no longer have fears of adverse consequences if they register to
vote. This was not true everywhere, however. In Woodville, for example, a black
candidate stated that people were still afraid to register to vote in Wilkinson
County. As an example of the fear that still exists in the Woodville area, he
noted that when three coitege students from Michigan State University who
served as poll watchers for black candidates during the election had to leave the
town very late at night, local black vesidents insisted that they be escorted to
McComb by the Deacons of Defense. In Itta Bena there were reports of threats
to bomb a black candidate’'s headquarters the night bLefore the eleetion. A
guard was placed around the headquarters by local black persons the entire
night. It was also noted in Woodville that several candidates who had leld
Jobs either with the scheol sysiem or the county lad recently lost their jobs
as a result of seeking elective office or beeause they were actively involved with
the NAACPE. Their contracts were not renewed after their involvement had
Leconie common knowledge.

A black candidate in Moorhead, in Sunflower County, stated that some black

persons were afraid to register to vote for fear that shite persons wonld take

ceonomic reprixals against them. A similar reluctance to register was reported
in rural areax of Quitinan County by a black candidate for office in Marks,

Pioblems in registering to vote for the city elections were widespread. Difii-
culticx were reported in Sunmit, Pike County; Bolton and Edwards, Hinds
County : Clarksdale. Coahoma County : Durant, Lexington and Goodinan. Holmes
County aud Lefand. Washingron County.

A black sandidate for oflice in Sumimit stated that black persons desiring to
Vvote Irad difiicalty in finding the Summit city clerk in order to register with
hini,. Under Mississippi law, a voter must register with the county registrar
and with the city elerk in order to vote in municipal clections. Seetion 8211
of the Mississippi Code provides that the registrar “shall register the electors
of his connty at any time” and section 3:374-61 makes this provision applicable to
municipal clevks, how act as registrars for munleipal elections, Until the dead-
line for registering for the primary clection had passed, the city clerk in Summit,
who has another fall-time job, was only available for registration between
A pan. and 7 pan, on Tuesdays and Wednesdays. In the future, however, the
clerk in Sunmit hav reportedly agreed to register voters at any time. except
on Sundays, Pike, the connty in which Summit is located, has not heen desig-
nated for Federal Examiners. It was reported that the town elerk in Edwards
is in his office only from 9 a.m. to 11 aun. Monday through Friday, Thus, it is
very diflicult for peonte wha work during the day to regi~ter in the city.

In several of the towns noted have, county clerks did not inform the newly
registered voter that it was necessary for him to register in the city as well. Thus,
targe numbers of black persons were nmable to vete in munfeipal eleetions be-
cause they had not registered in the city, even though they had registered at the
connty courthouse.

In one town where no primary was held, but where black candidates were run-
ning as independents, two black voters alleged that the city clerk was present
when they registered with the county clerk, and that Lie told them he would take
care of the city registration for them. He did not, however, and their ballots were
challenged. One black voter was told by the same city clerk, when she saw him
in 1966 after havinu heen listed hy the Federal Examiner, that she already was
on the city liooks. Ier name, however, was not on the list and thus her ballot was
challenged.

In another town. wimesses reported that the eonnty clerk harassed black per-
sons who attempted to register with her. In July 1068, a local civi! rizhts volunteer
took a erippled black woman and four other black persons (two to vegister, and
two to help the crippled woman) to the clerk’s office. The clerk refused to allow
the crippted woman te sit while she was registering, instead foreing hier to walk
from table to tahle for different parts of the registration process. This took ahont
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15 minutes, the clerk asserting that, after all, the woman would have to stand
while voting. On two occasions—July 1968 and February 1969---this clerk al-
legedly sent a deputy out to buy spray deodorizer while black persons were heing
registered.

Another widespread problemn was that a large number of names listed by the
Federal Examiners were not placed on the city rolls. As a consequence many
persons who had been listed by the Federal Examiners had their ballots chal-
lenged, while others, anticipating challenge, did not cast ballotx at «ll. Such proh-
lems were reported in Woodville, Wilkinson County ; Vicksburg, Warren County :
Edwards and Bolton, llinds County; Clarksdale and Jonestown, Coalioma
County; Itta Bena, Leflore County; Marks, Quitman Connty; and Lexington,
Durant and Goodman, Holmes County. In some of these cases the Federat Ex-
aminers failed to transmit the names of persons listed by them to the appropriaie
city officials.

In March, local campaign workers discovered that the names of 150 Llack por-
sons in Itta Bena who had registered with the Federal Examiner were not on the
city lists, This was brought to the attention of the Civil Service Commisszion of-
fice in Jackson. That office allegedly was able to get 108 of the names placed on
the city books for the elections, hut apparently determined or assumed that the
42 others lived outside Itta Bena. At the May 13 primary, an additional 12 nlack
persons were allegedly turned away because they were not on the city lisis, ai-
though they too had been listed by the Federal Examiner.

In one town, persons listed by the Federal Examiner, but whose names were 1ot
o1 the registration books, were permitted to cast challenged votes. When a hallot
is challenged, the Democratic Executive Committee decides whether to eonnt i
Tiie chairman of the Democratle Executive Committee in that fown is allegeid
to have sald, in reference to challenges by poll watchers for black candilares:
“Let them challenge all they want hecause the challenge comes thronel my o
I will handle them the way I want.”

When the Federal Examiner arrived in IHolmes County in March. he ap-
parently made no effort to publicize his presence. Commission staft tatked to
many local black persons-—candidates and campaign managers as well as
voters—-—-whea did not know he was in Lexington until his preseneca svas dis-
covered by accldent on his last day there. Predictably, he did not list anyone
during his visit to Lexington.

Lack of such publicity was a wildespread problem throughout Mississippi.
Iittle or no advance publicity was given in any of the counties. While some
civil rights leaders were apparently informed of the presence of Federal Ex-
aminers, in most cases nothing else was done. As could he expected, few per-
sons were listed by the examiners. A list showing the counties in Mississippi
where examiners were sent and the number of persons listed is attached.

QUALIFICATION AS A CANDIDATE

In several towns primaries were not held even thongh black candidates Liad
sought to run and thought they had qualificd. The absence of a Demorratic
Party Iixecutive Committee in those communities required candidates ta use a
different procedure for qualifyving and the black eandidates were not inforun.ed
of this procedure.

In Friars Point, for example, where the Justice Department subsequentiy
on May 17 filed a suit, black candidates sought to qualify for the primary bz
filing their papers with the County Democratic Party Executive Committes.
The local newspapers allegedly reported that the black eandidates had qualifierd
for the primary. Shortly before the primary, however, it was announced that the
black candidates had not qualified for the prhmary, because they allegedly had
not complied with certain statutory requirements. Despite the fact that ther
had allegedly filed their papers several weeks before the deadline for qualifyinz
either in the DNemocratic primary or as independents, they were not notified
that they had not qualified until after these deadlines had passed. The Justice
Department suit charged that “without general notice to the public. [the de-
fendants] altered the procedure for qualifving.” This was done without ohiain-
ing the approval of the Attorney General as required by Section 5 of the Votinz
Rights Act of 1945,

In Centerville several black persons attempied to qualify to run in the Mar
13 primary for city positions. They filed the required notice with the eity «lork
in Centerville and with the Secretary of the Democratic Committes in Wend-
ville. They were told by the clerk at the town hall in Centerville, that the 1own
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did rot have a primary election. They were not told, however, that there was
a procedure for obtaining a primary election. To run in a municipal primary in
a town without a Munlcipal Executive Committee it is necessary to petition
the Chairman of the County Executive Committee to call a special meeting of
registered voters., At this meeting a temporary Executive Committee is elected.
This Committee runs the primary election. They learned from e¢ivil rights lawyers
in Jackson, however, that even though they were unable to run in the Demo-
cratie primary they could qualify as independents if they obtained signatures
from 5 registered voters. Three candidates were able to get the necessary sig-
natures, even though they learned of this possibility the day before the filing
deadline. Thus they were able to get on the ballot for the June general election.
In Nerth Carrollton, in Carroll County, and Pickens, in Holmes County, black
candidates attempting to qualify as Democrats were told there was no primary
and therefore had to qualify as independents. As in Centerville they were not
told there was a procedure by which a primary could be held.

A black candidate in one town in Hinds County, however, was unable to qualify
for ¢lection because she was unaware of the proper procedures to follow. She
ailegedly filed her papers to run for office with the town ¢lerk hefore the filing
deadiine. Someone, however, told her that she had to take the papers to the
Mayor. She returned to the town clerk, obtained her papers from him and took
thern to the Mayor whao informed her that he had nothing to do with the election.
She then went back to the clerk’s oflice, but he had left. She returned the next
day and gave the papers to the clerk. but was told that she was one day past the
deadline and, therefore, the clerk refused to put her on the ballot.

in Woodvllle, black voters were totally excluded from a second unofficiat
“white primary.” All the black candidates for the Demoeratic primary were
defented. However, black and white persons had qualified as independent candi-
dates for mayor and alderman. Thus, there was a posxibility that the white
vote would be split since there were two white candidates and one black candidate
for mayor and eight white and one black c¢andidate for the five alderman
positions. To avoid this, the county White Citizens Council sent a letter to all
wiite voters asking them which white candidates they believed should withdraw
from the race. They apparently were at least partially successful, as it was
reported that one of the white candidates for mayoer had withdrawn his name.
A copy of the letter is attaclied to this report. In contrast to the tone of the letter,
a campaign poster is attached illustrating the slogan used by several black
candidates in the area: “Don’t vote for a black man. Or a white man. Just a
good man. ... Doesn't that souna good.”

In Canton, some black candidates qualified to run in the Democratic primary ;
others running as independents wiil appear on the ballot in the June 3 general
election. The clty, however, allegedly redistricted the municipal boundaries
eliminating a large number of black persons and a’dding a number of white
residents. The city did not. ax required by the Voting Rights Act of 1063, submit
these changes to the Attorney General or the District Court in Washington. D.C.,
for approval. A suit was brought in Federal conrt and on May 10, 1969, the
Liolding of @ primary and general election was enjoined.

‘tIIE CONDUCT OF THF. ELECTION

On the day of the primary, election irregularities occurred in a large numher
of corumunities in which black candidates ran.

A1ong the most frequent irregularities were restrictions upon the activities of
poll watchers for black candidates. Title 14, section 3128 of the Mississippi Code
statex:

“Each candidate shall have the right, either in person or by a representative
to be ramed by him, to be present at the polling place. and the managers shall
provide him or his representative with a suitable position from which he or his
rext)res‘entati’\'c may be able to carefully Inspeet the manner in which the election
isheld. . ., .”

Despite this provision, election oflicials in Marks allegedly required poll
watchers representing thie black candidates to sit over 20 feet from the election
takies. From that distance, they conld not see enongh of what was happening
to do more than tally the ballots voted. In Jonestown. the election officials at
first challenged the right of the stndent volunteer poll watchers to be there.
After reportedly telephoning an outside sonrce, the officials altowed thexe polt
watchers to remain, but <eated them so far back of the polling place, at the
Insistence of the manager, that they conld not see the names on the books and
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thus could not carry out all of the norinal functions of poll watchers. In
Leland. where no Federal Observers were present, the election officials also
allegedly required poll watchers for the black candidates to stand so far away
from the tables that they were unable to check the qualifications of voters.
And, although section 3164 of the Code specifically provides that candidates and
their representatives have the right to observe and Inspect the counting of the
ballots, the polt watchers in Clarksdale were not allowed near the machines
or tally tables during the tally of votes. They protested, but were not allowed
closer.

Although many municipalities across the State had black election officials
working at the polling places, only a few had more than a token number of
black persons, and the black persons working in the polling places were under
the supervision of the white election managers. In Woodrille, Clarksdale, and
other cities, white election managers were reluctant to render assistance to
illiterates, although the court. have held that the Voting Rights Act of 1965
requires that this assistance be given, and that flliterates be informed of its
availability, Uniled States v. Loufsiana, 265 F. Supp. 703 (1968), aff’d per curiam,
386 U.S. 270 (1667). In Vicksburg, a black election official was told that she
could not help illiterates who asked for her assistance in voting. She was told
that the election manager would appoint someone to assist illiterates needing
assistance. He invariably appointed one of the operators of the voting machines.
all of whom were white, despite the voters' request that a black election official
assist them.

In Lexington, a black election official is reported to have told a student pol
watcher that the election officials had been Instructed not to give or offer help
to voters until the voter nceding assistance asked them. In polling places through-
out the State, illiterate voters frequently seemed unaware that assistance was
available, but quickly asked for it when poll watchers for the black candidates
informed them of its availability. Instructions such as those allegedly given in
Lexington deprive such voters of the neans of voting as they wish,

Sce. 3272 of the Mississippl Code provides that voters who are blind or dis-
abled “shall have the assistance of one of the managers or other person of his
own selection” in the marking of his ballot. In one instance in Vicksburg. how-
ever. a poll watcher reported that a blind woman was denied assistance by the
“person of her choosing”—her black sister. A white official insisted on casting
her batlot for her.

In Itta Bena, white election oflicials assisting illiterates reportedly fried to
influence the illiterates not to vote for the black candidates. It was also reported
in Vicksburg, where no Federal Observers were present, that black voters who
did not request assistance often had white election officials entering their booth
under the pretense of giving assistance.

In Itta Bena, an armed white deputy sheriff, apparently there to maintain
order, sat between the two tables being used for the election. allegedly harassing
black persons. As a result, some left without voting. The eclection officials made
no effort to moderate his conduct. Also in that city, a white election official
allegedly demanded that four black women give her their marked ballots, rather
than place them in the box. The women now fear that their ballots were never
counted.

In Vicksburg, one of the polling places for a largely-black area was reportedly
changed without publicity. When black persons showed up at their regular polling
place to vote, the election officials stated that there had heen a change, but
refused to ald the voters in finding their proper voting place. As a consequence.
many of these persons did not vote. In Greenwood, one black voter was not
allowed to vote until she had “hounded” the election officials for several minutes.
although her name was on the voting lists.

In Clarksdale, four black persons attempted to vote. but were turned away
because their names were already marked as having voted. One of the student
volunteers felt that some of these instances were explained hy there being more
than one person with the same name registered but the name appeared on the
lists only once. At first, the election officials refused to permit the casting of a
challenged ballot; later, they relented. A white voter in this situation was
allegedly allowed to vote by machine upon his oral statement that he had not
already voted. The officials ignored the challenge of the student velunteers.
Attol:'l that, a black voter in the same situation was also permitted to vote by
marhine,
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A slightly different variatlon occurred in Vicksburg. A number of voters of a
predominantly black ward, and presumably also some in predominantly white
wards, were unable to find their names on any books; their names had apparently
been dropped for some reason. When a poll watcher at this ward requested that
these persons be permitted to cast challenged ballots he reportedly was told
that this was not the custom in Vicksburg, apparently because the city used
machines, It was not until 1:30 p.ni, six and a half hours after the polls had
opened, that paper ballots were furnished for those persons whose right to vote
had been challenged notwithstanding see. 3170 of the Mississippl Code which
clearly establishes the procedure for the challenging of ballots,

In Lexington, local officials of the municipal Democratic Executive Committee
allegedly purged the names of 83 black persons and 67 white persons from the
poll books shortly before the election. An overwhelming majority of black voters
in Holmes County had registered by beiug listed by the Federal Examiner. Al-
though the local officials refused to give a list of those purged to representatives
of the black candidates, it is likely that most of the blacks purged froin the poll
books had been listed by the Federal Examiner. Sections 7 and 9 of the Voting
Rights Act of 1065 establish an exclusive procedure, including provision for a
prompt hearing, by which altegedly unqualified voters listed by a Federal
Examiner may be removed from a list. Even if intended in good faith, the
alleged purge of the names of black voters from the poll books violated the
procedural safeguards provided by the Voting Rights Act.

To challenge unqualified voters effectively, a candidate normally needs to be
able to inspect the poll books some tie in.advance of the electton, searching for
names of persons still on them who are not currently qualified to vote. Sec, 3211
of the Mississippl Code requires that the ‘“registrar shall keep his books open
at his office,” and see. 3374-61 renders this provision applicable to municipal
clerks. In one town in Holmes County, a black representative of the local black
candidates stated that he had on three occasions attempted to see the voter
registration books maintained by the city clerk in the clerk’s office at a local bank.
On each of these occasions, access to the books was allegedly denied, on the
ground that business was too pressing. When white volunteers camne to look at
the books the day before the election, however, the clerk produced them at once.

In Edwards, Mississippt the chairman and a few of the other members of the
Muniecipal Democratic Executive Committee met without informing the black
members of the committee. At this meeting they appointed a number of Negroes
closely aligned with the white power structure in the city to serve as election
officials and to aid illiterate persons in voting.

The Commission staff was unable to docutent an earlier report from Vicksburg
that election officials had told hundreds of black voters that it was unnecessary
to vote for two candidates, that they could cast a single ballot for the black candi-
dates. This would have been contrary to the full slate requirement, and such
ballots would not be counted.

THE ROLE OF FEDERAL OBSERVERS

Notwithstanding the general agreement among the black candidates inter-
viewed, that the May 13 primary would have been far more unfair if the Federal
Observers and volunteer student and lawyer poll watchers had not been present,
there were serious problems arising from the manner in which some of the
Federal Observers conducted themselves and from the policies under which they
operated.

In Clarksdale, for instance, the Federal Observers frequently did not observe
the assistance being given to illiterate black voters. In Goodman, they stationed
themselves in a location from which it was impossible to see several of the voting
booths, and consequently did not know when black voters in that part of the
polling place nceded assistance or when it was being given to them. Seats from
which they could have observed all of the events in the polling place were avail-
able, In Woodville, the volunteer poll watchers on several oceasions suggested to
black voters needing assistance that Federal Observers were present, and asked
if the voters wanted an observer present while they received assistance in easting
their vote. At least one observer, when told by a poll wateher that a voter desired
him to observe, stated, “If the voter wants me, tell him to come over and get me.”

In that town, a volunteer poll watcher—an out-of-state attorney—charged that
the Federal Observers did not bother writing up a report of an incident in which
a black woman was handed a ballot, walked over toward the booth, but appeared
uncertain abeut what she should do. As she approachied the table an election
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official reportedly took the unmarked ballot out of her hand and placed it in the
box. Despite vocal protests by poll watchers about this matter, the observers
apparently felt the issue was too frivolous to report. During the counting of
the ballots, a Commission staff attorney noticed that the Fedcral Observers. at
first, were making a brief notation &s to the reason each time there was a ballot
on which votes were not counted. Later in the evening, however, he noticed that
they appeared to have lost their interest, and failed to do this on several
occasfons.

Black candidates and poll watchers at the Woodville election were extremely
critical of the role of the Federal Observers. One student from Michigan State
University, a poll watcher for one of the black candldates, charged that the Fed-
eral Observers challenged their right to observe the election. After the -poll
watchers showed them the Mississippt statute which did not prohibit out-of-state
people from acting as poll watchers, the Federal Observers challenged their
right to stand near the table where the ballots and batlot box were kept. In both
instances the local election officials upheld the right of the poll watchers.

The Commission in its 1968 Political Participation report criticized the Depart-
ment of Justice policy of “keeping the Federal presence as inconspicuous as pos-
sible” when observers were sent into polling places. It recommended that the
Attorney General “‘should announce publicly in advance of the clection that
Federal Observers will be present and should assure that the observers are iden-
tified as Federal officials.”

This recommendation has never been implemented, and the Department kept
secret, until the last minute, the cities and polling places in which Federal Ob-
servers would be present for the May 13 election. The reasons stated by the Com-
mission for its stand in 1968, howerver, remain true today :

“fhe subdivisions where the assignment of observers Is warranted are those
in which there §s a likelihood of discrimination at the polls. It is important for
Negro voters in these subdivisions to kiow that observers will be present to deter
local election officials from subjecting Negroes who attempt to vote to diserimina-
tion and the harassment, indignity, and humiliation which sccompany it. . . .”

The Commission’s recommendation that the observers be identifted as Federal
officials has. similarly, not been implemented. Across the State during the May 13
election. Federal Observers failed to identify themselves by word or by any kind
of sign or official insignia. In its 1968 report, the Commission stated that “lden-
tification of the observers [would] serve to confirm to Negro voters that they
will be afforded comparable treatment with other citizens at the polls.” Without
identification of the observers nnd advance notice of their presence, black voters
feel no such assurance. In one community visited by a Commission staff attoruey,
a black candidate did not know, two days after the election, whether a Federal
Observer had been present. In Itta Bena, poll watchers for the black candidates
knew that Federal Observers were present, but did not know which of the white
persons standing about they were.

In its 1968 report, the Commission recommended that the Attorney General
should “instruct Federal Observers that they have a duty to point out to local
election officials irregularities affecting Negro voters. . . ."” One of the reasons for
this recommendation was that under the Department of Justice policy that
observers should take “only such steps as may be necessary to fulfill the observa-
tional function”. and that the irregularities they observe should be reported first
to the captain of the observer team, and then to a Department of Justice attorney,
who will take it up with election officials, {mjuch or all of the election day may
elapse . . . before the matter is settlted.”

In the May 13 primary, the Federal Observers acted only as passive recorders
of events, refusing at all times to speak to the election officials about even the
most blatant discrimination against black voters. A Commission staff attorney
in Woodville was Informed by a lawyer from the Civil Rights Division of the
Department of Justice that it was Department policy that the Federal Observers
were to speak with no one.

This meant that no Federal agent monitoring the election would speak to
local officials about even the most obvious irregularities until the Justice Depart-
ment attorney assigned to that county or pair of counties returned to the particu-
1ar polling place. In Tttan Bena, this process allegedly took three hours from the
first time an irregularity was brought to the attention of the Federat Observers
by local poll watchers—at which time the observers admitted that the black
voter turned away was fully qualified to vote—to the time when the Justice
Department attorney arrived. In that time, a total of 20 voters in that situation
had been turned away. Local candldates and their poll watchers were given no
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information telling them how to get in touch with Department representatives
more quickly,

Neither the observers nor the local election officials informed voters that they
could. have assistance in voting and that Federal Observers could watch the
assistance being given. Only if a voter asked for such assistance or if he was
unable to write his name was he told that such assistance was available, Since
many illiterates are able to write thefr names but not able to read and under-
stand the ballot, this limited provision of Information left many black voters,
needing assistance, ignorant of the possibility that assistance could be given
and that Federal Observers could watch it as it was being given,

Although the stated policy was that the observers should talk with no one,
a Commission staff attorney saw the observers in Woodvllle engage in animated
conversation with the white election officials on numerous occasions. They dld
not seem to speak with poll watchers, black candidates or any local black people,
however. Two observers there also refused to speak to the Commission staff
attorney when he asked one for the number of persons who had voted and the
other—the one who had allegedly challenged the right of the poll watchers for the
black eandidates to be there—for his name.

Some of the local black persons understandably felt that the observers were
in sympathy with the white community. At one point in the afternoon, several
poll watchers and at least one black candidate asked the Commission staff at-
torney if he could not get the Federal Observers out of the balloting place.
On reflection, later however, these same persons agreed that there would have
been widescale fraud but for the mere fact of the obxervers® presence.

SUMMARY

The election of some black persons to municipal office fn Mississippl is evidence
that some changes have occurred in Mississippi since the passage of the Voting
Rights .Act of 1965. Even with these victoriex, however, virtually all citles and
towns in Mississippi will still be governed by all-white local governments.

Interviews with observations by staff attorneys suggest that this is in part
due to the following:

1. Many black persons in Mississippi still fear economic or other reprisals if
they register to vote or openly support black candidates.

2. Officials in some cases have made registration difficult for black persons
by narrowly limiting hours for registration, by failing adequately to inform
applicants of procedures required to vote in municipal elections, and in some
cases by actually misinforming them as to these requirements.

3. Black persons continue to be excluded from serving as election officials
in most areas of the State surveyed.

4, Officlals sometimes failed to assist or misinformed black candidates seeking
to obtain places on the ballot, and some were unable to run in the primary as
a result.

5. The Voting Rights Act of 1963 establishes procedures to be followead before
local officials change election requirements or procedures or remove from the
poll books persons listed by the Federal Examiners. In many instances through-
out Mississippi, local officials took such actions without observing the Act
or any of the procedural safeguards provided by the election laws of the State
of Mississippi.

6. The Federal Government neglected to take adequate steps to inform citizens
of the presence of Federal Examiners and thus examiners listed relatively
few voters in recent months.

7. Some Federal Examiners failed to transmit the names of persons listed by
them to city voting officials, and as a result many black voters throughout the
State had their ballots challenged or were turned away from the polls.

8. Although most black candiates believed that the mere presence of Federal
Observers improved the honesty of election procedures, a number of election
frregularities occurred even where Federal Observers were present,

9. The effectiveness of Federal Observers was limited by their failure to
make their presence known to voters and by their failure to intervene at once
when irregularities were observed.

37- 499--70——1



L

T DL IeTp

o vy Ty

44

LisTiNGs BY FEDERAL ExAMINERS IN MIississippr, MArcH 1969

Federal Examiners were in Mississippi to list persons to vote on four Satur-
days in March. This was the only listing fn Mississippi by Federal Examiners
in 1969 prior to the holding of the munlecipal elections. Of the 1,009 persons
listed by the Examiners, 164 were listed for city elections only, that is, they were
already registered to vote in other elections. Of the persons listed 913 were
nonwhite and 90 were whites. The results are as follows:?

{A dash is used to indicate that no Federa Jexaminer was in the county on that date}

County Mar. 8 Mar. 15 Mar, 22 Mar. 23 Total
Amite. o iiieieeiieeacaan 0 0 5 —_ 5
Benton.________.._ — 0 0 — 0
Carroll....._....... 0 1 1 — 2
Clay. ... ... 0 0 0 —_ 0
Coahoma — 0 0 — 0
De Soto — 0 0 — 0
Forrest. - 0 Q — 0
Franklin — 0 17 10 F14
Hinds... 0 35 3 80 158
Hobmes. . ... e iaiiiiiiiiiaiaan 0 [ Q — 0
Humphreys. ... o iiieiiiiicnaaa-. — 1 " 1 %
Jasper__ .. - 2 1 — 3
Jefferson___ — 8 ] — 8
Jefferson D — — 1 —_ 1

— 2 2 — 4
23 56 18 108 265

0 19 63 63 155

g 3 0 — 3
- 2 1 — 3
— ) 2 —_ 2
— 0 L1 30 1L
— 37 15 13 65
—_ 0 0 — 0

3 9 19 10 41
- 0 24 25 43
— 13 6 22 41
- 12 8 16 35
- 16 11 1 28
- 0 8 5 13
2% 2% 388 389 1,009

May 20, 1909.

DEear FeLrow CITizEN OF WoobnviLLE: Your local Citizens Council is gravely
concerned about the political prospects in the Woodvllle Munlcipal General
Election which will be held on June 3rd, and we feel sure that you, as a public
spirited white citizen, are equally concerned.

First, may we emphasize the fact that we have no axes to grind nor political
fortunes to favor or oppose as to individuals, but are taking this actlon purely
and simply to endeavor to insure that white officlals are elected on June 3rd.

As you doubtless know, the present prospects in the Mayor's race present two
white candldates and one negro candidate. In the Alderman race, there are eight
white candidates and one negro. In both instances, the negroes are thus virtually
assured of election.

We feel that forgetting personal ambitlons or desires, some of the white
candidates should withdraw so that there will be only one white candidate for
cach office. It is our understanding that some of the candidates are agreeable
to this, provided it can be ascertained which ones the majority of the white
voters favor.

In an attempt to determine the wishes of the white voters of Woogdville, we
are therefore, conducting a “straw vote” eleetion which we feel will be of
tremendous assistance in working out a compromise—provided you, the voters,
co-operate by taking part.

We are enelosing herewith an unofficial ballot which we ask that you mark in
private, seal in the enclosed envelope, and return immedgdiately by mail. You
will note from the enclosure that there is no way your ballot can be identified,
and your vote will thus be sceret. As soon as possible, since the deadline for

Source: U.S. Civll Service Commlasion.
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printing the Official Ballot is very near, we will open these envelopes and tabulate
the vote—Iin the presence of all candldates or their representatives. From the
resulting tally, we hope to be able to effect a compromise settlement of this
grave issue which faces us all.

Please no not delay. Time is of the essence. Please mark and return the enclosed
ballot today.

May we thank you in advance for your co-operation, and again assure you that
onr only motive in undertaking this project is public service In what we feel is
the best interests of the Town of Woodrville.

Sincerely,
WILKINSON CouNTY CitizENS COUNCIL.
“STRAW BaLror”
(Not an officlal ballot®)
For Mayor, TowN OF WOODVILLE -

(Vote for 1)
W. H. Catehings oo e ()
Marvin N, Lewis oo et ccmcmeeccmmccceee ()
For ALDEEMAN, TOwN OF WOODVILLE .
(Vote for 4) ’
J. M. (Mace) Besto o mmc e e ()
Thomas M. Bryan. e )
Pat Cavin. . e mmmm——————— )
‘Cage Chisholm o ccccc e ———————— ()
H. B, Curry o e ()
Anthony Davld- e ()
James (Jabbo) Herrington ()
Brandon Inman o e m——— ()

1 Note.—This I3 not an Officlal Ballot, but merely an attempt dby the Citizens Councll to
last(;orta:at) tggdcandidates preferred by the wajority of the white voters of Woodrille, See
.letter attached.
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Mrs. Freesan, Hostility and resistance to Negro voting have not
ended in the South. Our political participation report documents
many reports since the Voting Rights Act of physical and economic
intimidation in connection with tﬁe voting activities. The incidents
continue.

Last fall in Leake County, Miss., the unfinished home of a black
registration worker was bombed, nearly destroying it; a few days
before, shots were fired into the home of another black person active
in voter education. In Greene County, Ala., I have been informed,
one black leader was recently chased out of the county by a carload of
white men. Two black ministers active in civil rights have had threats
made upon their lives. Black people in the county are still reluctant
to register with local oflicials because they live on the land of whites
and fear economic retaliation,
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Nor is there reason to believe that the election oflicials who refused
to register Negroes hefore 1965 would do so after 1970 unless com-
pelled. Instead of accepting the 1965 act, many have violated or
attempted to circumvent it whenever possible. Oflicials charged with
managing elections in some areas of the South have withheld informa-
tion from black party members about party precinct meetings and con-
ventions, or have prevented them from participating fully.

They have omitted the names of registered Negroes from official
voter lists. They have failed to provide adequate voting facilities in
arcas with greatly increased Negro voter registration. They have
refused to provide or permit adequate assistance to illiterate Negro
voters. They have given inadequate or erroneous instructions to black
voters, They have disqualified ballots cast by Negroes on technical
grounds, They have failed to afford black voters the same opportunity
as white voters to cast absentee ballots. They have established polling
places in locations, such as plantation stores, likely to discourage voting
by Negroes. And they have maintained racially segregated voting
facilities and voter lists.

There have also been many reports of dicrimination in the selection
of election officials, of exclusion of or interference with black poll
watchers, and of outright vote frand. These incidents all are docu-
mented in the Commission’s 1968 Report on Political Participation,

If Negroes do suceeed in registering under the protection of the
106> act, they find in such States as Mississippi and Alabama that the
legislatures have done what they ean to make those votes worth little.
New State laws have mandated at-large elections where Negro strength
is concentrated in particular election districts. Legislatures have passed
laws facilitating the consolidation of predominantly Negro and pre-
dominantly white counties. They have gerrymandered lines of legisla-
tive districts to divide concentrations of Negro voting strength.

There are also new Mississippi and Alabama laws designed to pre-
vent. Negroes from rumning successfully for public office. Examples
are laws increasing filing fees in elections where black candidates
were running; abolishing or making appointive the offices sought by
black candidates; extending the terms of office of incumbent white
officials: withholding information about qualifying for office from
black candidates; and withholding certification of their nominating
petitions.

The response of these States to the Voting Rights Act shows hoth
that it is starting to have effect, and that they cannot be relied on to
treat Negro voter applicants fairiy without it.

When the Voting Rights Aet was enacted it was hoped that Negroes
soon would have enough political strength in the States affected to no
longer need special Federal protection. Measured by the number
of black elected officials, there has been progress, but it has bheen
limited.

In 1965, there were almost no Negroes holding elected office in the
seven Southern States covered in whole or in part by the act. As
table 2 shows, there are now 302. However, in Alabama, Lounisiana,
Mississippi, and South Carslina, the majority of those black officials
are in communities, usually small ones, in which the majority of the
populaiion is black.
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The conditions that brought about the passage of the Voting Rights
Act 4 years ago persist to a great degree. Some of them cannot he
eradicated for generations—for how can literacy be an even-handed
voting standard where Negroes have never had an equal opportunity
to become literate? In 1968, only 52.2 percent of the Negroes in the
South age 25 and over had completed 8 years or more of school ; only
74.8 percent had completed 5 years or more. By contrast, 79.5 percent
of the white population had completed 8 or more years of school ; 92.7
had completed 5 years or more. Negro schools have been both segre-
gated and inferior.

Not only have the Southern States failed to comply with the Con-
stitution’s requirement of integration in the public schools; they have
not even lived up to the old Jim Crow standard of “separate but equal.”
They should not be permitted to use this denial of equal education to
justify a denial of the right to vote as well.

As the Supreme Court recently held in Gaston County v. United
States, 395 U.S. 285, (1969), “ ‘Tmpartial’ administration of the liter-
‘fmy test today would only perpetuate these inequities in a different

orm.

The barriers Negioes face to voting would be, without the Voting
Rights Act, as great today as in 1965. Congress in that year found a
substantially effective response to unconstitutional racial diserimina-
tion in voting. That response must be the same today.

T should like to add a final word concerning scction 3, beeause that
vital section is threatened with repeal by S. 2507, a bill enrrently
before this subcommittee. Without section §, States hostile to Negro
voting would be able to make endless changes in their election laws
and procedures in order to frustrate Negro political participation.
The slow pace of litigation would never be able to keep up.

Such behavior by State legislatures is not conjectural. It was done
many times befove the 1965 act. It was the reason Congress put
section 5 into the act. As the Supreme Court ob:zerved, “Not under-
estimating the ingenuity of those hent on preventing Negroes from
voting, Coneress therefore enacted seetion b % % = = {Men v, Stoin
Board of Elections, 393 U.S. 545, 22 L. . 22 1, 89 S, Ct. 817 (1969),

IFor example, in 1962 a Federal court of appeals ordered the regis-
trars of Foriest County, Miss,, to give Negrvo applicants the same
assistance and the same relief from trivial ervor< on applications
which white applicants had enjoyed in the past. The Mis-i=sippi legis-
lature promptly responded by requirving applicants to complete regis-
tration forms without assistance or error, and added a good-morals
and publie-challenge provision to the registration laws,

In a letter to the Attorney General dated June 28, 1969, the Rever-
end Theodore M. ITesburgh, Chairman of the Commis<ion on Civil
Rights, warned that elimination of section 5 would be “a distinet
retreat. Tt is an open invitation to those States which denied the vote
to minority citizens in the past to resume doing so in the future, through
insertion of disingenuous technicalities and changes in their election
laws.”

T entirely concur in the Chairman’s views, and ask that his letter
be made a part of the record.
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(The letter above referred to, follows:)

U.S. Coyyissiox O~ CIviL RiGHTS,
Washington, D.C. June 28, 1969.

Hon. Joux N. MiTCHFLL,
Attornecy General,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR ATYORNEY GENERAL: I am writing to express my deep concern about
the amendments te the Voting Righés Act which you proposed to the Subcom-
mittee of the House Judiciary Committee on Thursday, June 26, 1969. The Com-
mission staff is preparing a more detailed analysis which will be providead to you.

Your fourth proposal—to eliminate existing protection against manipulative
changes in voting laws—is in no sense an advance in protection of the voting
rights of American citizens, It is a distinet retreat. It is an open invitation
to those States which denied the vote to minority citizens in the past to resume
doing so in the future, through insertion of disingenuous technicalities and
changes in their election laws.

Under the present act, they eannot make such changes without prior approval
of the United States Distriet Court for the Distriet of Columbia or of the Justice
Department. Even so, at least one municipality in Mississippi’s election bast month
changed election procedurces without approval and in violation of the law, a
deflance which your statement recoguizes has not been unusual. Your proposed
alternative would turn back the clock to 1957, relying on the slow process of
litigation to try to keep up with rapidly enacted changes in the laws. It would
mean that the Depaviment of Justice would not have notice of such changes
before they were into effect. The inadequacy of litigation as the sole technique
of protccting the right to vote was recognized by Congress when it passed the
Yoting Rights Act of 1965, Now is not the time to gut oie of that act’s key
provisions,

I am also disturbed by your fifth proposal, which would add to the United
States Government yet another new Federal commission, this one called a “na-
tional advisory commisxion” to concern itself with voting diserimination and
corrupt practices relating to voting. You state that this new ageney would he
set up to study the effects which literacy test< have on minority groups, to study
thie problem of election frauds, and to report to Conuress its findings and recom-
menditions for any new legislation pertaining to the rizht to vote.

I am unable to understand whot purpose sueh a new commission wonld serve
that is not already within the authority granted by the Congress to the United
States Commission on Civil Rights, The Commission on Civil Rights is. as yon
know, a bipartisan, independent agency, proposed Ly President Eisenhower and
Attorney Genceral Brownell in 1936 and established by Congress in 1937, Attorney
General Brownell said at that time:

“When there ave charges that by one means or another the vote is beine denied.
we must find out all of the facts—-the extent, the methods, the results. . . . The
study shiould he objective and free from partisanship.”

Under its statute as amended, the Commission on Civil Richts has leen directe]
to:

“investizate nllegations, made in writing and under oath or affirmation. that
citizens of the United States are unlawfully being aceorded or denied the right to
vote, or to have their votes properly counted. in any election of presidential elec-
tors. Members of the United States Senate, or of the Tlouse of Represontatives,
as a result of any patterns or practice of fraud or diserimination in the eonduet
of such election. . . .7 78 Stat. 251, 42 ULK.C. § 1075e(a) (3).

Thus the Commission on Civil Rights has an ample mandate to investigate
fraud in such elections, as well asto:

“investigate allegations in writin gand under onth or affivimation that certsin
cltizens of the United States are being deprived of their right to vote and have
that vote counted by reason of their color, race. religion. or national origin. .

T1 Stat, 633, as amended, 42 17L8.C. § 1975ca) (1),

The Commission has been vigorous over the yenrs in investigating denials of
the franchise and frauduwlent election processes. Indeed, it was work hy this Com-
mission which helped lay the factual base for the Civil Rights Acts of 1960 and
1961 as well as the 1963 Voting Rights Aet. Our investigations have not heen eon-
fined to cases of election fraud which invelve dicerimination against memboers
of minority groups. thouzh we have consistently found that the most flagrant
frauds and abuses were divected against minorities.
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Our investigations have not tlagged. You have been provided a copy of a recent
staff memorandum on the May 190Y elections in Mississippi. The Commission’s
numerous hearings and reports are tilled with the results of our research on
voting. Our publications which deal especially with voting rights include :

Political P'articipation (19563)

The Voting Rights Act of 1965: The First Months (1965)
Voting in Mississippi (1965)

Yoting (1981)

Report of the Commission (1959)

The Commisston's budget proposal for fiscal year 1970 already requests funds
for a study of political participation of minority groups outside the Koutl.

The Commission on Civil Rights, as you know, has recommended abolition of
literacy requirements for voting throughout the nation. 1 gather from your testi-
mony that you agree. Certainly, however, this recommendation would not prevent
the Commission from re-examining that question thoroughly and with an open
minad if Congress so desirves.

It is generally conceded that the Commission on Civil Rights has developed
great expertise in investigating complaints of violations of voting rights and in
recommendng steps for their correction. Indeed, the document on voting com-
plaints outside the states covered by the 1963 Act, which you submitted for the
record of the Subcommittee, was a staff paper of this Commission. It would be
totally incongruous to establish a new body, staff it, and fund it in order to dupli-
cate the tasks which the Commission on Civil Rights was established under Prest-
dent Eisenhower to perform and continues to perform.

President Nixon on January 30 spoke of the need for: “entting expenditures,
increasing efficiency in Government operations, abolishing unnecessary azencies
and eliminating duplication of efforts.”

At a time when funds for all domestic programs are severely limited, and
when the President in April asked his Advisory Councll on Excentive Organiza-
tion to look for ways to eliminate duptteation and waste, it would make no sense
to spend millious of dollars, lose valuable start-up and staffing time, and add still
another agency to the federal bureaucraey to do a joh that, to the extent onr funds
permit, Is already being done. If more effort needs to e put forth, the Connis-
sion on Civil Rights stands ready to use its skilled staff and vears of experience,
to the extent Congress will provide the money. This nation should not waste the
limited domestic funds which ave available. T hope you will withdras the
proposal.

Sincerely yours,
THEODORE M. HESBURGH, Chairman.

s, Freryax. T also coneur in his opposition to the provision of
S. 2307 which would ereate a new IFederal commission to study votine:
stich a commission is entirely unnecessary in light of the existing juris-
diction and long experience of the Commission on Civil Rights. There
are other provisions of S, 2307, such as a han on literacy tests nation-
wide, which T and the Commission would support.

But the primary concern right now mmst he extension of the full
range of protections which the Voting Right et affords. T would
like at this time to submit for the record a Commission staff memo-
randum which analyzes in detail the principal provisions of S, 2307,

(The document referred to follows:)

Crvir. RIGRTS COMMISSION STAFF MEMORANDUM—ANALYSIS oF €. 2307. A RiLL
To AMEND THE VoTING Rienirs Act oF 1965
Jurry S 1969,

On August 6, 1970, the States and counties now covered by the Votinz Rights
Act of 1963, 70 Stat. 437, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1973-1973p (Supp. 11T 1965-67), will have
been subject to its provisions for five years, and so by terms of the Aet will be
able to escape from its coverage. The United States Commission on Civil Rights in
a letter from the Chatrman te the Presldent dated Mareh 28, 1969, expressed its
support for extension of the coverage period of the existing Act, and documented
the need with a staff memorandum, a copy of which is attached. The Commission’s
concern was further expressed in testimony before Subcommittee Number 5 of the
Committee on the Judiciary, TTouse of Representatives, by the Acting Staff Diree-
tor on May 14, 1060,
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In testimony before the Subcommittee on June 26 and July 1, 1969, Attorney
Geueral John N. Mitchell indicated his opposition to H.R. 4249, a bill to extend
coverage of the Voting Rights Act for five years beyond its 1970 expiration. He
proposed as an alternative a bill which was subsequently introduced in the
Senate as S. 2507. That bill would dimfnish the protection of the existing Act
in a pumber of respects, while adding other provisions dealing with matters not
within the 1065 Act's coverage. This memorandum analyzes the principal provi-
slons of 8. 2307, and comments upon their utility and their effect on the protec-
ttons which voters now enjoy under the 1965 Act.

I. ELIMINATION OF REQUIREMENT FOR PRIOR APPROVAL OF VOTING LAW CITANGES

A. Present Law

Under Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act of 1063, when a State or political
subdivision covered by the Act xeeks to change its voting qualifications or proce-
dures, it must either obtain the approval of the Aftorney General of the United
States or initiate a suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia.
If the Attorney General objects to the changes. they may not be enforced until
the court rules that they do not have the purpose and will not have the effect of
denying to any person the right to vote because of his race or color. If the Attor-
ney General does not object, the new qualifications or procedures may be enforced
60 days after their submission.? States and subdivisions covered by the standards
of the 1965 \ct are those which in 1964 had a combination of literacy or other
requirements for voting, and voting registration of participation by less than half
the adult population. They are Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, Miss<issippi, South
Carolina, Virginia, 39 counties of North Carolina, one county or Arizona, and
one county of Hawaii?

B. 8. 2507 Proposcd Changce

Section 3 of S. 2507 would repeal this provision of the existing law. Instead it
would aunthorize the Attorney General te seek an injunction in a three-judge
Federal district court against the enforcement of any voting qualification or pro-
cedure which has the purpose or effect of abiridging the right to vote on account
of racve. Unlike Section 5 of the Voting Rights Aet, this section would not Le
restricted to States covered by the 1963 Act.

C. Analysis of Proposed Change

Repeal of Section 5 and substitution of the new provision would have several
disadvantages:

1. Tedious and Time-Consuming Litigation.—The proposal tlies in the face of
the experlence Congress had in mind when it enacted Section 5 in 1983. Until the
Voting Rights Act of 1963, private citizens (and, after 1957, the Attorney Gen-
eral) could sue to set aside laws and practices which denied the right to vote on
the basis of race. Past studies have shown the inadequacy of civil litigation as
a means of protecting Negro voting rights from officially sanctioned destruction.*
The most eloquent testimony of the ineffectiveness of prior methods of protection
is the fact that in 196t in the seven States covered by the Aet, only 29 percent of
the adult Negro population was registered to vote, compared with 78 percent of
adult whites.®

In South Carolina v. Kat:enbnch, 353 U 8. 301 (1966), the Supreme Court dis-
cussed why the case-by-case method of litigatlion against voting digerimination
had proved ineffective. The Court stated :

“Voting suits are unusually onerous to prepare, sometimes requiring as many
as 6,000 man-hours spent combing through registration records in preparation for
trial. Litigation has been exceedingly slow. . . . Even where favorable decisions
have finally been obtained, some of the States affected have merely switched to
discriminatory devices not covered by the federal decrees or have enacted difficult

18, 818, S. 2456, H.R. 5181, and H.R. 5333 are in substance {dcatical with H.R. 4249.

2 Since the passage of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 approximately 223 voting laws
have been submitted to the Attorney General for approval, according to the Department of
Justice. The Attorney General has ohjected to only four of the laws submitted, Three of
the four objections involved the statutes before the Supreme Court in the AlHn case, dis-
cussed below.

3The State of Alaska and some isolated counties elsewhere have removed themselves
from coverage under the Act aceording to the procedures of Sectlon 4.

4 Rea €.9., 1961 Report of the U.S. Commission on Clvil Rights. Vol. 1. Voting.

8 See U.S. Commission on Civil Rights, Paolitical Participation 222 (1068).
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new tests designed to prolong the existing disparity between white and Nezro
registration.” Id. at 31} (foolnote omitted).

To prevent such disingenuous changes in voting laws, Congress enacted Sec-
tion 5. Under it individuals and the Government no longer need initiate time-
consuming litigation to stop discriminatory practices, and then if ultimately
suceessful find that the vietory is meaningless because the State can simply adopt
new discriminatory laws, in an endless ¢yele. ‘Fhe Voting Rights Act assures
that the validity, of voting laws will be tested before, not after, they are put into
effect. As the Supreme Court satd, “Not underestimating the ingenuity of those
bent on preventing Negroes from voting, Congress therefore enacted §5. .. .
Allen v, State Board of Electionsg, 317 U.S. Law Week 4168 (1969).

2. Misplaced Burdcn of Proof—Under the proposed legislation the Attorney
General or a private litigant would bear the burden and have to devote consid-
erable resources to proving that a particular change in State law is discerimina-
tory. Under the present Section 3. the burden of proof that a practice or procedure
is not dixciminatory is on the State or political subdivision. Given the history in
sume States of repression of any attempts by black people to gain political power,
an the greater familiarity of the State with the purpose and effect of its legisla-
tion, this is where the burden should remain. As the Supreme Court observed:
“After enduring nearly a century of systematie resistance to the Fifteenth Amend-
ment, Congress might well decide to shift the advantage of time and inertia from
the perpetrators of the evil to its victims.” South Carolina v. Kat:enbach, 383 U.S.
301, 328 {1966). Under S. 2307 the shift would be undone.

3. Increasiny Diflicuties for Private Litigants—An important gain in voter
protection under the 1965 Act was the right of individuals to sue to enforce Sec-
tion 3, regardless of inaction by the Department of Justice. This right was clari-
tied recently when the Supreme Court interpreted Section 3 in Allen v. State
Board of BElections, supra. In such suits the private litigants need establish only
that a State has not complied with Section 5, in order to block changes in legis-
lation. With their vigilance, Section 5 will be even more effective if retained,
since enforcement will no longer depend entirely on the resources, knowledge
aud priorities of the Department of Justice.

4. Past Violations Must Not Be Condoncd.—The Attorney General in his
staternent observed at page 5 that: “Where local officials have passed discrimi.
natory laws, generally they have not been submitted to the Department of
Justice.” He suggested in testimony before the Subcommittee that this was one
reason why the section should be repealed.

It should be remembered ahove all that most States have obeyed Section 5,
and sought approval of changes in their voting laws. Like most laws, Section 3
achieves its purpose because people obey It. As for the instances in which there
have been violations, there are two reasons that instances of noncompliance
would not support the section’s elimination,

First, until the Allen decislon, referred to previously, it had been unclear
whether Section 5 applied to all election law changes in the covered States, or
only to those changes which dealt with voting and registration. Thus neither
Mississippt or Virginia, the States involved in the Allen case, had submitted to
the Attorney General or sought approval from the District Court of the District
of Columbia for statutes altering such matters as whether elective offices are
to be appointive, requirements for filing by candidates, and procedures concern-
ing assistance to voters unable to mark ballots. Because the Court has now made
clear that Section § has a very wide secope, States can now be expected to submit
more statutes for approval.

Second, if a State continues to ignore Section 5, the remedy under the existing
law is simple. Either the \Attorney General or a private litigant can sue in any
Federal district court to enjoin the State’s change in law for failure to follow
the dictates of Section 5. Such a lawsuit is very expeditious. The only proof
required is that the new State provision relates to voting, that {t has modified
the law in effect as of November 1, 1964, and that it has not been submitted to
the Attorney General or the District Court of the District of Columbia. No
proof is required that the change has a discriminatory effeet. On this showing,
injunetion follows as a matter of course. A recent example of the effectiveness of
this procedure occurred in Mississippi, where a Federal Qistrict court enjoined
a municipal primary election in Mississippl because the city expanded its
-corporate limits—allegedly to dilute the black vote by adding white areas to the
town—wlithout submitting the changes to the Attorney CGeneral or the District
Court in the District of Columbia.
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The burden of such litigation is slight, the proof simple, the likelihood of
obtaining immediate relief great. Prevention of such flagrant noncompliance
with the law would not overburden the Department of Justice. Normally the
cure for cases of outright defiance of the law is not repeal of the law, but rather
more vigorous enforcement,

5. Altorncy Genceral's Porer to Sue Adds Nothing of Substance—S. 2507,
after eliminating the simple enforcement procedure described above, would
substitute a section authorizing the Attorney General to sue in Federal court
whenever he Lelieves a State has enacted or is administering any voting pro-
cedure with the purpose or effect of denying the franchise on grounds of race.
But the Attorney General already has the authority to bring such suits. Section 2
of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 provides that:

“Na \otiug qu'\lihcmion or prerequisite to voting, or standard, practice, or
procedure shatt be imposed on or applied by any State or political subdivision to
deny or abridge the right of any citizen of the United States to vote on account
of race or color.”

And Section 12{@) of the same Act provides that:

“Whenever any person has engaged or there are reasonable grounds to believe
that any person is about to engage in any act or practice prohibited by section
2., the Attorney General may institute . . . an action for preventive relief,
iucludmg an appllc*ﬂion fox a temporary or permanent injunection, restraining
order, or other order. . .

Similar powers were included fn the Civil Rights Act of 1937, 71 Stat. 634.

Thus the new section would give the .Attorney General no powers in addition
to those granted by the Voting Rights Act and its predecessors. His access to
a ihree-judge forum and the right of direct appeal to the Supreme Court were
gr.ated in the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Most importantly, under the present
law, lawsuits with or without direct appeal are unnecessary slice Section 5
preserves the status quo until legatity is decided without need to resort to
litigation.

JII. EXPANDED POWER TO SEND EXAMINERS AND OBSERVERS

A. Present Laar

Under Sectiom 6 of the present Voting Rights Act, the Attorney General may
direct that Federal examiners be sent to any State or county covered by the
Act if he has received 20 meritorious complaints from that jurisdiction alleging
voter discrimination, or if he believes that appointment of examiners is neces-
sary to enforce the right to vote. Examiners prepare lists of applicants eligible
to vote, whom State officlals are required to register.

In addition, the present Act in Section 8 provides for appointment of Federal
ohservers to watch for irregularities in polling places and in the tabulation of
votes. Observers may be sent only to jurisdictions which have been designated
for appointmont of examiners.

B. £.2567 Propnsed Change

._‘. 2307 in its Section 4 would allow the Attorney General to send Federal
examiners to register voters in any State. county or city in the United States,
again subjeet to either receipt of 20 complaints or his belief that examiners are
needed to prevent voting discrimination. Ie would not be confined to the States
and counties covered by the Act.

In addition 8. 2507 in its Scetion 5 would authorize the Attorney General to
send Federal observers to any potlitical subdivision in the United States in
which he belicved their presence was necessary or appropriate to prevent voter
diserimination. Ife would not be limited to subdivisions covered by the Act and
designated for appointment of examiners.

C. Analysisof Proposed Change

The expanded authority to send examiners and observers is in no way objec-
tionable: the \ttorney General should have power to send examiners and
observers wherever they may be needed. However, no evidence has been pre-
senteéd to show that examiners and observers are not nceded more vitally in
the seven States to which they can now be sent. In addition, under Section 3
of the Act, the Attoerney General may obtain appointment of examiners in
other jurisdictions as part of interlocutory retef In suits to enforce voting rights
under the Fifteenth Amendment.
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The jower to send examiners has been used sparingly—too sparingly—even
under the 1965 Act. Two of the seven States covered by the Act have never liud a
county designated for the appointinent of examiners, and two others have had
only five between them. If the Attorney Generial has made so little use ol the
power to appoint examiners in thie areas covered by the Act, where the nend hax
been great, it secems unlikely e will have cause to use the proposed authority
outside those areas where o need has yet been shown.

The same comurents apply to the expanded power to send observers. Th. present
requirement that observers he sent only to jurisdiction designated for exaniiners
has not restricted them to places where examiners actuatly are present. it the
Attorney General has found it suflicient simply to designate connties for ap,-oint-
ment of examiners in order to send observers, without actually having examiners
dispatched. Authority to dispatch observers throughout thie Nation adds iittie to
the power to deal with voter discrimination in the States where it has been kuown
to exist. Thus the proposed change is unobjectionable, but its practical viserulness
is at hest speculative.

IIf. NATIONWIDE SUSPENSION OF LITERACY TESTS

A. Present Lato

Under existing decisions States are permitted to condition the right to vito on
literacy and certain reasonable requirements, provided they are not aptliesd in a
diseriminatory fashion. Although there are serious arguments that literey tests
no matter how fairly applied violate the Constitution, and some, recent cixes may
cast doubt on their con&tltut[ona!itv, no decision has yet so held.! Asa consequence
literacy tests and similar prerequisites for voting persist in 20 States.

The Voting Rights Act of 1965 forbids the use of such tests in any State or
county or other political subdivision which used such a test as of November 1.
1664, and in which elther less than 50 percent of the voting age population was
registered in that date. or less than 50 percent actually voted in the 1064 Prosi-
dential election. A State or subdivision may be removed from coverage b:” proving
in court that it has not for five years applied a tests or device with the part o or
cffeet of denying the vote because of race or color.

B. 8.2507 Propo<cd Change

Section 2(a) of X, 2307 would suspend the use of literaey tests or oth-o siilar
devices anywhere in the United States until January 1, 1971

C. Analysis of Proposcd Change

Th proposed nationwide ban on literacy tests is an improvement over oxistinye
law, but it does not go far encugh, and it is in no senxe an effective sub-titite for
the present Act’s Section 5, discussed earlier, which deals with changes in voting
laws which do not involve literacy tests or similar devicex.

The United States Commission on Civil Rights recommended a comjplete ban
on literacy tests as early as 1901. Most recently in a letter to the 'rexid-at. dated
March 28, 1969. Chairman Theodore M. Hesburgh stated :

“The lives and fortunes of illiterates are no less aftected by the action- of teeal,
State and Federal governments than those of their more fortunate brethrei Most
States, perhaps for this reason, do not impose a literacy test as a preres-tisite to
voting.

“Today, with television so widely avallable, it is possible for one with little
formal education to he a well-informed and intelligent member of the electorute.”

He also referred to a recent decision aftirmed by the Supreme Court which held
that “it would be incongruous to allow a State or county to disfranchi<e people
for inability to pass a literacy text, when that ability was denied them a- a rasult
of discriminatory State action.” Gaston County v. U'nited States, 288 F. Snpp.
G7R 629 (D.D.C. 19468), nff'd. 37 U.S. Law Week 178 (1969) . ‘That i onzrnity
would not be lessened appreciably, in a country whose Constitution guarautees
“the equal protection of the laws,” if persons who were fllegally denied an equal
education in one State meved away only to find themselves denied the frandhive
in another.

¢ Compare Gaston County v. United States, 37 U.S Law Week 4478 (1960 ; Harr r v,
Vfrqinla State Board of Elccfions, 332 1.8, 663 (1966
*'In Lassiter v. Northampton Board o Elections, 360 U.S. 45 (19539) the Sup: rie Conrt
affirmed a judement upholding applleation of a lteracy test absent a showing thit it por-
petuated diserimination in violation of the Fifteenth Amendment.
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Moreover, in 1963 a special President’s Commission on Registration and Voting
Participation also recommended such a ban.® While Congress through hearings
before the appropriate committees of the House of Representatives and Senate
may wish to make further inquiry into the wisdom of such a ban, probably no
significant new information wouild be gained by having a third Commission fo
study the same issue. If further study is helieved necessary, the Commission on
Civi! Rights is of course prepared and qualified to look at the question once more.

1V. NEW VOTING RIGH1S STUDY COMMISSION
A. Present Law

The Urnited States Commission on Civil Rights is authorized by Congress to
investigate complaints that citizens are being denied the right to vote by reason
of thieir race, color. religion or national origin. It is alvo authorized to investigate
complaints that because of traudulent practices or discrimination citizens are
being denied the right to vote or have their votes properly counted in Federal
clections The Commission from its inception in 1957 has devoted a large part of
its resources to investigating voting rights denials and reporting to the President
and Congress on changes on the laws and their administration which are neces-
sary to protect the right to vote. The Commission's publications which deal
especialiy with voting include its 1959 Report, Voting (1981), Voling in AM{ssis-
ippi (1963), The Voting Riglits Act ... The First Months (1963), and Political
Participation (1968). \As Senator Dirksen recently observed in speaking of voting
protection and literacy tests:

It was in 1957, when a new conscience made itself felt in the United States,
resulting in the creation of a Civil Rights Commission to cxplore the whole
question. . . .

“The Commission on Civil Rights consisted of outstanding talent and it made
a thorongh examinalion of the matter.” Congressional Record, June 30, 1969,
P ST30%.

B. 8. 2507 Proposcd Change

Section 7 of the proposed legislation wonld add to the Federal government a
new temporary commission to be called the National Advisory Commission on
Voting Rights. It would have a chairman and eight members, all appointed by the
President, an Executive Director also a P’rexidential appointee, and a staff and
budget of presently undisclosed dimensions. No provision would be made for
bipartisan representation, nor would there be any requirement that the Senate
adrire and consent to nominations. The new Cominission would be charged to
make a study of the effects of laws restricting the right to vote and of fraudu-
leut and corrupt practices upon voting rights, reporting with recommendations
by Jannary 135, 1973,

. Analyzis of Proposcd Change

The new commission as proposed would duplicate the tasks which have heen
and are currently being performed by the Commission on Civil Rights. It would
tack the staff and expertise in the voting field which the Commission on Civil
tights has acquired. and would terminate in 1973 within two weeks of the date
presently set for the final report of the existing Commission. In addition, the
propesed additional commission would lack the legislative mandate to study the
hroad problems of political participation, and would instead be limited to a nar-
row focus on legislative barriers and fraudulent practices. The experience of the
Cowmimission on Civil Rights has shown that the issues of voting rights are more
complex, and cannot be understood apart from a con=ideration of the educational,
ceonomic, hictorieal and <ocial context in which those rights are exercised.

In otker ways the proposed commission, besides heing duplicative would not
he asz effective as the present Commission on Civil Rights. It would lack the
present Commission’s power to subpoena witnes<es and documents, Its members
and <toff would prebably lack the years of familiarity with voting laws and
problents on which the present Commission driaws. And unlike the present Com-
miszicn it would not be required to be hipartisan with members subject to Senate
confirmation. As former Attorney General Rrownell ob<erved in 1956, urging the
extabYshment of the bipartisan Commis<ion on Civil Rights:

“When there are charges that by one means or another the vote is boing
denird. we must find out all of the facts--the extent, the methods, the re-

*Repart of the President’s Commission on Reglstration and Voting Participation (1983).
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sults. . . . The study should be objective aud free from partisanship.” IL.R.
Rep. 291, S5th Cong., 1st Sess. (1957).

Finally, there has already been one investigation of voting by an independent

commission, carried on in 1963 by the President’'s Commission on Registration
and Veting Participation at a time when the jurisdiction of the Commission on
Civil Rights in the voting area was narrower than its prexent statutory man-
date. The 1963 Commission was charged with investigating the reasons for low
voter participation and recommending solutions for this problem, exeept that
it was not to consider “matters placed under the jurisdiction of the Commission
on Civil Right<.” During its Investigation the 1963 Commission:
“made a detailed analysis of the election laws and practices of the 50 states
and . . . studied the clectoral systems of other democracies. It . . . solicited the
opinions of many hundreds of citizens in the ficlds of national, state and local
government, politics, civie and social work and political science. Staff members
of the Commission . . . interviewed a number of officials directly coneerned
with election administration at the state, county, and municipal levels.” ®

The 1963 Commission recommended the adoption of 21 detailed stamdards, in-
cluding a nationwide ban on literacy tests. Many of the suhjects on which the
1963 Commission made recommendations would be restudied by the new Federal
commission proposed in 8. 2507.

V. ELIMINATION OF RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS IN PRESIDENTIAL ELECTIONS

A. Present Law

In our mobile society, it has been estimated that as many as one-third of alt
households move each year, many of them across jurisdictional lines. At present
the residence requirements to vote in elections for clectors for President and
Vice-President are the same as those for voting in elections in the jurisdietion of
residence, Since many jurisdictions require as much as a full yezr of residence
for eligibility to vote, many millions of recently arrived voters are unable to vote
in Presidential elections. The Census Bureau has estimated that as many as 5.5
million persons were disfranchised in this way in 1968,

B. 8. 2507 Proposcd Change

In its Section 2, 8. 2307 would provide that if a newly arrived resident may
vote in an election for President or Vice President (by which presumably is
meant in election for electors for President or Vice-President) in his new State
or political subdivision of residence if he moved there before September 1 of
the election year, or in his former state it he moved after Septcuber 1 and was
qualified to vote at the former residence.

C. Analysis of Proposcd Change

The constitutionality of existing state laws which disfranchise new residents
in Presidential elections is uncertain, and probably will be decided by the
Supreme Court next term.' Watever the Court’s ruling, such restrictions serve
no rational policy as applied to election of officials whose constitueney is national
in scope, and should be abolished. Such was one of the recommendations of the
1063 special commission. The Commission on Civil Rights through the Chairman’s
March 28, 1969, letter to the President stated :

“Other barriers to the free exercise of the right to vote should also be examined
to deterinine whether they infringe rights under the Fourteenth or Fifteenth
Amendements and therefore should be elimated by Cougress. For example, re-
sidency requirements seem unreasonable when applied to presidential elections,
for which famiHarity with local issues and personatities is irrelevant. The Com-
mission is especially concerned because the burden of such requirements falls
heavily on migrant workers, mainly Mexican Americans from the Southwest,
who are often unable to vote either in their home State or in the State in which
they are working. In addition, long residency requirements disfranchise a larze
number of well educated young adults, who tend to be more mobile then the
population generally.”

Elimination of residency requirements in Presidential elections would correct
a longstanding injustice.

* Report of the President’s Commission on Reglstration and Voting Participation, il

(1063).
Qg‘ssce Hall v. Beals, prob. jur. noted, 37 U.S. Law Week 3298 (1969), (No. 950, O.T.



37

VI. SPFCIAL SURVEYS Of VOTER PARTICIPATION

A. Picsent Lare

Title VIIT of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 266, provides for a survey
of voting and voter registration by the Secretary of Commerce in areas recom-
mended by the Commission on Civil Rights, The survey, and the 1970 Census,
shall compile voting data by race and national origin.®
B. N, 2567 Praoposed Change

In its Section 17{c) the bill proposes that the Secretary of Commerce make
special surveys to collect data regarding voting by race, national original, and
income groups, and transmit the data with the results of the 1970 Census to the
proposed new advisory commisison on voting rights.

C. Analysiz of Proposed Change

The propozed Section 17{¢) adds nothing new to existing authority for a voting
survey except the provision that the data would be collected by income group as
well as by national origin. While this added information would be welcome, it
also would be provided through a simple amendment to Title VIII.

Title VIII, however, has never been implemented. It directed an immediate
survey as well as one “in connection with” the 1970 Census. For reasons of
cconomy, it was decided in 1966 that the immediate survey would not be done.
Funds for the latter survey have not been requested by the President or ap-
propriated by Congress.

Since the enactment of Title VIII the Commission on Civil Rights has ful-
filled its statutory duty of specifying the areas to be covered by the survey.
This designation has been updated and will be updated again whenever there
is indication that the survey will be carried out.

In addition, the Cominission on Civil Rights has continually urged that Titie
VIII be implemented. On February 17, 1969, the Commission sent a letter to
Secretary of Commerce Maurice Stanx asking him to request Bureau of Budget
approval for funds for the Title VIII survey. On Febhruary 18, 1969, the Commis-
sion wrote to Attorney General John N. Mitchell encloxing a copy of the letter
to Mr. Stans and indicating that if funds are not to be made available for the
Title VIII survey, then Title VITI should be repealed, since there would be “no
usolf\ul purpose” in having Title VIII continue to remain a dead lefter on the
books.

On March 6, 1969, the Secretary of Commerce replied to the Commission that
he had resubmitted the request for funds to the Bureau of the Budget. However,
the Commission subsequently learned that this request had been denied.

On April 3. 1969, Assistant Attorney General Jerris Leonard responded to the
Commission’s February 18 letter to the Attorney General. Mr. Leonard stated:

“We recognize that it would be uzeful to have the results of a survey of the
scope recommended by the Commission. However, because of the expense involved,
we are unable to share your view that such a project should be undertaken.
Assuming that the cost of the survey would amount to several million dollars,
we do not feel that an expenditure of this magnitude can be justified.”

Coples of these four letters are attached.

The Attorney General, by proposing in S. 2507 surveys as called for in Title
VIIY, apparently now considers the type of survey called for by Title VIII a
valuable one and will cooperate in its implementation. It is to be hoped that
this change of position by the Department of Justice will encourage Congress to

11 Sec. 801, The Sccretary of Commerce shall promptly conduct a survey to compile
registration and voting statistles in such geographle areas as may be recommended by the
Commission on Civil Rights. Such a survey and compilation shall, to the extent recom-
mended by the Commission on Civil Rights, only include a count of persous of voting age
by race, color, and natlonal origin, and determination of the extent to which such persons
are registered to vote, and have voted in any statewlde primary or general election in
which the Members of the Unlted States House of Representatives are nominated or
clected, sinca January 1. 1960. Such information shall also be collected and compiled in
connection with the Nineteenth Decennial Census. and at such other times as the Congress
may prescribe. The provisions of Section 9 and Chapter 7 of Title 13, United States Codle,
shall apply to any survey, collection, or compllatlon of registration and voting statisties
carried out under this title: Provided, however, that no person shall be compelled to dis-
close his race, color, national origin, or questioned about his politic4l party affilintion,
how hia voted, or the reasons therefore, nor shall any penalty be imposad for his failure or
refusal to make such disclosure. Every person interrogatcd orally, by written survey or
questionnatre or by any other means with respect to such information shall be fully advised
with respect to his right to fail or refuse to furnish such Information. 78 Stat. 268 (1964).
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appropriate the funds for this important project which it authorizead in 1964, anad
that the Department of Justice will propose the funding legislation called for.

VII. CONCLUSION

In his testimony the Attorney General indicated his willingness that the
Congress, if it desires, deal first with extending the existing protections of the
Yoting Rights Act, and then consider as a separate matter the several substantive
chaunges proposed in S. 2507. That would be a wise course. Some provisions of
S. 2307, particularly the proposed repeal of existing safeguards against biased
changes in voting laws, would drastically reduce existing voting rights protee-
tion. Others, such as the proposed new commission to study voting rights and the
proposed surveys, duplicate matters covered under existing laws and are unneces-
sary. And still others, such as the cHiination of residency requirements in
Presidential elections, should be adopted.

‘The assortment of provisions in 8. 2307 should be considered on their individual
merits, and those which would weaken voting rights protection should Le c¢lim-
inated. Existing voting rights protection should be continued in full force.

U~ITED STATES CodMiIsstoN oN Civin RiGHTs,
Washington, D.C., March 28, 1969,
The PRESIDENT,
The White House, Washington, D.C.

DEeAR MRr. PRESIDENT: As you are aware, key provisions of the Voting Rights
Act of 1065 will cease to be applicable in August 1970 unless the Act is extended.
Several bills to extend the Act have been introduced in Congress this session,

The Voting Rights Act at present suspends the use of literacy tests and other
voter registration tests and devices in Alabama, Georgin, Lounisiana, Mississippi.
South Carolina, Virginia and 39 counties in North Carolina. It empowers the
Attorney General to send Federal examiners into these areas to lis* persons
qualified to vote and to assign Federal obrervers to monitor elections. Covered
States and countles also are required. before applying any new legislation with
respect to voting, to seek court approval or to submit such legislation to the
Attorney General for his deterimination that it does not violate the Fifteenth
Amendment.

After August 6, 1970, these States and counties will be free to petition a three-
judge Federal district court in the District of Columbia for the right to escape
from these provisions of the Act. They will be permitted to ¢o so if the court
finds that no test or device has been used in the State during the preceding five
vears for the purpose or with the efiect of discrimination. This will permit States
and counties to reinstitute the types of tests that were outlawed by the Voting
Rigzhts Act because they had been used to disfranchise Negroes.

A report of the U.S. Commisxion on Civil Rights, Political Participation, pub-
lished in May 1968, documented many continuing barriers to the participation of
Negroes in the South in the political process, including measures or practices
diluting the votes of Negroes, preventing Negroes from becoming candidates,
discriminating against Negro registrants and poll watchers, and discriminating
against Negroes in the appointment of election officials. Intimidation and econonie
dependence In many areas of the South continue to prevent Negroes from exer-
cizing their franchise or running for oflice fully and freely. Field research by
Commission staff in Missis<ippt 1ast summer indicates that the problems described
in the Commission’s report persist. Though mueh progress has been made in
eliminating the gap between the proportion of whites and Negroes of voting age
who are registered, a significant disparity still exists, There are many individual
counties in which Negro registration is especially low. These conditions. which
are more fully elaborated in an enclosed staff memorandum, necessitate. at a
minimum, the continuation of the han on tests and of the authority of the
Attorney General to send examiners and observers,

In addition to backing extension of the Voting Rights Act, the Administration.
in the Commission’s view, should give consideration to proposing legislation
dealing more broadly with the right to vote, including legislation banning the
use of literacy tests nationwide,

A wide gap exists nationally between the quality of the public education
afforded to white students and the quality of the public education available to
Negroes, Mexican Americans and members of other minority groups. Studies
such as the Office of Education’s Coleman Report, Equality of Educational Op-
portunity, and the Commisslon’s Racial Isolation in the Pubdlic Schools show the
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educationally harmful effects upon Negro students of attending schools isolated
by race and social class. Evidence at our recent hearing in San Antonio, Texas
indicated that similar damage is being done to Mexican American students. In
addition, evidence at Commission hearings in Cleveland, Boston, Rochester, Mont-
gomery and San Antonio indicates that schools attended predominantly by
minority students often have inferior facilities.

In a recent case, Gaxton County v. Unitcd States, a three-judge Federal court
specifically found that the inferlor education afforded Negroes in a North
Caroliua county afiected their literacy rate as compared to that of white persons.
As the court in the Gaston County case said, “[i]t would bhe incongruous to allow
a State or county to disfranchise people for inability to pass a literacy test, when
that ability was denicd them as a result of diseriminatory State action.”

There is much to be said for the view that it ix unfair to deny a voice in their
own government to thoxe who cannot read or write. The lives and fortunes of
illiterates are no less affected LY the actions of locral, State and l'ederal gov-
eruments than those of their more foriunate brethren. Most States, perhaps
for this reaxon, do not impose a literacy test as a prerequisite to voting.

Today, with television so widely available. it is possible for one with little
formmal education to be a well-informed and intelligent member of the clectorate,
Although a State may nevertheless have an otherwise valid interest in a literate
electorate, this interest cannot justify a State’s use of a disability created in
part by its own dereliction as the basis for disfranchisement.

Other barriers to the free exercise of the right to vote should also he examined
to determine whether they infringe rights under the Fourteenth or Fifteenth
Amendments and therefore should be eliminated by Congress. ¥or example,
residency requirements seem unreasonable when applied to presidential elections,
for which familiarity with local issues and personalities is irrelevant. The Com-
mission is especially concerned because the burden of such requirements falls
heavily on migrant workers, mainly Mexican Americans from the Southwest,
who are often unable to vote either in their home State or in the State in which
they are working. In addition, long residency requirements disfranchise a large
number of well educated young adults, who tend to be more mobile than the
population generally. The proposed Residency Voting Act of 19067 would have
allowed persons who become residents of a State by September 1 of a presidential
election year to vote for President in that year's election. We feel that this
would be a reasonable requirement.

Fight years ago, in its 1961 Report, the Commission recommended that Con-
gress “enact legislation providing that all citizens of the Unied States shall have
a right to vote in Federal or State elections which shall not be denied or in any
way abridged or interfered with by the United States or by any State for any
cause except for inablility to meet reasonable age or length-of-residence require-
ments uniformly applied to all persons within a State, legal confinement at the
time of registration or eclection, or conviction of a felony. .. .”

The Commission believes that consideration should now be given to implemen-
tation of this recommendation. Commissioner Rankin was not present at the
Commission meeting when the subject matter of this letter was considered.

Respectfully yours,
Tueonore M. HEsBURGH, Chairman.

Enclosure.

STAFF MEMORANDUM

EXTENSION AND EXPANSION OF THE VOIING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965

Section 4(a) of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §1973b(a) (Supp. 11, 1067),
provides that:
[N]o citizens shall be denied the right to vote in any Federal, State, or
local election because of his failure to comply with any test or device in any
State with respect to which the determinations have been made under sub-
section (b) or in any political subdivision with respect to which such de-
terminations have been made as a separate unit, unless the United States
District Court for the District of Columbia in an action for a declaratory
judgment brought by such State or subdivision against the United States has
determined that no such test or device has been used during the five vears
preceding the filing of the action for the purpose or with the effect of denying
or abridging the right to vote on account of race or color. . . .
37-199—70
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The phrase “test or device” is defined by the Act to mean (Section 4(¢), 42

U.S.C. § 1973 (c¢) (Supp. 1L, 19067) ) :
any requirement that a person as a prereqguixsite for voting * or registration
for voting (1) demonstrate the ability to read. write, understand, or interpret
any matter, (2) demonstrate any cducational achievement of his knowledge
of any particular subject, (3) po=sess good moral character, or (4) prove
his qualifications LY the voucher of registered voters or members of any
other class.

Under the formula of Section -1(h) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973bihy «Sup.
1, 1967), literacy test and other discriminatory voter registration tests and
requirements were suspended in six Southern States (Alabama, Georgia,
Louislana, Mississippi, South Carolina, and Virginia) and in 40 counties in North
Carolina? By the terms of the Voting Rights Act, after August 6, 1970, these
States and political subdivisions will be free to petition a three-judge Federal
district court in the District of Columbia for the right to resume the use of such
tests. They will be permitted to do =o. according to the Act, if the district conrt
tinds that no test or device has been used in the State during the preceding tive
vears for the purpos<e or with the effect of dixerimination.

In sueh event, the examiner and observer provisions and the provision requir-
ing covered States to submit new voting laws to the Attorney General will also
cease to apply to the State or locality involved.”

There are now hefore Congress four bills* which would exteénd these key
provisions of the Act for another five years. The States and political subdivisions
covered by Section 4(b) of the Act, therefore would not be able to petition the
court until Angust 6, 1975, for the right to resume the use of the tests,

There were several reasons why Congress suspended the use of tests or devices
in the covered areas. It appeared from the history of the adoption of such tests
and devices and the record of their administration that they were not intended to.
and did not, serve any purpose but to disfranchise Negroes. Mauny tests and
devices used in these States, moreover, were not susceptible of fair administra-
tion, ¢.g., the requircinent that registered voters must vouch for new applicants
in areas where almost no Negroes are registered and where whites cannot he
found to vouch for Negroes.

In addition, many Stite laws setting high registration requirements had heen
enacted following a long period of racial discrimination in voter registration.
Even fair administration of such laws wounld have frozen the white-Negro
registration disparity created by past violations of the Fifteenth Amendment.
It would have been unfair to apply these tests or devices to Negroes in States
whose voting laws were enacted while large numbers of Negroes were illegally
disfranchired and had no say in the adoption of the laws.

Also, the educational differences between whites and Negroes in the areas
covered by {ne prohibitions—differences attributable at least in part to violations
of the Fourteenth Amendment resulting frown the education of Negroes in segre-
gated. inferior schools—would have meant that equal application of the tests
would abridge Fifteenth Amendment rights.

The solution of the Veting Rights Act was to enfranchise the Negroes on the
same terms as the whites had been permitted to vote and then, after a period
of time during which equal voting rights were exercised, permit the elected
representatives of the people—presumably fairly representative of the black
and white communitics—to impoxe such qualitications as they desired.

Though much progress has been made in eliminating the gap between the pra-
portion of whites and the proportion of Negroes of voting age who are registercd.
a significant disparity stili exists.

! Section 14(c) (1) of the Act, $2 U.S.C. § 19731(c) (1), provides that :

. Tha terms “‘vote” or “voting™ shall include all action necessary to make a vote cftective
in any primary, special, or general electlon, including, but not lmited to, registration,
listing pursuant to this Act, or other action required by law prerequisite to voting, casting
a ballot, and having such ballot counted pr(-v\rl,\‘ and included in the approvriate torals of
votes cast with respect to candidates for public or party office and propasitions for which
votes are received in an election.

2 U.S. Commifslon on Civil Rights, Politlcal Partleipation 11 (19651, One North Caro-
lina County, Wake, has been released from caverage. leaving 39, Letter from Stephen 3
{'(?‘!lglk Assistant Attorney Geuneral, Civil Rights Division, to David H. Hunter, Ayri! 2,

a6s,

¥ Kections 3, 6and 8, 42 U.S.C. §8 1973¢. 1973d and 1973f.

¢ These are S. 818, LR, 4249, LR, 5181, and H.R. 5538, There is no substantive difler-
ence ainong the bllls,
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YOTER REGISTRATION IN THE SOUTH, SFRING-SUMMER 1968 §

Percent white Percent non-
tegistration white registration

Afabama.. . _. . OO 8.5 %.7
Georgia.. ... . .. ... .. e e e 8.7 96.1
Louisiana. _ _ 8.9 59.3
Mississippi 92.4 59.4
Nerth Carolina 18.7 55.3
South Carolin 65.6 50.8

61.0 58.4

Virginia .. il

Not only does Negro rvegistration trail white in each of the Suates included
in the ban on tests or devices, but there are many individual counties and parishes
where Negro registration is especially tow.*

In Alabama, less than half the Negroes of voting age are registered in 27 of the
107 counties. In five couutics, Baldwin, 31.6: Chambers, 24.7: Houston, 2831
Marshall, 32.6: and Morgan, 34.2; Negro vegisteation is less than 33 percent.

There are 133 counties in Georgia with a Negro voting age population of 50 or
more, In 68 of these, the Negro registration is less than 50 pereent ; in 217 it is
less than 35 percent.

In Louisiana, 11 out of 64 parishes have Negro registration of less than half.
In four of these, registration is lexs than 33 percent, These are Franklin, 180
Morehouse, 285; Richland, 25.4; and West Carroll, 28.6.

In 24 of Misxissippi’s &2 cownticsx, Negro registration —is less than half; in
five counties it is less than 33 percent. These ire Clarke, 23.5; Clay, 33.3:
Kemper, 20.1; Lowndes, 33.0: and Winston, 20.2,

The use of tests or devices is now prohibited in 39 counties in North Carelina.
Taexs than half of the Negroes of voting age are registered in 23 of these counties
and less than 35 percent in three—Harnett, 16.1; Wayne, 346 ; and Wilson, 32.2.

In half of South Carolina’s 46 counties Negro registration is less than half, It
is tess than 35 pereent in three: Anderson, 253 ; Edgefield, 29.3: and York, 33.4.%

The continued disparity between the registration of whites and that of Negroes
is chargeable to previous unconstitutional discrimination. It is reasonable to
assume that where Negro voter registration continues to lag, many persons,
because of past experience with prohibited discrimination, are deterred from
seeking to register to vote with local officials, and therefore, that dispropor-
tionately low Negro registration in a particular political subdivision eovered by
the Act is ‘“‘reasonably attributable to violations of the Fifteenth Amendment".
The reluctance to register with local officials is reflected in statistics published
by the Commission which show generally higher Negro registration in counties
in which Federal examiners have heen present.” The Commission attributed this
«lm‘orogm to the presence of the examiners, as well as to local registration
drives.

s Voter FEducation Project. Voter Registration fn the South, Summer 1968,

¢ Statistics In the following discussion are from Voter Educatlon Project, Voter Regis-
teation in the Sonth, Sunimser 1908,

? Decatur, 22.3; Early 20.0: Fchols, 9.7: Glascock, 6.2: Hart, 24.3: Lowndes. 2
Madison, 27.1; Marion, 18.4: Miller, 20.4 : Mitchell, 30.S: Oconee, 22.8; Oglethorpe, 2
PPalaski, 34.2: Quitman, 30.1: Randolph, 34.6; Stewart, 29.8; Talbot, 24.4; Taylor.
Upson, 28,1 : Webster, 27.2; and Worth, 27.4. l

S Data_for Virginia counties are not available,

* The Voting Rights Act provides that in politteal suldivisions where voter qualifications
tests or devices are suspended, Federal examiners can be appointed by the Civil Service
Commission to list aplpllcauts eligible to vote. The appointment may be ordered by the
1.8, Attorney General upon his certification that he has received written complaints
from 20 or more resldents clalming voting rights discrimination and he belleves them to
b meritorlous, or that In his judgment “‘the appointment of examiners Is otherwise nec-
exsary to enforce the guarantee of the Fifteenth Amendment”. Section 6. 42 U.S.C.
§ 19734 (Supp. 1, 1967).

1 78, Commisslon on Civiy Rights, Palitleal Participation 153-56 (196S). A copy of
this report is attached, :
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NONWHITE YOTER REGISTRATION, 1957 1

{In percent]
Eximiner Nonexaminer
counties counties
Atabama . . $9.3 45.4
Georgiy. . . .. 62.8 52,5
Louisiana__ . 53.5 60.2
Mississipui . 70.9 50.3
South Carolins 1.6 50.5

As of Mareh t, 1959, examiners had been sent to 50 counties in five Southern
States.!” Examiners in these counties had listed to vote a total of 167,364 persons,
including 157,567 nonwhites and 9,797 whites."®

In its rveport Political Participation, the Commission recommended that the
“ANttorney General . . . assign examiners under Secection 6 of the Voting Rights
Act to all political subdivisions where Negro registration is disproportionately
tow.” ** Because there remain so many counties which have not yet received the
henefit of the presence of Federal examiners, it is imperative that the han on the
ise of tests or devices be retained.

When the Voting Rights Act was enacted it was hoped that within five years
Negroes would have enough political strength in the States affected no longer
to need special Federal protection. Negro voting strength reflected in the makeup
of State legislatures, it was thought, would prevent the reinstatement of any
tests or devices that might tend to diseriminate. Progress, unfortunately, has
been stower than expected.

HEGROES IN STATE LEGISLATURES *

House Senate

0

L E T2 T U PN 0
Georgia. ... ... fememdeamciieecteeecsecocmaenasceaaes 12
Leuisiana_ .. .. ... ... eeeteeceeeseeaceteicaeieeaeeeaen 1
MNississippi .. .. . }
0
1

Hotth Carolina
South Carolina.
Viginia ...

CoOoOON

* Voler efucation project, Black tlected Officials in Southern States, iii (January 1963).

In addition to the fact that the number of Negroes elected to State legislatures
has been small, white legislators at least in some parts of the South are not
yot responsive to the inereased Negro vote that has resulted from the imple-
nmentation of the Voting Rights Act. As the Political Participation report shows,
ineasures to dilute the Negro vote have been taken by State legislatures—as
well as political party committec—in Alabama and Mississippl. The legislatures
in these States have also promulgated laws to prevent Negroes from becoming
candidates or obtaining office. Unless the Act is extended, States will be free
to apply such laws without prlor submission to the Attorney General.

It is also apparent that there is & continuing need for the presence of Federal
obhservers at the polls. The Political Participation report documents many inci-
dents of discrimination aganst Negro registrants and Negro poll watchers,
as well as widespread diserimination in the selection of election officials.

There is rearon to belicve that there has been little progress since the publica-
tion of the Commission report. Field investigations by Commission staff last
summnier in Mississippl showed that the pattern of exclusion of and discrimina-
tion against Negroes at precinet meetings, county conventions and the State
convention of the Mississippi Democratic Party still persists. At the 196S

ItId, at 222-235.
MU, Civil Serviee Commission, Cumulative Totals on Voting Rights Examining,
.\o!)t. 30, 1363, There was no listing by Federal examiners between then and March 1, 1969,

*Id. Of the total listed 3.038 have Leen removed pursuant to Section 9, 42 U.S.C.
§ 1973 (Rupp. 11, 1967).

M U.S. Commission on Civil Rights, Political Participatlon 1S0 (1988).
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Democratie National Convention, the delegation of the Mississippi Democratic
Party was not seated, and the challenge against the regular Democratic delega-
tions of Alabama and Georiga were partially accepted, on acccunt of the
racially diceriminatory practices of thoxe parties.

If the requircments of the Voting Rights Act are allowed to expire, it appears
tikely that rome Southern States will try to reduce the number of Negroes reg-
istered to vote. These States may require all voters to re-register. Re-vegi tration
can be a considerable burden for Negeoes who were fearful and relucram ahout
woing to the courthouse in the first place. Onee the prohibitions of the Vaoting
Rights Act are removed re-registration would be a means of reviewiny the rezis-
tration status of those Negroes who registered nnder the Act. Literacy test. and
other tests and devives could be reactivided to disfranchise thousands ¢ Negra
yvoters,

One of the reasous for the plan on literacy tests was the disparity bhetween
the education of whites and Negroes that existed in 1963, In tive yearx. this
disparity could not have been eliminated without a massive literacy drive. Not
only has such a campaign not taken place, but education remainx generally
segregated, and the education that Negro children are obtaining remains
inferior.

T'o give an example of the extent of the problems facing the Negro child trying to
obtain an education in the South, a copy 65 i Commission staff report prepared
after the Commission hearing last spring .n Montgomery, Alabama is attached.
It shows the continued school segreation in the part of Alabama under study
and an allocation of financial resources strongly favoring the white schools.
In Gaston County, North Carolina v. United States*® the Justice Department
introduced evidence of unequal educational opportunity in Gaston County, North
Carolina. The court concluded from the fact that only 51.7 percent of the county’s
Negroes over the age of 23 but 60.1 percent of the whites had more than a sixth
grade education that “any literacy test imposed upon Negroes as a precondition
to voting would have the effect of abridging the right of many Negroes to vole
on account of race or color.” "’

As long as segregated aud inferior education continues to exist in the South,
or its effects remain in the adult voting population, the reinstitution of literacy
tests cannot be justified. As Judge Skelly Wright said, “[i]t would be incongru-
ous to allow a state or county to disfranchise people for an inability to pass a
literacy test, when that ability was denied them as a result of discriminatory
state action.”” '

In its Political Participation report the Commission sald:

Congress should evaluate, after the 1968 elections, whether practices such
as those described in this report persist in States and political subdivisions
in which tests and devices are suspended. If such practices continue to exist,
Congress should extend the suspension in such States and subdivisions for
an additional period of time. In making its judgment, Congress should con-
sider the facts in this report and whether remedial steps have been taken
by the States and localities involved.

At a minimum, legistation should be enacted extending the Voting Rights Act
for an additlional period of years. It may well be that the segregated and
inferior education which Negroes in this country have received—both North
and South—dictates that Congress forbid the application of literacy tests nation.
wide. This could be accomplished through implementation of a recommendation
which the Commission made in its 1961 report.® In its subsequent report Raclal
Isolation in the Public Schools the Commission found that, nationally, Negro and
white students are receiving unequal educational opportunity.* There was con-

1288 F, Snpp. 678 (1968) (3-judge court), prob. jur. noted, 37 U.SL W, 3247 (U.®
Jan. 13, 1969) (No. 701).

17288 F, Supp. at 688-89.

18 Id, at 699,

12 U S. Commission on Civll Rights. Political Participation 180 (106%).

# That Congress. actlng under section 2 of the 15th amendment and sections 2 and 5
of the 14th amendment, (a) declare that voter qualifications other than age. restdence.
confinement, and convictlon of a crime are susceptible of use, and have been used. to deay
the richt to vole on grounds of race and color: and (b) enact legislation nroviding that
all eitizens of the UniteQ States shall have a rlght to vote in Federal or State elactions
which shall not be denled or in anv way abrideed or Interfered with by the United States
or by any State for any cause except for {nability to meet reasonable age or length-of-
rostdence requirements uniformly applied to all persons within a State. legal confinement
at the time of registration or election. or conviction of a felony: snch richt to vote to
includa the richt to reeister or otherwise ouality to vote. and to have one’e vote connted.
"8 Commission on Civil Richts, Civil Richts: Excerpts from the 1961 United States
Conmissinn an Civil Rights Renort 21,

7t &re UK, Cemmiscion on Civil Rights, Racial Isolation In the Tubic € Loals (1967).
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siderable evidence adduced &t the Commission’s reeent San Antonio hearing that
Mexican Amerieans are receiving educational opportunity vastly inferior to that
of Anglo students. This inequality has contributed to much lower levels of
academie achievement and literacy among the Negro and Mexican American
populations of this country than among the majority population.

Attachments.

U.S. ComMIssIoN oX Civin RiGreTs,
Washington, D.C.. Fchruary 17, 1969,
Hon, Maveicr STANSs,
Secretary,
U.S. Department of Comnered,
Washington, D.C.

DreAR MR, SECRETAEY : I am writing to you with regard to Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 194, P.1.. 88-352, 78 Stat. 266, which requires the Secretary
of Commerce, in connection with the Nineteenth Decennial (1970) Census, to
conduct a survey to compile registration and voting statisties in geographic areas
recommended by the Commission on Civil Rights.

The Commission has fulfilled its statutory duty of designating areas for the
survey, and we have revised our designation periodically in response to changed
conditions and needs. Although the Bureau of the Census has cooperated with
us in the planning of the Title VIII survey. no money has ever been appropri-
ated for the implementation of the plans made.

On January 4, 198, the Commission formally designated the areas to be
included in the Title VIII survey. The Kecretary of Commerce was notitied of
this action in a letter from the Chairman of the Commission, John . Hannah,
sent the next day. On June 24, 1968, a meeting of representatives of the Burcan
of the Census, the Department of Commerce and the Commission was held. As &
result of this meeting, preparatory funds were requested by the Bureau of the
Census for Fiseal Year 1970 for a survey of voling and registration to be con-
dieted in connection with the 1970 elections. These funds were disallowed by the
Burean of the Budget. (By letter dated August 15, 1968, Mr. Rohert F. Drury,
formerly Acting Director, Burean of the Census. advised William 1. Taylor,
formerly Staff Director of the Commission, that the estimated costs of the
survey by tiseal year wonld be as follows: 330,000 (1970), £5.075,000 (1971,
§225,000 (1972)).

‘The action of the Bureau of the Budget does not negate the obligation of the
Federal government to conduet the survey requiired hy Title VIIL the Commis-
ston has not withdrawn its dexignation of the areasx to be coverad in the survey,
These areas are deseribed and jisted in a letter dated December 22, 19067, from
Mue. ‘raylor to Mexander B. Trowbridge. then SKecrelary of Commerce. A copy
of this letter ix enclosed.

Because of the President’s desire to review the Fiscal Year 1970 bhudget pro-
posals of the past administration (See letter dated January 24, 1969 from
Budget Director Robert P. Mayo to the heads of the Executive Agenecies) we
consider this an appropriate time for you to review the request of the Depart-
ment of Connuerce to the Budget Bureau for preparatory funds to econducet the
sarvey,

Title VIIT of the Civil Rights Aet of 1064 plainly requires a survey of regis-
tration and voting statistics to be conducted “in connection with the Nineteenth
Decennial Census" If this survey is to be done in connection with the Novem-
her 1970 elections, money must be avaitable during Fiseal Year 1970 for planning
and preparation. Therefore, we consider the Department of Commerce to bhe
ohligated to request funds at this time.

We continue to feel that the Title VI survey will produee much important
information which will be useful to the Department of Justice in enforeing the
Voting Rights Act of 1985 and to the Congress in assessing the need for further
legistation dealing with voting rights. The information, moreover, will be of
value to the Commission in fulfilling its statutory duty of reporting and making
recommendations to the Iresident and Congress, and to private persons and
sronps interested in equatl rights and in the political process.

There are still areas of the country where adequate statisties on voter registra-
tion qud participation by black citizens are not available. Further, the extent of
voting discrimination against Mexiean Ameriean citizens has never accurately
heen measured. We receive many requests for the information which would he
adduced by this survey, but currently we are unable fo fulfill these requests.
We continue to receive reports that barriers remain to black and Mexiean
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Ameriean voters freely casting their ballots and otherwise participating in the
political process.

It May 1968, the Commission issucd a new report entitled Political Participa-
tion, which was a study of Negro participation in the electoral and political proc-
exxex in 10 Southern States since the passage of the Voting Rights Act of 1065,
In this report, the Commission concluded that while many gains had been made
by Negroes in the area of voter registration, obstacles still existed to Negroes
freely registering, voting, running for office, and otherwise participating fully
in the electoral process in many parts of the South.

In a letter dated June G. 1968 to the then Secretary of Commerce, the Staft
Privector of the Commission explained how the passage by Cougress of the Jury
Nelection and Service Act of 1908, L. 90-274, 82 Stat. 53, increaxed the impor-
tance of the Title VIII survey. That act requires each United States district
conrt to adopt a plan for the selection of jurors and provides that the plan shall
preseribe some source of namex other than voter registration lists or lists of
actual voters when those sources do not guarantee that persons will be selected
for jury service in a nondiseriminatory manner and that those selected witl
represent a fair cross section of a community in the district or division where the
court convenes. As a result of this provision, the fair administration of Federal
justice in the South and Southwest depends, to some extent, upon the avaitability
of aceurate statistics on the extent to which Negroes, whites and Mexican
Americans are registered to vote and are actually voting and the extent to which
voter registration lists and lists of actual voters reflect continued diserimination
and do not accurately represent a cross section of the community.

We therefore urge you, in response to Mr. Mayo's letter, to request the funds
necessary in Fiseal Year 1970 for the Title VHI survey.

Sincerely yours,

Howarn A\, GLICKSIEIN.
Aeting Staff Divcetor.

Lnclosure,

FrEBRUARY 18, 1969,

Hon, Jonx N. MIicHELL,
Afterney Gieneral,
Washington, D.C.

Dran Mu. ATTORNLY GENERAL D The enclosed letter to the Secretary of Conmmerce
reflects our eurrent position regarding Title VIIL of the Civit Rights A\ct of 1964,

Although Title VIII called for a survey of voter registration and partieipa-
tinn to be taken after its enactment and for snother survey in connection with the
1970 Census, the first survey was not conducted and e funds have vet been
appropriated or requested by the President for the second. If no funds are appro-
priated for Fiscal Year 1970 it will be ipossible for the survey to be made in
conuection with the 1970 Census.

As our letter to Seertary Stans indicates, we continue to helieve that the
survey reqitired by Title VU will be useful. If funds are not proviled, however.
we recommend that legislation be introduced into Congress to repesl Title VIIL.
If the survey is not to be undertaken, we ~ee no useful purpose in having Title
VIIE remain on the books,

If you wonld like to diseusx this matter, I should be happy to arrange a meeting
with you.

Sineerely yvowurs,
HowArd \. GLICKSTEIN.
Aeting Staff Director.
Fnelosure.
TUuE SECRETARY 0oF {'OMMERCE,
Washington, D.C., March 6, 1950,
Mr. Howarp . GLICKSTEIN,
Aeting Staff Directar, UK. Cominis<ion on Civil Rights,
Washington, N,

Dirar M. GreerszeiN : This is in reply to your etter of February 17, 1960,
regarding fizeal year 1970 preparatory funds for a survey to be faken under the
provisions of Title VIIT of the Civil Rights Act of 1064,

I have now completed my review of the tiseal year 1970 hudzet proposals in
accordance with the Burean of the Budget Divector's letter of Jannary 24, 194690,

As 2 results T am resubmitting the vequest for K330.000 to allow the Bureau
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of the Census to prepare for such a survey to be tuken in connection with the
November 1970 elections.,
We will keep you informed regarding the status of the roquest.
Sincerely yours,
Mavrice H. Stans,
Sceretary of Commerce,

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Washiungton, April 3. 100450,
Mr. Howarp A. GLICKSTFEIN,
Acting Staff Dircetor, U.S. Commission on Civil Rights,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mg, GricksTriN: Attorney General Mitchell has asked we to veply to
your letter of February 180 1969, concerning Title VIIT of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, Please excuxe our delay in respondine,

Your letter to Secretary Stans reeommendsd that he request, for tiseal 1970,
the funds which would be required for preparation for the survey of voting and
voter registration described in Fitle VIIL Your letter states that, in 1968, the
Acting Director of the Bureau of the Censns estimated that the cost of a survey
with respect to the areas designated by the Commisxion on Civil Rights would
he £350.000 in (fiscal) 1970, 25,075,000 in 1971 and {225,600 in 1976,

We recognize that it would be useful to have the results of a survey of the scope
recommended by the Commisxioin. However, because of the exjense involved, we
are unable to share your view that such a project should be undertaken. Assnming
that the cost of the survey would amount to several million dollars, we do not
feel that an expenditure of this magnitude can be justified.

A paossible alternative could be to 1imit the extent of the survey and, in this
way, to reduce the cost. It might, for example, be possible to select a representa-
tive sample of counties, f.e.. a muech smaller number than was designated by the
Commission in January 1968, and still obtain meaningful results, If you wish to
consider this or other alternatives aud feel that the Civil Rights Division could
be of assistance, please feel free to call on us.

Sincerely,
Jrrris LEONARD,
Assistant Attoriney Generdl Civil Rights Division.

Mres, Freeyax, By any standard the Voting Rights Act of 1965,
in spite of less-than-vigorous use of the examiners’ and observers’
power, has been a successful piece of legislation. Between 1965 and
1968 an estimated 800,000 additional Negroes in the South have
been able to exercise the franchise gnaranteed them by the Constitu-
tion. This is an approximate doubling of southern Negro voter regis-
tration,

Yet the work of securing to all the right to vote regardless of race
i« unfinished. Negro registration remains far below that of whites.
Hostility of white oflicials and legislators continues. In some parts of
the United States, voting in an election remains for some of our
citizens an act._of moral and physical courage.

At the first Civil Rights Commission hearing in 1958, a young lady
named Amelia JoAnne Adams, a graduate student in organic chem-
istry, testified that she had not heen allowed to vegister to vote in
Alabama, The chairman asked her why she wanted so mueh to
register.

She replied:

Well, the Government of the United States is based on the fact that the
governed govern, and only as long as the people are able to express their opinions
through voting will the country bhe able to remain the great power that it is.

Mr. Chairman, in a time when one hears so many “demands” from
€0 many groups, T speak in support of what surely must he the most
modest demand of all—the demand of Amervican citizens to elect
their representatives and oflicials in the greatest democracy in the
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world. In a time when there is so much talk of law and order, I
speak to remind the Congress of its sworn duty to uphold the highest
law of the land, the Constitution of the United States. That Constitu-
tion guarantees to all citizens the right to vote regardless of race
or color. . .

Negroes in the South, under the protection of the Voting Rights
Act, have at last begun to exercise the right to vote which for ¢o long
was illegally denied them. Next year will mark the 100th anniversary
of the 15th amendment. In that centennial year, the promise so long
broken and so recently redeemed, must not again be denied. I urge you
to extend the Voting Rights Aect. °*

Thank you.

Senator IXrviN. You state on page 13, the bottom paragraph of
page 13—

Between 1065 and 196S an estimated 800,000 additional Negroes in the South
have been able to exercise the franchise guaranteed them by the Constitution.

In what States have they registered?

Mrs. IF'rerman, In what States?

Senator IirviN. Yes.

Mis, Treedrax. All of the States covered by the act.

Senator Ervix. In other words. how many registered—how did
Negro registration in North Carolina compare with Negro registra-
tion in Texas?

Mrs, Freeyan, They didn’t have a literacy test, but they had a poll
tax, which was also a device.

Senator Iirvin. Tt has been held unconstitutional, =0 that doesn't
apply.

.{[rs. Freeaan, That is right.

Senator IirviN. How many Negroes qualified to vote in Texas since
the act took effect?

Mrs, Freemax, 400,000 since the act. ‘That is on page 222 of “Political
Participation.”

Senator Ervix. In Arkansas?

Mrs, Freraran., In Arkansas, there were 121,000 registered since the
act, as compared with 77,714 preact registrations.

Senator Exvix. Do you have any figures that would show what the
ages were of the 800,000 Negroes who have registered in the States cov-
ered by the act? T would like to know how many of those came of age
between 1965 and 196S.

Mrs. IFreeyax. No; we don’t have those figures.

Senator Ervix. Well, that would shed a veal light on the subject, T
would think. You don’t have those figures?

Mrs. Freeyax, We would try to obtain them. We, of course, as you
know, Senator, have limited resources in terms of our money, but we
could try to obtain them, (See appendix, pp. 661,662,

Senator Ervix. T think it would be very sigmificant. "There has
been a lot of registration of whites asto-——

Mys. I'reeaax, There has been an inerease in registration of whites,
but the gap between white and black registration is still very lavge.

Senator Frvix. Well, there is no way—I asked you awhile ago—
there is no way in the world that the State can compel people to come
and register?
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Mis. Freesax. Tt cannot do so, but the State can refrain from keep-
ing them from registering. This is what is happening in many of the
\t(lt(‘\

Senator Ervix. I am interested in the good name of my State of
North Cavolina. T wonld like to have any hgulob that would indicate
whether North Carolina has actively kept anybody from registering.

Mix. Freesax. AsT said earlier, we do not have such hgurm with re-
spect to North Carolina. We have held hearings as recently as last year,
when the Commission held hearings in Montgomery. "Ala. We re-
ceived testimony from witnesses who had told us that they had lived
on plantations a1l of their lives and as soon as they had sfarted voter
education and registration activities they were ev icted from the land.

So vou see, we arve still recetving omnplamtc

Senator Ervix, I asked you about North Cavolina. North Carolina
stands equally condenmed with Alabama. Frankly, T am not aware of
any diserimination |;r:un~t any person registered .m(l voting in North
Carolina on the basis of race.

Mrs. Freemax. As I said, I do not have a specific ease. We just have
mformation that there was diserimination in North Carolina before
the passagre of the act. T will ask that it be reseavched and submitted to
you.

Senator Ervix. I would like to know in the present.

M=, IFeeearax. Mr. Glickstein has it now.

Mr. Gricksteix. That question came np in 1965 when you were
questioning Mr. Katzenbach. You asked him—I am reading from
page 27 of the hearings before this committee in 1965 —“Now, where
do you have evidence of violation of the 15th amendment in any of
the 31 connties in North Carolina?” Attorney General I\.lt/onlmh
answered, “Tlalifax County, Senator.” You said, “ITow many in-
stances 27 1 will just pn‘lphmco some of this. This is a caze in the
eastern district of North Carolina where Negro voters hronght snit
in Federal Distriet Count.

“When was that <uit brought 2" “In May of 1964, Senator.” “What
happened to the suit? Do you have the title of it 7' “Yes. it is . Lustin
v. Lwdds, wheve the temporary restraining order was granted and a
plohmnm\ m:n'u tion was granted by Judge Larkins" “What h: ap-
pened to it

This is your comment : “Beeause judges issue plo]nmnu\' injune-
tions as a matter of course in ex parte hearings.” Attorney General
Katzenbach: “Tt was eventually dissolved, sir.” #Yes, in other words,
it brought a snit for restraining order, and restraining order was ix=ued
upon ex parte. When the caxe came down it was resolved.” Attorney
General: “No, that is not qmlo correct. The preliminary m;nmtmn
was isstied after the heaving. Then, when the people were vegistered in
accordance with that, the court subzequently, on motion to dizolution,
diszolved it.

"1 would =ay that the conrt found there was a necessity for prelimi-
nary injunetion, issued a preliminary injunction when the regiztrar,
pm\u.mt to that injunetion, was behaving as he should not have in
thix instanee. Subsequent to that, tho convt decided that the injunetion
no longer needed to stay in effect.”

Senator Ervix. The case was dismis ssed, wasn’t it?

My Grieksteix, After the court’s order was complied with, yes.

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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Senator Exvix. How many poople were involved in the case, and did
it involve more than one registrar /

Mr. GricksrEIN. Just involved one registrar.

Senator Ervix. We have about 2,300 registrars in North Carolina.
So do yvou have any other evidence ¢

Mr. Grickstrix. I believe that is the only lawsnit that was brought
in North Carolina,

Senator Krvix, \\'oll, we have 2,300 voting precinets in North Caro-
lina, approximately.

Mr, Grickstriy. I think the Justice Department. did present to you
in 1965 some additional information of investigations they were con-
ducting in North Carolina.

Senator Krvin. Oh, they investigate, but they never found an\thmhr

Mrx, Freesax. I believe that ix in the transeript of the hearings
also.

Senator Ervix. So North Carolina should be kept under the act be-

cause of the one registrar out of 2300.

The Civil Rl(rlltq Commission referred a few years ago and =aid in
my county tho\ had 104 pereent of the people over 21 vears of age
vegistered,

Mix. Frepsax. That ean happen when vou fail to purge the voting
registration list.

Senator Krvix. We have purged it.

Mr=. IFreeyxax. You have now.

Nenator Krvix, Yes, I think something like 97 percent of the people
in my comnty voted in ﬂ\o Iast general (-lm ‘tion, They had several thou-
sand u'm\n.m(ms after these figures, to my own knowledee,

Anyway, in order for a person to get registered he has to vo to the
registration place and get vegistered,

Mis, IFreeyaxn, Yes, he does.

Senator Ervix. There ave a lot of people who do not eave enough
about voting 10 go register, do they?

Mpx, Freestan, When we held hearings in Aabama and in Missis-
sippt, in Jackson, Miss.. in 1965, we received testimony from many
witnesses who told that they had wone to try to register, but for ail
kinds of reasons and all kinds of devices they had been vefused the

right. They had tried and after a pattern of this continning, plus the
economic and physical veprisal, of convse, it wonld be usual that some
people wouldn’t even try to make the effort,

‘This iz one of the reasons we need to have this act extended.

Senator Ervin, Why do you have to put North Carolina under it ?

Mes, Freesax, We think that in several counties in North Carolina,
as [ indicated, not more than 35 pereent of the black people vegistered
to vote, that in those countics the act <till needs to apply, heeanse if in
the 5 vears they are still only 35 percent, what we have denonstrated
is a need for it to continue,

Senator Ervix, Well, then, during 5 vears Hu-u- hax been no literacy
test in that vounty, and ~ill the people haven't regiztered. So it is not
the literacy test that is keeping them from regisering,

Mur< Freearax. Well, T suppose you would have more knowledge of
North Carolina than 1.

Senator EKrvin. Yes, I just don’t have any knowledge of diserimina-
tion on the hasis of race in North Carolina. I have also advocated that
every person qualified to register should be able to vote, and the man
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who denies him that privilege ought to be put in jail. But I don't sea
why we have to have all of the Federal ju(}gos in North Carolina not.
allowed to try cases to doetermine whether North (‘avolina is guilty,
and why we have to come up here to the District of Columbia. T think
that is a shabby form of due processof law.

I don’t think a case can be adequately prepared for trial except in
the locality where it avose.

Anyway, a State can register every person in the county, but there
is no way a State can compel them to come out and vote, is there?

Murs. Freesrax. Thisis correct.

Senator Irvin. Have you investigated diserimination in voting in
Florida, Tennessee, Arkansas, and Texas?

Mrs. FFreeyan. In some instances we have. I don’t think Florida is
covered, because

Senator Ervin. None of these States are covered because FFlorida,
Arizona, and Texas have no literacy test.

Mis. Freeyax. Our Political Participation report covers Alabama,
Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina,
South Carolina, Tennessee, and Virginia. It does not cover Texas.

Senator Ervin. Is there anything about North Carolina in your
Political Participation report itself, except the tables in the back of
the book ?

I have looked through it and I can’t find where North Carolina is
mentioned any other place.

Mus, IFreestan. Your question is, is there anything other than the
tablesin the back of the book referring to North Carolina?

Senator Ervix, Yes.

Mrs, Frepyan. On page 38—“Persons attending a meeting of Ne-
groes and civil rights leaders in Rocky Mount, N.(",, made a similar
complaint about the operation of a North Carolina statute.”” This is
referred to on page 38. They were referring—the previous paragraph
refers to a statement by a Negro candidate in South Carolina.

Senator Ervix, Now, I can’t tell by that what they are complaining
about exeept the North Carolina statute, what the cemplaint was about.

Mrs. Freeyan. Well, you asked if there was any reference to it in
other than the back of the book.

Senator Ervin. I can’t find anything in the book except talk about
conditions alleged many, many vears ago. That was referring to a law,
as T understand it. The people were trying to vote for a candidate.
Whether that is correct, I don’t know.

Do you have any questions?

Senator Bavn. Yes, I would like to

Senator Ervin, Oh, I have one question.

The Civil Rights Commission was set up to look after the rights of
minorities primarily, was it not ?

Mrs. Freestan. That is included in its-

Senator rvix. What has the Civil Rights Commission ever done to
secure rights for any American Indian?

Mrs, Freearan. The Civil Rights Commission is now conducting
a survey. There ave studies that are going on. One of the problems
of the Civil Rights Commission is that there are many other minori-
ties that it has not been able to give full attention to hecause of its
inadequate resources.
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As you know, we are restricted severely by the limitation on the
budget. We would appreciate more appropriations to be able to do
the kind of work that we need to do with respect to Indians.

Senator Ervin. The Civil Rights Commission has been in existence
since 1957, T believe,

Mr. GuicksteiN. Senator, in our 1961 Justice report we do have
a chapter on problems of the Indians. Just at the beginning of this
year you referred to us a complaint about police brutality charges
brought by Indians in the State of Washington, I believe, and we
sent u couple of our attorneys to the State of Washington to investi-
gate that report. We prepared a very elaborate field report, which we
forwarded to the Justice Department and urged the Justice Depart-
ment to take appropriate action under the criminal law.

[ believe we forwarded to you a copy of their report in that in-
stance where you requested us to make that investigation.

Senator Ervix. That was one instance. I would just like to know
what the Civil Rights Commission has done about Indians. They are
the oldest Americans, and T think the most. ill treated.

Senator Baymu. If the Senator would yield, I would like at this
time to compliment him. We do not agree on some of the things that
have been said, but T would like to put in the record my thought-
that 1T know of no one in the Congress who has done more and who
would like to deal with the problems of the constitutional rights of
the Indian than the Senator from North Carolina.

Senator Ervin. Thank you, Senator. [ thank you for vour assist-
ance.

Senator Bavm. Tt has been willingly given and he will continue
to have it. I think Mrs. Freeman hit the nail on the head when she
mentioned the shortage of funds.

Senator Ervin. You could let a few crumbs fall from the table.

Senator Bavir. Perhaps we have gotten to that point now where
we have a few more erumbs, and with your leadership we can effec-
tively get the job done.

If the Senator would yield, I would like to point to part of Mrs.
Freeman’s testimony which seems {0 me rather effectively rebuts some
of the inferences made that a significant part of the 800,000 registered
since this act. was in effect are the result of the aging of the people who
live there. T win sure that this is true, that citizens have become older,
old enough to vote, and thus, have been registered. But T think we need
to compare with what happened before, with what happened after the
act was passed.

I wounld like to reiterate what you earlier said, and ask you to com-
ment further on this, when you point out that the period between 1957
to 196¢{—and that you say by 1964 only 23 percent of voting age
Negroes were registered in .\labamas 32 in Louisiana; 6.7 percent. in
Mississippi; and of the approximately 5 million voting age Negroes
in the South, only 36,000.

Now, 5 million—36,000 out of 5 million have been registered in the
nearly 50 counties where the Justice Department. brought these law-
suits.

Now, is it fair to assume that during that process, during that time
we also had the aging process, and that if that was a material factor
that we wounld have had significantly larger nnmber than 36,000 regis-
tered during that period of time.
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M=, Freemax. Yes, Senator, The factor that was controlling, that
has been found even by the Congress to be controlling. was that the in-
ability of persons to he registered was racially motivated: the con-
trolling factor was racial diserimination. This is veflected in the 6.7
ereent figure in Mississippi. We found this when we held heavings
m Jackson, Miss,, in Februeuy of 1965,

Yet. there has heen an inercase in the registration that has gone on
there, with the examiners that have been cent there, even though ad-
mittedly. very small in comparison to the need. There has been an
increase of more than 10 percent in the number of persons now regis-
tered to vote as a resultcand as adiveet vesult. of the 1965 act over the
number vegistered hefore the passage of the act.

Thix kind of figure demonstrates the need for the extension of
the act.

Senator Bavi. I would like to ask your opinion, if I might. or the
advice of counsel, perhaps. This should he divected not only to us
but 1o the Justice Departinent, as to the rather sad vecord of the ex-
aminer who arrived in Holmes County, to whom you referred, whose
presence was discovered almost by aceident on the last day of his
presence.

Would vou care to make some recommendation as to what can he
done, what could be recommended by this committee, what we can do
to make the presence of these Iederal examiners more meaningful ? It
doesn’t do any good for them to sit in some hotel room. Make this
voting opportunity possible.

In light of the experience the Commission has had, what sort of
action do you snggest they follow to make their presence known?

Mrs. Freexan. First of all, this matter was brought to the atten-
tion of the Department of Justice, and in a letter dated June 26, 1969,
to the Staff Director, Mr. Leonard said:

We have given careful conxideration to the recommendations maude by you and
the Commis<ion with regiard to the Federal examiner and observer prograin.
In cooperation with the Civil Serviee Commission, we will attempt to provide
better notice of future openings of examiner offices. A< your report noted, eur
past practice of netifying leaders in the Negro community has often proven
inradequate,

In ome instances, they have notified an individual and velied upon
the word of mouth. We believe there are other techniques of notice
that ave usually given and should be applied in this case.

We had already brought that to the attention of the Depavtment
of Justice, and he has noted that and accepted the fact that this
examiner did not give due notice of his presence there. And of course
if the purpose of the examiner being there is to help the perzons he-
come registered, certainly they ought to know of his presence and
theyv onght to know of it hefore he comes, in time to know where to
conie and when he will be there, the hours he will be theve. And the
ti.ne he is there shonld be consistent with what i< reasonable.

Senator Bayn. Now, the Commission made speetfie itemized recon-
mendations to the Justice Department.

Mrs. Freryax, Yes,

Senator Bavu. Arve they included in that “Political Pavticipation™?

Mrs, Freesyax. Yes.

Senator Bavie Mr. Chairman, could 1 ask permission to have those
il‘l(‘!’ll(ll‘(l in the record at this ttme? What page are they on, please.
sir?
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Murs. Freepsax. Our recommendations begin on page 180 and under
recommendation No. 2 the Attorney Genera%shoul(l announce publicly
in advance of the election that Federal observers will be present and
should be assured they are identified as IFederal ofticials and that
would——

Senator Bavir, I would like ity just to make sure we have that
particular aspect on the record. 1 think that is all the recommenda-
tions. It wouldn’t hurt to have them put in.

(The recommendations above-referred to, follow, heing pages 1x0
through 190 of the Political Participation Report :)

RECOMMENDATIONS
ENFORCEMENT OF THE VOTING RIGIHTS ACT OF 146d

1. The Atorncy General should assigh crantiners under Nection 6 of the Voling
Rights Act to all political subdivisions achere Neyro vegistration is dispropor-
tionalcly loiw.

Nection 6 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 authorizes the U.S. Attorney Gen-
eral to designate political subdivisions for the appointment of Federal examiuers
where, in his judgment, the appointment is “necessary to enforce the guarantees
of the tifteenth amendment.” He is directed to consider in making thix judg-
went, “among other factors, whether the ratio of nonwhite persons to white
persons registered to vote within such subdivizsion appears to him to be reaxonably
attributable to violations of the tifteenth amendment. . . .”

Suspeusion of voter registration tests in States and political subdivisions cov-
eredd by the Act was predicated on a link between racial diserimination and low
voler registration or low veting totals. It is reasonable to assume that where
Negro voter registration continues to lag, many persons, because of past expe-
rience with prohibited discrimination, are deterred from seeking to register to
vote with local officlals, and, therefore, that disproportionately low Negro regis-
tration in a particular political subdivision covered by the Act is “reasonably
attributable to violations of the tifteenth amendment.” Only by affirmative ef-
forts, including the assignment of exuminers, can the continuing eftects of past
discrimination be overcome.

2. The Mtorney General shauld requext the Civil Service Commisgion to assiun
Pedoral obscreers under Scetion 8 of the Act to attend clections, including party
precinet meetings and conventions af wchich party officials are elected, irherceer
there i reasonable cause to belivee that discrimination will gecnr al the clection,
The Lorncy Gonerdal shonld announce publicly in advance of the election thnt
oderal observers will be preseat and should assure that the obsereers are icdon-
tified as Foderal officials.

Although the Attorney General hax mmade wide use of his power to request the
Civit Nervice Commission to a~sigh Federal observers, aud these observers have
corved to deter diserimination at the polls, during 1966 and 197 there were o
number of political subdivixions in which election day diserimination was
likely  including subdivisions in which Negro cundidates were running and ne
Negroes had been appointed as eleetion oflicials- -to whieh observers were not
sent. While these subddivisions had not previously been dexignated for Federal
examiners- - precondition to the assignient of observers under the Act-—the
Attorney General could have, and his, designated subdivisions for examjners
uli the eve of the election.,

The Atorney General has requested the Civil Service Commission to assign
observers only to attemd general, spseial, and primary elections. e has not re-
quested observers to attend party precinet meetings or conventions at which party
oflicials are elected. even though Section S of the Act provides for the assignient
of ohxervers “to enter and attend at any place for holding an eleetion”™ in oa
~ubdivicion in which an examiner is serving. Negroes have been exceluded from,
denied the opportunity to participate fully in, or denied information concerning
the time and place of some of these meetings and conventioms, including those
held ina county in which an examiner was serving.

Where the Attorney General decides to vequest the assignient of observers
to o particular palitical subdivision, he should announee publicly, in advanes
of eleetion day, that obxervers will be present in the subdivision, and <hould
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assure that the observers are identified as such. This is contrary to presemt
Department of Justice policy, which favors keeping the Federal presence as
inconspicious as possible in order to avoid triggering a reaction in hostile white
persons which will be reflected in voting behavior and affect the outcomne of the
clection. This possibility must be balanced against the benefits of increased
publicity and identitiability.

The sululivisions where the assignment of obscrvers is warranted are those in
which there is a likelihood of discrimination at the polls, It is important for
Negro voters in these subdivisions to know that observers will be present to
deter local election officials from subjecting Negroes who attempt 1o vote to
diserimination and the harassment, indignity, and humiliation which accompany
it. Announcing the presence of Federal observers on the morning of election
day is not sutlicient to fully inform the Negro community and is not an adejquate
substitute for advance publication. Similarly, identification of the observers
will serve to confirm to Negro voters that they wilt be afforded conrparable treat-
ment with other citizens at the polls.

Public announcement in advance of election day that observers will he present
in a county should not affect the outcome of the election. Efforts can be made
in advance to increase the understanding and appreciation within the white
community of the role of Federal observers.

Local officials and the people generally should e made to ymderstand that
the presence of Federal observers is a good method for obtaining the amieciment
of everyone, Negro and white, that the election was a fair and an hounest one.
If the policy underlying the assignment of observers is made known to the
community, the knowledge that obrervers will be present to assure that Negro
registrants are allowed {o vote should not alter white voting Lehavior any
more than the presence of Federal examiners. who register the Negro voters
and of whom the observers are a logical extension.

While it may be desirable for the Attorney General to Lknow o+ eloxely ax
possible before the clection the state of compliance by lecal officiais with the
Attorney General’s criteria for the assignment of oliservers. there appears to
be no reason why the determination whether to request the assienment of
obgervers cannot be made known in advance of clection day.

3. The Atlroncy General should take steps to sceure in cach Stale and political
subdivision in wrlich tests and devices are susponded, op in welich diserindnation
prolihited by the Voting Rights Act hag occurred, the appointment in cach pre-
cinct of eleetion officials broadly represcutative of the ecommunity, including the
Neora compmunity, cither by informal eans or Wy involivg rentedios wunder the
RIS

The appointinent of Negro election oftficialx in areas where Negroes comprise
a substantial portion of the population is, and should he, i central ohjeetive
of the Departiuent of Justice. Affording Negroes a <hare in the management of
the clection process serves to reduce the possibilities of diserimination against
Negro voters and violations of the Voting Rights Act, inxtill contidence in Negro
voters that elections are fairly conducted. and minimize the need for Federal
intrustion into the local clection process. Care must be taken te insure that
Negroes are appointed in more than token numbers, and that the Negroos seleeted
are qualified and not chosen on the basis of whether their activities and opinions
are acceptable to the white community.

Should the Department determine that it lacks the manpower to negotiate
voluntary compliance in areas where discrimination in the selection of election
officials is widespread, the Attorney General should consider the possibility of
instituting lawsuits under the Voting Rights Act, including statewlde suits, to
obtain the appointment of election officials broadly representative of the com-
cominunity.

4. The Attorney General should make full use of the sanctions arailuble under
the Voting Rights Act and other Federal laics to climinate other practices wchich
dcny or abridge the right to vote on account of racc or color. Surh practices
inelude racial discrimination in the treatment of clection officials, discrimination
against candidates, campaign workers, and poll watchers because of their race, and
crelusion of party members from precinet mectings or failurc to accord them
notice or cqual participation becanuse of their race. The Attorney General should
hring suit sceing to withhold certification of an elcction wherever there &8 cvidence
of discriinination which may have affected the outcome of the cleetion or detcrred
voling by N ars,

Although 1. - ™ has been done, by informal means and through litigation, to
secure complia. .. ‘th the nondiserimination requirements of the Voting Rights
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Act and other Federal laws protecting the right to vote without discrimination
(see 42 U.S.C. §81971(a)-(c)), many problems remain and must be corrected.
One effective sanction {s the threat that an election infected with discrimination
will be declared invalid. Courts have afforded such a remedy even where it has
not been possible to determine whether the outcome of the election has been
affected by the discrimination.! \Where the outcome may have been affected, or
where there is evidence that the diserimination is of such a nature as to deter
Negroes from voting, the Attorney General should seek judicial relief withhold-
ing certification of the election and requiring the conduct of a new election free
from discrimination,

3. The Attorncy General shoulld (1) instruct Federal observars that they have
a duly to point out to local clection officials irrcgularitics affccting Negro voters
and (2) take whatever other action may be nccessary in States and political sub-
divisions covered by the Act to prevent such irrcgularities.

As Judge Wisdom said for a three-judge Federal district court in United
States v. Louistana,® “it an illiterate is euntitled to vote, he is entitled to assist-
ance at the polls which will make his vote meaningful.” By the same token
election otficials should not be permitted, by their own acts or omissions, to dis-
qualify illiterate Negro voters, whose voting is made possible or facilitated by
the Voting Rights Act.

In some areas, even though Federal observers have been present, local elec-
tion ofticials have engaged in various practices resulting in the denfal of ade-
quate assistance to Negro illiterates or in the disqualitication of their ballots.
These practices include (1) failing to inform Negro illiterates of their right
to as«istance; (2) refusing to assist Negro illiterates; (3) refusing to assist
Negroe who can sign their names but are otherwise functionally illiterate: (4)
refusing to supply the proper number of voting officials to assist Negro illiter-
ates; (5) humiliating Negro illiterates who need or request assistance; (G)
marking the ballots of Negro illiterates contrary to their wishes; (7) permitting
Negro illiterates to mismark their own ballots; (8) failing to instruct Negro
illiterates on the use of voting machines; (9) failing to point out to Negroes
disqualifying errors in the marking or casting of their ballets; (10} denyving to
Negro illiterates the right to use sample ballots where permitted by State law;
and (11) denying to Negro illiterates the right to have the assistance of bystana-
¢rs where permitted by State law.

Oliservers currently are instructed not to intrude into the election process
beyond taking such steps as may be necessary to fulill the obszervational func-
tion. They arve not instructed to point out and attempt to xecure the corrvection
of irregularities, although in practice some obzervers do point out at least some
types of irregularities to election oflicials. In some caxes irregularitics have heen
stopped and the offending election ofticial dismissed after the prictices have
heen reported to the captain of the observer team, then to a Department of
Justice attorney. and then taken up with officials charged with managing the
elections. Much or all of the clection day may elapse, however. before the matter
is settled. Where the obligation of the election official is clear, aud there is a
violation in the presence of the observer, an effort should be made to correct it
on the spot by pointing out the irregularity to the ofticial.

6. The Attorney Gencral should promplly end fully enforce Scetion 5 of the
Act, which prohibits States or political subdivisions in wchich tests and devices
arc suspendcd from cnacting or administering without the approval of the .S,
District Court for the Distriet of Columbia or the U.S. Attorncy General, any
standard, practice, or proccdure with respect to voting different from that in
force on November 1, 196%. Scction 5 should be invoked againsi both statutes
and party rulcs enacted after that date, including those governing «lections,
clection districts, and qualifying and running for officc.

Failure to enforce the flat prohibition of Section 5 fn the face of repeated vio-
lations—most notably in Mississippi—is bound to encourage the enactment and
enforcement of additional measures having the purpose or effcet of diluting or
inhibiting the Negro vote or making it more difficult for Negroes to run for office.
Swift and comprehensive enforecement of Section 5 is required to make it clear
that such stratagems cannot sueceed. The provisions of Section 5, construed in

1 Bell v. Southwell, 376 F. 24 639 (5th Cir. 1967) ;: Brown v. Post, Civil Nn. 12, 471,
W.I) Ea.. Jan, 23, 1968,

31265 F. Supp. 703, 70S (E.D. La. 1966), aff’d per curiam, 386 U.K. 270 (10€7 . dixcursed
Part V, note 55 supra.
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light of decisions of the Supreme Court, fairly admnit of an interpretation that
Rection 3 covers party rules as well as State statutes.? Section 5 and judicial deci-
sions constrning it, can fairly be said to encompass—as standards or procedures
“with respect to voting”—all measures governing elections, eleetion districts, and
qualifying and running for oftice.!

T. 1f the Attorney General determines or the conrts rule that he lacks potcer
to take any of the actions specificd in (1) through (6) abore, he should seck
unicnding leigslation to authorize him o take such action.

K& The President shonld roquest and Congress should approprinte additional
frnds to pormit the hiving of sufficient personnel to carry ont the forcyoing ree-
onnnendations and otherivise fully enforce the vights of all citizeux to full and
cqual political purticipation regardicss of race.

The program evolved by thie Depactinent of Justice to enforce the Voting Rights
Aet ix hampered by limitations of staff. These limitations are retlected in the
abisence of lawsuits in areas where they are needed to eurb violations of the Act.
and in the inability to cover adequately all geographical and substantive areas
in which discrimination and vielations of the At ave occurring. The provess of
informal negotiation and persuasion requires the presence of attcrneys in large
nubers to deal with local officials. It 1967 an effort to assure that personnet
would be assigned to deal with problems of discrimination in the North as well
ax the South resulted in a reduction in the number of attorneys assigned exclu-

sively to the South.

FEOERAL PROGRAMS OF AFFIRMATIVE ASSISTANCE

1. The resources of the Erceative branch shountd he earplored for the purpose
of establishing an affirinative progran to cncourage persons to register and vote.
Nueh a prograin should: (@) axsure better dissemination of information concern-
ing the right to vote and the requircments of registration, and (b) provide
training and cducation to foster better understanding of the rights and dulics
of citizenxhip and the significance of voting, and to cneourage persons to register
und vote, Congress should repeal the 1967 amendment to the Econowmic Oppor-
tunity et of 1965 prohibiting the wse of program funds and personnel for non-
puartisan voter registration activity.

In twe 14965 reports, Voting in Mississippi and The Voting Rights Act . . .
The First Months, the Commission recommended an affirmative Federal pro-
gram of citizenship training and voter registration, Now, as then, there are
counties in the Nouth where Negro voter registration is disproportionately low.
I these areas, the effects of past diserimination against Negroes in the voter
registration process have not yet heen overcone. Although private civil rights
organizations have an important rele in this area, they lack the resources to
tinance and direct voter registration drives in all such counties, and few political
party organizition? have wndertaken major drives to register Negro voters. The
right to vote will not be realized fully unless the burden of taking affirmative
action to enconeage registration is sharved by the Federal Government. Assistance
ad enconragement shonld not he confined to one claxs of citizens, but should be
offered to all citizens regardless of race. Such a nonpartisan program is no more
spolitical™ in nature than Federal programs to remove obstacles to registration
el voting, including proposed measures to eliminate residence requirements
for voting in Prexidential elections.

To assure hetter dissemination of registration and voting information, con-
sideration should be given to the use of branch facilities and personnel of such
agencies as the Post Oilice and the Department of Agriculture. To provide citizen-
ship training and vorer education and to encourage persons to register to vote,
consideration should be given to the uxe of programs of adult education, literacy.
qmd conununity action which are administered by the Department of Health,
Fdueation, and Welfare, the Department of Agriculture, the Department of La-
bar, and the Office of Leotnomie Opportunity.

Implementation of such an atfivmative citizenship training and voter registra-
tion program would be hindered by a 1967 amendment to the Keonomice Oppor-
tunity Net of 1961 which prohibits the uce of funds or personnel for the Admin-
istration’s war on poverty in connection with “any voter rvegistration activity.”
While there is a levitimate interest in prohibitiug use of Governnient funds or
personnel for partisan political purposes, the injunction should not he ~o bread

PRee Atpendix 11 po 193, infra,
4 Nee Sellers v Trassell, 2570 o Sapp. 915 (MDD, Aa. 19660 (epinion of Judge Rives),
diseussed pr. $1-42 <upra.
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as to cover poiitically neatral voter registration and citizenship training ¢fforts
necessary in some areas to remedy historic patterns of diserimination.

2 The Fedoral Governnient should publish and disscminate information about
aualifying for office, the rights of candidates and voters, and the dulies of clee-
tion oflicials in those States in which tests and devices are suspended.

In some aveas prospective Negro candidates have had difliculty obtaining iu-
formation about how to qualify to run for public and party otlice and other
election information. In those States in which tests and devices are suspended,
tiie Federal Government itself <hould provide this information. Under the Fed-
eral Voting Assistance Act of 1955, the Department of Defense currently provides
information on State laws coucerning voting and efections to members of the
armed forees and Executive svgencies of the Federal Government and their
sporses and dependents.

3. The Fedoral Government showdd cncourage the growth of local legal seve-
iccs programs, particularly in rural arcag, and these should be aunthorized to
render assistanee to candidates in sceuring election information.

Decause many prospective Negrae candidates cannot afford private attorneys,
and because of the limited number of attorneys in the South willing to advise
Negroes in eivil rights or political matters, local legal serviees programs operated
by the Office of Economie Opportunity could play an important role in guiding
prospective Negro candidates through the procedural requircments of running
for office und in securing other election information. Funding of legal services
programs is spotty throughout the Xouth, and there are few programs in rural
areas. More funds should be made available for such programs, particularly in
the rural South.

FEDERAL PROGRAMS TO REDUCE ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Federal Government should undertake to reduce the cconomic dependence
of Negroes to pcrmit them to participate freely in voting and political activity.

It should be recognized that many of the problems deseribed in this report
can be overcome only by eliminating the economic dependence of Southern Ne-
croes upon white landlords, white employers, and white sources of credit—de-
pendence which deters Negroes from voting freely and seeking political oftice.
To the extent that existing programs are capable of contributing to a reduc-
tion of such dependence, they should be fully implemented. The Commission is
conducting investigations of problems of economic insecurity facing Negroes
in the SNouth and hopes to contribute along with other agencies to an under-
standing of the specifie xteps that should be taken to deal with such problems.

NATIONAL POTITICAL PARTIES

The national political partics should take innncdiate stcps to roquire State
political party organizations. ax a precondition to the scating of their delegations
al their national conventions, to- -

(1Y climinate all vestiyes of diserimination at cvery level of party ac-
tivity including primary elections, meetings, and conventionx, and he clec-
tivn and appointment of party officiols;

(2y publicize fully, in such manner ag lo assurc adequate notice to all
interextod parties (a) the thne und pluce of all public meetings of the party
wt crery level, in places accessible to, and large cnough to acconunadate, all
party monbers; (b) a full deseription of the legal and practical proecdure s
for selection of party officers and veprexentatives at cvery level : amld (ey o
full deseription of the legal and practical qualifications for all officers and
represcntatives of the party at crery level: and

(3) take affirmative steps to open aetivities to all party members regard .«
lexs af race,

Prompt artion by the national political parties before and at their forth-
coming conventions could ohviate the need for legislation by Congress to cstab-
lish specific guidelines covering the activities of political parties to assure the
aecomplishinmient of these ohjeetives,

As this report decuments, Negroes contimie to he excluded from full and equal
participation in political party affairs, including precinet mass meetings and
conventions, in some arcas of the South. While some State party committees
have taken aftirmative steps of varying scope to overcome past discrimination
hy encouraging Negro participation, progress overall has been limited.

The national party organizations have not promulgated pullie and hinding
rules that afford full and equal participation in every aspect of party affqairs -
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whether or not directly related to the chofce of delegates to the national con-
ventions. These rules should provide for the denial to the offending State party
organization of the right to have its delegation seated at the national party
convention and, in appropriate circumstances, the seating of a challenging dele-
gation pledged to afford full and equal participation to Negroes. Absent such
action by the national party organizations, it may be necessary for Congress to
implement further the 15th amendment by promulgating specific guidelines gov-
erning the activities of political partics to insure that this objective is achieved.

NEW LEGISLATION TO PREVENT DISCRIMINATION AND INTIMIDATION

1. Congrcss should (a) broaden the Civil Rights Act of 1968 to provide evimi-
nal penaltiez for tntimidation of campaign workers and to rcach cconomiic as
well as physiral intimidation; (b) authorize victims of intimidation in con-
neetion with all forms of protected political activity to bring civil actions for
damagcs and injunctive relicf; and (¢) provide that where a claim of intimidn-
tion in conncclion with voting or political activity is made in a civil case, a re-
huttable presumption of unlawfil motive shall arise upon a shotcing that the
defendant has applied or thrcatened any physical or economic sanction aguinst
the plantiff relatcd in time to his voting or other political activity.

Present Federal statutes are inadequate to protect Negroes who seek to ex-
ercise their right to vote and engage in political activity from harassment and in-
timidation by physical or economic means. While Section 11(b) of the Voting
Rights Act, taken with Section 12 of the Act, provides penalties for intirnidation
of persons “for voting or attempting to vote,” “for urging or aiding any person
to vote or attempt to vote,” and for exercising powers and duties under the Act,
the provision docs not express'y cover per=ons acting as ecandidates, eampaign
workers, poll watchers, or election officials.

The recently enacted Civil Rights Act of 1968 provides eriminal penaltios for
intimidation of persons engaging in *“voting or qualifying to vote, qualifying or
campaigning as a candidate for elective oftice, or qualifying or acting a< o poll
watcher, or any legally authorized election official. in any primaryg. special. or
general election.” This bill, however, does not cover campaign workers, extoends
only to intimldation by “force or threat of force” and therefore does et cover
economie intimidation, aud does not provide for civil actions for damages or in-
junctive relief.

Civil cases brought by the Department of Justice to protect persons exercising
voting rights from intimidation, especially economic harassinent, often have not
Leen suecessful hecause of the difficulties of proving the motive of the defendant.
It would be reasonable and would facilitate proof, to establish a rebuttable pre-
~umption of unlawful motive when the alleged intimidatory act and the exercise
of protected rights are cloxely related in time.

2. Congress should cvaluate, after the 1968 clections, tchether practices such
nus thaoge described in this report persist in States and political subdivisions in
trhich tests and devices arc suspended. If such practices continue to crist, Con-
frexs should exrtend the suspension in such States and subdivisiong for an adili-
tinnal period of time. In making its judgment, Congress should consider the farts
in this report and whether remedial steps have bren taken by the States and
tuealitics involved.

By the terms of the Voting Rights Act, after August 6, 1970, Statex anad politi-
cial subsdivsions in which voter registration tests were suspended will be free to
petition a three-judge Federal distriet court in the District of Columbia for the
right to resume the use of such tests. They will be permitted to do so if the district
coitrt finds that no test or device his been used in the State during the preced-
ing five years for the purpose of diserimination, This provision will permit almost
all States and subdivisions where these tests are now suspended to restore the
use of literacy and constitutional interpretation tests, moral character tests, and
voucher devices, and to require persons now on the registration rolls to meet such
tests axa condition of voting in the future,

After the 1968 elections Congress should evaluate whether to fully iimsplement
the 15th amendment it is appropriate to continue suspension of these tests and
devices. One of the factors which Congress should consider is whether practices
~nch as those described in this report continue to exist. The purpose of suspend-
ing tests in the Voting Rights Aet was to secure full enfranchisement of Negro
citizens. So long as barriers continue to exist the Federal Government cannot
with confidence allow reinstitution of the tests.




YR

79

“.In its cvaluation Congress should determine whether the steps taken by the
Department of Justice and the voluntary actions of political parties have elimi-
natcd patierns of discrimination against Negro volers and candidates in par-
tirular political subdivisions. If Congrcss detcrmines that these actions have not
proved cffective, it should consider legislation giving the Fedcral Government
wprealer control over the electoral process, including provisions authorizing Fed-
cral obgcreers lo render assiztance to voters in marking and casting their bal-
Ints where the Attorney General determines that such assistance is necessary to
seenre 15th amendment rights.

Experience under the Voting Rights Act indicates that although there has
been significant general progress, officials in some counties continue to flout
the law. In 1905, Congress enlarged Federal control of the registration process
when experience demonstrated that discrimination persisted under earlier stat-
utes despite extensive litigation. Similarly, if resistance continues to be main-
tained notwithstanding the Voting Rights Act and its enforcement, it may become
necessary for Congress to give the Federal Government greater control over the
electoral process in these hard-core areas. Such legislation might include pro-
visions authorizing Federal observers to render assistance to voters in marking
or casting their ballots where the Attorney General makes a specifie determination
that <uch assistance is neces=ary to secure 15th amendment rights.

Senator Bayn. I would specifically like to have what the Justice
Department can do to make sure that these examiners’ presence is
worthwhile.

Senator Irvin. T notice in the figures of voter registration in the
South in the summer of 1968, it shows in the 11 Southern States that
of 20,906,735 whites of voting age, the number that were registered
was 15,702,000, with a total of 4,304,374 whites of voting age not regis-
tered. Why were they not registered?

Mrs. Freryax. We don't have those.

Senator Ervix. Well, you saw no impediments to white registra-
tion in the South?

Mrs. Freeman. No, we have not found any impediments to white
registration in the South, This i why we felt there should be no im-
pediment to black registration in the South.

Senator Ervix. Isn't it conceivable that those 4,396,335 whites who
are old enough to vote who didn’t vegister since there was no impedi-
ment applieable. that they just were indifferent ?

Mis. I'reeyan. We know in our investigation, that the black per-
sons, many of the black persons, were impeded because of restrictions,
overt, and some not so overt. We know that the gap was very great and
that it is still great. If the discrimination would be climinated and
everybody would be equal, if there would be no economic reprisal, no
threat of physical reprisals in the millenium when that comes; then
perhaps you might have 100-percent registration white and 100-per-
cent registration black.

Senator Ervin. Yes; but there is no discrimination against these
white people, and I would like to know why 4,395,735 didn’t go out
and register.

Mrs. Frermax. We still have valid provisions that may cut down on
the number of either black or white with respect to residence require-
ments,

Senator Irvin. Not that many move. That is almost one-fourth.

Mis. Freeyax, We found in San Antonio that there were a large
number of migrant workers and that, of course, is true in many of the
other places in the South.
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Senator Ervix. But it is iHogical. Now, vou draw the conclusion that
the failure to register of blacks is due to diserimination, but the failnre
of white people to register is not due to diserimination.

Mrs. Freesay. Int many counties, this isexactly true.

Senator Ervix. So T think it is qmte coneeivable that a lot of col-
ored people do not care any more about voting than a lot of white
people.

Mrs, Freeyax. That may also be true, but there still is a gap, a very
large gap, between the yercentage and numbers of black voters and
black 1'e;zlqtmnt&, and \\llnto. and wo want to remove that gan.

Senator Ervix. Well, ow are you going to do it if they don’t go ont
and register?

Mrs. Freemax. We want to extend the Voting Rights Aet of 1965,
and then T believe the community will get them registered.

Senator Envix. There were a lof of white pooplmemctore(l under the
Voting Rights Act of 1965.

Mrs. Frepsax. That is fine.

Senator Ervix. Yon vhml they were registered only because of the
Voting Rights Act of 19657

Myrs. Freryax. There are many factors that one takes into consid-
eration in deciding whether he is going to pursue his vight to vote.
Because I think it is very basie,

Senator Ervix. Well, T think it takes two sets of fizures, one set of
ligures, proves diserimination and the other doesn't. it proves the
oppesite thing,

Mrs. Freesax. Very definitely. we have very serious ligurves that
prove discrimination, Senator,

Senator Envix. T think vou at least could give us some reason why
almost. one-fomrth of the eligible white persons in the Sonth don’t go
out and register.

Senator Bavi. Mr. Chairman, may 1 ask vour indulgence to im-
pose a thought heve?

Senator Ervin. Yes.

Senator Bavn. T wonder, idealistic as your goal is, Mvs, Freeman.
is the millenninm of 100-percent participation, white and black. is not
a hit._unrealistic. What we are not—as I see it, and T ask your
thoughts—TI think the Senator freom North Carolina is stressing a
very important fact that there is no law that guarantees that every-
hody that. shonld vote is going to vote, but as [ see if, we are 1 really not
trving to make people vote, white or black, but we are tryving to
ereate an environment as well as the | leaal framework on which Dlack
or white ean vote if they want to.

My Frepaax, T hat is the point. We want to secure the vight and
if the right is secured—and we have found that the right has been
denied—after securing ihe vight, there must be a climate that s
ereated and maintained o that the per=on for whom the right is se-
eured realizes and believes that he is free to exereise that vight, 11 he
hetieves this and he «till then chonses not to exereise the vight, then at
least the hurden has shifted from the State to the individual responsi-
bility of citizenship.

Senator Bavir, I think when the Senator of North Carolina sug-
wexts that he an\x of no diserimination in North Cavolina. T think
he is speaking honestly. T found him (o he a man of great integrity,
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and T am not familiar with the past history of North Carolina. But 1
must say we have evidence abundant of plan after plan, incident after
incident, in some of these other States where everybody conceivable,
from the State legislature on down to the local registrar, the loecal
poll swatcher, tries to influence the black citizens of those communities
not to exercise their constitutional right to vote. T think anyone who

“has read the record certainly ear: make a reasonable interpretation that
this has in fact wone on.

1t has been lessened beeause of the Voting Rights et but it still
is prevalent and lurking behind the scenes, if it were not for the—
perhaps threat. is too strong a word, but is a good word—the Federal
Government is going to see that this stops. Is this a fair assessment?

Mrs. Frepyax, That is right.

Senator Bayir. Let me ask one other question.

Senator, yvou have been very indunlgent.

Senator Kennedy has one question to make us one of the orviginators
of this bill, as well as other civil rights legistation.

Can you give us a thought about the environment that exists? In
other words, is it fair to suggest that much of the reason for lack of
voting prior to this time and even some of it now ix =till a latent fear
of what may happen? T recall reading some place where Vernon
Jordon, director of the voter education project. told of an experience
he had talking with an elderly Negro gentleman, in which he asked this
gentleman, *Why is it that vou haven't vegistered before?” Te said that
he knew that trouble was coming and he =aid, “Well, why is it that youn
have been brave enongh to register now under the new act 2 He said.
“Well, T don’t think trouble is coming like it used to.”

Tsn’t it an environment. an attitude, where we arve removing some of
this fear and we ave really not going to get the job done. that the
Senator from North Carolina aceurately points out the difliculties,
unfil we remove all of this fear and until a person goes out and dnes
what he has the right to do?

Mis, Freesax, That is vight, and it wil} take time beeause the fear
has gone on for <o long. \s 1 indieated, one of the witnesses that we
heard just a vear ago was evicted from hix home heeaunse he had en-
caged I voter edueation. Well. what is the impact of that? e ix
evieted, so other persons who ~ee what happened to him. they don’t
dare. they ave afraid.

This is why the elimate has to he changed.

Senator Ervin. Of course, you can make a pretty vond distinetion
if vou know von ean draw the infevence that when a black wan doe=n’t
vote, this i¢ beeause of diserimination, but when a white man doc<n’s
vote, no one knows why he doesn’t vote.

Senator Bavu. This book tells of illiterate Negro citizens who were
denied the right to take people of their own race whom they knew and
trusted into that voting booth 1o help them vote. and it tells of no
exclusion of white peonle on thix, Tt tells that an cffort wasz made on
the part of many people. not all, to deny vofing rights: we say we are
aoingr to leszen the burden of preof and let you vote, and we are going
to keep that up to 100 percent.

Senator Ervix. You are not talking about the State of California?

Senator Bavin. As the Senator was talking to a staft aide, T wanted
vort to he fully aware of the fact that it may do you irreparable dam-
age, hut as T said a moment ago. T thonght you were a man of in-
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tegrity, and you were a man from North Carolina, and you were
speaking on what you thought to be the truth. I am not familiar, We
don't have evidence, really, in this record, of what has gone on in
North Carolina. but we have ample evidence of other places. and 1
don’t think we can just ignore this.

Senator Ervix. [f somebody merits condemnation, don’t condemn
the innocent.

Senator Baym. We don't want to condemn the innocent, hut we
would like to have a little more help condemning the guilty.

Senator Ervin. You have got all the laws in the world already.

Senator Bavi. We want to keep what we have, though. That is the
reason we are heve.

Thank you.

Senator Ervin. That is all.

Senator Kexnepy. Mr. Chairman, I first of all want to acknowledge
what Senator Bayh has mentioned before in expressing our appreci-
ation to you, Mr. Chairman, for calling these hearings expeditiously.
1 think all of us know that you have serious reservations about many
provisions of the act, but once again, you have, I think, demonstrated
great responsibility and leadership in calling these hearings.

As one who has been interested in the problems of the Indians of
this country, I think those of us who have served on this committee
saw the leadership you provided in the Indian Bill of Rights and
realized full well the sincerity of your inquiries on that matter. The
attitude toward the first American citizens has been a national dis-
grace.

I think if we were to ask our friends in the Civil Rights Commis-
sion to manifest a greater energy, even with the kinds of limited re-
sources in their budget of some $2 million, and a greater interest in
these problems. I think we fulfill our responsibility to a greater ex-
tent by increasing the opportunities for you to do the kind of job that
needs to be done, providing you with the resources and personnel to
make the kinds of inquiry and study that really should be done.

I am hopeful and continue to work toward expanding the kinds of
resources which should be made available to you, because I believe in
the work that vou have achieved and accomplished.

Ono of the things, T didn’t have an opportunity to listen to yonr
testimony, and I regret that and the fact T hadn’t had a chance to re-
view it earlier today, but I will take the opportunity to o so. I have
only been in the hearing this morning for a limited period of time.

But one of the things that strikes me, in listening to the exchanges
which have taken place here this morning, really is, does the diserim-
ination still exist in certain parts of owr country, and what can really
he done about this. T think we wonld all be impressed by the good faith
and the willingness of many people in the South to try and veally
meet the letter and the spivit of the law of the 1965 act, hut nonethe-
less, in looking at the record, T think we would have to say that theve
ave patterns of diserimination which «till exist in many parts of our
country.

T think one of the clearest manifestations of this—and is the activity
of the JTustice Department in bringing the cases that we have brought
over the period of recent years, even since the passage of the Voting
Rights Aet. T think this has been a very clear manifestation that there
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are a number of incidents where the patterns of dizerimination «till
exist.

T would think that this would certainly reinforce what T have heard
carlier this morning, vour testimony in disclaiming that there arve
these problems of discrimination which exist in certain parts of our
country, certanly with regard to individuals and perhaps even laws
which exist in parts of our Nation, and in Boston and in other parts
of our Nation.

Nevertheless, T would certainly think on a matter as important and
signifieant ax this and as basic in terms of voting, which 15 so funda-
mental and which the Founding IFathers and the Supreme Court
have deseribed as the basie right of all eitizens, that we really have
an overriding consideration to insure to the greatest degree possible the
climination of these barriers to what is really the first American right.

It seems to me, in really a fair appraisal, even of the carrent <itua-
tion, that there does continue to be a erucial and eritical need for the
maintenance of the 1965 Voting Rights Aect. Significant progress has
been made, but once again, we know that. there really have only heen
a limited number of elections which have taken place. that what we
are attempting to overcome is the long yvears of patterns and practices
of discrimination, that this really has heen a significant and important
step in providing franchisement for those who have heen disenfran-
chised and that we must continue to move in this direction.

I just want to commend you for your comments and statements,
and say that I think, to the degree that T have had a chance to listen
to them, they have been reasoned and responsible, and the limited
degree that T have had a chance to familiarize myself with the mate-
rial, it has been extremely useful, certainly to me and to the members
of the committee.

Mirs. Freemax. Senator, I stated earlier that in Alabama less than
half of the Negroes of voling age are registered in 27 of the 67
counties, In five counties Negro registration is less than 25 percent.
In 24 Mississippi counties, there is Negro vegistration of less than
half. In six counties it. is less than 35 percent.

In half of South Carolina’s 46 counties, Negro registration is less
than half. Tt is les than 35 pereent in three.

Senator Envix. The three North Carolina counties where you say
it is less than 35—

Mrs, Freemax., In half of Sonth Carolina’s 46 counties, Negro
registration is less than half. It is less than 35 percent in three South
Carolina——

i Senator Ervin. Oh, T thought you were talking about North Cavo-
ina.

Mus. Freraran, These figures demonstrate, in our opinion, the need.
as the Senator said, for the continued operation of the Voting Rights
Act of 1965.

Senator Kexyeny. Well, T want to just express my appreciation
for your coming.

Just in a final area—and T don’t know whether you would he
interested in making some kind of comment. about ‘this or not—
although this will be the first opportunity we have to solicit your
views and the views of the Commission—1 don’t know whether yon
are prepared to speak for the Commission or not—but the attitudes
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of the Commission in terms of the vecent statements and declarations
of the guidelines which have heen recently pmnml;:.uod would you
be prepared 1o give any comment about” yowr attitude toward the
new guidelines

Mes, Fereesax, Well, the Commission believes that the guidelines
should be e(lenuthoue(l and fully enforeed. We were distressed by
reports that the guidelines wonld be weakened and that there would
be less enforcement than in the past, beeause in the past there needed
1o be some ereater enfereement. We believe that there <honld be full
enforcement of the guidelines and that they should be strengthened.
Certainly any date that would be a deferral of the expiration date,
we took ‘exception to that, and we communicated onr position in that
vegard to the President.

Nenator Kexxeny, Would you be preparved to comment now about
the recent guidelines which have been stated? Would you be prepared
to make any conment on whether you feel that they are weaker?

Mex, Freeyax. I believe that the expiration date, which had ovig-
+ally been theve, is no longer there, and this is the position that we
took exception to, and that we would regret that the administration
would weaken the gnidelines,

Statements have been made to the effect that there ix no intent to
weaken the enforcement and, of course, I suppose we would have to
wait and see on this. But we wonld oluncl to any weakening of the
sruidelines, We woutld hope there would be strengthening of the guide-
lines and greater enforcement,

Senator Kuxseov, Just inoa tinal comment, are we to gather from
your comment, yvour testimony thiz morning, that if thmo 1= a l.lpso
of the Voting Rights Aet that you have a very genuine fear that in
many of the areas of owr counfry that there will be a retrn to the
status quo prior to 19657

My, Freesax, T think this wonid be very damagitig to the United
States and to the minovity in thiscountry,

Senator Kexyepy, Thank you very much, Mr, Chairman,

Nenator Ervin. Mis. Freeman, I have asked you, don’t you think
it is rather an insult to the Federal Judiciary in seven Southern
States to ddeny them the jurisdiction to try ecases arvising in those
States?

Mrs, Freeyax, When this matter came before the \upn-mo Court
of the United States it was considered, and the Supreme Court de-
termined that Congress, in passing the law, did o within its powers,
and I wonld conewr with that, Senator,

Senator Enviy, Under that decision, Congress could pass a law
providing all etvil cases arising in the United States be tried in the
distriet court, sitting in the Isle of Guam. Do von think that affords
very much protection for the Ameviean people?

M=, Frecsax, It d(\|wnd~ on the factual situation that made Con-
aress take that action. The situation the Congress dealt with in 1965
was dizerimination for which there had to be a remedy. and Congress
nide thi= determination. The '\uprmm‘ Court has upheld it.

Senator Ervin. And the Supreme Court also said in that same ease
that the prohibition against the bill of attainder didn’t apply to State
officials, which was aquite a remarkable thing in view of the fact thas
in it mest veeent deciszion on that very pmnt they had applied it to
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protect Iederal oflicials. So they diseriminated against judges in this
case in order to stop diseriminating in voting. They diseriminated
against the judiciary in seven dilterent States.

1 do not agree with that, 'They don’t allow the judges to try cases,
I think diserimination consists of treating like situations in a difter-
ent manner, and that is exactly what they did, in favor of the District
of Columbia against the judiciary in seven States.

Don’t you think that if the bill ix introduced they ought to at least
open the doors in all Federal courts, to give the people the right to
prove their innocence of wrong-doing?

Mrs, Freeyax., I would support it—-—

Nenator Ervin. And make witnesses available?

Mr=. Freemax. T would support the bill as it is, that the U.S. district
court, the Distvict of Columbin—-—

Senator Ervix., Inother words, you think that the courts of the seven
States should remain nailed shat?

Mrs. Freemax. [ believe that the cirvcumstances which made the
Congress enact this legislation still persist.

Senator Ervix, Is your feeling hased on the fact that yon don’t
think southerners who happen to hold Federal judgeships can be
trusted to enforce the law?

- Mes, Freemax. T don't believe it was the legizlative intent.

Senator Fuvix, 1 wish somebody will tell mie what the legislative
intent was,

Senator Bavw. May T ask a question?

We have had a lot of talk about taw and order, and [ think law and
order is a many-faceted thing, encompasses justice, and I think the
willingness of the population to aceept the verdiet of a conrt or jury,
to aceept the results of a judicial process ix absolutely indispensable
in any system of law and justice. Without trving to spread a blanket
over all members of the sonthern judiciavy, let me-—T think this would
be totally unfair—let me say if this decision as to whether a person
was entitled to vote or register or have poll watchers was left {o cer-
tain members< of the judiciary in the South, wenld the broad munbers
of black people who live in the South feel they were getting justice?

Mrs. Frepvax. They would not, and T think one of tlre problems
linx Dheen, as we indieated in the report, that even with the extensive
litigation that the Justice Department has instituted in the South,
the effect has been very minimal and if your question goes to the
confidence of the black community-- —

Senafor Bavi, Confidence,

Mes, Frepyvax (continning). Ax to whether they can obtain justice,
the fact has been that there hax been unequal law enforcement in many
of those States, that when they have been Beaten up or denied the vote,
they have nowhere to go and this included the judiciary.,

Senator Bavie Me. Chairman, T think—--

Senator Ervin, Tmirht sav the =ame thing about the Supreme Court
wnder the 12777 v, Lubbock case, that it protected the Federal oflicials,
but they held in the Sonth Caralina case it didn’t protect State oflicials,
Sothat i< application of the Constitution,

Senator Bavii T am not suve this committee should go on the record
as=aving a lirtle npequality shonld bring onmore,

Senator Feviy, Don't vou think the test chould be branght down te
196x eleetion-?
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Mrs. Freeyax. No, no, no. 1 do not think so, because the problem
was identified in 1964, That has not been corrected yet. After it has
been corrected, then it can be reviewed again.

Senator Ervix, It has been corrected by the 1964 standards in many
States and counties.

Mrs, Preeyran, There is still a gap, Mr. Chairman. There is still a
large gap.

Senator Eevix. But the aet says, if they fail to vote 50 percent in
1964, they came under the terms of the act. Now, many of them voted
more than 50 percent in 1968, and you would =till keep them under-—-

Mrs, Freeymax, Yes, because we have a fear and a very real fear, and
basis for this, that if this act would expire, all of the progress that
has been made would be wiped ont very quickly.

Senator Ervix, What are you going to do with & case where more
than 50 percent voted in 1968, how does the presumption endure under
those circumstances?

Mrs. Freesan, We wounld leave that to the court to determine.

Senator Irvix, Well, if you were the court and had to determine it,
I guess you would hold that the presumption would not be rebutted
by exactly the opposite of the presumption of facts?

Mrs. Freesax. We would still leave it to the court to determine.

Senator Iirvix, Well, I think that in any event this disgraceful in-
sult to the judiciary of the seven States would be due for amendment.,
I think in any event the test should be 1968 and not 1964. That is my
own opinion, My State legislation submitted a constitutional amend-
ment to abolish the literacy test in North Carvolina. When it is abol-
ished they will find out there is no great change, There is no way to
get people to register or go and vote. That is the trouble with the peo-
ple in this country, in my judgment.

Senator Kex~Nepy. As I understand, in the consideration of giving
the jurisdiction here to the court, the Attorney General makes a find-
ing about the State action or legislation, which exists, and the right
for appeal is here within the District Court. The evidence wonld he
presented to the Attorney General in any event while a State or lo-
cality is making its representation.

Mrs. FrepymaN. And if the Attorney General found that it did not
have effect

Senator Kexxepy. That is right, Then he wouldn’t be making the
finding in the first place. Is that what we are really doing by providing
the jurisdiction here, we are providing the appellate jurisdiction which
is here within the District? Tt doesn’t seem to me to he any real re-
flection on the judiciary. : :

Mrs, Freeman. I don’t believe the Congress would reflect on the
IFederal judiciary.

Senator IrviN. I believe the Senator has misconstrued the act. You
don’t appeal from the Attorney General. You have to bring separate
suits. The Attorney General condemns you without trial, withont
evidence, on the basis of failures. Then vou are guilty and then yon
have to come and bring witnesses.

In some cases you come a thousand miles if you want to get out from
under the act, and notwithstanding the fact that Gaston County
proved exactly that there was no diserimination during the preceding
5 years, the conrt amended the act and added anot her requireinent.
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Senator KexNeny. The Attorney General then has made a finding
or has not made a finding, or it 1s the basis made by the Attorney
General here in the District in which this subsequent suit is originated.

I still feel that this is in no way any kind of reflection on the ju-
diciary and parts of our country, but it is a sound orderly procedure,
I am n complete agreement with the position that you have taken.

Mrs, I'reeyax. Thank yvou,

Senator Kexxrpy. I have no further questions.

Senator Ervix., We have two other witnesses today, but I want to
hear the debate on the ABM. We have no hearing scheduled for to-
morrow. We will recess until tomorrow if those witnesses can come
back.

I believe you are one, Mr. Mitchell ?

Mr. MrrcuerL. Yes. If you want me to come back tomorrow, I will
be glad to do that. -

cnator ErviN, Mr, Speiser?

My, Sreiser. Yes, sir,

Senator Ervin, I will recess until 10 o’clock tomorrow.

(Whereupon, at 1:15 p.m., the subcommittes adjourned, to recon-
vene at 10 a,m.,, Thursday, July 10, 1969.)

,P(a.ci‘z, 8.’\8 ‘Llan L



AMENDMENTS TO THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965

THURSDAY, JULY 10, 1069

U8, sSExaTe,
SvpcoMMrrrer oN Coxsrirvrion s, Ricies
oF Ty CoMMirter ox g Jupiciany.,
Washiigtan 1.0,

The subconnittee met, pursiant to yecess, at 10:10 e, i room
1200, New Senate Oflice Building, Senator Sam J, Feving e, (ehair-
man of the subconmmittee ), presiding,

Present: Senators Fevin (presidine), Bavh, and Thurmend.

Also present : Lawrence M, Baskiv, chief connsel, and Lewis W,
Evaus, counsel,

Senator Ervin, The subcommittec will conie to order, Here is a
statement Senator Schweiker has asked me to put in the record ;

NTATEMENT 8Y SEXATOR RIcHARD 8, SCHWEIKER oN THE VoriNG Rionis Aot or
140

(Submitted to the Subcommittee on Constitutionnl Amendments of the Senate
Judiciary Committee, Tharsday, July 10, 1900)

My, Chalrman, and members of the committee, the Issue of whoether to exteml
the Voting Rights Acr of 1065 in {ts entirety for another i yenrs, or whether
to let it expire, has become a particularly cerncial one for the Congress, and is
extremely important for our nntion. I want to velitte to you my stropg sapport
for extending the Act and urge prompt approval.

I am o co-sponsor of 8, 2020, the Omuibus Civil Rights Act, becantse of my
belief that comprehiensive legislation in a number of arens s neessary (o con.
tinue bringing equal rights to our people in fact, and not just in theory, Thix
bill inciudes a title to extend the Voting Rights Act,

1 am also a co-sponsor of 8, 2456, one of the bills now hefore you for con.
sideration, which deals only with the Voting Rights Act jssue, becanse 1 belicve
that extension of the 1065 Act has paramount priority, for practical and symbolic
rensuns,

Practically, the Voting Rights Act has worked, Attorney General Mitelndl
testified recently that more than N0000 Negro voters have been registered in
the seven States fncluded in the Act since it was passed In 1965, What better
proof §s there that the bill should be extended than this signifieaut pise in
voting registration. \We all know of many bills, which while fmpressive in
theory, have not worked in practice, and 1 have consistently oppuosed vetention
of such ineffective legislation.

But when an Acet such as Voting Rights et has been deamatically effective,
then we should not waste time with theoretical debates about substituting -
provements. Rather we should immediately extend it, and then consider whether
any additional amendments or improvements ean be added, such as extending
the provisions to cover every State,

Symbolieally, the fact that voter registration has incrensed under this Aet
has given a measure of confidence io the black people of our conntry that we
in Congress are concerned with thefr progress in achieving equal rights,

I fear strongly, however, that if we do not extend this Act, the black people of
Amerien will believe that Congress is tarning its buck on them. Whether in fuet
wo are slowing down the pnee in efvil rights becomes n moot point so long as the

(89)
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improssion throughout the country is that we are, Simple extensjon of the Voting
Rizhta At will prevent vatright the negative effects that a failure to extend it
conld briug,

What is equaily important to copsider is that we are not talking about a com-
plicauted elv il rights issue. We are debating the most elementary right of a denoe.
rucy-the right to vote,

Pisctanions of replacing the Voting Rights Act of 1965 with broader pluns only
theel with thoearethal abstractions which serve to dull the progress which In faet
has bieen patde because of this Aet,

Mr. Chaivan, the polnts 1 have bheen mnking concerning the symbolie jmgor.
tune of extenditg the Vorlng Righits Aet gre even more fuportant ot this pav.
theulary thme. Keeent diseussions of civit rights issues, including the Vating Rizhis
et atd desegeegation zutdelines, have becotne whdely pubdicized, and the public
fingeression I8 that the Administration and the Conge sx e slowing down eivil
rlehis progpess,

1 ean anly speak for myself, and the Congress, it T think it extranely important
thaet we make the record very elear that we ave not forgetting civil rights bhut on
the contrary e deopdy coneerned With bringing about more progress,

Extension of the Voting Rights Act ix a perfivt vehicle for danonstration of
our commitinent o equal rightx for all Amerienns, tascase §t s been an offec.
tive aet which deserves petention on the merhts glone.

But we ennuot fgnore the svmbolie issue, which is &0 Important at the present
time. Our conntry cannot afford the disillnsionment and loss of faith in its
teaders that would result from faflure to extend the Aet,

I tend my fullest support to its extenston for anather five years,

Will counsel eall the first witness,

Mr. Baski Mr, Chairman, the first witness this morning is M,
Clarence Mitehell, representing the Leadership Conference on Civil
Rights: and with him My, Joseph L. Rauhy Jr., general counsel of the
conference,

CLARENCE MITCHELL, DIRECTOR, WASHINGTON BUREAU OF THE
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED
PEOPLE; ACCOMPANIED BY JOSEPH L. RAUH, JR., GENERAL
COUNSEL

Mr. Mirengn, Mr. Chairman, I am Clarence Mitchell, director of
the Washington Bureau of the National Association for the Advance-
ment of Colored People. T am also appearing as the legislative chair-
man for the Leadership Conference on Civil Rights, which is a group
of c_)|vo_x- }25 organizations united for the purpose of seeking action on
civil rights, .

Accompiinying me is Joseph L. Rauh, Jr., who is the unpaid general
counsel for the Leadership é‘onference on Civil Rights and my friend
of many years,

I would like to start, Mr. Chaivman, if I may, with a little ohserva-
tion that, based on my years of being in Washington and my knowledge
of your deep interest in many projects on which sometimes we are in
agreement, I know you will recall that during the debate on the 1968
etvil rights bill there came a time in the Senate when you offered your
amendment on the rights of Indians. That amendment was overwhelm-
ingly approved in the Senate. We did not offer opposition to it because
we thought it was a good amendment, although we knew that it was
going to present problems for us in the House. |
It did present problems for us in the House. When we got to the
Honse the chairman of the Committee on Interior and Insular Af-
fairs and the ranking Republican member both sought to hold up our
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hill on the ground that this amendment was not germane and also that
the Indians themselves did not want it.

We were able to save the situation, becanse, serving in the House is
Congresstan Ben Reifel, who is a Sioux Indian from South Dakota,
registered member of the Rosebud Sionx ‘Iribe, He enme in and pre-
sented eloguent testimony in behalf of this amendment, and we were
able to gret the entive hill through, plus that amendment,

I also think it is important in t‘lwso times to reassert. for the record
that in spite of all of the problems that we have faced, [ personally
have an unshuken and wnshakable faith in the Government of the
United States and the power of our constitution and our laws to right
wrongs, 1 wishi to mention a most recent experience. We had our na-
tional convention in the vity of Jackson, Miss,, just lnst week, Beeause
of the 1964 Civil Right= Act we were able to meet in the hotels of that.
city on a completely nondiscriminatory hasis, It was a great pleasure
to listen to a speech made by u young white Mississipinn, Mr. Wilkin-
seny who is the manager of one of the oldest hotels in that eity and one
of the best, the Heidelborg Hotel, Tle came to our convention and
personally extended a weleome to our delegates, He presented the hoard
chairman, Bishop Stephen Spotswood, with a "avo’l and expressed the
hope sometime in the future, if our plans \\1»11!(fp01‘ﬂ1ii it, we would re-
turn to the city of Jackson again,

I'had the personal opportunity as n member of our organization, serv-
ing in a lintson eapacity with the loeal police force, to work with sev-
eral membersof the Jackson Police Foree, One of them was Chief Avm-
~trong, who is now head of the teaflie division in that ¢ity, but T had
fvst known him from 1) vears ago or more when T was in Jackson un-
der different cirewmstances. At that time he wus 2 member of the foot

mtrol, T helieve, Alzo a voung detective lieutenant, Lieutenant Black.

Ve worked together daily on the normal problems that come in con-
neetion with the holding of a large convention in a metropolitan center.
We had the assistance of the Jackson Police IForee, which is integrated.
They had some very fine yourg men, some of whom were college grad-
nates, hoth colored and white, working on that foree,

Ithink it isimportant, Mr, Chairman to note that experience because
I believe that could not have come about in this country if we had not
heen working steadily within the framework of the constitutional law,
with the assistanee of such things us the 1964 act and the 1985 Voting

tights Act. T am very happy that today we have an opportunity to seek
extension of the important provision of the 1965 act that ix under con-
sideration in this subcommittee,

T would like at the ontset to offer for the record a headnote from the
case of the State of Svuth C'arolina v. Katzenbach, hecanse in that
case it scemed fo me that there was laid to rest the constitutional
question of whether the Congress acted properly in establishing a
rocedure under which ccrtain States of the Union will be covered
v this law, The provision that T am reading is as follows:

Provisions of the Voting Rights Act of 1963 pertaining to suspension of
eligibility tests or devices, review of proposed operation of voter qualifieation
and procedures, up‘mlming of Federal voting examiners, examination of appli-
cants for registration, challenges to eligibility listings, termination of listing
procedures and enforcement proceedings in criminal contempt cases arve ap-
propriate means for carrying out Congress' constitutional responsibilitier under

the Fifteenth Amendment and were consonant with all other provisions of the
constitution,

2710070 ——7F
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It states cleavly that the constitutional propiety of \atng Riglas
Aet of 1965 was to be judged with reference to historical experience,
which it reflected,

Senator Eevix, That is a verv unique decision, Priov to Sonth Core-
lina v, Katzewhaeh it was held that the Constitution shanld he inter-
preted to be a harmonions document composed of provi-ions of equal
digmity. It was held in the Sowth Caraling ense that the second seetion
of the 1l mnendment gave Congress the power to suspend with-
out a judicinl trial the vight of o State to set a literney test under
the power it hind under the second section of the First Article of
the Constitution, under the 17th amendment, and under the first
section of the second article and under the 10th amendment. Tn
other words, we have for the it time the Snnveme Conrt of the
United States adopting the theory that the Constitution of the United
States consist of a ret of mutvally vepuanant peovisions of unequal
fli;rni(y and that the second <ection of the 1hth ninendint avve Con-
gress so much power that it conld vietually nullify, w1 lea=t for the
time being, the other seetions of the Congtitution,

I don’t take wneh consalation out of such a decision,

Mr. Mrerenve, Well, My, Chaiviman, T of conree do not agree with
yvour formulation, but I respeet your right to ditver. However, T of-
fered this for another purpose. This is now the settled lnw of the
land. the ense law under the Constitution, When the administration
propases, as it does propose, to depart from the fornmmla which the
Congress adopted in this situation, it is not merely seeking to ovep-
taen a law prssed by the Congress, but it is also soeking to overturn
n decision of the U.S. Supreme Court, which protects "o pight to
vote,

UF von find it objectionable with veference to the States that it pow
covers, it seems to me under vonr fornmlation the adnsini<tration has
compounded what yon consider to be grievons be ause it -avs that we
not only have this power under the ith amendment which the Can-
gress has asserted, but it is saying that we have the power even when
race is not neces=arily a factor to move into the States and corvect dis-
eriminatory practices,

Now, =o far as I am concerned, T am delighted that they would be
thinking along those lines, but 1 think it is elear that if we do under-
take to depart from what has alrendy been agreed upon and what is
seftled Jnw by a decision of the Supreme Conrt, we are going to open
# whole new battlefront. If we do we will be ongaged in that st rugele
long past the expiration date of the present lnw, This i« why, in my
indgment, the administeation’s action as evidenced hy S, 2307 is an
netion that. can be diversionary, disruptive, and destruetive, Lecanse
i it continues along the line that it is following, the date of Augnst 6,
1970, will arrive and pass, and we will not have a voiine rights law
which bans literacy test and we will also revert to the <wudition that
made it necessary for us tonet in the first place,

Senator Exvix, Well, you ean’t get an avgument witl e about the
administrations bill. T think the two bills, as far ns jroper inter-
pretation of the Constitution is concerned, are ahont ne alike ns fwo
peas in the same pod. But T think if Congress ean suspend section 2
of article 1 of the Constitution, the second section of article 2 of
the Constitution, the 10th amendment and the 15th amendment, ns it
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did in the Vating Rights Aet of 1965, then it ean also suspand those
sne four provisions enabling the power of all the States to preseyibe
qualitications for voting, In the South Cavoling caze, the Snpreme
Cowrt held that. the prohibition against bills of attainder dlm»»n’!
apply to State oflicinls, It held that due poocess of low doesm® apply
with the sume foree to publie oflicials as it does to individaal:, But 1
have never found any decision to support that, In fuct, 1 have senrehed
very diligently for it, 11 this be corvect, then all the Congress has to
do is pass u law providing that the States shonld be abolished by a
suit hronght. by the Attorney General, The Attorney General conld
bring a suit and he doesn’t. have to give the State any notice abont it
and the allegations mande by the Attorney General in his conelusions
conld he conelusive,

My, Mrrenen, T would say, Me, Chairnnn, of conese T don’t agree
with your formulation, What T think Congress und the Conrt hias
done Jointly is to reconeile the Constitution in any way that does jus.
tice to people who are victims of wrong, But I could not sayv that I
conhd ever envision the day when Congress would ubolish the States--
certninly nut the State of North Carvoling, certiinly, ns long ns von nre
in the Senate, heenuse T think they would have a long, long fight ahead,
Fdou’t think they could win on the basis of your past record,

Senator Brvix, AT ean way is thanks for the compliment, Bt
they held that they conld abolish the constitutione] powers veded in
the State of North Cavolina hy these four seetions of the Constitution,
as [ mentioned, We e held to that by o Jegislative declaration of guilt
without a judicial tvinl, Tt held that if Norh Carolinn wants (o g
out from under the net, it ha< to come to one conrt, Tt ha~ held that
no North Carvolinn member of the North Carolina Federal judieiary
ean be tensted to tey the ense, T wonld sav in North Carolina we ape
tulking about at least 39 of our connties. They made ns a very--no
secomd-class ingredients of government, but 1 would =ay down about
a zero ingredient of government,

Mre, Merenern, T wonld say, and this 1 base on what T will guote in
my testimony later, and alvo on a long distance telephone eall T had
Inst night to the S ate of North Carvolina of what the Government of
the United States has done is, it has come to the resene of the good
peaple, both white and colored, in the State of North Carolina who
want to make sure that evervbody enjoyvs the vight to vote, 1 think
that in view of the inerease in registration in the State of North
Carolina beeause of this statute that for generations there will be
people of hoth races in the State of North Carolinn who will he glad
that this has been done,

Senator pvis, T am glad we agree on the administration bill about
the qualifieations of people that vote for presidential elections. It has
ne reference to the 1ith amendment. But ) don’t think there is a single
new vote added to the list. of North Carolina on account of the 1965
Voting Rights Act, .

My, Mrevenern, Welly T am prepaved to say that such has happened,
and | do have that Inter in my testimony. That is why T made that
call last night to North Carolina,

The bills which we support, S. 2456 and its companion bill int roduced
by Senator Mathias and Senator Fong, would strike out the word
45" vears in ench place where they appear in the first and third para-
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graph of section 1 of the Voting Rights Net of 1965, 2 UK.,
1973 BA, and inserting in lien thercof 107 years, Inorder that there
will be no mistake abont what we support, we cite the appropriate
seetion in full, With your permission, Mr, Chaivian, I won't vead
i will just ask thint it s ineluded in the record,

Senator FKavis, That will he all right.

(The section follows:)

Neeo 4, () To assure that the right of citizens of the United States (o vote
is not dented or abridged on acconnt of ruce or color, no eltizen xhall be denied
the right to vote In any Federal, State, or loval election bhecause of his failure to
comply with any test or device in any Btate with respeet 19 which the determibun.
tions huve bheen made under subsection (h) or in any political subdivision with
respect 1o which such determinations have been made a8 21 separate unit, unless
the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in an action for a
decluvatory Judgment brought by such State or subdivislon agalnst the United
NSiates has determined that no such test or device has been used during the five
Yeurs preceding the filing of the action for the purpose or with the offeet of
denying or abridging the right to vote on account of vace or color: Provided,
That no such declaratory Judgment shall Issne with respeet to any plaintify for o
periad of five years after the entry of a final judement of any court of the
United Suttes, other than the denial of & declaratory judiment under this section,
whether enteradd prior to or after the enactinent of this Aet, determining that
teninls or nbridgments of the right to vote on ncecount of ruce or color through
the use of sueh tests or devices have oceurred anywhere in the territory of
such plaintify,

An aetion puvsuaut to this subscetion shall be heard and determined by a
conrt of three judges In aceordance with the provisions of section 2284 of title
UN of the United States Code and any appeal shall lie to the Supreme Court.
The conrt shall vetain Jurisdiction of any nction pursunnt to this subsection for
five yoars after Judgment and shall reopen the action npon motjon of the Attorney
General alleging that a test or device has been used for the purpose or with the
offeet of denying or abridging the right to vote on account of race or color,

If the Aitorney General determines that he has no reason to helieve that any
such test or device has been used during the five yenrs preceding the filing of the
uetlon for the purpose or with the effect of denying or abridging the right 1o
vote on account of race or color, he shall consent to the entry of such judgment.

Mr. Mrrenenn, The wording of this subsection would remain un-
changed. We have heard several suggections to change the date of
November 1, 1964, in ~ubsection I to a later date, Such a change would
e a teavesty in that it would reduce the coverngo of the law, especially
in those areas where diligent effort hy citizens has inereased the voter
registration in the face of great odds. .

Perhaps the most dvamatic example of the effectiveness of the 196;
Vating Rights Act is the recent vietory of Charles Ivers in his race
for May or Fayette, Miss. For many yenrs the State of Mississippi
has been synonymous with terror, oppression, and total deprivation
of all the Negro's constitutional right<. My, Fvers’ own brother, Med-
gar was murdered hy an assassin. There is a long, tragic, and bloody
history of how that State has tolerated and encournged the consign-
ment of colored Americans to a subhnman statns, Although the great
and small eities of Mississippi were notorions for their mistreatment
of colored people, the small towns justly enrned the reputation of
being worse than the large cities of that State, Tt is, therefore, espe-
cinlly geatifying that My, Fvers won in a small community and that
the entire eampaign was condueted in a spirit of fairness,

T would also like to state for the vecord that immediately after he
won, My, Evers announced that he would work to make his com-
munity a place of fairness and prosperity for all people without
regard to race or color. He has already embarked on a campaign



to atteact business and money to his town in order that it may be a
eredit to the State and to the Nation,

Mr. Evers is one of approximately §00 men and women who have
hwen eleeted (o publie office in the South, At ome convention in Mis-is-
sippi | had the pleasure of shaving the plut forn with some 25 coloved
peaple who have been eleeted to public oflice in Mississippi ad wha
are now serving, It was announced at that convention that nearly
100 had been elected to various public oflices in that State,

In conteast to the turmoil and hostility that plaguie some aveas of
the country, many of the wen and women, white and black, whe live
in the States atfected by the 1965 act ave making quiet bt determined
efforts to move forward in a spirvit of Im:tlwr!umd' and goodwill,

These elevtions have provided high denma in many communities,
For exnmple, while the mayor of Leesville, L, was personally Jead.
ing his police foree, e happens to be white, in arresting NAACP
oflicials on May 17, 0 colored man, Rufus Maylield was being elected
as the first of his race to serve in the eity couneil of Lake Charles, La,
1 is important to note that the N\ ACTY officinls were heing arrested
Leeause they had set up a tent for the purpose of receiving complaints
of Negro servicemen stationed at Fort Polk, La.

The Evers vietory and the action of the TLeesville mayor should
cerve to remind us that while the 1965 Voting Rights Aet opened the
door for progress, the battle is by no means over, It is still possible
to be juiled for exercising even the most obvious constitutionn® rights
in many of the States of the so-ealled Old South, Vernon Dahmer,
who died from injuries after his store was burned to the ground
and peppered with a hail of bullets in Hattieshurg, Miss., was a leader
of a registration and vote drive, Like many others before him he
piid with his life for the right to vote.

Me. Dabmer had aimnonneed on January 9, 1966, that he wonld
receive poll tax payments at his grocery store from persons wishing
to register fo vote. On January 10 he was dead of wounds veceived
in the firchombing of his storve, his home and his car, Those who have
heen determined to deny the right to vote have not spaved vietims
merely beeause they were white, Let us not forget that on August
20, 1965, Jonathan M. Daniels, n white man, was shot and killed just
nfter he had been freed from jail in Lowndes County, Aln, .\ Roman
Catholie priest. with him was also severely wonnded but recovered,
Mrs. \'inllu‘ Liuzzo, who was alzo white, was shot and killed on the
night of Mareh 25, 1965, while ferrying marchers in her ear from
Montgomery, Ala,, to their homes in Selina, \la,

These erimes have been supplemented by oflicial State action de-
signed to prevent Negroes from voting, ‘This subeommittee, and es-
pecially the senior members, know the long and shameful vecord of
State sanctioned obstruetion, Tmmediately after passage of the 1965
Voting Rights et the Mississippi Legislature, meeting in vegular and
specinl sessions, passed 12 hills and recolutions which subtantially al-
tered the State's election laws, Alabama, Lonisinnn, Missis<ippi. and
Sonth Carolina have all resorted to various devices to slow down or
prevent registeation, voting and eleetion to public office, These devieces,
melude abolishing oflices, switching to so-called at large elections,
conzolidation of counties, full slate voting, bharring or imimidating
poll watchers, and giving mislending information to wonld be voters,
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Senator Exvix, That is not North Cavolina ¢

My, Myrenpnr, No,

Senator Erviy, One of th se statutes was the Misissippi statute
which changed the law that the superintendent of publie instruction,

© who had been elected by the comntywide vote of the people, would now

he ~elected by u board ¢

Mr. Merenver, That is correet,

Senator Epvix, T think it was probably a sensible change, While 1
mm a grreat believer in democraey, I believe n board, even if it is a board
of education, ean tell better than the prople at large the qualifications
of an educator,

Me. Myrengn 1 think it is really the sume problem as if von saw the
bank president going into the hank at high noon with the hooks under
his arms, You would realize this was a legitimate purpose, Bat if vou
saw him at midnight wnder the cover of darkness yon might think
otherwise,

Senntor Envix, The Mississippi Legislaturve passed this in darkness,

My, Mrveneee, Well, it wag oviginated in seeveey,

Senator Bay . Senator, do you have a moment ?

Do you suppose, My, Mitehiell, there is any velationship in the pns.
sage of this Taw to the faet that with the vegistration figures have
shovan primavily in response to the 1965 Voting Rights Aet, some Ne-
groes are going to be elected superintendent of publie instruction ?

Me, Mitenpnr., I think there is a very divect velationship, and T
would sav that the action of the State of Mississippi in this respeet ix
exactly like the actions of politicians who want to maintain and con-
trol the world over as long as the rule is working for them. They want
it. But as oon as it might work agninst their selfish interest they want
to change the rule. This is why seetion 5 of the Voting Rights et is
so important, heeause when the rule ehangers get busy and conduct
these schemes for the purpose of dePriving people of the benefits of
this statute, we have a referee in the Attorney General and in the
U5, District Court in the District of Columbia, which can be used
totry to prevent a wrong from ocenrring,

Senator Bavi. Suppose that the same good intentions, improved
quality of Government, were in the minds of the legislators ns when
they made changes in some instances previously aeceptod, election of
county commissioners from distriets to countywide choice, and that
there is no relationship to the fact that the Negro registration is high-—
the election in districts would elect Negroes from those districts where
vou have predominant Negro voters, whereas countywire there would
he no Negroes elected as connty commissioner?

Mr. Mrrcner, 1 think that is an absolute correct deseription of
what. happens. The thing that amazes me is that after all these vears
that the Negroes have lived in the United States that therve are still
people who wonld think that we are so dumb that we don't under-
=tand what i< happening when things like that oceur,

We have been around and we know all the little dodges that. take
place in these things. |

Now, of course, somehody ean get up on a platform and defend
this action as a great statesmanlike venture.

Senator Bavn. Tt is a rather interesting coincidonce that this states-
manlike venture took place just at the time when Negro citizens were
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for the first time in history getting a chance to eleet people at those
grassrouts levels that were so important as far as dny-m-t'luy govern-
ment. is concerned,

Mr, Mirenenn. That is right. We have no illusions, We know that
they may be ealled statesmen, We know they really aven't acting in a
statesmanlike manner, We know it is a politieal flimflam that is being
ised to deprive ug of vights given to us under the laws and ( ‘onstitn-

Senator Envix, Could you tell me whether the bonrd that was given
the power by that proposed statute was clected by the people?

Mr, Mrrener, The board that was formerly carrying out the
function ?

Seaator Envin. No: the hoard that was given power to select the
superintendent of public instruction instend of having it left to the
prople.

M, Mrreneer, don't know the answer to that,

Senator Favix, It might be intevesting to find out,

Mrv, Mirenp, T wouldn’t waste time teving to find out what that
was, beenuse I have no illusions about. the State of Mississippi. I vealize
youay see it from a different point of view from what ll see it, but 1
know when this kind of thing is done there is one purpose, and that is
to prevent Negroes from holding what we rightfully are entitled 10
hold.

Senator Favix, Do you think any time a law is changed  anywhere
to make 1 ruperintendent of public instruction seleeted by a board
rather thun the voters at large, that i beeause of the desive to diserimi-
nate against Negroes rather than yut the scelection of the superinten-
dent in the more competent hands!?

Mr, Mrrengn, No: 1 do not. T would say that you have to consider
each matter in the civeumstances of the situation, and in the circum-
stanees of the situation that I am describing T have no doubt that the
sole purpoze of that was to keep the Negroes from holding office.

senator Bavin, Tf the Senator will yield, T think we have to look not
only at ench individual instance and {et ench ease stand on its two legs
or three legs, or four, but we have to look at the connty case, too, which
you referrved to in Alabama, in which an obvious effort to take these
individual commissioners where Negroes could be elected in those arens,
where Negroes are the preponderance of the voters, and put them on
a countywide election so that there would be no elections, They have
to take another example where the qualifications to get your name on
the ballot as an independent ('muli(lute was changed when the black
voters began to tnke advantage of this, when they couldn’t get access
to one of the kev party ballots. You have to take all of those things into
consideration,

Mr, Merenen, Acetually, the next item in my testimony 1 will illus-
trate the continuity of these attempts to defy the law by what happened
at Friar's Point, Miss,

On May 17, 1969, the Department of Justice asked a Federal conrt
to block a June 3 town election in Frinr’s Point unless a =late of Negro
eandidates is placed on the ballof,

The Depavtment. of Justice charges that the Municipal Election
Commission changed the qualifiention procedure for eandidates and
the city elerk failed to notify the Negroes of the change in time for
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them to be placed on the ballot, in violation of the Voting Rights Aot
of 1963 and the tith amendment to the Constitution,

Prior to this year, candidates for vity offices have qualified to e
placed on the ballot by notifyving the clerk and filing a statement
that they were not <nbversives,

After a slate of six Negroes complied with this procedure to be
plaeed on the ballots as eandidates for mavor, town marshaf, and
fowr aldeviman posts, the defendants “without general notice to the
pmblic, altered the procedure for qualifying.”

The new procedure requived petitions (o be filed by candidates and
the clevk failed to notify the slate of Negro eandidatez and did not
furnish them forms for the petitions ns she did for the other enndi-
dntes,

The change in procedure was made withour the approval of the
Attorney General, or the Court, ax required by the Voting Rights et
of 1965, Tt was argued by the Justice Department that the change
would “deny and abridge the vight of Negroes to vote on acconnt of
their race by denying them the vight to vote for the candidates
of their choice,"

I might say there was a happy ending to that ease which T have
inclided us a footnote to my festimony at the end on page 9, The elee-
tion was held. The slate of Negro candidates did get on the ballot,
"This particular slate lost, but two other Negroes who entered the con-
test were elected,

Even without the sanetion of law, slowdowns, indifference and
hostility have heen used to keep down registration, Barnwell County,
S.C is a good illusteation of how unofficial efforts to intimidate have
heen uswf to back up oflicial action. Tn 19645, large numbers of
would-be colored registrants were kept waiting in a line and
fimlly not permitted to register. Some of those who were not
permitted to vegister hegan picketing and were arrvested on a charee
of parading without a permit, The Negroes then staged a rvegister
and vote rally in an open field, At the same time the Ku Klux Klan
held a rally beside the main rond ihat the Negroes had to use going
toand coming from the rally,

Now, it happens, My, Chairman and members of the eommittee, T
was a speaker at that rally and T was transported from the place
where T got off my plane to Barnwell County 1o the open field where
these people were gathered. This was in the daylight and the only road
that we could use passed by a large advertisement saying there wonld
be a Tn Klux Klan meeting that night, |

Senator Exviz, There vere two rallies, Ave vou speaking of the
Ku Kiux Klan rallv or (. other one?

Mr, Myrene, T think: the Klan needed to hear me more than the
people T was addressing mvself to, T would have heen happy to talk
to them, It T don’t think they hiad a ticket of admission for me,

But in any event- - -
| Senator Bavi, Exense me. They didn’t have a sheet that fit, may-
e,

Mre. Myvenrer, The interesting thing was in the davlight we went
througrh this Klan group that wae staging the meeting, but when onr
meeting ended, we had fo come back over that same voad, as T said,
and hy that fime the Ku Klux Klan meeting was in progress, There
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was a huge eleetrie eross, which shows that they have gotten modern in
somie 1espects, They had a huge electrie eross which was lit up, and
several speakers were umumt and everybody was in full rvegalia,
parvading back and forth,

Interestingly, T discovered that Klansmen arve human, and like
the vest of us, beeanse some of them were going to the restroom at
the filling station and some were drinking cokes and eating popsicles
and things of that sort,

But the whaole point is that in that atmosphere, there is the unofli-
cial effort to say to the Negro *all vight, if you are going to insist on
holding these rallies for the purpose of registration and voting, then
we e going to do this to intimidate vou,”

Fortinately, the Negroes aven’t intimidated any more, They know
how to take care of themselves in sitnations of that kind. But i is in-
teresting that the Klan has not given up, It still tries to the effective,
and of course, it enn be effective when it outimunnbers the Negroes about
100 to 1, as they usually do, and visits them under the cover of
durkness,

The Virginia State Conference of NAACP beanchies made a state-
wide check on registeation conditions in 1967, 2 vears after the V-
ing Rights et becmme lnw, Insullicient time to register and inconven-
ience of the place of registration were the most common complaints,

In Lancaster County it was necessary to make an appointment in
orvder to register, In Southampton Connty vegistration was on ‘Thurs-
days only, In Halifax County the registration dates were set
the “convenience of the vegistrar.” In one county a “registrar stopped
registering 1o go play golf,”

With o many risks of losing the progress that has heen miade since
the 1965 Voting Rights Aet beenme law, it i imperative that the ban
against literacy tests be extended before the end of this seszion of the
Congress, There are those who suggest that the law can be improved.
This may be so, but let. us extend the law that we know ean and does
work before seeking a change that may not get throngh Congress
until after the present ban against. literacy tests expirves,

Now, at this point, My, Chairman, 1 wonld like to read a telegram
which comes from the State of North Carolina. As you know, in
the city of Chavlotie theve is n colored member of the eity conneil,
Fred Alexander. His brother, Kelly Alexander, is the president of our
North Carolina State Conference of Branches,

His telegram says—and it is addressed to me: 1 s basle and fundamental for
Negroes in the State of North Caroling to fully participate in the political process
for the voting rights bill to be extended. This State should be included, beennse
traditionally in the black belt connties registrars have systematieally  dfs-
erimbmted against iliterate and Hterate Negroes who desire to register so they
e vote, We hope you will urge the Congress to oxtend thix hill for equality and
Justice at the ballot box.

It is signed Kelly M. Alexander.,

Senator Envix. T know Kelly Alexander very well, and T al=o know
his brother, Fred, who has been eleeted to the ¢ity council of Charlotte
several times, and he is a very fine councilman,

I am very sorry Mr. Alexander didn’t specify the countices, beeause
there are 100 coundies in North Carolina, and he undertook to do
comething which Edmund Burke said couldn’t be done. e didn't
know how to draw an indietment. against a whole people.
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Tt would be vather intevesting if you contaet Jun again nd find ong
what counties he eliims diserimination is in of the 100 counties, It
is a little too much.

My, Myrcpenn, T assmned that question might avise, Me, Chaivnan,
and I have excerpted some things which will identify sane counties,

Senator Ervix, We have been ealled to ameeting of the full com-
mittee, So T think this will be a goad thoe 1o suspend tewporarily,
I understand that the meeting will be rather ~haort, if we get seversl
Senutors together and have n short session,

We will go to the full conmittee and petirn just as soon as pos-
sible, That will give yon an apportunity to Jook np any questions on
behalf of my fine constituents,

(Whereupon, there was a short recess,)

Senntor Favix, You may proceed Mr, Mitelell.

My, Mrvenei, Me, Chairan, at the point wirere g recess was do-
claved, T was about to begin talking about specific problems in the
State of North Cavolina and supplement: My, Alexander’s telegram
about the continuous nature of t\m& deprivation of the right to vote
on the basis of literacy tests,

You will peeall that in 1957 you were good enough to permit Chules
MeLane, who is a NAACP field representative, to testify at length in
comnection with the consideration of the 1957 voting prights bill, In
this testimony, he presented a number of instances which appear in the
hearingson the civil rights hill, stavt ing at——

Senator Favix, Let's don't go back to the Middle Ages.

My, Mirenrn, Well, this was the neomodern age, T would say. M.
Chaivman, and T think it has to be mentioned in order to show that
the same kind of conduct has been continuing right through the years.

Senator Ervix, Tell us about the continuing conduet down there at
the present moment.

.‘l‘r. Mirenen, Well, T will do that, but in order to make it fit into
context. T wonld just like to identify that part of the record, because
in the thing that 1T am doing, I do base it on what happened in the
record, too,

"This hearving ~tarts on page 503 of that hearving record. Now, in the
testimony presented at that time in Bertie County. Mr. Mclean
pointed ont that he found the conrthouse door locked when the Ne-
groes were trying to register, That appenrs on page 515 and appar-
ently the same general type of practice continues in that county in
trying to disconrage, or at least it continued up until the passage of
the 1965 Voting Rights Aet,

It is interesting, also, to note that according to the Civil Rights
Commission report, the white registration in that connty is 100 per-
cent, while the nonwhite registration, even with the voting rights lnw,
is only 52,

Senator Envix, 1t is 74.9.

Mr. Mrrenen, No.

Senutor Eavix, You are going back 10 years,

Me. Mivenerne, No: T am reading the 1968 (ivil Riohts——1o

Senator Irvix, Eleven years, twelve yvears, and the evidence showed
My, MeLean was assistant registrar in one of our large-t coun-
ties, in Forsythe Comty, and he certainly didn't diseriminate against
anyhbody.
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Me, Mevenet, The evidence also showed that in the surronnding
area it was diseriminatory, 1 have a little illustration of how that
continued. C e

Senator Fpvix, T will let you put it in, bt 1 think it is so far-
fetehed, He testitied he went to Bertie County to the oflice of the
registrar, and the door was locked, We had a new reg=tration in my
cannty fnst year, and 1 ovoted, T went ald the way from Washington
to my hometown to pegister, sl 1 went to the oflice of the registear
and it was locked, He had gone home to Tunch, .

Me, Mrrenne, Well, that isn't what you thonght at that thine, M,
Chaivman, beemee at that time Mre, Melean and the anker went
down there, They ruttled the doops of the courthonse and finaliy. -~

Senntor Favis, Let we tell you, [ rattled the door, tao,

Me, Mevenei., Finndly, o Mre, Perry, who was inside and peepad
aronnd “he corner, necording to the testimony, they opened the door
aned then, of conr-e, he veally didn’t register anyhody at the time, but
at lenst Mr. Melaan proved he was theve, Your conclusion at that
time was the registear might have had a deink or might have Lud his
lady friend in there,

Senator Frvix, Neither you nor My, MeLenn enn mnke that suppo
sition on my part,

My, Mrrenpir, Welly the point is that not only was the door locked,
but the vegistrar was inside and had locked it to keep the Negroes
from registering, Now, | do not know whether he had his lady friend
or wis engaged in some other pastime,

The faet ix, he wasn't doing his duty, That is to register peaple,

That kind of practice continues and has continned,

Senator Enrvin, Me, Mitehell, what evidence do you have of that ?

Mr. Mrrenenn, T would say, Mv. McTean.

Senator Ervix. Yon don’t know of vour own knowledge? ‘I'uke
Bertie Connty, the ense that you talked about. The figures put. in here,
doesn’t. include registration from mid-July on to November of lnst
vear. The figmres put in here by the representative of the Civil Rights
Commission showed that in Bertie County 74.9 percent of all the Ne-
aroes of 21 venrs nge and np were registered.

T don’t know how many weve n'dded after that, The percentage of
blacks vegistered in Bertie Clounty in midsunnner Inst year is virtually
the snine as the percentage of people who came out to vote in Massa-
chusetts when their fuvorite son, Juck Kennedy, was eandidate for
President. on the Democratie ticket and the Republican ecandidate for
Viee President, Henry Cabot Lodge of Massachusetts, was also vun-
ning. And it is equivalent to the percentage of people who voted in 1960
in the State of Californin when that son of the Golden West, My,
Nixon, was rumning for President on the Republican ticket.

My, Myreneve, Well, that may be, My, Chairman, but T have-—and
I wounld like to insert in the record, with yonr permission, a elipping
from the Winston-Salem, N.C. Journal of October 29, 1964, which is
just before the voting rights Inw went into effect, in which 23 Negroes
who were trying to register in Woodville Township presinet in Bertie
County were denied the right to vegister, and it was onlv after My,
MeTean brought this to the attention of the State anthorities that these
Nerrroes were permitted to register,

T would like to offer a telegram from Mr. Roy T, Powell, who is
the chairman of the Bertie Connty Board of Elections, to My, Mel ean.



102

dated October 29, 1964, in which he said, well; maybe something was
wrong and that we would register these Negroes if they eame haek,

‘The tervible part about this is they were out there waiting to be veg-
isteved, They were denied the vight to register. The registrar said,
“Well, Tdidn’t know they were on the vegister, They were just hanging
aronnd.” But when the State intervened to make sure that these people
conid register, it was necessary for these people to fill out aflidavits
showing that they were theve for the purpose of trying to register,

A of this redtape is the kind of thing that has made (he Voting
Rights Aet necessary:, . o

My, Chairman, you may not he willing to admit if, but. the faet is, in
North Cavolina, you have got. two kinds of conduet. You have got the
kind of conduet that yon stand for, where you give everybody proper
consideration, and yon have got L Gind of conduet. that the elements
that do not want demorerney stand for, and they ave there, We cannot
et aronnd it The record shows it,

Senator Envix, Tell me one persori in North Carolina who has ever
solicited the nid of onr State bonped of elections who was qualified (o
cote, and was not registered and did not vote, Tle couldn't tell me a
imgle one,

Me. Merenpnn, T eould tell you one, the Lassiter vase, which weni to
the Supreme Court, In that ease, as von will remember, the person took
the position that they <hould not. he vequired to take a literaey test.
This was in Novthampton County, That they should not be required to
take a literney test at all,

Now, the problem there was that there were two things involved
one was under yonr North Carolina law vou have a grandfather clanse
which makes it unnecessary for-—-well, the practieal effect of it is that
a white person, if he comes under that grandfather clause, doesn't
have to (ake the test,

Senator Ervix, Don’t. you know the grandfather clause had been
mul;n\'od by the Supreme Court. of the Tnited States years and years
ngro !

OME Mrrcugnn, Tt was, in the Lassiter ease, I you arve still follow-
ing it with respeet-to the literacy fost,

Semntor Eevin. No, vo: it has heen taken out of our State constitu-
tion,

Mr. Myrenria, When?

Senator Eavix. T don’t remember the exact vear, but-———

My, Myrvewnern, The veason T ask vou, the Lassifer ease was in 1962,

Senator Knvix, The Lassiter ease was whero the person claimed that
i literaey test was automatically unconstitutional. There was no dis-
erimination in that ense, none whatsoever.,

Mr, Myrenenn, The Court didn't say there wasn't,

Senator Krvix, No: T heg vour pavdon. T het my hopes of salvation
on the fact that Justice Donglas- —

Mre. Myvenpern, T don't want you to take that visk, Senator,

Nenator Fpvix, T am willing to take it, beennse in the very voting
rights ense, the Supreme Court said the question of diserimination was
not raised in the Lassiter case and the Supreme Court. of the United
States, by a unanimous opinion written by Justice Douglns, said that
North Carolina literacy test was perfeetly in harmony with the Con-

.

stitution of the United States,
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So if there is any diserimination there, the Supreme Court joined

Mre. Myrengn, What the Supreme Court said-—and this is what
gives us trouble with this proposal made by Senator Dirksen-—is that
e literacy test, standing by itself, wonld not be diseriminatory, bhut a
literaey test. which was used in a diseriminatory nanner =o that it had
a ditferent. application to colored people from what it had to white
people, would be diseviminatory, That. is what yon have in I\‘urth:uur
ton Conunty, It just happened that the question’ wasn't raisod the vigly
way at the time the case was filed, nt. the subsequent events show very
clearly that the literaey test, as in applied in Novthampton County,
was a test. which was diseriminatory,

Now, | happened to talk last night with Mr, Juck Faison, who is
the president. of owr Northampton County NAANCP, e said that. priop
to the passage of the 1965 acty schooltenchers, college students, and
others were tirned down for not. passing so-called literney tests, and
that. sometimes these tests were given by people who had not even
finished high school,

Now, he says at. this time, of course, Negro vegistration is 47 pereent
of the total, The Negro population in that county ontnunibers the
white population, or at least is very close to it, He said it would be a
disaster to have the Voting Rights \et no longer applicable, becau-e
that is the only reason why they have been able to got these colored
peaplo registered. '

1 would be glad to ask him to give me an aflidavit which T can sulanit
for the record, if you care to have me to do so,

Senator Krvix, I want somebody to find ont something that can he
proved. That is a broadside charge,

Here is what the figures show for the Northampton County, I't shows
that 742 pereent—this is in the middle of last summer, months hefore
the registration period ended—that 74.2 percent of all the blacks in
Northampton were duly registered.

Mr. Mrrengrn, That isn't the figure that T have, but even a~sum-
ing—

Scenator Ervix, That. is what the Commission on Civil Rights is
quoting, the same thing yvou quote to put in here.

My, Merenere, I ean rely on what My, Faison, who lives there, says,

Senafor Envix, TTe didn't specify any township. ~

Mr. Mitcnerr, He specified his own towns‘hip. But. in the hear-
ing—-

Senator Ervix, He didi’t name a single person, and T would chal-
lenge the fact that any schoolteacher has been turned down for
registration in Northampton County,

Mr, Mrrenerr, Mr. Chairman, T respectfully say that it is very
unrealistic to take that position, in view of the long list. of things that
we have submitted. The problem ix, when we submit. the specific names
you say, well, some other kind of reason why they were turned down,
and maybe they didn’t understand what. the situntion was.

If we don’t. submit the specific names, you say, well, you can’t prove
your case,

T think that. it really is not quite ericket to take the position that there
have not been Negroes turned down because of the failure to pass
literacy tests.

For example, T have——
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senator Envix. My, Mitehell, T have lived in North Carolina all my
life,nmd 1 think Lawma faiv minded pevson, T try tobe,

Mr, Mrecnens, [ Lelieve you nre,

Senator Epvis, 1 spent 1 years of my life trying to puss on the facts
ns n judge, T don't know o single case of n sn);:lo'mth\'u’hml who has
been denied the vight to wegister and vote in North Carolinn who
appenled to the authorities sinee T have been a Member of the Senate,

Mr, Mirenern, Now, vou see what you have done here, You have put
in that a proviso, and this is what saves what you ave saying, What
vou are saving, Senator, is that there might have heen diserimination
ngainst them down in the precinet, hut when they appealed to the State
authovities they got a vemedy, '

Now, I dan't deny that, T hiave, for example, this case which eame
from Bertie County, en page 310 of that record, in which we snid a
man nnmed Riley Fee Maekie was denied the vight to register, He was
A Navy veteran und ngeadaate of State “Teachers College, When we
showed you his handweiting, vou said, “Did yon see Mackie write
this? And Me, MeLouwn snid, #Yes, 1 saw Rilev Tee Mackie write
that.”

“He wrote that along with another writing,”

‘Then yon said, “The venson I nsked is that it is surprising, heeause it
looks ke a woman's handwriting, T presume Riley FLoe Mackie is a
nman, by his name,” and Mr, Melenn said, “Yes, he is a man, and a
pretty gond -ized man.”

Well, my point is that eventunlly Mr. Mackie did get vegistered after,
[s YOu say, ‘m appenled to the State authorities, But this means that
only a trickle of Negroes got registered under that process, The 1965
Voting Rights Act made it possible for a substantial number to be
registered, 1 would say you will never really come to grips with this
problem if every time colored pcn?le try to register to vote they musl
go up to the State, make ont aflidavits, come back to the place of
registration and get registered.

Why not like everybody else?

Senator Envin, Mr, Mitehell, in a very lnrge percentage of the coun-
ties in North Carolina, including my own, we allow people to register
the entire year, They ean go any day in the year and register, 1 have
to say that T am eather proud of my State and 1 think it has been
the policy of my State government, just like my own policy, that every
man who is qualified to vote under ﬂlm laws of North Carolina, regard-
less of his race or his religion or national origin or anything else, is
permitted to register.

Al of these things ave fictitious now,

My Mrerenen, (S‘h, no, Mr. Chairman,

Senator Ervix, T want to show yon what people have tried to do
with North Carolina,

Way back in 1957, Attorney General Brownell, a member of the
Cabinet of the United States, eame down here with the voting rights
hill, e said it was necessary to pass it because of the three instances
in North Carvolina that occurred in May 1956. One of them in one
precinet in Greene County, another a precinct in Camden County,
another in a precinet in Brunswick County. Tle said these people were
denied the right to register,
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He baeed it on FBI reports, | asked him for the FBL reports, e

sid, they are contidential, T said, welly T think it is a matter of fair.
day that when an Attorney Genernl of the United States comes down

were and bases some testimony on FBUreports that the members of the
committen arve entitled to see them, to see whether he is making the
correet interpretation, ‘That same o fternoon 1 ealled iy State Board
of Elections and T ealledd the ehairman of the county board of elee-
tions in those three econnties, and [ found in every one of those three
eares that these people were orginally denied the rvight to register
hy the precinet vegistiar, that in every one of those three cases that
they were reversed by the State board of elections, and the county
board of evleetions, and they registered in time to vote in that primury,

When T found that out, 1 asked him to come buck to the commit-
tee to testify and he wouldn®t come, Then Tasked him to tell me wheth
or the faet thai these things had been corrected were in the IPBL re-
port. 1 never could get any information on that point,

And vet that is the way my State is slandeved,

Me. Myrenern, Well, vour State isn't slandered, Senator Frvin, be-
etse we eame in afterward and presented a great many move eases,
Far example, we told vou abont the locked conrthonse door in Bertie
County, We told you about that. young man I spoke of and 15 other
per<ons heing turned down in Curvituek County :in Camden County,
the registrar gave the dictation o fast that high school arduates
conldn’t pass: in Greene County, there was 1 man who had 22 ques-
tions in the Bullhead precinet in which he was asked, among other
things, if the NAACT attacks the Government, which side would yon
Le on ! That is on page 509,

Aund in Northampton

Senator Ervix, \{"hou was that ?

Mre, Mrerengrn, This was in the hearving on page- — -

sSenator Krvin, What vear?

Mr, Mrrengns, 1957,

Senator Favix, Oh, Lord,

My, Mrrengnt, T ean see what the problem ix, Senator, when we have
the specific record. Tt is disqualified,

Senator Ervin. At that snme time you brought a hoy up from Hali-
fax County and had him to testify that he had been a student at
North Carolina College in Durham and he hiad attempted to register
and they wonldn't vegister him, Also, to show economic diserimina-
tion, that he had given a check to pay his bill at a filling station
and his check had been turned down,

1o and behold, it turned out that his caxe had been tried. He brought
a suit. in the Supervior Court of Tlalifax County. and his ease was
tried by a jury which ineluded eight white jurors and four black
jurors, "They unanimously decided he had not been diseriminated
ngainst. And lo and behold, it turned out further that the check he
had drawn was deawn not on a white bank, but on Mechanies and
Farmers Bank of Durham, which was headed by John 11, Wheeler, who
T am satisfied vou know as a_man of your race, And he was turned
down for lack of suflicient funds by a colored man.

Mr. Mireners, You see, Senator, vou are now doing what T hoped
wouldn't happen in this hearving, That is veally a diversionary intro-
duction, Iweause it does not alter the fact that on page 509 of the
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heaving we told you about Bullhead County, and that was veally a
nme thnt intrigued me,

Semator Ervix, Bullhead what ¢

Mre. Mrerenren, Bullhead precinet in Greene County, where they had
these 22 questions, one of \\’\Ii(.‘l\ was if the NAACT attaeks the Gav.
ernment, would you support the Government or the NANCP, and
sometimes the question was, *1H the NAACP attacks the Government,
on which side would you be on?™

Now, thix was brought to yonr attention, and it is true that the Statoe
officials intervened and corvected thisz. But this is another example of
delay encountered by Negroes,

We also had Wake County. You brought up in Wake County the
fact that Chavles MeLean is a vegistvar and he is—-

Semutor Epvix, e is in Forsyth,

My, Mrrenere, That is vight, That is Forsyth, In this particular
county that 1 have veference to, Wake, there is a Zebulon precinet
where, according to the records here—-this happens to be a newspaper
clipping—three persons took the exnmination while the ~heritl and
constable looked on, watching them take the examination,

AMter they failed the examination, one of your own oflicials, as indi-
eated in this, one of these newspaper stories, said that he was amazed
that the rvegistrars had so much power, that there just wouldn't he
any \\l'u_\' to overcome the registrar's decision that a person hadn't

mssed.
! Here they have the constable looking on and the sherifl looking on,
and still they said the person didn’t pass the test,

Senator Krvix, What year was that?

Mr. Mrvengrn, That was in—1 will have to get that clipping, Tt is
more recent, It was a newspaper elipping.

But. Mr, Melaan, in a letter dated October 29, 1964, lists a number
of these places, that is, counties, where these things have occurred,
and he took them up with the State authorities, and as you have indi-
cated, he did get. redress for the specific people who were involved.

But. the important thing is that you do not affect the masses of the
people, whereas under the Voting Rights Act we have reached the
masses of the people, and this is what has made it possible to get the
voter registration incereased,

I would like to offer, if T may, Mr. McLean's telegram which is
October 23, 1964, which is addressed to My, Roy T.. Powell. I guess
maybe you know who he is. Ie is in post oflice box 254,

Senator Envix, He was chaivman of the board of elections of one of
the counties there, I believe, in Northampton,

My, Mrrenern, My, MeLean says: “Several Negroes were at the poll-
ing place in Tewiston, N.C"., Bertie County, October 24, 1964, for the
pm‘&)ose of registering. At 5:20 when the registering closed, they had
not had a chance to register. Some arrived hefore noon. I obzerved the
delay hy their registrar, taking about. 3 howrs to examine two Negroes,
then only ruling one was qualified. The Attorney General has ruled
that. the persons waiting to register, when registration closes, are en-
titled to an opportunity to register.” '

Now, as you have indicated, when your State oflicials heard abhout
that they intervened and made it possible for those people to be taken
care of. But they had to fill ont. aflidavits in order to be allowed to
register, E
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Semator Ervix, That is the one you told us about again, That is nm
n new incident,

Mr, Mrrenenr, He says the same thing happened in Camden, Cas-
well, Currituck, Franklin, Granville, Hyde, Lee, Martin, N axh, North-
ampton, Pamlico, Pite, Person, Tyrrell, and Warrven, This is in a letter
that 1 would like to offer for the record, if I may, and in which he
indieates that youn have got the same kind of problem,

Now, we can’t go on just indefinitely assembling lists of pvn‘pl('. It
seoms {0 me we made a gocd-faith effort to show that in =ome of these
areas there is this problem, It can be pretended that it doesn’t exist,
but the fact is that the Negroes ave therve, They try to vegister, They
do not. get. registered unless the Federal Inw makes it possible,

Senator Eavix, The fact iz, also, vou ean’t nnme me a single peyson
in North Carolina who was denied the right to register and vote
sinca 1900,

My, Myvenern, Ol no, You see, you arve changing your position
on that.

Senator Ervix, No: T am not,

Mr. Mrrenprr, You said at first that 1 conld not name you a single
person who had heen denied the right to register who did not get
redress by going to the State anthorities, Now, if T understond yon
this time, you are saying that since 1960, 1 can’t name anybady who was
denied the right to register,

Well, thig is 1964 that T just raised, and all these Negroes were denied
the right to vegister,

Senator Ervix, You don’t have a specific instance theve. You enu-
merated as an instance of blacks at Lewiston in Bertie County, and
it appears that the State attorney general ruled they were entitled to
register and vote, and they were registered and voted,

These other things—this happened here and theve and evervwhere,
and nothing specific. Now, none of these things happened after they
came to the attention of the State board of elections, The State board
of elections handed down a ruling that a person could not. be required
to answer any questions ahout. his understanding or about. such things
as whose side he would ba on between a war between the NAACP and
tha Government, ete, That all one conld do would be to give him a piece
of %mpm' with a printed sentence, one sentence from the Constitution,
and a blank line to copy it there, T say that under the literacy test as
administered in North Carolina, several years bhefore the Voting
Rights Act of 1965 was passed, that anybody who had gone as high
as the fourth grade in sclnool could pass the literacy test as adminis-
tered in North Carolina.

My, Mitchell, T don’t see how, if that is true, we have the kind of
situation that Mr. Melean has deseribed and the kind of situation that
My, Iaison has deseribied in Northampton County.

Senator Ervix., Mr, MeLean testified under my examination that
in every instance where he ealled these matters to the attenvion of the
State hoard of elections, they had heen corrected.

My, Merenenn., Well, that is true, but this is a very onerous thing
to inflict on Negroes, that if a white person goes there he gets regis-
tered. If a Negro goes there, he has to appeal his case to a State hoard,
fill out an aflidavit, and then go back and get registered.

Now, if you won't admit—-

37 199--70-——K
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Senator Frvin, Yondon't have to do that,

Mr. Myreneon, Well, you dou’t have to do it now heeanse of the
1965 Voting Rights Aet, 1t is just a difference between having a
pliceman on the corner when a fellow is getting ready to commit
e assaulty and not having one, The Federnl Government is in the
role of the policeman and, of conse, us long as the Federal Govern-
ment is there, they are going 1o aet right,” But_yon take nway the
Federal Government by permitting this ban against literacy tests to
expire and von will have them hack there visiting theiv lady frionds
hehind the loeked doors of the conrthouse,

You will have them denying Navy veterans the vight to vote, You
will hnve regristiars wiving fast dietation so that Negroes ean't. puss,
and Bullliead, with 20 questions about NANCP, and the war,

Senator Favin, Yon lhzms licen in the past so far and now von are
going into the future,

Meo Myrena, Theve is a gquestion that those wha do not study the
prst may be condenmed to Jive it in the future, T do not want to he
in that. position,

I think it is elear, Senntor, that you have got a lat of wonderful
people in North Caroling, and T have the good fortune to have a
tughter-in-law, a beantiful givl, who comes from the State of North
Cavolina, So I have some personal connections with the State and
ome interest in it,

But I am not. blind to the fact that in the State of North Carolina,
sy, if you are in Winston-Salem things ave great, but if you get out
into some of those counties things are diffevent. T have here, a place
where it is ealled Knightdale, which according to the Raleigh News
and Observer, February 15, 1967, is the most opular meetingplace
for the Ku Klux Klan, Literally hundreds of Klansmen come there
all the time to stage their festivities, The paper published a picture
of n. burned out erass,and that kind of thing.

I think you would certainly think that would not he a very healthy
place for Negroes to ha asserting the right to vote.

Senator Irvix, That is in Wake County, and I would say Negroes
have heen registering and voting in Wake County without hindrance
as far back as I remember Wake County,

Mr, Mrrenecn, In Raleigh in Wake County,

Senator Envix, T will also eall attention to the faet that under the
Voting Rights Aet, if less than 50 percent of the population of n
county failed to vote, then it came under the Voting Rights Act. Wake
County, which is a strong Democratic county, usnallyv votes in the
wimary, and they failed to vote 50 percent in the general election.
i%m to wet them on the 30 percent provision the Cen<us Purenn had
to o down there and count evervhody in the State's prison, mo:t of
whoni didn't ve<ide in the Wake County area aad conldn't have grotten
to the nolls without going through the walls of the State prison,

They comted all of the patients in the North Carolina hospital for
the rientally il Dovothy Dix, most of whom eame from other coun-
ties and who couldn’t ave voted wunder North Carolina law beeause
of their infirmity even if they got to the polls. And they counted the
college students, The Department of Justice, which is not very merei-
ful in these cases, thonght that was just a little bit too rank, so they
exempted Wake County from that Voting Rights Act,
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My, Mirenern, Coula T oask yon what year vou =aid Negraes had
been voting in Wake County, since what yewr !

Senntor Brvix, As far baek as 1 remember Wake County,

Mr, Myrengr, On page 516, it said for thiee Negroes teying havd
to vote, the answer was still no today, The answer came for the second
time ina week to Walter Tolden, I came at Zebulon City Hall in the
Iate afternoon under somewhat tense surroundings,

This time threa Negrees were 1old they could not register for nest
Tuesday’s election after taking the test in rending und writing of the
State censiitu jon, Last Saturday the three vnmpﬁ\inm! they had been
refused even the vight to take the examination, Beeause of their pro-
test the chaivitan and members of the Wake Camnty Board of Flecaon
e to Zebulon Tuesday afternoon, Chairpaa James O, Little, e,
and Republican member Willinm Briggs were here, Little had raid
carlier to see that Negroes got a proper examination and if they conld
pass that proper examination they would be registered,

While a deputy sheriflf and constuble looked on, the three Toldens
took that examination from the registvar, Mrs. 1. D, Guild, When the
tests were over, Mrs. Guild delivered the verdiet. Al three were dis-
qualified and Chaivman Little had to admit that there was little the
hoard of elections conld do about the vefusal. Tle said, 1 got a little
lesson in election law today, ‘That lesson is the vegistrar is the sole
judge of a person’s titness, education, or otherwise, to east a ballot in
North Carolina,

Now, you can say that they never denied the Negroes the right to
register, but the record speaks otherwise,

Senator Ervin, What venr was that ?

Mr, Mrrenenn, The hearing in 1957, T admit, in Raleigh, where
things are very fine, they do have a large number of Negroes reg-
istered, but in the surrounding aren, the county where Negroes also
live, that i where we have got the problem.

I certainly have no desire to reflect on the State of North Carolina,
I just feel that these things ought to he brought out, hecause it wonld
be my prediction that if we do not allow the voting vights law to be
extended, we will be right back in the conditions that we faced hefore,
I would also predict that the Negroes will not take that, and 1 don't
hlame them for nat taking it.

I think if we go back to a situation where registrars did give fast
dictation, or romebody would come up and say we will lock the court-
house door o you can’t. get. in, [ think there are some Newross wha
would break down that courthouse door and I can’t say T blame them.

Senator Kevin, The North Carolina State Board abolizhed all such

“practices ns that before the passage of the Civil Rights Act of 1965,
We have approximately 2300 voting precinets in North Carolina,
North Carolina people feel the way T do, Anybody shonld be allowed to
vote who is oum}iﬁml. But we do feel that our legislature ought to be
able to pass a law, which it has the power to pass, without permis-
sion from the \ttorney General of the United States. Sovereign States
have to come up here, hat in hand, to beg the Attorney General of the
["nited States. an exceutive ofliver, who has no judieial eabacity, to
make new laws,

Me. Muerenprn, T would just agree with that, bhecause as you know,
the law provides an alternative remedy. A State can either go to the
Attorney General or it ean petition in court for relief under the law,
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It seems to me that when yon consider all of these things that the-e
samo people have done to the Negroes, how they have spent the State's
money for the purpose of diseriminating agninst them, how they have
not given them fair opportunities in conrt, I think that they are got-
ting ofl very light when they have an opportunity to come up and pre-
sent it in court or to the .\mwlwyH»nomll.

I don’t think they have to come up here, hat in hand, as Ameriean
citizens, to a Jegitimate Amevican forum and seek vedress in an orderly
way for whnt they consider to be a grievance,

Senator Favix, T understand you approve of the law, bt the neaple
who vated the Declaration of Independence gave as one of the ren-
sons the United States shounld svcm{(- from Eagland, that we had to
;_r(;t permission from prople over in England 10 earey onr laws into
effect,

Furthermore, 1 don’t. think it is a very nice to nail shat all the doors
in the Federal judiciary in North Cavolinn and in other States and
maka peaple journey anywhere from 200 miles to 1,000 miles to et
aceess to o judicial tribunal, T think that is prostitution of judicial
process, that it is inconsistent with fairplay, and it is vather an insult
to the Federal judiciary.

Me, Myrenene, Nog Me, Chairman, T don't think it is, T think we
may as well get down to the facts of this matter, Attorney General
Brownell, when he came in here to ask for pnssage of the Voting Rights
Aet of 1057, testified that they had a criminal statute for prosecuting
people who denied others the right to vote, but they ecouldn’t get
convictions, :

So he asked for civil remedy and he got it.

After he got the civil remedy it was necessary to come back to the
Congress of the nited States to get another law passed because voting
officials were throwing away all of the voting records so the Attorney
General and the Justice Department couldn’t find ont. what had
happened. Then we amended the law to preserve the voting records,

Then the States devised some other program for keeping Negroes
from voting by these complicated questions, and things of that sort,
So that the Congress finally did what a Congress ought to do: that is,
it recogmized there was a wrong and it provided a remedy. It faced
up to the fact, T am happy to say, that one of those judges, even
thongh they are Federal judges, in many cases are not. going to give
a fair consideration fo this kind of a problem. The mere fact that they
don judicial robes does not put them in a position where they are
going to divorce themselves from the customs of their communities,

This is a fact of life. T think in facing that fact, the only thing that
Congress could do wonld be to try to provide a forum where there
wonld be impartial {reatment,

Senator Ervix, T ean’t conceive of Frank .Johnson of Montgomery
not heing fair, or Judge Albert Tuttle,

My, Mryrenerr, They are exceptions.

Senator Ervix, But you eame up here and T am not going to mention
the names of all the judaes, -

Mr. Mirenrrn, T cerfainly ean conceive of Judge Cox heing in the
unfair category in Mississippi. | '

Senator Envix. The Attorney General of the United States Brownell,
came down here and said he couldn’t get a conviction of a eriminal
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statute anywhere in the South of an official violating the clection law,
and 1 asked him the question, have you ever tried to get one, and he
=aid no.

Mr. Mrrengn, That is vight, and the reason he had——-

Senator Krvis. The same thing was testified to by Mr, Rogers, his
stieeessor, now the Neeretary of State, Tt was testified to by .(tturnoy
General Kennedy, Tt was testified to by Attorney General Katzenbach,
if 1 recall the record, and by Attorney General Ramsey Clark,

I put to each one of them whether or not they tried to get a
convietion in a criminal ease for denial of the vight to vote, and
they all admitted they hadn't,

Me, Merenere, There ave two factors involved in that, The fivst is
that other attorneys general have tried to get eviminal convictions and
didu't. Tn addition. T think we have just got to face the faet that it is
very hard for u white man in the United States to put another white
st in jail for denying n Negro the right to vote,

Now, I think it is an uncomfortable fact of life we have to face,
aud we have faced up to it hy proposing the alternative, which is a
civil proceeding where you don’t have to put anybody in jail, which
i court order which requives themto act,

But. even with those conrt orders, Congress liad to come haek and
provide a further remedy. So that whatever is happening in this sit-
untion now is the logical result of a pattern of continued and un-
mitigated definance of law on” the part of those who are covered by
this statute,

Senator Erviy, 1T don’t believe there has been any finding of this
sort,

Mr, Merenere, What about the Gaston Counry case?

Senator Ervix, The Gaston Counnty case, 1 know Gaston County
well. 1 live within #3 miles of it. Tverybody who is familiar with
Gaston Connty knows that the blacks in Gaston County vote Demo-
eratie, and they know that the Democratic registrars have put every
one of them on the registration books, and theve has been no diserimi-
nation.

M. Mrrenein, The ease said they had heen discriminating against
Negroes for 25 vears in the manner of education and then had ex-
peeted them to pass the literaey test,

Senator Ervix, Here is what Judge Gash said in his opinion on
page 690 of Gaston County v, United Stafes of America, veported in
#s8, Federal Supplement, |

My Mirenri, 1 was speaking of the Supreme Cont,

Senator Ervix, Ile said, indeed, there is no evidence of any Negro
who has been denied registration beeause of his race,

Mr. Mirenern, I was speaking of the Supreme Court case, and in
the Supreme Court decision it was held that the State had been deny-
ing Negroes educational opportunity, on the facts of the case, for 23
vears, and it was unfair to ask them to pas a literacy test, For that
venson Gaston County couldn't get out from coverage of the Voting
Rights Aet, : '

senator Brvix, That is what Judge Gash said.

Mr. Mirenerr, It is true, but that isa lower court.

Senator Ervix, Gaston County was ineluded hecaunse of this 50-
pereent voting provision, ,

My, Mrrenern, That is vight,
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Senator Ervix, Now, I think you concede that there is no way that
vou can compel a man to come ont and vote.

My, Mrrenenn, There is no way you can compel him, but there ave
n whole lot of ways yvou ean keep him from voting, and North Caro-
limisan expert in altof them,

Senator levis, That is an assertion without evidenve,

Ve, Merenenn, Te is an assertion based on this reeord, What about
locking the convthouse door, the fast. dictation, the 22 questions nsk-
ing waether von would go to war against the Government of the
United Stateson the side of NAANCDP,

st that a faet !

Semtor vz, You ean register every person in the county, but
Cawre 1m0 way vou ean make 30 percent of them come out and vote,

Me, Mrreneen, You ean go out and get thew, but-—-

Senator Krvix, So you have an artificial presamption. T maintain
thers ix no eational relation to the faet of less than H pereent coming
out and voting and dizerimination. You ean give Gaston County
this netificin] presumption, and anyhody who knows anything nbout
Gaston County, as 1 do, knows that there has been no diseriminn-
tion in voting agninst Negroes in Gaston County within the memorvy
of any living man,

Yeof, we have Gaston County, by an artificial presumption, violat-
ing the 15th amendment. 1T would say that does not tend to give
peaple knowing the facts very much confidence in the Voting Rigls
Aet of 1965 or in the Federal judiciary. |

Mr, Mrrengin, Well, T would say your version of that undoubtedly
is based on vour knowledge of the Siate of North Carolina, But |
woulll say also, on the basis of this vecord, where we went into detail,
aiving what had been happening in the past and where we bring
it up to date abont what is happening as late a< 1964, it certainly
seems to me to be very elear that something is wrong down there
which is keeping those people from registering,

The fact is, when we passed the 1965 Voting Rights Aet, the regis-
tration began to inerease, It hegan to incrense becnuse we no longer
had these people who would give this fast dictation or lock up the
conrthouse door with the lady friend, and that kind of thing. You
have a situation where you ean hring in the Federal Government to
assist in the registration process,

Nenator Ervix. The figures show that in 1967, there was no over-
whelming registration of members of your race in North Carolina,
There were only 19404,

Mr. Myrenern, In what vear?

Senator Ervin, In other words, in 1962-—go back a little—aceord-
ing to the Civil Rights Commission, there weye 258,000 Negroes reg-
istered in Novth Carolina. In 1967, after the Voting Rights Act had
been in effect for approximately 2 years there were 277,404 Negroes
registered in North Carolina, making a difference of only 19,404 peo-
ple bronght on the books,

My Mrrvengri, Do von have the figure !

Senator Ervix, Undoubtedly that. many blacks beeame 21 years of
age hetween 1962 and 1967,

My, Myrcuere, Do yon have the figure for Northampton County,
Senator, because there is a Black Belt county, and T have from Mr.
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Faison, as Inte as Lt night, that as of now 17 pereent of the Negroes
are registeved,

senator Ervix, Well, yvowr thinking is very mueh ot of harmony
with what the Civil Rights Commission put in evidence, beeanse they
showed in Northwmmpton County at the midd'e of It smemer, which
was reveral months before the registration peviod elased and ~everal
months hefore the general election was held, that the jercentage of
Negroes yegistered in Northampton County was 742 pereent.

Meo Mrvennnn, 1 osaid these ave 47 pereent of the total of all raees
Thut is what Mr, Faizon told me Inst night,

Senator Erves, Either he or the Civil Rights Commis<ion is hayvwive,

Mr. Mirenv, Hshiows that there s boen an inevense in that Black
Belt county, where formerly they weve denyving Negroes the vight to
vote by asking a whole lot of questions, and now there has bheen an
inerense since we got the 1965 Voting Rights Aet,

senntor Eevin, T am just pointing ont, or trying to, that all this
talk about SN0O00 pew Negro registrations in the Sonth is the vesult
of this aet, is to a large extent an insupportable fact, beeare in North
Carvolinn there wax an inerease between 1962 mnd 1965, aceordingr io
these figrares of the Civil Rights Commission and other availuble evi-
dence, of from 248,000 in 1962 to 305,000 in 1968, which was an inerense
of only 17,000,

It stands to veason that o large part of that increase was people
coming of nge.

Mr. Mrvenenn., T think all that chows, Senntop, is that in spite of
the fact the we got our Voting Rights Aet, there are still some officinls
in North Cavolinn who ave probably tryving to keep yieople from voting.
1 think Mr. MeLane's maferial and the other things that 1 vefer to
show that even though the law has heen passed, theve mre <t neaple
trving to throw monkey wrenches and prevent registration,

T think what is needed is heavy assignment of examiners down there
in order that we ean give evervhody who wants a chanee to register
an opportunity to do o, so we won't have the kind of situation like
what happend to those 25 people who were outside and had been ont
there sinee noon in that. precinet, but they weren't allowed to register
until camehody sent up to the State to get permission.

Senator evin, The figures given by the Clivil Rights Commission
show that there are almost 4,500,000 white peaple of the age of 21 vears
and up, or the age of 18, counting Georgia, that are not registered.
Now, why are they not registered?

Mr. Mirenenn, You know, a long time ago T learned a very im-
portant. leszon from you. In a hearing somebody made an observation
that he was speculating on. Yon said, vou can’t go inside people's
heads to nd ont. why they don’t do thines, Well, T ean’t go inside
the heads of those white people and find out why they didn't vegister,

But T do know that in the figures which the Civil Rights Commis-
sion has submitted, they show a number of counties in your State where
the white registration is 100 percent. They say 100 pereent in Bertie.
they say 100 percent in Northampton, 100 pereent-plus, whatever that
menans, ‘

Senator Feviy, There are anpreximacels 500,000 white veaple in
North Caroling naw reeistered. Caldwell Comnty shows 100 nereent
plus, of Negro registration. On the first page of the North (Crvolina



114

materinl that is from the Civil Rights Connnission there is no white
county which has that vegistration,

Mre. Mrerenpn, Caldwell?

Semator Ervin. 1 beg vour pardon, Alegheny County and Bladen
and Bertie and Branswick, Then it shows also in Catawba County you
have morve than 100-percent registration of blacks there,

Me. Myrcurnn, In Caldwell County they have got. 25,520 white
prople and 1723 colored peaple. So 1 don't think that. shows much,
f 1028 got registered, It what would distress me is in these other
counties where you have a large number of Negroes who outnumber
the white population and still the Negro registeation percentagewise
1=t ns ereat ax the white,

Senator ErviN, Before we go any further we =hould stop this thing,
[ dov't think we ave shedding much light, either one of s,

But we have got 1,723 Negroes in Caldwell Connty of the age of
21 vears e LT, which is approximasely 250 more than that reg-
istered. That is doing pretty g'um{

Me. Mrrenvee, Wello T think T ean also give people a plus for
exceeding the number of vegistered voters on the rolls, |

Senatenr Erviy, In Hart ford County, there ave 3206 black of the
age 21 veurs and up, and £591 are registered, making far more than
100 pereent. Ro there is surely no diserimination in those two counties.

My, Mrvenern, T wouldn't want to let the record pass withont dif-
fering with you on whether or not we are shedding Light on this gues-
tion. 1 would say I think that has bheen a million eandle power fighl
on the State of North Cavolina, and it onght to be pussible for people
to see, on the basis of what I have s=aid, that there has been extensive
dizerimination against Negroes by giving them fast dictation, locking
up the courthouse doors, making them answer foolish guestions, and
that kind of thing, and the only thing which saved the sitnation ix the
passage of the 1965 Voting Rights Act,

Senator Ervix, The light that you shed on the subject—we went
hack ahout 12 vears to shed it—and then you have got into the future.
T have a high vespeet for your attainment, but T don’t helieve you are
gifted with prophetic power.,

Tet me ask yon one more question, Now, this i0-percent deviee, would
vou be willing to change this law and provide that the formulas he
based upon the 1968 election rather than the 1964 clection !

My, Mirenern, No: that would be a fatal mistake, because that
would exclude just about evervhody and it. wonld be the equivalent of
giving an amnesty to evervbody in jail, letting them ont, because the
fact is that just about all of the worst diseriminators who are now cov-
ored by the iaw would not he covered if that were done,

Senator Krvin, In other words, what was a sigh of racizm, the test of
racism, in 1964 would not he applicable to 19687

Mvr. Mrrcnrrr, Tt only shows they have heen on good hehavior while
their conducet is covered hy the law, I think we don’t have suflicient
proof that if we remove the law that the improvement in conduet will
continue, I think if we are going to

Senator Envix, That is also an exercise of your prophetic power.,

My, Mrrengr, It is not an exereise of prophetic power. This is based
on experience, When youn have to do as I do down there in South Caro-
lina, wo through the Ku Klux Klan when they seem to be in control,

.
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and when somebody suggests don’t stand on the outside of the ear on
this davk road beeause you might get shot—1 don’t think there is any-
thing prophetic about that. This isa grim veality.,

Semntor Ervix, That is back into the past,

My, Mirenens, This was just last year,

Senator Ervix, Well, thank you very much,

1 would like to veiterate that. 1 think a nan of any race onght 1o he
allowed to vote, and any man that denies him that vight should he
put.in prison for it. But T do think it i< very unfortunate that we have
to have a few States picked ont for discviminatory legislation, They
allow crapshooters and moonshiners and mrderers and other people
to be tried in loealities where their crimes ave committed, it they
don’t allow Southern States to have trinls in the neavest conrt,

T think, as T said before, that is about the shabbiest form of due
process law ever devised. "This is supposed to be a civilized sociery,

My, Mrrenens, T think that erapshooting and all those other things,
while serious erimes, do not begin to appronch the seriousness of the
offense of denying the people the right to vote in a demoeracy, aid
I think it is clear that the only way we are going to remedy this
problem is to have some applieations on the law that would be wore
effective than those we have had in the past, This has leen effective,

Senator Ervix, To nail shut the door of the temple of justice!?

Mr. Mrrenen, I wounld like to ask you, Senntor: Is there any
difference between nailing shut the temple of justice and locking the
door so Negroes can't vegister to vote in North Cavolinn ¢

Senator Ervin. Yes; that was done by some recaleitvant individunl
down in North Carolina, and this is done hy the Congress of the
United States, T think it is a whole lot less evil for one individual
to lock the door of his office than it is for the Congress of the United
States to lock the doors of the courthouses,

My, Mrrcwerr, That depends on whether yon are the man who is
denied the right to vote, T think the man denied the right to vote is
in the worst. position, being locked ont. of the courthouse.

Senator Baym. Mr, Chairman, ave yon going to lei the witness finish
his statement? |

Mr. Mrrengrn, 1 have finished, T would just like to ask that it he
included in the record in the event that T left anything out,

Senator Tueryoxn, Mr, Chairman, T don’t have very many
questions.

Mv. Mitchell, on page 7 of your statement. you said, concerning
South Caroling, *“Fven without the sanction of law, slowdowns, in-
difference, and hostility have heen nred to keep down vegistration,
Barnwell Connty, S.C.., is a good illustration of how unaflicial efforts
to intimidate have been used io back up oflicial action, In 1965, large
numbers of would-be colored vegistrants were kept waiting in a line
and finally not permitted to register. Some of these who were not
permited to register began picketing and weve arrested on n charge
of parading without a permit. The Negroes then staged a vegister
nnt, vote rally in an open field. At the same time the K Kiux Klan
held a rally beside the main vond that the Negroes had to use going to
and coming from the rallv.”

Ts that your statement ?

Mr. Mrrenern, That is my statement, Senator,
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Senator ‘T'nvesmoxn. A fter learning of this statement, 1 ealled a
member of the legisluture from Baruwell County, the Honorable Solo-
mon Blatt, who incidentally is speaker of the house of representatives
of South Carolin e and lives in Burnwell County and who knows the
situation in Baes coll County fiesthand, M, Blatt is of Jewish de-
seent, o very ot sble, and fine wan and is highly vespected, He has
been speaker of thae honse Jonger than any man in the history of South
Carolina, Mre. Biatt said yonre statement is false. M, Blatt stated that
ho also conferred with Senator FEdgnr A, Brown, the State senator
from that ~enarorial distvict, |

M. Mevenenr. T know him,

Senator Tavesoxp, Amd Me, Browns takes the same position and
substantintes his =tatement, Mre, Blatt says that he and Mre, Brown
hoth were around there, that the IFBI had agents there, that there
were two Iederal pegistears theve, the chief of the South Carolinn
law enforeement division was there, and that they had 20 registration
ofticinds from that connty present o register people,

Me, Mevenpn, That is after we had bronght it to the attention of
the Depavtment of Justice, That is true. Now, T am glad that you
mentioned Mr, Brown, beeanse he was the chief offender. 1t was Mr,
Brown who not only interfered with the Negroes who were teving to
vot vegistered in the first instance, Imt he even attempted to make it
impessible for us to get examiners. This is all documented in the
South Cavolina papers and T wonld e happy to submit for the record
the elippings hearing on this,.

Insofar as w gaecting i= coneerned, Me, Blatt may v my stote-
ment is falre, but it doesn’t mnke a bit. of ditference to me whant he
sayvs, beeanse I know, T was there, T went down to Barnwell County.
I was in that field. 1 saw the Ku Klux Klan and 1, of my own
knowledge koo that vegistering the Negroes did not happen until
sftes we ad bronght this matter to the Depanrtment of Justice and
the l)olpnrmwm of Justice intervened. Now, they ean say whatever
they plense. T ombdn't eave less. But 1 know the facet is that they
are che worst of the diseriminators, My, Blatt has Leen trading on
the fuet that he is a person of the Jewizh faith for years. He comes
np here and opposes the eivil rights hills, but that does not_exease
hom Veenase he - Jowish ne more than it exenses the Negpo for dis-
criminating, | thivk it shameful that he tries to hide behind the fact
that he is o oveher of aominority group while heinge a party to the
k'l of diserimination that we have experiencad in the State of South
Cuarolina,

Senntor ‘Puvior oo, Did vou see anvone denied the vight to vogister
when von vere lavn there!?

Me Mercnene, When T owas there it was onon Swinda e aned it was
the sdav the specting was held, But the information on whar was go-
mer on wais supplied,

Sengtor Tuoesmoxn, Do ovou know of anvone denied il vight to
regrister in Barnwell County or any other conuty in Sonth Carvolina?

Mre. Mrveoeno, Uwill sav it this way : The Rev, 1, ). Newman, who
was the State Seeretary of NAACP at that time, furnished the names
of those in that particnlay group who were denied registration,
Theyv tarne ! s aver to the Department of Justice and it was he-
e of (hat Je neniation that the examminers wors neGone L1 alid
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wot see this with my own eyes, but if vecords mean anything, ihe
fact that it was submitted to the Justice Department and there were
pictures in the newspapers showing these Negroes waiting in Ene,
certainly seemis to me 1o he evidence, Of course, we can prefend that
it doesn't exist, Bat 1 feel this is what we have heen up agnin-t all
the time, Somebody gets et and killed and people say. well, he
just fell over a elitt, Tle wasn't vealiy murdered. "This s the way
things go,

Senator Trersoxn, T understood My, Blatt was very friendly and
i= very friendly to the Negrogand T am amazed to hear what you =ay
about him,

My, Mirenrnn, 1 haven't. felt he was friendly when he came up here
~and testified ngainst the civil rights bill, ‘

Senator Tuermoxn, Mr. Blatt also said that the vegistrars helped
the people to register theve until after the time for closing. e kept
the oflico open for longer than usual in order to vegister everyhody,

Mo, Mircuni, After the Fedeml Government got after him, that
is vight, | | ‘ :

* senator Tnerasoxn, He also said at the time the office finally closed
there was no one there who wanted to register, He also saitl—and
the question was asked twice, if anyone wanted to register and that
no one said they wanted to register, There were no other people there
to register when the oflice finally closed after being kept open longer
than the usunl hours, ‘

After they finally closed vegistvation he says that a earload of peo-

e came up and said they had been denied the right to register, and
lm said that an FRI agent who was nearby =aid that that was not true,
that they had not been denied the vight to register. and they got the
impression that this carload of people waited wntil after the oilice had
closed and then came up and pretended they had been denied the right
to register, and that was when the FBI agent said that they had not
Licen denied the right to register, |

Now, that is Mr. Blatt’s statement and I shall try to get a written
statement. from him or have him come up in -person if you deny it.
Do yon deny his statement.? | ‘

My, Mrrenere, I am not going to answer that question that way.
1 will veaflirm what I have said In my testimony, and I offer to come
up here before this committee with Mr. Blaté to veaftirm what I have
said under-oath, T challenge him to do the smme thing and turn that
aver to whatever prosecuting agent thers is to indiet the giver of false
information “or porjury. ,

Senator Trursmoxn. 1 have just gotten word that Senator Brown
«aidd that he will be willing to prepare a statement and send up or
come himeelf. :

Mvr. Mirengrn, That would please me, |

Senator T'nuryoxn, 1 :‘«rhal\ request. the chaivman to allow Senator
Brown and Speaker Blatt to appear here as witnesses if they can come,
and if not, then to file their statements, Mr, Chairman, if that meets
with your approval.

(See Mr. hmwn':ﬁ statentent in the appendix.)

Mr. Mrrenern, T repeat my offer, Senator Thurmond, that 1 «till
stand by what T have said in this statement under oath.

Senator Thuvrmoxn. Now, T want to alzo gay that Speaker Blatt
says there wasno Klan rally at Bavnwell. ‘
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My, Mireneen, 1 was there, .

Semtor Trersoxn, Whatever kind of mally, it was at Swansea
rather than Barnwell on the way down vather than at Barnwell where
this registration was going on,

Mo Mrevcneee, Wello T will tell vou, Senatoy - -

Senator Taermaxe, Think well, now,

Me Morenpns, T am going to think welloand 1 always do, 1w not
an expert on the geography of South Carolina,

Senator Tuersmoxn, You weve in RBarnwell and yon suy there was a
Klan vally there. | want to know whether you stand hy that o net,

Mr. Mrrengnn, Tgot off a plane in Columbin, 1 holiove it was, Rev,
Newninn picked me up ina enrs A T understand it, that was the only
rond that you could use, and T saw with my own eyes a hig red hamor
of the Ku Klux Klan inviting evervone to the meeting, and T saw with
my own eyes various officials avound advertising it. T got a little flier
which said there was going to be n rally,

On the way back that night we had to come back that same road, and
weo grot to some community wheve, ax 1 said, these Klansmen wepe all
ont.in foree and in uniform. T saw that with my own eyes, ‘

AsTsaid, Tam not sufliciently expert,

Senator Trersoxn, Tam asking vou if the statement vou nnke that
there was a Klan rally at. Barnwell was corvect or if, upon veflection,
that could have been some other place and not where these people wero
registering? You give the impression that the Klan was intimidating
the people there to register and if the Klan vally was not even held at
the place of vegistration, then how can-—- o

M. Myrenzre., Let me veread this, The Negroes then staged a rogis-
ter and vote vally in an open field. At the snme time the Kn Klnx Klan
held a rally beside the main voad that the Negroes had to use going 10
and coming from the really, o

T didn’t say it was in Barnwell County, but. T conldn’t miss it- at
least T didn’t miss it on the way to the vallv, and T was told by onr
NAACP counsel, who was also with ns, that this was the only road that
vou could take to get from Columbia to the site where we held the rally
in Barnwell County.,

Of course, it is entirely possible that the connty line is 2 feet from
where we held the rally in Barnwell, The Klnan might have gone that -
2 feet and been in a different county, but georaphically and physieally
that didn’t make any difference. People could see them. '

Senator Trneryoxn, They weve there elose to the registration ?

My, Myrenven, T didn't sav the yegistration, T said the voter regis-
tration rally was held at a place where yon passed the Wlan in order
to wet to the open field in Barnwell County.,

Senator Tuvrmoxn, Now, Mr. Mitehell, think well. Now, as a
matter of fact, vou don't know, oy if vou do know-—that that allewed
rally was held in another connty, in" the next county which was 30
milesaway.

Me, Myveugrr, O, no, no, na. The fact i< that we passed throueh
ity whatever it is, and it was related fo the fact that we were down
there on the regicter and vote tally. You have the advantage of me,
of course, hecanse T am sure as a Senator from South Carolina von ‘
~know intimately the geography of the Stare of South Carolina. But
to a person who is faced with the Ku Klnx Klan holding o rallv, it
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doesn’t make any diffevence whether the rally is 2 feet away or 100
vards away, The faet iz that a rally was held and simultancously
with the register and voie mass voting which the NAACP was hold-
ing,

Nenator Tnersoxn, You were therve and saw it.

Mr Merengn, T was there,

Senator Tneryoxn That was a Sunday ¢

My Mrrengue, It was a Sunday.,

Senator Trursoxn, That was the day they were registering ‘lwuplo'f

Mr, Myvengr 1 did not say that I said that was the day the rally
was held, and the rally, incidentally, was held after all this,

Senator TrHerMoxn You gave me the im,mrminn that you were
~down there and Negroes were denied the right to register. Now you

say it was another day entirely. n |

Mr, Myrenern, T didn't say* Niggers,” T said #Negroes,”

Senator Tiuvrmoxn, Negroes, then.

Mr. Mrrcnrrs, In any event, the fact is that there have been a long
series of acts which denied these peaple the right to vote. They wero
on the phone almost every——- ‘ |

Senator Trermoxp, 1 am not speaking about any alleged—1 am
asking vouabout specific fucts that you mentioned,

Me, Mirenpn, l am talking about specitie facts, There were a long
series of telephone ealls from South Cavolina to me and from me
to the Justice Department in which we were heggaing the Justice
Department to send examiners down there in that county. The news-
papers were full of the stovies and T can supply those accounts, 1t
was only afier we had been insisting that something should be doue
that we held this rally for the purpose of letting the people know
that we were going to stick with them in their right to vote, That
wis the purpose of the rally, and of course it was held on a Sunday.
I didn’t say there should be any registration on Sunday or that they
have been denied the right to vote on Sunday. 1 said that there was
arally and that is exactly what happened,

Senator Tuersmoxn, Don’t you know that the people who go to
Barnwell to register would not go in the pext county and come haeck
into Barnwell to register? |

My, Mrrcnern, T don’t know where they would go.

Senator Tnersoxnp, That doesn’t make senze, and if anvone knows
~the geography as I know it he will know it doesn’t make sense,

My, Mrrengne, I think it makes sense that if you live there von
would register in Barnwell County. I also know there were a lot of
people there who were not from Barnwell Connty, They came from
all over, and T would assume many other areas were involved,

As a matter of fact, the Justice Department assigned examiners
to another county down there hefore they assigned the examiners
to Barnwell. ‘ '

Senator Trervoxp, Now, in your statement you urge the continua-
tion of the status quo, '

Mr. Mrrenvnn, Which page?

Senator Tuoryoxn, In your statement you urge this voting rights
hill of 1965 be continued. You urge the continuation of the status quo,
which is arbitrary and political punishment of a certain portion
of this country. If the Congress goes along with you on this that
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would mean that Negroes would be subjeet to literney tests in all
but a few of the States, Don't you have any concern for thos¢ Negroes
who may be diseriminated against in all of the other Staies of the
Union ¢ o

M. Mrevenere, Well, Senator, T am coneerned abont all people who
are denied the right to vote, no matter what their race,

Senater Tuveryoxp, Would you object to this hill being applied
pationwide, to every State!

Mre, Mucurn, May T answer yonr fivst question first. Lot me suv
that T asked for what page it was von had reference 10, and vou said
U was advoeating the statns quo. T realize yon are just distilfing that
out of my entive statement, : '

Senntor Tuvesoxp, The voting pights hill,

Me, Merenvr, 1T mav formminte it, T would cay we ae n-kine for
the continuntion of a voting rights statnie which has heen wonderfally
effective in getting people the vight o vote. ¥ owould say bt it i«
unfortunare on the part of the advoentes of the administyation hill
to pretewd that therve is ~omething wrong up in the State of New York
e the State of Maine where vou ondy have a handful of Negroes, wlieh
mnkes it necesaary now to come in and revise the voting rieht« Inw in
toway that wonld apply to the whole comtey, To be honest vith yon,
Senator, heeaw o it 1 the enlv wav T know how to be, it i~ clear that
this is being done by the Nixon administeation as the means of savine
‘o you--heeauce vou--heeanse vou left the Demoeratic Pasy cnd are
in the Republican Party-—that we are going to do thing the wav
Senator Thurmond wants them done. This ix a free eommtry, T don't
auaveel with the President for saving they ave going to ~tap i with vou
in vour approach to eivil vights matters, But T wonld sy that ‘the
Voting Rights At is a thing which has been made necessaryv by the
Kind of troubles that we have had in Sonth Cavolina. We lissven't had
those tronbles in Maine. We haven't had those troubles in New York.
It just doesn’t make sense for people to come in here— -

Senator Tuvesmoxn, 1 you would confiine your answer 10 what 1

Jasked vou it wonld save time,

I want to ask you this now: Do yon aseribe an nlterior mative ta the
Nixon administration in advocating that this bill apply nationwide to
all States and all people alike rather than to a continuation of a puni-
tive measure that applies to only a few States?

Me, Mrrengr, First. T would say the measure is pot punitive, It is
1 proper measure, It is legally covrect, 1 would say that vegardless of
whether the Nixon administration has an ulterior motive or not, a
disastrous result wonld follow if this Voting Rights Act were to
expire, 1 would say once we have extended the voting rights law,
then it seems to me all of th e noble objectives onght ta he adhered
to and we onght to see how they could beeome the law.,

Senator Trersoxn, You ean save a lot of time if you just answer
what we ask vou,

M. Mrrenenn., It is not possible.

Senator Trvryoxn., I realize yon arve on the podium and vou want
the television and all those other things, but we have got ather things
todo. \We want to get through. ‘

Senator Bavie If the Senator will yield. I think the witness is com-
pletely legitimate. 1 think the Senator is within his realm to pursue
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;his question, but 1 think it is totally unfair to -k the withess to
T

Senator Tovemoxn, Senntor Bayh wants the iwelighty tan, e is
running next vear, but that is not the guestion,

Senator Bayvn, Senator, Tdon’t run for 6 more yew -,

Senator Touemoxn, 1 beg your pavdon, 1t s the other Senator,
But youare getting ready when the time comes,

Senator Bavy, The Senator from Xonth Caroling deesn’t want the
limelight, |

Senator Tovemoxn, T will ask my questions and thea tie distin:
uished Senutor from Indiana can ask his questions,

Senator Bavi, 1 owill be glad to, hut T don’t wieet 1o sit werve and
deny the witness the right to defend himself.

Senator Tuvrsoxn, 1 am not going to deny this nam of any rights,
I have never tried to deny anyhody of any right. He has aoright 1o
answer gnestions, but at the same tie, there is no vse i groiige around
the world on every question asked him, |

Senator Bavi, That is a matter of interpretazion o to whether he
is going around the world, ’ o

M, Merenpne, May @ jnst interrupt and say this?

Semator Trersaxn, D haven't asked youa question. |

Meo Myeeenene, Nog I am just making an observation i o friedly
spirit.

[ ean say I understand from your point of view the way vou asked
me the question would undoubtedly support your argionent, From
my point of view T want to give an answer that will support my view.
I will always be that way.,

Senator Toersroxn, I think you have supported vony po-ition very
well.

Moo Myrcngre, Thank you,
~ Senator Toemroxn, Now, the witnesses who have appeared hefore

(his subcommittee have said if the present Iaw i» wlowed to die
natural death as the Congress intemlm‘l, then certainiy all Negroes now
registered and voting would be suddenly removed from vating status,
This reaxoning and this suggestion eannot stand up under examina-
tion. In South Carolina, and immediately prior to tie general election
“of 1968, there were 200,778 Negroes registered, In that election 1874806
votes were east for the Humphrey-Muskie ticket. 1t s evident based
on close observation of this election that most of the votes received by
the Democratic standard bearer weve east by Negro vaters. However,
the voters also voted for Jocal and statewide offices and may of the
~present. officeholders in Sonth Caroling, including the general assem-
bly, which is the lawmaking branch of the governient, which were
elected by all or a portion of the voters that voted for the national
Democratie ticket. :
To argue or even to snggest that politicians who weye eiected by the
Negro voters in South Carolina arve suddenly going to commit politieal
suicide by taking the vote away from their supporters i< blatently
absurd and politically untenable, - E
You should he knowledgeable in the avea of politic, Mr. Mitchell,
and T am surprised that the witnesses here have overlooked this ele-
wentary fact of politieal life, aven'’t you? ‘

Mr, Mirenet., No, siv: and T wonld like to eall to vour attention the

fact that in the city of West Columbia they arve trying to change the
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houndaries of the wards. In the vity of Clover they are tryving to con-
vert the election of district councilimen to councilmen at large, Tn the
ity of West Columbin they are trying to convert to conneilmen at lavge,
In Greenville they are trying to elect alderman on the at large basis,
To me, on the basis of my experience with South Carolina polities,
T would think that thisis being done for purposes of diluting the Negro
vote. But let’s assume it isn't, If it 10ty these people can come up and
present their side of it either to the Attorney General or to the court,
and then these laws will go into effect. But it is my opinion that in
South Caroling, on the hasis of what T know about that State—and
we have had a tervibly long fight with the State of South Cavolina, even
going hack to the time when you were Governor, to try to get the Neg-
roes their right to vote, That would be the— ‘ ‘
Senator Trvryoxm You know T have never taken any steps to deny
“any man the vight to vegister and vote if you know my record. T want
to say this, just what you said about the different towns and the way
they arve going to have their elections and so forth, that isu't it a mat-
terof fact that that is to comply with the ane man-one vote, something
that a lor of people do not agree with the decision at all? But if they try
tocomply withit, well, then they will he condemned.

My Mrrengnr, That may he, Al they have to do is come up and ex-
- plain what that is, Tt will vemove the suspicion; but you sep-—-

Senator Trermoxn. Tn vour statement you refer to the vecent victory
of Charles Fvers in Mississippi and that if the present act is not ex-
tended the Negroes ennmot get eleeted to ]‘mhliv‘nl%ivo. Let me point ont
to von that Negroes have ran in many elections in Sonth Carolina, and
in some cases they have heen elected and in some they have heen re-
jected. Just beeause n Negro doesn't got elected doesn’t mean they are
heing dizeriminated against, My, Mitchell. « . |

M, Mrrenern, Tt means he is heing diseriminated against if half
of his as~ociates who ave Negro ave denied the vight to vote. ‘

Senator Tuvreyoxp, Are you alleging that takes place in South
Carolina? o

Mr, Mrrengrr. T allege it may not be taking place now because of
the Voting Rights Aet.bnt up to the time—-— j :
- Senator Turrvoxn, Refore vou got the Votng Rights Act, ‘

Mr. Myrenerr, We could fill this voom with the vecord of the dis-
crimination in the State of South Carvolina, As a matter of faet, it was
South Carolina which was even denying Negroes the vight to register
and vore in the Democratic primary, As T remember, that was either
al. or near the time you were Governor,

Senator Treryoxn, Years ago it was a white primary. Tt was elosed
to the Negroes, and after it was opened——

Mr, Myrcuern, Only after we took it to court, ? |

Senator Troryoxn, T haven't heard where they diseriminated or
denied any Negroes the right to vote, ' '

Mr. Mrtongrr, They have. They took it to court.

Senator Tiroraroxn. Do you have knowledge of any people who have
been denied the right to register and vote? We will have them investi-
gated, We would like to know. And even what happened years ago.
If those things had been corrected—do yon want to continnally charge
a State and a people with any alleged injustice that occurred many
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_veal;\-s ?go? Why don’t you commend them for any improvenients they
make!?

My, Mrrengr, You weren't here when I was commending the State
of Mississippi for the improvements which I have personally ex-
perienced while I was down there in the city of Jackson, T am always
ready to cite the good things that have been done. T am ready to cite
the good things in the State of Sonth Carolina, But T aum not going to
be o blind and naive as to pretend that we haven't had one awful time
with the State of South Carolina and others just with the elementary
“effort. of the Negroes getting the vight to vote, South Carolina has
fonght us all the way, and they have been very worthy opponents. 1t
has been a good fight. But now that it appears we have won wa don’t
want to have a situntion develop whers the White House gives back to
South Carolina all the rights to discriminate that we have suceeeded
in wresting from them with the court action and the——-

Senator Tiuryoxnn, We ave not asking the White House to give us
“back anything. We are asking that South Caroling be given the same
treatment ns %ndinna, New York, Washington, D.C,, and every other

State, We ask them to be put on the same basis. We ave not on the same
basis now simply beeanse my State voted for Goldwater in 1964 and
the other States voted for Goldwater, This act was drawn to punish the
States who voted for Goldwater.

Nenator Ervin, Let. me interject, My State didn't vote for him.,

Senator Tueryoxp, Your State is under this act, isn’t it?

sSenator Enrvin, My State, ves, as much as they could get. under,

Senator Tuuvrsoxn, Well, anyway, T stand corrected in whatever
respect. the distinguished Senator from North Carolina says,

Now, we have heard testimony concerning why the so-called voting
rights should remain in effect. for 5 more years, ‘This act is nothing more
than a device ereated to inflict. political punishment upon one section
of the country and to promote it is to admit one supports this political
harassment in voter registration and participation in the clection
process. No evidence, much less any proof, has been submitted which
would justify the position that the advocates of the extension have
taken. 'i‘hm'e was an attempt by one witness to prove that discrimina-

“tion’ against Negro voters existed in South Carolina and certain
alleged evidence was cited in the publication of the Civil Rights Com-
mission, dated 1968, But upon examination of this so-called evidence,
it was discovered that it did not prove what it was introduced to

- prove, This publication, entitled “Political Participation,” is not the
most objective publication ever produced, and it attempts to indict
entire States by a few references to blatantly hearsay evidence which
is without verification,

The statistics cited in the book to prove that Negro population is un-
registered to vote, ave in the case of South Carolina, based on unofficial
19G4 newspaper accounts on figures published 2 years ago. These fig-
ures simply do not reflect. the situation and cannot be allowed as evi-
dence to support the argument that the present law should be
continned. ) ' | o ‘ )

There has been no evidence or proof of any case of discrimination

“against one trying to register or to vote. The reason there is nothin
before the subcommittee is simply because none exists, Even though
there have never been——

HTA0—T0 - O
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Senator Ervix, Would you preside? I have got to go, and then would
you recess until 2:307 I have got a luncheon engagement with some
North Carolinans. I am about 25 minutes lute,

Senator Tnormonn, There has never been u case of discrimina-
tion in my State,

It has been clearty demonstiated by political logic that the Negro
will not be disenfranchised in South Cavolina if the present Iaw is not
extended, and yet we must sufler the political platitudes of those who
have made statements that are exceeded in their lnck of accuracy and
factual content by their vote-getting appeal. Attempts have been made
to accuse and conviet Southern States without any evidence or proof.

I think it is clear, based on the record before us, that the advocates
of the extension of the present law have failed to carry the burden
of proof, and in fact have not oven made a prima facie case,

I want to say this: In my State the white population is 1,051,022
%x:oplo. That is about 55 percent, ¢5.1. The Negro population is 00—

his is the 1960 census-—829,201, 34.8 percent.

Now, the latest figures we have for registration are June 1, 1949,
less than a month ago, The Negroes registered to vote are 200,771,
The whites are 642,102, which is almost 29 percent. So the Negroes
~registered to vote are almost in proportion to the same percentage

as the Negro population is to the white population of the State,

I know of no one that is denied the right to vote. We don’t deny
people the right to vote in South Carolina. We don't want to deny
them the right to vote, We want everybody to vote. We think it is
their duty to vote if they are qualified to vote. We think it is very
unfair and very unjust to place South Carolina in the position to be
scorned at with an indication that you are discriminating. |

The only reason we are under this law is about 48 percent of the
~people voted out of these registered, If 50 percent. voted we wouldn't be
under this law. There is no discrimination alleged back then. But the
law as it is now is just and this law should cither be repealed entirely,
and T assure you that insofar as South Carolina is concerned, the
Negroes will be allowed to vote, ‘

Mr. Mrrcuerr., Senator, may I just say this: 1 think that. it is im-
portant for the record to show that I am aware of the fact that we ave
1rreconcilable opponents in this matter, T have had the interesting
experience of heing present when you filibustered all night against
the 1957 voting rights act, and T am aware of your concept, as pub-
lished in one of the publications out of your office, about the validity
of the 13th, 14th, :mg 15th amendments and things of that sort. T say
that merely to recognize that we are opponents who could never agree
on the interpretation of the same set of facts on voting in South
Carolina. | o | ‘

So T would simply say for the record that T am in total disagree-
ment with your formulation, T think the 1965 act is a magnificent
law, Tt is my helief that if it is allowed to expire the State of South
Carolina will revert to its previons practices, and I appeal to the
Xation not to-he put in a position of pretending that it is going after
diserimination in Maine where it doesn’t exist and do something that
will not enable us to reach the problems in South Carolina where they
have existed and will exist nnless we have this Iaw, -
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“Senator Tuvryoxp, Again, 1 challenge you to get up the names of
people in the 1964 clection who were denied the right to register and
vote if you cando so. )

Now, I want to sny this: 1 must say I was surprised that yon made
this statement today, although I don’t agree with you, 1 have respect
for your personality us an individual,

My, Myrenes, Thank you,

Senator Trremoxp. I was surprised to hear you say that if Negroes
are hundicapped in registering that you would favor breaking down
the conrthouse door and vegistering them anyway. ,

Mz, MitengLr. No, I didn't say it quite that way, although it could
be interpreted that way, ‘

Senator Tuuvemoxp. I have always considered you a lawful man and
that you wanted to follow the legal process, | ,

© M. Mrrenen. In the situations that I diseussed the conrthonse deor
“had been locked and if the Government of the United States wounld

not provide a remedy by continuing this statute there would be
‘Negroes who would break down the door in order to be able to get in

to vegister, ‘ ‘

Senator TrrrMoxp, You said you would favor doing that ?

Mr, Mirenen, I conld not blame them,

Senator I'nurMoxn, You said you favor doing that ?

Mr. Myrenery, I that is the way vou interpret it, T would,

Senator Truryoxp, Now, is that still your position? Would you
still favor breaking down the courthouse door and registering people,
or would you favor going about it in a legal way?

~ Mr, Mirenen, I would say that we have always in the NAACDP
favored the legal approach, That is the veason why we are here ask-
~ing for the continuation of this law, But, if in addition to the lawless-
ness of the State of South Carolina which deprives us the right to
vole, the Government of the United States were to become a partner
in that lnwlessness and permit a vegistrar to block the doors to keep
us from registering mull voting, then T would think you certainly
“couldn’t blame people if they shoved open the door to get in, and I
- wonld say that I believe you would do that, N

1 believe if they tried to say to you in the Senate of the United

States that you could not enter that Chamber for some reason T think
“you would not stand there on ceremony. I think you wonld go on in
there regardless of who was trying to keep you out.

‘Senator Tueryoxp, Thank you, Mr, Mitchell.

Now, I understand the next witness—-—

Senator Bayn. Mr. Chairman, T have not asked the witness any
uestions. T «at here very patient iy for the first time in 7 years in the
enate. I had one of my colleagues accuse me, when I disagreed with

him in good faith. of playing to the television cameras, which is

quite contrary of the courtesy of my senior Senator from South Caro-
lina. But I think I should be allowed—
~_ Senator Tuormoxp, Well, T think you know the spirit in which
that was said.

Senator Bavu, Quite frankly, I don’t think the Senator meant it in
the spirit which probably was naturally inferred.

Senator Tirrryoxnn, T did not intend to impugn the motives of the
‘Senator from Tndiana. T will eay this, T have got to get to the flonr.
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Senator Brvin asked me to continue. I will turn the hearing over
to him. |

‘There is one more witness who wishes to testify, the Liberty lobby.
1 don?’t; know whether they will wish to come back. Could you hear
them

Senator Bavir, T will bo glad to. Counsel tells us we ave going to have
very full questions. o -

Senator Trunsoxp, Senator Bayh is willing to stay here, The wit-
nesses for Liberty Lobby, dothey wish to proceed ov——

Senator Bavin Mre. Chaivman, T will be glad to sit here and listen to
this witness until sueh time as we might be called to the floor,

Tomorrow we have the Attorney General of the United States tes-
tifying. It is going to take all day. T will be glad to sit here,

Senator Treemoxp, If T understand, Senator Ervin is willing to
come back and will come back to hear any other witnesses after lunch,
So if you will continue, if you wish, with this witness and then ad-

journ at 2 o'clock and then let Senator Frvin take over with the next
- witness-—-2 30 T understand. L

Senator Bavi, T would like to chieck with Senator Ervin in the
meantime. 1t is my judgment and also the elerk’s that he wonld vather
proceed and get this over with, Tt isabout 1:30. |

1 don’t mind going without lunch.

Senator ‘Turrmosn, Well, that is not the question. Senator Frvin
will have to make that decision, o

Senator Bavi, Maybe wa can proveed with these witnesses while we
get hisopinion,

Senator Tuuvrsoxn, You can proceed, and these witnesses, I will
ask them if they want to come back after lunch or follow them.

‘Senator Bavn. Since when are witnesses given prerogative over
Members of the Senate? ' N
~ Senator Trroryoxp. Well, it is lunchtime and we generally stop at
1. We have gone to 1:30 now, and 1 don’t see any use in trying to push
people around. |

Senator Bavu, T think that is what is being done.

Senator Tuvrmoxn, You are sayving that ix what Tam doing?

Senator Bavi. I will not make the same mistake. I do not make that
inference, but T do want to sea this measure proceed with full dispatch.

- T want to sea these witnesses testify. | N

Senator Tuurymoxp, We will solve it this way: When you finish
with this witness the Liberty Lobby can come back, unless Senator
Ervin changes that. ‘

Senator Bavi. If Senator Ervin wants us to terminate it right now
that is fine with me, but I hope that is not his wish.

Senator Truryoxn. I will give them a chance to come back ut
2:30 until Senator Frvin dirvects that the hearing go ahead.

Senator Bayi. Mr, Mitchell and Mr. Rauh, let me say I for one ap-
preciate the patience that you have exhibited, which is characteristic
of other times when you have testified not. only before this committee
and others, and you have always been very helpful. :

Tt has been this Senator’s observation that although you have not al-
ways agreed with some of your interrogators, you have tried to
.direct your answers to questions and tried to paint the picture as
you saw it : |
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My, Mitehell, T would like to Pm‘smmllv congratulate you on receiv-
ing the NAACP Spingarn Medal vecently which was given as we all
know, to the outstanding member of your race who has made the most
sigmificant. aecomplishments in 1 year. T would like to ask some ques-
tions, hecanse T t}\ink rerhaps at this stage of the game the questions
might have lead a bit far afield as far cs what we are trying to accom-
plish in extending the 1965 Voting Rights Act, o

The inference was made--not unique to this set of questioning—was
made yesterday that some sinister effort was made to try to incorporate
within the provinee of this net all those States that were Jisted in_the
Goldwater column in 1964, You were in on much of the planning,
“and certainly the testimony, and know the basis, the thought process
hehind this, |

Did you hear this expressed inany way back in 10657

Mr, Mrrengit. Never, Senator Bayh., The problem that we faced
wis very simple, o

In 1057 we tried to corvect voting discrimination with a statute.
That was not suflicient, :

Tn 1960 the proposa! was made by My, Rauh, who is with me, and
by Members of the House and Senafe that we onght to try to set up a
svstem in which we wonld have examiners appointed by the executive
Branch of Govervient to register oy rather determine qualifications of
voting and then give those names to the regulay State registrars in
“order that these people, their qualifications, having been ascertained,
could vote. We were not suecessful in getting that incorporated imo
the law, |

Instead, there was incorporated a provision under which a court,
after hearing all of the evidence, conld exercise its prerogative and
appoint referees for the purpose of registering voters, The courts did
not-take advantage of that part of the law. ‘

They were very slow, so that instead of getting a sizable impact on
voting, we got only a trickle, - ‘

Then it was that the Congress, after seeing that the previous statutes
were not adequate, decided that it would try the formula that is used.
~ Never in all of the meetings that. T attended or all'of the hearings that
were held was there anvthing that even remotely related to the Gold-
water eampaign. - | o

Senator Bavu. Do yon veeall the type of support you had in 19652
Would it he faiv o sav that it was strong bipartisan support from hoth
Democrats and Republicans on this measure, on the major thrust of all
who supported it ? |

Me. Mirener, T would eertainly say that, Senator Bayh. This was
a pieco of legislation as near to being unanimously supported in the

Congress that any piece of legislation conld be, and not.only did it have
the support of able persons like yourself who worked out of great con-
viction all across the hoard, but even some of the skeptics who were
not in favor of giving the Negroes the right, say, to go into a restan-
vant or to live in 2 hense of their choicee favored the 1965 act.

These people were in favor of giving them the right to vote.

As T say, it was as near to being & unanimous bipartisan statute as
we could possibly get. in the Congress. ‘

Senator Bayn. Thank vou. That was my observation, but 1 think
all of our ohservations can’t help but be covered a little bit by our
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have miz-ed the mark as far as ohjectivity is concerned,

There has been some discussion that now that the measure huas bheen
“passed—it has been in effect for 4 years—why should we use the 1064
standards, why shouldn’t we have new standard: an ~tart out from
the 1964 elections on force?

Could vou give mo your suggestions, or Mr, Rauh’

Mv. Mrreuere, 1 would yield to M, Rauh.

My, Ravu, Senator, you have to use the 1984 hasis, hecause what
does it prove if people lived up to the 1965 law? The only basis you
‘have for determining which States are likely to utilize literncy tests
and other devices to prevent people from registering and vofing is
“the 1064 situation, The 1908 situation is to a high degrve an artificial
situation created by a law under which examiners wenr in and other
methods such as abolishing tests were used to get registration,

What sets apart the States that ave covered was not GQoldwater;
- what sets them apart was the long record of violations of law that you
had for years, really from the Civil War (0 1084, You eannot ‘get
away from 1964 as vour base,

T think that My, Mitchell's magnificent performance this morning
in )})ointiug out just how bad the situation hefore 1984 actually was
is the best possible proof that you have got to use the 1964 figuves to
determine where the problem is,

That_is all we are doing. That is all the 198! tizrures do. They
~determine where the problem is. From there on, if there are no vio-
lations, the law isn't going to hurt anybody,

I wish it were as simple as Senator Frvin and Senator Thurmond
~ made it, that there is no discrimination, There is no violation of law,
then. either. | ‘ : A
- Senator Bavu, This gets us into the general avea of whether the
1965 act has accomplished results or not, T take it that you gentlemen
assume that thero are suflicient results: (1) the law permits regist ra-
tion: and (2) to remove it would perhaps cause a regress whiel would
orode the progress already made as well as prevent further progress

from being made, | \ ‘
“Mr. Raou. I think that is right, '

Mr., Mitchell and I have been through each of the voting rights
laws. This probably was the greatest success as far as results were
concerned. This was the one that worked, ‘

T think it might rival public accommodations. but this voting bill
wa= at least as great a success as any we have had in the field of
civil rights, To change one whit from this suecess would <scem to us to
be a disastrous move—either not to extend it or ta weaken it in anv
way like the administration bill does. '

Senator Bavi, Let's look for a moment at what vou judge to be the
progress, There are contained in the report of the Commission on
Civil Rights that you are familiar with statisties—T refer ro pages 222
and 225—registration by State, all connties, 1960 voting age popula-
tion, preact registration, nonwhite, 1,580,634 : nonwhite, postact regis-
tration, 2,810,763,

- Now, theve has been considerable reference to the fact that this is the
result of people becoming 21 years and older. What is vour judgment
about. this? : o
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Mr. Ravu. Well, it is nonsense, Senator, Take Mississippi as the
best example, We, at the 1064 Democratic. Convention, wore arguing
for the seating of a largely Negro delegation. We had the fucts as of
thut moment. Only 6 gercent‘ of the Negroes in Mississippi were
registered and today 60 percent of the Negroes of Mississippi are
registered. How anybody could suggest that that is a coincidence,
that for 100 years we had gotten up to & pereent and then in 4 years
we get to 60 percont, to say that isa coincidenco I just think is nonsense.

Obviously it is this statnte and this statute alone that has done it.
" Tor example, in the worst places in Mississippi they sent examiners,
In the worst places in South Carolina they sent. in examiners. These are
%{‘o(doml oflicials who did the job, put the people on the registration

ists, | |

"To suggrest that these Federal officials had nothing to do with it just
cannot be correct, and T can’t honestly believe that any of ﬂ’leso'
estimable gentlemen that were questioning Mr, Mitchell really believes
that everybody got registered suddenly just by some shift in population.

You know, if thero is no other available reason for n change, the one
that. is suggested, such as the law; can usually be counted on as being
the real reason. No one has suggested how it happened exeept for the
Inw : therefore, I think the law did it.

Mr. Mrrengnn, Senator, could I just make this observation with
respect to the county that T was referring to in South Carolina, Barn-
well Clounty, |

When wo had the problem in Barnwell County there were, I think,
two other counties in South Cavolina which had similar problems, and
the Justice Department. made an administrative decision_to send
the oxaminers to those other counties first rather than to Barnwell

County. Tt is my recollection that the Justice Department made
that decision because the Department thought that l‘l-ha local people
wonld cooperato and wonld register Negroes if they were told, well, we
have got t‘m waods on vou and let's see you try to straighten this out
with vour lacal machinery. : | | | o

Rut the local people didn't do that. Therefore, it was necessary to
put Federal examiners in there, | |

" Qenator Bavit, That was in Barnwell Count y ? - : L

Mr. Mirenerr., Yes, where they finally eventually had to put one in
there. T would say this was a pattern by the Department of JTustice

“in the handling of this statute, They had tried always to give the
States the maximum opportunity to cooperate, and when the States
did not. they then assigned examiners and then when we get the peo-
ple registered-—

" Senator Barn. Now, I think this goes to another point in vour
testimony which T addressed to Mvs, Freeman of the Civil Rights
Commission yesterday. \

You refer to—I think you used the terminology—“quict but deter-
mined offort which is being made by Negro citizens thronghout the
South to try to work within the confines of the lnw.” This would infer
that the law creates a better environment, that. it creates an atmos-
phere in which Negro citizens feel they can achieve justice and get
the rights that are theirs. |

"It seems to me—without phrasing my question that way—do you

feel that this is a factor, that the whole matter of law and order and
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peace and hnnqmlxh i aided and abetted by this lnw which gives fo

the black citizenssome hope of getting equal treatment ?
Mr. Mrrenery. I certainly do, Senator Bayh, and this is very serions.

- You sce,-in trying to register the vote in tho Scmth the Negroes have
- heen deprived of “their 10b= they have hpon rlopvued of their homes,
“and some of them have béen ]\ll]nﬂ

So that to them, thisisa very serious matter.

In-all the vears that T have been with the NAACP T have tm:n«l'
_that those peop]v have constantly looked to Washington for mmwl\.

We finally got that remedy from Washington. We are mnl\m«v it

- work by nrofhnn' people elected to-office and bv partlmpatnw in politi-

cal conventions and things of that sort. So'T think more and more

~ they are reaffirming their :conviction that you can get a remedy by
' ’mnm\'nm n lawful process, Tt we take that away from them it.is not
: })occnblo ‘to know what those neOple would do, beeause, aﬁer all, we

1aye a firm conviction that the law is important.
But lt geems to me it would he surrending to those fm'(-m that CHRY
the law is no good, don’ 't rely on the courts, don’t mlv on the Congaress,

@o ont and hmn things down hoc.mco thaf i« the nnl\ way you' ean

aet vesults. :

T think ‘that all of us who 1'oallv behevo in the demovmhr- proeess
who.want to keep this country moving forward have a sacred obliga-
tion to see to it that this law is continued, to see to it that I(’ wm‘k~ =0
we do not surrender to Hmse who would resort to nnm'o]w m m'dm' to

Cgot the result. Because in my md;rmenf the path of anarchy is an

unaceeptable and disastrous way of doing thins,
Senator Bavir. T think those of us who—let’s say those who would

stand in the way of the progress which Jmc heen made, not only in
‘this areéa but in ‘other areas in the lnst "L oror6 vears, are going to

have to bear the consequences.

T hope these consequences don’t come to pass. It is ]11\0 seeing the

light. at thé end of the tunnel. You can see the light and p]ot vour
- way, hut if somebody closes the tunnel you lose your way.

\q far as ln'e,ljmw dm\ n the conrthouse door, you w ouldnt blame
them A :

=M Nrrenern, Thatois vight, - ’ f ’

Senator Bavie. T have two niore qulok questions,

You have been very patient. ‘

The provisions of S. 2307, of conrse. wonld make apphmhle the
law to all 50 States plus the District: of (*nhnnhm T would like to
address {qnmtmn to Mr. Raub,if T might, _

T want to ask Mr. Rauh to be thinking a moment. if \Qll will, 'Ihss

benefit of your thoughts as a lawyer as to what chqnges would really
ocer hetween the (]mnrrc in the pl'osent act_and the Nixon proposal.

- who-woulid lose author lf\'. avho would gain it. what in your judement

Wou]d be the impact of that new law if we went ahead with that?°
- Before we oef. to that, as one-of the -leading spokesmen of vour

"race and an official of the NAACP, having been: in the middle of this

caldron for a. number of years, ]mvm«r been responsible for many of the
recoimhendations that are contained Terein as well as other doctinieits,

~when a complaiiit. exists I suppose-that the N AACP soon finds out

about. it?
~ Mr. Mchnnm,. That is true

-
°

' . -

~will he an -entirely new concept. T wonld like for you to give us the -
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Senator Bavi, What type of complainis as far as voting rights
have yonu had and have vou forwm'(‘ml to the Justice Departinent
these other 33 States and the District of Columbin?

My, Mrrenrin, We have not had any complaints that yon could
fairly say on their face vevealed racinl discrimination in voting rights,
We have had problems where various politien] operators do things
not hecause Negroes were involved, but. because they thought that
the increased vegistration of Negroes would take away from them
some of their political power,

No they reavranged districts by gerrymandering, and T think in the
State of Indiana there was a ense which involved the city of Gary
where some people had tried to put white people on hooks who
shouldn’t bhe on t\m books as a means of trying to keep a Negro can-
didate from winning. But there has not been the sustained State sane.
tion of strong-urm enforcement as a result of Negro efforts to vote in
the States of Maine, New York, Californin, and others where the
ndministeation seeks to apply this law.,

Senator Bavn. Is it flﬂir to say in none of these ather cnzes have
vou hwen able to find a consistent pattern which is solid enough to
merit a conclusion?

Mr. Mrrengrn, T would say that is very true, Senator Bayh, In my
judgment, wo would want to see the maxnnum opportunity for every-
boady to vote,

If literney tests are impediments to anybody, white, green, or red,
we wonld want to see that done. But to pretend it is necessary to ex-
pand this law to include Maine and New York hecanse we are going
to protect. the right of Negroes to vote is so incredibly absurd that
it i= hard to believe that veasonable people wounld come up here with
that kind of an argument,

I think it is a great disservice to the country for the Attorney Gen-
eral and the administration to do this.

It iy opinion—and T say this with some sorrow—-that the admin-
istration was confronted with a political promise, and it is endeavorin
to keep that political promise first and thereafter trving to justify it
on a legal basis, So that it really amounts to an absurdity. T just wizh
thev hadn't. done it, ‘

Now that they have done it, T hope they will be sportsmen enough to
- sav, all vight, we will take an extension of the present. voting rights law.

One that becomes law, then we will come back and talk about. all these
other things, Tf they do that, we are on the same team, trying to get
the same results. ‘ ‘ ‘
But. what they are doing now is trying to create a situation where
we will wind up with nothing, and the Negroes will not have any kind
of protection in the right to vote, ,
senator Bavu. Ts it fair to say that yon would be willing to accept
“the program or law, then, that would do more than perhaps we nre
able to do to guarantee you that whenever there is diserimination for
any eause, be it black or white, Republican versus Democrat, liberal
versus conservative, that. this is done away with, but you don'’t want
to ~ee the present resources which are limited, dissipated in such a way
-that we cannot continue the programs being made in those aveas where
the problems are greatest? Y s
My, Mirenerrn, That is exactly what 1 think.
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Sevator Bavi. Where will we goin 8. 25071 .

Mr, Raun. Senator Bayh, 1 would like to seperate that into two
questions, I think that is what you have in mind. .

The first. point is the one Mr. Mitchell answered—namely, S. 2507 is
not. a possibility. The cffort to get. S, 2507 will mean that there is no
law, and wo will lose the extension of the Voth Rights Act of 1065,
I agreo with everything Mr, Mitchell says on that. ‘

Without going into the motivations of the ndministration in sending
up this bill, certainly its result wonld be no bill at all, But I take it
that is not the veal question you are uskmfg me. . ‘

The question to me is what does S. 2507 do to the existing law in the
States in which it is applicable. I was going to say, as I was sittin
here thinking about. the question you mentioned fittlo carlier, tha
S, 2007 guts the Votin ‘lltights Act of 1965, That might be a liitle
stronger than it should be, and T want to get the thing absolutely
precise. S, 2507 very badly weakens the 1065 law, and it may approach

utting,
g First, S. 2607 leaves ont. completely section 5 of the Voting Rights
Act of 1065, That section is as important almost as any scction in the
existing law, Section 5 prevents a State or a subdivision, under the
iise of changing rules that look innocent, prevents them from using
those innocent. devices—I think you referred to them earlier—from
using those innocent. devices to take nway Negro rights,

For example, changing the electornl areas so you will avoid a
voting pattern where n Negro could be elected, changing from elective
to appointive officials, all of these things that the Civil Rights Com-
mission documented so well last year all would just go through like a
hot knife through butter if S. 2507 became law.,

What stops these things now is they have got to come for approval
to the Attorney General or the district. comt here, people who are
svmpathetic to civil rights, That. wouldn’t happen nu(‘nr S. 2507,
Under S. 2507 the Attorney General each time would have to get the
facts, start a suit. in hostile territory, and in all probability the election
would be over by the time he could get a decision,

The Attornev General was very frank about this. He said, “Let’s
~ reverse the burden of proof.” I don’t think in this area, where we have
had so much wrengdoing, that you can afford to reverse the burden
of proof. So I would say, No. 1, taking out section 5 would he a
disaster, and that is what S. 2507 does.

Senator Bava. All right. If you are going to go on to the section,
you direct that question at section 5. | |
~ The AZlen case, as T recall, deals with the right of an individual to
bring the suit, Do yon think that would he changed by removing
st:octim; 5 and changing the burden, or wonld an individual still have

o sue
~ Mr. Ravun. He might have the right to bring suit, but it would be a
very fragile right, If he brought a suit down in Mississippi agninst a
~ change in the houndaries in which the voting occurred and he had
to go and get all the proof that that action was motivated racially.itis
 aright academically but it is not a practical right.

~ The way this is enforeed now is simply the practical way of stoppin

action aimed at Negroes. It is the only way that you can get this l:'mg
“of enforcement. The very fact that there is some considerable hostility
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from the States that have done the discriminating is the best proof
of its cfficiency. ) L

Senator Bayn, One other question about section 5, and that is di-
rected at what happens to the Negro voter while the case is being
pursued? As I understand it, under the present section 8, while the
caso is being pursued, the issues being adjudicated, the voter in ques-
tion gets to votey whereas if that were not the case the voter would be
taken off the rolls during all that Yeriod, which conld very conveniently
occur just: prior to an election; is that your assessment of that{

Mr, Ravn, Precisely. T would say that the voter might not be taken
off the ralls literally, He might be effectively taken off the rolls by a
device. 1f you suddenly threw in a whole white area to outvore the
Negroes, you may in effect bo taking the Negro off the rolls, I am not
suggesting that they would be able 'pmcticnllv to take everybody off
the rolls in this intérvening period, but it could have the sune effect.

For example, supposs you changed from an elective office to an
appointive oflice. You in effect take the man off the rolls even though
vou don’t actually seratch his name from the registration. That would
go on through the whole period when you were lm;ir(ntmg.

Now, it works the other way. They cannot make the change while
they are litigating. It is exactly that fact that makes section 5 one
of the most or even maybe the most important part of this Civil Rights
Act of 1965,

Then, going to the second point, T am not even sure the administra-
tion is clear on thig, and T want to be fair to them. I do not think in
S, 2507 we have an unreviewable right to put in examiners. Under
the present law, when the Attorney General sends in examiners, that
is unreviewable in the courts. So you get it quickly, efficiently.

Under 8, 2507 1 don’t believe that the sending in of examiners hy
the Attorney General is unreviewable. Tn section 5 of S. 2507 it
does say that section S of existing law is amended as follows: “A
determination of the Attorney General under this section shall not be
reviewable in any court,” but that section deals with observers, T am
rather inclined to think that as the law is drafted the courts would
hold that S. 2507 permits review of sending in examiners. This was
one of the most fundamental things in the Voting Rights Act of 1965—
that the Attorney General had an unreviewable right to send in the
examiner. You had tomove fast and you sent in a civil service employee.
The examiner took the registration of the people and they ot on
the registration rolis.

It seems to me that S, 2507 would permit that determination 1o he
reviewed in the local courts. Whether that was the intention of the
Attorney General T can't say, but I don’t see how a reasonable man
can read S. 2507 any differently.

Senator Bayn. Do you feel the unreviewable vight that is granted

dealsonly with observers? ‘ )
My, Ravar, That is the way the statute is set up. T would say vou
might want to ask the Attorney General if he ren!{y meant to make it
that way. I would say you have a chance to ask the Attorney General
tomorrow whethier he really meant that vesult. -~

‘But I would suggest to you that he wounld have a havd time showing
that it didn’t mean that. Maybe he would like to change it. T only say

thatas it is drafted that problem is very much in the situation.
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Third, S. 2507 repeals seetion 41, Seetion 4F is the provision that
a sixth grade education is adequate for literacy in areaz of Ameriean
flng ~chools, It was the Robert Kennedy-Jack Javits' amendment. on
behalf of the Puerto Ricans. The point, of course, was that a lot of
them had bheen educated in Spanish-speaking schools, and it wasn't
quite fair to hold them to the same standards as people educated in
kn;zlish-spwkiug schools, both ¢{ them being U8, schools,
Senator Bavis, Plus in most of the areas in which they resided, as I
recndl—if you will excuse me—publications are in their own language
and in which they had the opportunity to hear the election and all
issues adequately debated in a language in which they were fluent,
M. Raou. Precisely.
The administration snys, well, we did away with all literacy tests o
there is no problem, But their hill is for a very limited period. Tn
other words, this seetion 41 won't go baek into eftect when the literacy
test ban of S, 2507 expives,
What yon have here is a permanent repeal of the protection for the
Spanish-speaking population with no assurance that, even if you pass
S, 2507 at the end of 1973 you would either have a further ban on the
literacy test or that yon would go back 1o ~ection {E. They have
thrown away rvights that we have won and without protecting them
for the future,
One thing Mr, Mitchell has taught me is never give up anything in
this civil rights fight, because you ean't tell when you wil\ need it, Very
often T would say to him when we were lobbying for things in the
past, T would say, “Oh, I don’t think that makes any difference.”
He wonld ray, *Well, you ean't he sure, zomeday vou may he using
that provision.” Tt tnrms ont to be tene, Some of the things in the earlier
laws we felt were no longer needed have turned out to he useful, T hate
to give up 41 just to do away with all literaey tests for a Bited
period.
Fourth, S. 2507 completely repeals seetion 4.\, and thiz means that
the provision under which the courts would ordinarily retain jurisdic-
tion in cases like the Gaston County case wounld no longer be in effect.
Now, this again might not make any immediate problem for us, but
what if Congress passed S. 2507, but then the Congress in 1978 doesn’t
extend the literacy test ban. Then you are back without any of the
advantages of the Gaston County case.
Now, the Gaston Qounty case is very important, What it holds in
effect is that if a school area had run segregated schools with the
schools for the Negroes less good than the white schools, then obvious-
Iy it is discrimination to have a literacy test.
_ Everybody is talking about that case, saying it is very vevolutionary.
T don’t think it is vevolutionary. T think obviously. if one has a poorer

education than anybody else, the literacy test discriminates against
- the man with the poorer education.

What 8. 2507 does, like in the Spanish-speaking situation, it throws
this «afeguard away so that if you don’t continue the han on literacy
in 1973 you won't have the advantage of the Gaston County decision.

Now, those are four of the most ohvious defects in X, 2507 a< con-
cerns its amendments to the Voting Rights Aet in the States where it
ap}:ﬁlios. o S | , ‘

T want to reiterate that all apart fean these matters it is a mistake,
as Mr, Mitchell pointed out, to mix up extension of what we have in
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time with extension in geography. We ought to be able to go ahead and
settle the extension in tUme of what we have now and then go on to the
extension in geography where S, 2507 wonld he helpful.

For myself, T can say flatly Tam agminst the literaey test anywhere,
If this comes up next vear, I would like to be up here testifying for the
constitutionality of bayring the literacy test. in any place, But 1 can-
not now see the extension n time of the Civil Rights Act. of 1965 de-
feated beeanse of all of these geographic extensions, They arve not
feasible in this Congress, We necd the time extension now, We need it
this vear, Obviously there wre o many complieations with the geo-
graphieal extension, 3 attorneys genernl of 50 States coming in here
telling us what is wrong, But even on the narrowest point that yon
asked me the question of how does 8, 2307 affect existing law, my
answer is that it dangeroasly weakens it and it may be possible to sy
although 1 don't want to overstate it—that it borders on gutting it.

Senator Bavn, Thank you very much,

Gentlemen, you have been very patient,

Suppose you gentlemen ean get n sandwich in half an honr, T have
been advised Senator Frvin would like to ask some further questions,

We will recess until 2:30, We will hear those who didn’t have a
chaneo to testify, the Liberty Lobby:,

('T'hercupon, at 2:00 pan., the committee recessed, to reconvene at
2:30 p.m., the same day.)

APTERNOUGN SESsION

Senator Ervix. The Civil Rights Commission yesterday offerved fig-
ures which showed that in the 11 Southern States there are 4,304,735
whites in the South of voting age, not vegistered, and 1,904,100 Negroes
of voting age, not. rogistered.gf‘his was supposed to show that those
1,904,100 Negroes of voting age not wgisterod were not registered he-
cause of discrimination, but the 4,304,735 whites who were not regis-
tered were not registered for other reasons. '

Now, I don’t aceept. that illogical logic, beeanse T think that these
4,394,735 whites not registered were largely not registered because, just
like the old brown mule, they just didn’t give a damn about. it.

T am of the opinion that the 1,000,000 Negroes who were not regis-
tered were not registered for the same reason.

Mr., Mircnern. I could only fall back on my old statement that T
made carlier today, which is really something I have taken out of your
lexicon, Senator Ervin, and that is it is diflicult to go inside people’s
heads and find out what is the reason why they do things if they t{ml't

‘ %enntor Ervix. But in one ease you don’t hesitate to go inside their
heads to find out what their motive was, ) _

Now, there are some right interesting things, while we are on the
subject of the logic of the situation, ‘
~ According to the theoretical wording of this statute, it applied to
" the Northern States just like it did to the Southern, And it would have

so applied, Imt the Department of Justice was very quick to consent
‘to dismissing the Northern States from it. This is right interesting.
Let me quote: ‘ . o o

First aud foremost, it 1s clear that Negro voting in most Deep Sduth coun-
ties subjected to both literacy test suspension and on-scene enrollment by Fed-
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eral registrars is aow higher than Negro vote participation in the 2hettoes of the
two Northern cities, New York and Los Augeles, where Hreraey tests apre st in
use.

Across the Black Belt of the Deep Sonth 50 (o 6 percent of eligible Negroes
are typically registered in counties where Hweracy tests were suspended and to
which Federal examiners and observers may be sent, This contrasted with much
lower Hgures for New York City where registration and enrollment rise have
proved unsuceessful in the fuce of liters, y test obstacles,

Cousider the 1968 voter turnout In New York ghettoes, In the core ghettoes of
Harlen, Bedford-Stuyvesunt, the south Bronx and Brownsvllle, Ocean City, five
near!y all-Negro assembly districts, the 85th, the 56th, the G7th, the T7th, the
TSth, cast an average of ouly 18000 voites In 1S, despite 1000 census eligible
voter numbers of 45,000 to 55,000,

On an average less than 25,000 votes were registered in these districts. Ar in-
dicated, New York and California are the ouly two big city 8tates with heavy
Negro populations and with lteracy tests, and Negro voter participation is
lower than the participation in other big cities and States where Negro voting s
unthinpered by tests,

Aveapdingly, statistics from such districts may be used to compare New
York and Californin Negro vote turnouts with those of the other States. In the
U Northern big city Stes, Massachuretts, New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania,
Ohie, Michigun, Hliuols, Missourl, nnd California, there were only 10 Congres-
sfomad Distrlets where less than 100,000 votes were cast for Congress in 1908
Of the Y, one was in Callfornin and 8 were in Now York., These districts were
the 23t Calitornia, the 110 12th, 13th, 15th, 19th, 20th, 21st, and 22d New York,
which ineluded most or part, of all the major Negro ghetto areas, Watts, Harlew,
Browusville, Ocean Hill, Bedford-Stuyvesant and the South Bronx.

Tu the fargely Negro Watts Congressionnl Distriet of California, the 21st, only
03,000 persous voted In 1908, less than half the turnout tun the average white
Congressional Distriet. These statistics illustrate a prima facle relationship be-
tween Northern Hteracy tests and ghetto Negro nonvoting, but it is possible to go
a step further,

In 1468 the two Congressional Districts In the Nation with the lowest turnont
were not In the Deep South, They were smack in the heart of New York's black
lterney test handicapped ghetto, The two districts were the 12th Bedford.
Stuyvesant and the 1Sth, Harlem,

In 1968 they cast only 52,000 and 46,000 votes respectively.

Now, if those conditions existed in the South they would have been
conclusive evidence of discrimination in votin%, but in New York and
California they are not. So how illogieal can logic be? But any kind
of an excuse will justify to browbeat the South even where the figures
are worse. They show no discrimination on the part of New York or
Calfornia,

Mr. Myrcner, Senator, T would like to comment on that, if I may.

Senator Ervin. That is the reason I read it to youn, so you can com-
ment. \

Mr. MrronEerr. I am trying to do it in the spirit that T was secking
toevidence when I started my testimony.

It isa spirit of holding out the olive brauch in a manner that I think
you and T have the same objective, T think both of us want to see our
country give to everybody an equal chance. In my opinion the right to
vote is o fundamental that everybody ought to have it. "

In that spirit, when the administration first proposed this idea
‘of extending literacy tests, the ban against literncy tests to areas other
‘than the presently covered States, I not only talked with various
lawyers in those States, such as Maine, New York, California, but I
_ alza talked with our people who are lay members of NAACP who are
-engaged in register and vote campaigns and things of that sort. They
~were unable to produce and had never heard of a single instance in

which an individual who wanted to vote was denied the right to vote
beeause he could not pass a literacy tost,
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They did say that there had been some instances where the literacy
test was so simple that anyvbody could pass it and those who were
asked to takeit (Bd pass,

Also, Mr, Celler, the chairman of the Jouse Judiciary Commit-
tee, did introduce in the Record in the Houre some fignres which had
to o with the literacy test results in New York and the persons who
did not get to vote because they could «.ot pass a literacy test ave very
minusenle in number.

1 think theve is a failure to vote in large part in California, New
York, Chicago, and other northern areas for a different reason. I
think most of those prople who are in those avens have forgotten their
roots from which they have come. They are disorganized.

T think they would bo far better off if they had not left the place
from which they came in the first instance, and that_is the South,
Deeause in my judgment, with the applieation of the Voting Rights
Aet, with the applieation of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, and the other
civil rights laws, there is stirving in the South a tremendously new
and wonderful tf\ing. which in my ‘iuda‘mont will make it one of the
great bastions of civil liberties and civil rights if we can just keep
on a course to which we are now directed.

T veally feel that our problems in some of the northern commu-
nities, violence, sacial disorder, other things will begin to disappear
as we make it possible for people to stay in the place of their origin
and make that place mtmctwe.l} think we are on that road and I think
in the next 10 years, assuming we continue to extend the proper safe-
guards, that we will sce that.

Senator Ervin. Well, you see, despite your fairness, all the in-
ferences are ndverse to the South. I draw the inference from your
statement that some of the riots were due to the Southern people. Yet
the only one where they had an investigation in depth was in the riots
in Chicago. And the White newspaper chain, which is not pro-South.-
ern in its attitude, conducted an investigation and ran a series of ar-
ticles and it said that the riots in Detroit were not })articipatcd in by
people who had moved to Detroit from the South, that they were
carried on and participated in by people who were born and bred and
educated in Detroit.,

Mvr. Mirone, Well, T didn’t mean to transfer the blame to migrant
~ peaple. What T really mean is the factors which contribute to social
unrest and violence are things like overcrowding, they are things
like deprivation of apportunity and vavious kinds of frustrations.
If we just deal with the question of overcrowding, for example, any-
body who goes into Harlem can seo that the density of the popula-
tion there is intolerable, | ‘

Why is it that way? Tt is that way beeause thousands of people
come 1n there searching for-opportunity. So that if something starts
on a street corner which probably in Winston-Salem would not amount
to anything because there are not a whole lot of people around, auto-
matically the sheer density of the population makes it possible in
minutes to have a erowd and in that period of time almost anything
can happen, | S | o | “

So, what T really mean is not that the newly arrived migrants are
responsible, T merely mean that tlie overerowding and other problems
that flow from the population concentrations create a sitnation which,



138

in my judgnent, will be velieved when people begin to aet nornmbly
and stay in certain places because those will be places of apportuniy,

Just to give yon this illustration, there wonld be no reason for'a
young Negro hoy to leave Jackson, Miss,, now in order to get on the
police foree as he would have had to do 10 years ago. They have some
of the finest young men that. T have ever mot on that police farce, col-
lege geaduntes, athletes and that sort of thing. So, that means this
nrticular person who otherwise might have gone to New York or

hiladelphin or Washington secking an opportunity no longer has to
do this,

That, to me, is the great source of encourngement,

T think of your own State of North Cavolina, which T sa v I nowam
hound to hy ties of affection beeanse T have a beautifnl daughter-in-
law from that State, T feel that the developments in North Cavlina
are tremendons, T think the Negroes (here are showing a kind of
maturity and ability which makes them a part of the whole State
fabrie, AL T am hoping for is that wo can continue to make use of
these things which llm\'e made that vesult possible.

Senator Exvix, Well, T have no doubt. that your vesults and mine
are the same,

Asa Novth Carolinian, T am rather disadvantaged, We have these
conditions in the North, as illustrated in the statement about. Watts
and New York, where the voter turnont is less than in the Sonth,
They have a law that would cover them. Bat the Department. of Jus-
tice exempts them from the law and applies it to my State, Tt lumps
my State with some States where there is more evidencs of offenses of
diserimination. We have o law that discriminates against my State, It
denies us aceess to the courts, Tt prostitutes the judicial process which T
think is ahont the worst thing that ean be done,

It says our laws ean’t go into effect withont official approval of the
Attorney General of the United States. It says we are going to con-
demn yon on the basis of 1964 instead of on the basis of 1968, Tt Jots
Congress condemn my people on the basis of sets of figures, the figures
of which are far hetter than the figures in New York distriets T am
talking about and in California.

Now, there is a lot of congestion in the northern aveas. T have
watched politicians a long time, and a lot of those people moved there
because the politician teﬁs them they have freedom and evervthing
is better up there. Instend of those politicians doing something for
their own people in their own locality they spend time advocating bills
like this, which have horsewhipped the Sonth. The same firove s thev
use to condenm the South with don't apply to the North. This is a
sectional hill, B - .

T am not talking about yon. T appreciate your position, But we get
condemned on the basis of specious things ‘as far as figures. This is
all the condemnation they have, o _

Now, in my State we have got counties denied the right to use a law
that is in perfect harmony with the Constitution. In the 1964 election
- alot of the Demoerats didn’t like the Democratic candidate for Presi-

~dent, Tiyndon B. Johnson, and a lot of the people didn’t like the Re-

publican eandidate for President, Barry Goldwater, and they didn't
_vote for President. But many of these counties voted more than 50
“percent, yet we stand condemned. | -
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The wnl)onom.-g of the renewal of this bill are not willing to judgze
us on the basis of what happened in 1968, which would have shown
me pretty mueh the standards by which we are condemned. They
insist on us being condemmed by the 1964 formula, and that is not
very just, It is iﬁo ical and it Just—youn just can't, from the stand-
int of logie and g'nm the standpoint of justice, have such diserim-
mation as that against my State. 1t just -an't be justified.

Mre, Myrenen, 1 ean't agree with you.

Senator Knxvin, 1 am conseious of that,

Mr. Mrrenenn, I am reluetant, beeanse of my feeling of affection for
you, Senator Frvin, 1 am veluetant to differ with you, bnt 1 ditter
with you for this reason :

I know what the situation is in North Carolina, 1 get down there
at least three times a year and I meet with the people who have the
problems,

Senator Krvin, T have lived there until my haiv has gotten gray, and
I believe T know more about North Carolina than you do.

My, Myrenen, I am sure in the aggregate you do, but T don’t be-
lieve yon would know as much about \5mt the Negroes are up against,
otherwise you would not have said what you have said,

For example, in our State conferences of the NAACP we meet with
the people who come from the various counties. On a Sunday after-
noon last year we had our long meeting in one of the hotels down
there in which we went over in great detail the different kinds of
problems that people have. For example, one lady got up—T think

~ghe was from Anson County, I am not sure—but in any event, she
got up and said that they have a problem there that if vou live in a
precinet and you move from your residence and then move to another
residence within that precinet registrars object to your being al-
lowed to register on the grounds that you have not lived at your present
dwelling long enough to meet whatever the requirement is.

To me this is unreasonable.

Senator Ervin, That applies to white and colored people alike.

Mr. Mrrciienrn, But apparently it is only enforced against Ne-

roes. As I understand the situation, it is a little different. from what
-1t ought to be, As long as you are a resident within your precinet,
at least in my State of Maryland, the fact that you move from one
‘honse to another within that precinet does not constitute a bar to your
voting.

Smgntm' Ervin. It does in North Carolina if it is in a different pre-
cinet. ‘ | |

My, Mitcngrr. This is what T am pointing out. Your law, if that is
what it is, would not be a bar to letting n person register under those

- circumstances, but the oflicials tell them it 1s a bar. We had a long dis-
cussion on that and a number of counties got up and said the same
thing was occurring, o

Charles Mclean undertook to try to get it straight with the top
State officinls, There used to be a Mr. Maxwell who was the top man.
T don’t know who it is now, buit whoever it was, Charles was in tonch
“with him. He undertook to try to get that straight,

T understand on the basis of my experience with the NAACP North

- Carolinn people they bend over backward tryiniz‘ to be sure that
they make use of all the available State machinery before they call on

37-499--70——10
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the Federal Government. for help, but they have had to call on the
Federal Government for help and primavily in the same areas that
have been set forth in this hearing that we had in 1957. You were
very patient that day and you let us go down each one of these political
entities, T am sorry to say that in most of those cuses the situation
that we deseribed in 1057 continued right on up to the Voting Rights
Act, If there is improvement T think it is because the Voting Rights
Act was there,

Senator Ervin. You and T get information from different sources.
Mine is exactly the contrary, because prior to the Voting Rights Act,
as I snid this morning, my State bonrd of elections changed the
methods of ndministering the literacy test, and made it so simple that
anybody who really was qualified to be in the fourth grade could have
passed it.

We have different zources of information. But. I really believe that
T know more about North Cavolina than anybody in the District of
Columbin simply beenuse T have been living there longer, So T just-—

My, Mivenen., You see it from a different angle,

Senator Ervix, Yes, I think the State of North Carolina should be
treated with more respect in the Congress than o erap shooter orv
murderer or moonshiner. Yet under this lnw all of those people ave
Fivcn vights that my State is denied, And we are condemned on the
iasis of a set of figures on which nobody in New York or California
is condemmed on, ‘

Then they are not willing to let us have our rights in 1969, judged
on the basis of our conduct in 1968, They want to judge it on the basis
of conduct prior to that time. I say that. is not. fair,

My, Mrrenrer., That, you see, Senator, 1 think you de have to sepa-
ate yourself as a person from some of the policies that the State of
North Carolina has pursued, hecause some of those policies are inde-
fensible. Tt is not, in my judgment, anything onerons or burdensome
to bring the State of North Carolina to a forum in the city of Wash-
ington for the purpose of determining whether the State of North
Carolina is heing fair on the matter of vater vegistration, heeanse the
record is replete with opposition to full citizenship for Negrees, not
ml\ly in the area of voting rights, but in edneation and in a lot of other

rlaces.

! Now, T think it is true that a large number of very influential and
effective peaple have lnoked at that kind of condition, I think they
are working to correct it. But I'think we do have to admit that the
“oflicial policy of the State for so many years has been one of not. giving
to Negroes proper treatment, that it only—in just elementary fairness
you would want to wet the case settled in a court where yvou would be
likely to have somebody divoreed from a local situation.

In my State, for exnmple, if you go into a county where you. are
in a lawsuit and the parties from the lawsnit, ns distinguiched from the
lawyers, say they don’t helieve they can get a fair trial before that
judge. Antomatically under the law of our State you transfer to an-
other jurisdiction. ‘ R ‘ g ' ‘

Senator Ervix, You don't transfer a thousand miles away likes this -
one does, , ‘

My, Mrrcnen., Evervthing is relative for the State of North Caro-
lina. and it really shonldn’t be a great burden to come to Washington.

Senator Ervix. Suppose yon, as a resident of the State of Maryland,
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Lave a cause of action. Do vou think it is not a disadvantage to you to
nail <hut the door to the conrthonse of Marylund to that cause of action
anud require you to go to Minnesota and take your witnesses there?

Mr. Mrrciign. It depends on what the enuse of action is, if 8'911 are
trving to sue a corporation that doesn't have a resident ngent in the

State of Marylind and is not_doing business within the meaning of
the 'aw of the State of Marvland, unfortunately yon would have to
o tothe place where you ean get at the corporation, ) .

Senator Envix, I am talking about a person to be served right in
the State of Maryland. You may not think that is—1I think you do
thivck it isunfair,

Mr, Mirongrt, If we were dealing with a crapshooter, lot us say,
who may not have more than 55 to his nume, or one of the moon.
shiners, who T think arve usually very poor people, although they
are engaged in illeigal activity, it would be manifestly unfair to require
that those people travel 100 miles or a thousand miles to be tried.

But we are dealing with a State that is by no means a poor State,
and woe are dealing with lawvers and others representing that State
who travel frequently to Washington on things far less important.

Senator Ervix, How ahout the witnesses?

My, Mrrenens., 1 would say the witnesses should certainly come at
the expense of the State if it is necessary to bring them. can't. see
how it would be necessary to bring witnesses in most of these cases,
hecanse what vou are asking for 1s a reviow of what legislature or
tha political entity had in mind when this Jaw was passed,

Senator Ervix. This bill said that if a State could prove to the
district court that it hadn't practiced discrimination in a substan-
tinl manner for the past 5 years that it would be relieved from this
hill. .And vet Gaston County comes up here and the record shows
that the judges state that there is no_evidence that there has been
any Negro discriminated against in Gaston County. Yet the court
interposes something not in the act.

Tt says because in times past they have had separate schools, that
that puts the colored population to a disadvantage. I think that state-
ment is an insnlt to the Negro race in North Carolina, because we
have had very competent. Negro principals and Negro teachers, and
to say they were incapable uF teaching children to read and write is
just un insult to them, | : |

But evidently any kind of an insult can be accepted if it justifies
pro=titution of the }udicial process. |

Mr. Mircnrnt, I think, Senator Ervin, that in the circumstances
of that case the record was very clear. The record showed that over
an extended period of time there had been a deprivation of educational
opportunity on the basis of race, and once vou have that set of facts,
it seemed to me that the conclusion would be inescapable that one
could not give peaple inferior education and then require them, as
“the case in your State to interpret, let us say, the Preamble of the
“Constitution, which a lot of lawyers would have trouble interpreting,

Senator Ervin, Yes, I don’t think the Supreme Court can inter-
pret the Constitution in many cases. I don’t think it did so in the
voting rights cases. - o E 4

Mr. Mitcnienn. I am glad they don’t have to vote in North Caro-
lina, becaiuse they would be disenfranchised. '
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Senator Ervin, They ean vead and write,

Mre, Mrrenrnn, But not 1o the satisfaction of the North Carvalinn
registrars, which is the heart of this matter, Yon have got to prove
it to the satisfaction of the vegistrar,

Senutor Exvin, 1 have to go to another meeting, and Senator- - ..

M, Marengv, Before you go, T wonld like to ark n personal favar,
Iojust want e tuen avonnd and see whether my  fromily s Lere,
‘They are,

My oldest son, when he was a little hoy, came here with a churel
rroup and you were good enongh to see all of them. e is a Senntor
in the Maryvland State Jagislature, and T would like 1o have him
stand,

Senator Faviw, Glad to =ee vou, Gale,

Mr. Myrenrpni, On the end is my oldest sister, Mys, Matthews and
my wife, Mrs, Mitehell, who is a lawyer, and my vounger sister,
who is n tencher, and my <on Michael, who is baek there, Mike is
second-vear student at the University of Marvland Law School,
1 just wanted them to meet yon.

‘hey came over becanse Senntor Tydings was nice enough to be
saying things about me on the Senate floor today.

- Senator Ervix, T am certainly pleased to meet them, You and |
have been on opposite sides of these questions for a goad while and
T can rejoice that you and T have been able to disngree without metting
disagreeable,

Senator Bavu. Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

Senator Bayu, I appreciate having the chanee to see vour family
recognized here, particularly since your pride and jov is a member
of your Maryland State Legislature, I am proud, :

Our next. and hopefully concluding witness here thiz'afternoon is
Mvr. Warren S. Richardson, the general counsel of the:Liberty Lobby,

Mr. Richardson, you have been extremely patient. We rveally appre-
ciate your patience and your willingness to let us have yvour thonghtx,

STATEMENT OF WARREN S. RICHARDSON, GENERAL COUNSEL,
LIBERTY LOBBY, WASHINGTON, D.C.

My Ricnannsox. Senator, thank you,

I would like to introduce my associate, Jack MeGann.

Senator Bavm, My, MeGann, we are glad to see you. '

Myr. Riciarpsox, While you are passing out bouquets T think vou
should recognize the great assistance the young lady here has per-
formed. She went straight through withont lunch. T am sure she was
looking for a break. ,

T have one other suggestion. When we get involved in a Jone,
drawn-out hearing in the future, maybe we can put in a requisition
to have a basket hinch or something else served here for lunch, Tt
- seems like a long time between breakfast and luneh, S

‘T would like to read the statement, because we have a position which
is probably midway between what I shall refer to as your position
and Senator Ervin's pocition in this matter. That puts us in the role
of a peacemaker, and peacemakers always wind up by getting black
eyes. So, if 1 may proceed with reading this T shalY have a few other
comments at the end. o )
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L berty Lobby supports these often repeated imiversal prineiples:

1. The electorate should be informed,

2. Any conditions attached to suffrage must be applicable to every.
one, regnridless of race, eveed, or color,

% Publie edueation should be under State—not Federal-- control
aud available to all people on the same basis, without regard to race,
creed, or colov,

One of the ways to determine whether a per=on has the ability to he
informed is to test his ability to read and write. As Richard Wilzon
~aid in the Washington Staron Maveh 23, 19065

Wiy is Congress not usked to abolish literacy reguivements fn all States alto.
gethery The auswer to that ix elear. It Is hoentise Hieraey togitirements have
vitlidity both in reason and in law. It makes sense that o voter shonld have at least
an elemontary ability 1o read and write the Inbhgnuge of the country in which he
resides, It makes sense that States should have the power to sef reasonnhle
minimum standards for voters, and the proposed Inw recognizes that by itelf

setting some standards, It hardly needs to be argued, also, that a Federal Jaw
should apply equally to the clitizens of all States.

In 1965 many people predicted that the then .‘m\pnsod Voting
Right< act wonld be, if enacted, unconstitutional. Liberty Tobby was
one of those who xo testified. At that time we were influenced by
the proposition so cleavly stated hy Senator J. W. Fulbright, who
said

Coutrary to widespread bellef, onur system of government does not provide for
an nnqualified right to vote, The right to the hallot in the United States is derjvel
from the laws, constitutional and statutory, of the several States which define the
quinlifications which must be met by an elector,

The right of the States to require passage of a literaey test as a pre-
requisite to voting 18 unquestioned, On nmumerons oveasions the Sun-
preme Conrt has held this type of qualification to be a proper exereise
of State authority, The principle was most vecently afliviied in the
case of Lassiter v. Nocthampton Election Roued decided in 1959 in
which the Court said :

We come then to the guestion whether n State may consistently with the 14th
and 17th amendments apply a Mteracy test to all voters irrespective of race or
color. The Court in Guinn v. United States, supra, at 368, disposed of the question
in & few words, “No time need be spent on the question of the valldity of the
litera -y test considered alone sinee as we have seen its establishment was but the
exercise by the State of a lawful power vested in it not subject to our supervision,
and indeed, itz validity s admitted.,” (Hearings hefore the Sybcommittee on

~Constitutional Rights, Senate Judiclary Committee, 1962, p. 504

Turning now to the ease of South Carolina v, Katzeahach, 533 UK,
301, we note that the Supreme Court held that sections 4(a)~(d), 5,
Geby, 7090 15¢a) and certain procedural portions of section 14 are
constitntional. Section 4 deals with the litevacy test, among other “losts
or devices," In the South Carolina case former Chief Justice Warren,
speaking for the majority, referved to the Lassifer case as follows:
South Caroling assaiis the temporary suspenston of existing voting qualifiea-
tions, recfting the rate latd down by Lassiter v. Northampton Convty Roard of
Elestions, 360 U8, 45, that Hteriey tests gud related deviees are not in themselves
conipyy to the 15th amendment. Tn that very ease; however, the Court went

on taosay, YOf course a Feraey test, fair on its fice, may be employed to
perpetnate that diserimination which the 15th amendment wis deshened to uprost,

Alzo. the former Chief Justice stated the basic question s follows:

Has Congress exercised its powers under the 15th amendment in an
appropriate manner with relations to the States?
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Then, he answered the question in these words:

As against the reserved powers of the States, Congress may u-e any
rational means to effectuate the constitutional prohibition of rasjal
discrimination in voting,.

Followed by: The gist of the matter is that the 15th amenduent
susprsedes contrary excrtions of State power.

n short, the South Carolina case leaves the doctvine of L.
undisturbed except. when a literary test interfeves with the eonstiiu.
tional prohibition against racial diserimination,

What ave the practical results of the 1905 act? As Attorney Gion-
eral Mitchell sai('l in his testimony before the House Judiciary ¢oau-
mittee on June 26, 1969

The results of the 1965 nct are impressive, Since 1965, more tiun
800,000 Negro voters have been registered in the seven Statez covered
by the act. Moreover, according to the figures of the voter edncation

roject of the Sonthern Regional Council, more than 30 percent of
rhu cligible Negroes ave regristered in every Sonthern State,

Also, the Attorney General said :

Thus, as a nation, we are faced with the anomalous situation where
illiterate citizens in seven States have a right to vote while illiterate
citizons in 43 States could ba bavved from the polls hy literacy tosts,

Furthermore, the Attorney General explained that on the bagiz of the
1965 act and the Gaston County ruling:

* 2 % the ban on literacy tests wonld continue for the foreseenbile
future in the States presently covered by the aet, even if no new leg-
islation were to be enncted hy the Congress.

Again quoting the Attorney General on the subject of the eaw of
Gaston County v. United Stales, wo find : ,

The Supreme Court vuled (June 2, 1969) that offering tadav's
Negro youth equal educational opportunities “will doubtless prepare
them to meet future liferacy tests on an equal basis,” The Conrt
added that equal education today “does nothing for their paren:<”
It ruled that Gaston County has systematically denied its black -it-
izens equal educational opportunity: and that “ ‘Impartial’ adwnin-

_istration of the literacy test todny would serve only to perpetuate those
inequities in a different form.? Accordingly, the Conrt held sueh
tests unlawful under the Voting Rights Act.

How do we reconcile this desire to have evervbody vegistered with
the perfectly rational and legitimate goal of ‘using a literacy 1o,
heaving in mind the doctrine of the Raston Coynty case?

Our legislative approach must change, Or, to say it in the wirds
“of the Attorney Genernl: -

 “While Congress may have suflicient reason to pass vegional legis-
~lation in the 1965 act, T do not believe that this justification oxists
-any longer. Circumstances have changed and T believe that our louis-
Iative approach must change,”

The Congress of the United States is certainly capable of recog.
~ nizing the changed situation and acting accordingly. Former (hief

Justice Warren said, in the South Carolina case: -

“Congress exercised its authority under the 15th amendment in an-
“inventive manner when it enacted the Voting Rights Act of 1965."
The Congress should act again in an “inventive manner.”* ﬂ
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~ As set, forth in the Gaston County decision the real problem today
is not with the children who have been given an equal educational op-
sortunity, but with the parents, Why not reinstate the literacy tests
or all new voters who are registering for the first time and allow the
parents—people now 22 years of age or more—a 2-year period to
register without mf;ard to a literacy test? Keep the Federal election
officials to protect the rights of prospective voters from any unfair ap-
plication of the literacy test. This approach will reconcile the two
gonls--registration of everybody regardless of race, ereed, color, and
oducational attainments, and the early return of a literacy test. .

Vith the vast storchouse of legislative talent in the Congress, this
approach, or another to accomplish the two goals, can certmuiy be
worked out in an *inventive manner.”

Now, having listened for 2 days to a great deal of testimony, I
2\;0111(1 fike to add to that prepared statement the following observa-
ions:

First, we nceept. the facts ns velated by the prior witnesses, M,
Mitchell’s testimony and Mrs. Freeman, that there is a need to aid
the Negroes in the South in getting registered. )

Contrary to Senator Ervin, I am sorry he isn’t here, T agree with
Mr. Mitchell. We nlso accept. the existence of the two Court cases.
We accept them not merely on the fact that they do exist, but we have
to live with them. This means that whether we like them or not they
are here and we must take our future action in accord with them.

I might add that we think the Supreme Court enp:a(‘:u] in a supreme
act of brinksmanship in the way they dodged around declaring those
tests unconstitutional in the Lassiter case by merely saying they ave
enspended. We took note throughout the written testimony, particu-
larly. of this fact by using the terminology that the voting tests were
“guspended.” They were not declared illegal. Therefore, in this frame-
work that confronts us: namely, the dire need to elevate the conditions
of voting in those Southern States and the Supreme Court cases, we
have in cffect a tightly balanced situation.

ITow do we resolve it.2 Our solution will, we believe, give evervone
a chance to save face. Tf we have the parents. socalled in the Gas/on
~ Oounty case, registered and allow the reintroduction or the resumption
of the literacy test for the incoming voters, we will accomplish hoth

- ends. ‘

Now, T might also add that it is very nnfortunate that the literacy

test qnestion has become so involved with race relations, hecanse each
is a subject unto itself and the literney test, as the Supreme Court has
sn,_itd\ aver and over, is a perfectly reasonable, logical test to qualify
voters, < ' ' '
_ T was glad to see that Mr. Mitchell a few moments ago did mention
in his comments about New York State, that the literacy test therve
~ was not as hazardous. was not ain obstacle for the registration of any-
body. T helieve he used the word “minuscule.” '

Tt is this tvpe of literacy test that we have in mind. T think the New
York lnw—T am not positive—requires either a sixth grade education
for passing the test and it may be passed in either English or Spanish.

We think that this would be in effect n face-saving compromise to
allow the literacy test. to be invoked and nsed as it properly should
De, not as an instrument of racial diserimination, and at the same time
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we will iave Federal help for the registration of those Negroes who
dedinitely need it. \

1 think it will be the summary of our concept. of the testimony and
o own position, |

Senator Bavi, Thank yon very much. I appreciate your examining
thiz whole area and giving us your thoughts. |

1 u«;tim vour approach to this seems to be a well thought out ap-
woach,

: 1 would like to ask you a question or two about procedural matters
hiere. T just wondered, vour statement seems to run contrary to the last
sentence in the first part of your statement where you say that the
board of policy, \vhirsa I trust is a 20,000 member speeifieally voted-—
and overwhelming majority—to oppose civil rights laws, T haven't
b‘een in t{he Congress that long, but. did your organization oppose the
1957 act

My Ricianpsox. Yes, Senator,

Senator Bavu, Did it appose the 1960 act.?

Mr. Ricnanosox, T think they have opposed them and the one that
is most pertinent is this curvent aet, the 1965 aet, T think they pre-
dicted along with others, and, if T am not mistaken, with come Sena-
tors who testified that it would be declared unconstitutional,

Senator Bavi., But it hasn't,

My, RicnarpsoN, No, and T mention that in the statement. We were
wrong in the prediction,

Senator Bayu, You refer, then, in your statement—1I don’t want to
put words in your mouth—Dbut it seems to me your appronch in this
matter tends to broaden the often-repeated opimion, No. 2, any con-
ditions attached to suflrance must he applieable to everyone, regardless
of race, creed, or color, by recognizing not only are the conditions at-
tached are important items, but the way these conditions are applied.

I understand you recognize that there has been and still is a need
to be wary of diserimination : is that correct ? '

Mr. Ricianosox, Yes,sir, absolutely. |

T wonld say again, as I said before, we have no quarrel with the facts
brought forth hy Mr. Mitehell or Mrs, Freeman., We accept those,
~ Senator Bavi, On point 3 on publie eduecation, T know that the
matter of State and Federal control is a very sensitive one. Apparvently
there is considerable thonght in this administration as well as the last
administration that that State control has not. been able to accomplish
the similar edueation without regard to race, ereed, or color. Arve you
all willing to aceept the need for Federal regulations in this area if
von can’t get equal ednention hy State control? ,
My, Rienanpsox, Senator, about 10 days ago the Subeomittee on
“Fdueation held o hearing at which we testified for the extension of

the nid to edueation, We opposed the hill, the extension of aid in its
current. form, beeanse it was too mueh control, .

We sugaested an alternative, anl that, of eanrse, is the primary
thrust of that act. the aid and not the control. At least this is what the
proponents say. They minimize the control and of caurse the opponents -
have maximized the element of control. o

So we recognize the need for the aid which appears to be the primary
gonl in the edueation field, We have opposed the stringent, so-called
guidelines which appear to he more excessive thannecessary.,
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We do not, however, agree with the idea that a State should be
allowed to administer their educational program in a diseriminatory
manner. :

Senator Bayvn. At some point we are going to have to get, if the
- State persists in pursuing this, at some point we are going to have to

have some other kind of control, aren’t we?

Mr. Ricnarpsox, Well, we could again use former Chief Justice
Warren's comment, ¥inventive” manner, It would seem to us that you
could achieve your goal-—we ave now in the educational field.

Senator Bavw, gthink it is directly related to the cause of the
Gaston case which talks about the literacy level, and if we don’t ad-
minister the educational system fairly and equally we ave never going
to eseape from the decision of the Graston case.

Mr. Ricnanpsox. We put the Gaston case in this testimony de-
liberately hecause we believe it is involved, but your question I de-
termined to be more directed at. the mechanics of how to work the
educational program at the Federal level,

Our concept would he that rather than o many guidelines and so
much redtape control, that you should use the element of the earrot
more than the stick; that is to say, withdraw these Federal funds.

Now, the withdrawal of Federnl funds has not necessarily brought
about a change in all of the school districts affected, but the record
will show, I am sure, that in most of the States, even thronghout the
South, when the withdrawal of Federal funds has been made there has
in fact heen great steps made toward solving this problem,

T am not saying this is an easy problem, and we don’t offer this as a
simple, easy solution. We offer if to you as un approach. We feel that
you, with your background in the legislature, an(‘ the stafl could take
it from here and conceive of a plan that wounld effectnate the same
end without all of the control.

Thisis in education,

Senator Bayn. T much prefer the carrot to the stick. and the old
adago about being able to draw more flies with honey than vinegar is
very appropriate. The question is how do we apply the carrot,

t hasn't worked. You say it doesn’t always work when you use
a stick, But you seem to get more results when that is applied. T
think it is unfortunate. g

Mr, Ricnanpsox. Getting back to the voting rights, if T may make
a comment, = .

We agree with your result but disagree with your method. With
Senator Ervin, we disagree with his result but share his alarm over
the method. The Sonthern contingent certainly has a deep resent-
ment over the method em‘)‘loyed‘ It would further appear to us, at
least. by using our appronch or one similar to it, that we could soften
the method and achieve the same vesults,

Senator Bavn. T think it was unfortunate that it was necessary
to enact this act. As T have said several times, T think that Senator

“Ervin approaches this whole matter in good faith, good conscience,
and I think he is honest and sincere about his thoughts on this. There
are wide numbers, T think increasing numbers of citizens in the south-

: grn part of this country who are searching for a way to get. this job

one,

But I don't see hov we can ignore the terrvible record. We just
can’t ignore the terrible record of the extremes to which State legis-
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latures, county clection boards, local registrars, the extremes to which
they go. You can’t ignore the fact that 50 counties, the Justice Depart-
 ment brought suits prior to the 1965 act, and only 36,000 registered
black people. )

Now, after the suits this number has greatly increased, and I think
you have to take this into consideration, Nothing got results, Nothing
prior to that time got results. Tl.-eats of suits got no results. It wasn’t
until we found this formula, antagonistic as it would be in those
avens, we began getting results. ‘

Mr. Rrcuarnsox, May T answer this?

I believe our suggestion encompasses all you sud. We would not
radically change the 1965 act in that respect. Weo are interested to
gee that resnlts continue and we have suggested n campaign to reg-
ister them regardless of their ability to read and write, I*)verybo(fy
from a given age up shall bo vegistered, but beginning with the new
voters, as they come to vegister for the first time the literacy test
will be applied, Let tre Southern States affected have the right to
use a literacy test if they so choose, and maybe they won’t, Nobody
l{pn}vs the ability at this point to invoke a literaey test such as New

ork. ‘

Senator Bavm. Let's explore this cuggestion, beeause T think it is
novel indeed.

Your suggestion is to waive the literacy test for a 2-vear period for
anvone over 22, as J reeall?

\fr. Riciannson, Yes,

Senator Bavin But apply it to everyone 21 now and as they get
older: is that correct?

Mr. Ricnarnsox. As the new voters come in they will take the
test. Bear in mind, ngain, we have to always go back to the fact
we have this problem, we have the condition that exists with the
Gaston County case, |

Senator Bavir. T was going to say it.seems to me that is inconsistent.

Mr. Ricnannsox. Well, not really, because I think that here I would
take Senator Frvin’s side of the argument. that most of the Negro
children are being educated. T won’t get into an argument as to
whether their edueation is comparable or not, but it is at least ade-

quate to pass a fourth grade test in writing or reading. If we take the
- reverso side of the coin, as the Senator did eavlier, you are doing great
injustice to the teachers and the students if you assume automatically
that they are unable to pass a New York type literacy test. ~

Senator Bayir, Arve we saying New York type of test? What kind
of test are we saying? | , B |
- The Supreme Court specifically said that in those areas where there
lias not been equal edueation, theapplication of the litevracy test, which
is normally constitutional, is unconstitutional, and just creating this
new formula does not deal with the high school dropouts or the 22-
year-olds that have been educated in this uneqiial system, '

T think the Court would frown on that. |

Mr. Riciiarnsox. Let me explain, .~ o

When you use the term “New York type test.” T take into account
what T wnderstand to be the rule in New York: namely, that you can
pass a test—put it that way—the test, by either producing a sixth
grade certificate, having graduated from the sixth grade, or takin
a rather easy test, T am not talking here about a literacy test whicﬁ
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requires interpreting the Constitution, as was mentioned a few min-
utes ago, As Mr, Mitchell said a Supreme Court Justice would be

disenfranchised if he went to North Carolina, I am talking about a
bona fide, reasonable literacy test that you and Senator Ervin, taking
them from different points of view, would both agree is a fair test.
Now, we come to the point of using the term “New York type test,”
because it appavently, as T undevstand 27r. Mitchell’s testimony, 18 &
fair, reasonable test and the people do not fail it because of their race.
1t is not o burdensome test. This is the type of thing that I am trying
to get across, That type of test should be allowed, if the State wants
to Dave it, Every State should have the ability to invoke such a test
and apply it fairly. Let us emphasive that it has to be fair—they can-
not have a Negro come in and ask him to interpret the Constitution
and have the white men come in and ask him to read a comic strip.
It must be the same test and applied fairly, There are no if's, and’s,
but’s or maybe's,

Now, when we start out with that coneept I think the Supreme Court
wonld certainly sy the test is not being nzed as an instrument of dis-
erimination, The thrnst of the Gaston County doctrine is that it is
unfair to use a literacy test when you have a lavge portion of the popu-
Lation who ean't pass it and the reazon they enn’t puss it is heeause lllu'y
have not been edueated by the States,

Now, we cure that problem in our proposal by automatically vegis-
teving everybody who would have any trouble. Incidentaliy, the 2-year
term and 22 vears of age ave suggestions which could be changed. But
the point is that those students coming ont of an edueational systoem
now where they go through five, six, or eight grades could automati-
caily become eligible to vote or become registered in New York without
even taking a test, Those people who are below that grade level could
takie asimple test as they do in New York. This, in my view, would be
constitutional, because the Supreme Court did not, in the Geston
County case rule the test unconstitutional. The Court merely said that
suri tests were suspended. They were suspended be anse they inter-
fered with the basie right of the 15th amendment—voting.

Senator Bayu. You see, as far as working right now—hopefully the
duy will come when that wonld work. Right now we have one county
in the very State ag that ease that is about to lose its Federal funds
heswuse it hasn't integrated itz Federal edueation system. Tt isn't giv-
ing an equal educational sveteni, 11 zeems to me the people in that avea
would still fall under the limitation of the care. '

Mr. Ricianrnsox. Let me answer it this way. One of the real dis-
~agreeable parts about this whole subject is that literney tests have
~berome a politieal pnwn imbued with race relations, which is bad. Tet

“us not make the =ame mistake with edueation as we did with literacy

teste, - T ‘
 Let us assiume for the moment that your statement is correct and that
unequal opportunities in eduncation exist today, T am not saying that,
but let’s assume it is true, The point is that if a Negro student goes
“through high school and the Stz;}o law for literacy test requires n sixth
grade diploma, he is antomatieally vegistered, There is no test, On the
other hand, if he only progressed to fourth grade, the test which then
would be administered wonld be the same administered to a dropout in
any other school.
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Senntor Bavi, You ave again assuming the test: adopred will he the
one which says either reading or writing or has a sixth grade edneation,

Mr, Riciannsox, We are nsing the New York model sinply heeanse
I don'’t want to become involved in detail over whether that particalar
style or one in Tewa or whatever other States nse a literney test, I nse
it hecanse Mr. Mitehell made the speeifie comment that the members of
his organization in New York have =aid that there hnsbeen no problem,
So 1 wanted to use an examiple that is devoid of prohlem.

Senator Bavu. The very presence of that sixth-grade eriteria is
eritieal, it seems to me, beenuse then you don't have the situation of
that individual registenr making a determination of what constitutes
the ability to read and write, 1f a fellow came in and asked him if he
could read and he =aid yes, and he gave him an arvticle in the Chinese
langunge, T ohink it waz, and said can you vead that and he said ves,
he says what does it say, and he says aren't any Negroes going 10 vote
here today. It is tha eriterin, that ability on the pavt of that vesistrar
to make an independent judgment, 1f the cixth-grade requirement is
met that is relatively easy to prove,

My, Ricnanpsox, Ave you saving that in New York the people o ha
administer the test have tham ability ¢

Senator Bayn. Pardon me!?

Mr. Ricnarpsox. Ave you saying by vour comments that the regis-
trars in New York have'that ability ¢

Senator Bavn, Yes,

My, Ricnanpsox. They do? You see, there we have a fundanental
misunderstanding. T understood the New Yeork test to be uniformly
inflexible to everyhady; that the registrar didn’t have the ability to
seleet a diflicult passage for Mr, A and a less diffienlt one for My, B,

Senator Bavi, You ean use the same passage, hut the registenr to
have the power to determine how the person reacted, A sixth-grade
limitation there is totally——- |

_Mr, Ricuarpsox, Again, the sixth-grade requirement, we use New

York—I refer to this beeause T am trying to keep ont of an argu-
ment over facts,

-Senator Bayu., Well, fine. There is no need getting involved i

details, - | | ,

Mr. Ricnanrpzox, Mr. Mitehell said in New York they have noe
problem, So if now we are going to create a problem-—- -

Senittor Bayw, No., am perfeetly content with the New York law,
I think the sixth-grade provision is really the =aving grace ahout
the New York law, beenuse most eaves tiake away the ability of an
mdividual who wants to discriminate against a féllow who niay he o

~high sehool gradnate to rule independently that he ean’t rend or write,
Mr, Rienarosox, 1f we agree that is a good law to disenss it we
can proceed with the idea, ' |
. Senator Bavn. T don’t think there is any need in getting tied up
in New York. It has been proven as one of the hest. o '
The parents will be excluded for a 2-vear period. ‘
- -Mr. Riciarpsox. This ngain, in number of yvears, we offer as a
suggestion. When we put something in writing—we had fo put some-
thing—we' selected 2 years, What would you consider rensonable?
We will use that figure, L -

~Senator Bayu. Well, T am frankly concerned ahont any, for this

reason: All States reasonably have purging requirements to try to
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keep the polls up to date, the voting lists up to date, voting lists just
take your 2-year or 4-year or whatever it might be, A person could
come in and register and then by not meeting the eriteria, by moving,
by not voting, could be removed from the list and then in trying o
apply again after the expiration of this period be subjected to the
sane literacy test which he is not qualified to take,

Mr, Ricnanosox, We ought to be able to figure that out by using
our brainpower. I don't know whether we can do it on the spot, but
[ otfer their suggestion, For those people who are unable to pass the
New York State literacy test in the oviginal instance, let us give them
a lifetime exemption from taking it, Perhaps this will solve the purg-
ing problem. T am not trying to come up with dodges on how to get
around it, and 1 know you ave not. So onr question would be to figure
out. ~ome way to lput them on the rolls so they couldn’t be purged if
purging is a problem,

Senator Bavu., Are you at all concerned about, in those areas—
here. again, we are looking for a way in which to change a thought
l)l‘()i'(.‘SS,

Me. Ricnaunsox, Right,

Senator Bavu, Apparently you agreed with the a-sexsment ninde
hy the Attorney General, there is a real need for the 1965 act and there
has been great progress under it?

Mr, Riciarnsox. That is right.

Senator Bavi, The Commonwealth agreed there has been a philo-
=ophical environment in which people are trying to discriminate
agrninst Negro voters?

My, Riciianosox, Agreed,

Senator Bavu. What we arve trying to get is to break into—get
through a period to reorient the thinking of officials, Before we get
through that, and the reason 1 am for the extension is that if we get
through this period and another 5-year period and we begin to get
the voting population in a position where they ecan vote for some of
these people who prior to that time have been discriminated against,
it is going to take away—prior to getting through that period it
wonld seem to me that the very instituting of the literacy test could
indeed greatly increase the need for Federal supervision.

Mvr. Ricriarpson. What is your question ¢

Senator Bayu, Do you see this as a possibility ?

Mr. Ricuannsox, Yes, sir, I certainly do. = | |

Senator Bavn. But you are willing to go through the increased
Federal supervision? | o |

Mr. Ricianpsox, I would be and T am sure that Liberty Lobby would
be willing to see that greater Federal intervention be used to accom- -
plish this objective, bearing in mind that it is a twoél)mngod attack;
namely that we reinstitiite the test when we continue this intervention.
As a matter of fact, in the written statement, we have a sentence about
keeping your Federal people, have them there to protect that: very
group that we are talking about. We agree to that. }n other words, it
boils down to this simple proposition: We want two things accom-
plished: One is to have everybody registered, and because of the Su-
reme Court dicta or the holding and hecanse there are a great many
"\'egrovcit.izcns who are not now in a position to pass the test, we feal
they should be put on the roles, just put on there. This is a mechanieal
thing. The second is that we do not like to see the States abused to the
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extent. they are, As a matter of fact, if yon study the South Carolina
case you will find that, speaking on another subject, the dissent by Mr.
Justica Black—he is the one that first hrought up this concept—the
Southern States ave little more than conquered provinces. He men-
tioned that in regard to section 5. We aye talking about section 4, But
as you can see by the questions asked by yonr compatriots, hoth sections
are not well thought of by them.

Our position would he that we have the same objectives, But the
method now being used is, to say the least, not welcomed in the South.
If you project another 5 vears and then another 5 after that, and an-
other 1(‘), we are going to come to the point where you gain the enmity
of these people, and I think that we should take a new approach and
fimure out a way to get them on our side. This doesn’t seem to do it, the
1965 act. It does the job which My, Mitchell and Mrs. Freeman and all
agree have to be done, but it is not doing the job of ameliorating thie
“%)ite people who live in the South.

Now, T think that with the experiences gained to this point and with
all of the legislative history lxlml has been built up, we ought to be able
to come out with a different approach which would he less objection-
able. Nobody—and this is what T said in the very beginning—in the
role of a peacemalker is po‘pu\m‘ with both sides, Yon will not like cer-
tain parts of the peace offering, and T am sure Senator TWrvin won't
like others, but there should be a little give, in my opinion, from the
very hardnosed application that has been used here in the 1965 act as
Justice Black mentioned. This is onr plea that you consider the pro-
posal. We are not infallible and we don’t claim that our snggestion is
the only solution, We suggest. it as a method which might open your
thinking process to come up with a different method.

Senator Bayn, I appreciate you giving vs these thoughts, and T
frankly want to find 2 way in which we ecan—maybe the white citizens
of the South—we don’t want to be punitive in our legiclative activiry,
and we don't want to get the Federal Government involved in looking
over their shoulders all the time, UTnder the present act the Federal
Government doesn’t look over yvour shoulder until there are complnints
of discrimination. As long as they are permitted to vote, no problem. So
I want. to snggest that the only time the Federal Government gets in-
volved is when there is this kind of activity., :

I wash we could see the day right tomorrow when this type of activ-
ity would not be. ' o ‘

Mr, Ricnannson, We didn’t testify to this in our written statement,
but, since you brought it up, it would seem to me that something could
be done about one of the biggest problems mentioned by Senator Ervin
and Senator Thurmond ; jurisdiction of these cases. That is the whole
point of this dissent, which I am sure you have read, in the South
Carolina case, It seems to me they have a good point and there should
be a way to change the appronch to give 510111‘ ack their sovereignty
and at the same time accomplish the objective which the 1965 act has
accomplished so far and to continue it, Tn other words, T am not con-
vineed that we have done the best possible, | |

Senator Bayi. Are you at all concerned about—this may just be an
area that you haven’t thought about—about the fact that t%ﬁs wonld
still not deal with the problem that we tried to deal with as far as the
primary Puerto Rican system is coneerned. ' ‘

Mr. Rrcuarnson. You mean the language?
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Senator Bayy:, Yes. Well, we waived the testing, the literacy test-
ing. A person who had a sixth-grade education in an American-flag
school in a different language than the English language- —

Mr. Ricniarpson. That is no problem. In New York 1 believe they
allow the citizens there to take the test in Spanish, Am I correct? T am

not, positive.

So if there is a second language for soine of the citizens I see no rea-
son why they can’t take the test in that language. The important. part
of the literacy test is not that you trip somebody. This is ugain the un-
fortunate sitnation with literaey tests, they have become so identified
as o tool to keep people from voting that we have lost sight of the 1rue
reason for using 1t. There is a valid purpose, and it is recogmized by the
Supreme Court, and others. We don’t want to see the test made so0 you
can’t pass ii. I a person doesn't speak English and speaks Spanish,
fine, test him in Spanish. Particularly in New York where there are
newspapers which are written in Spanish, They have the sume news
we do. They can make intelligent votes, They don’t have to speak
English, There is no problem in our thought.

Senator Bavir, What are your thoughts about the Dirksen bill? 1
think it can be assumed from what you said earvlier, but for the record,
2507, the administration bill—-

Mr. Riciarnsox. We are opposed to it, because it abolishes the lit-
eracy test, and we feel that it should not be abolished. Tt should be
left to each individual State to apply it as they see fit within the
‘boundaries of the New York State concept. In other words, I don'r
want to he misquoted and leave you with the imlpression that we want

“to go back with a literacy test that requires the Negro to recite or
interpret the Constitution and have the white man read a comic strip.
“Senator Bayn. I think you have been very clear.

Mr. Ricuanpsox. T want to make it abundantly clear.

Senator Bavu. Do you want to ask some questions on hehalf of
Senator Thurmond, Mr. Smith?

Mr. Sanirin. There is one question Senator Thurmond wanted to ask
you. I am going to ask you on his behalf.

We have noted witfn interest that you have stated you agree with
the facts presented by Mr. Mitchell and that you are interested in
continuing the results that have heen obtained in the South, related
results under the Voting Act of 1965, that is vegistration and partiei-

* pation by Negroes in the election process. R
Now, speaking of an electoral process and obtaining results, Senator
| ‘Tlmrmondpointed out this morning that over 197,000 people sup-
ported the National Democratic Party’s ticket in 1968 and there were
a little better than 200,000 Negroes registered in South Carolina at
~ that particular time. We know, based on your observations, that most:
" of those were cast by Negro votes. They also voted in a lot of local
and statewide races. They just didn’t vote in the presidential elec
~ tions, they voted in ofher races. A lot of officeholders owe their politi-

. enl life to this vote. It has been inferred by various witnesses, not by .

yourself but by other witnesses, that in the event that the administra-
tion hill is-passed, or in the event the present. act is not extended for
some reason or another, then, all of a sudden, 197,000—200,000 votes
in South Carolina suddenly are going to disappear. They won't be
there any more. They won't be participating in the elective process.
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~ Now, I don’t know who is going to cause them to disappear, Cer-
~tainly it is not the lawmakers in the general assembly, many of whom
were elected by this Negro vote, It seems to us to be illogical politieally,
ilogieal and untenable to hold a position that these people are sud-
denly going to cut their own political throats in order to disenfran-
chise a great number of people in South Carolina, We feel that this
is illogical,

Do you have any thoughts on this particular observation?

Mr, Riciannsox. Well, of course, 1 have heard the Senator eavlier
today, and T heard My, Mitchell's answer, and T suppose this is where
my gonl, as T cast myself earlier as a peacemaker, comes in. I think
here I would disagree slightly with My, Mitchell on that. T don't
think that we would revert to the snme conditions which existed prior
to, sny, 1054,

Noaw, he has his reasons for saying it and he has been in the State
and it is his professional life to follow it. 1 won't disngree with him,
but T cannor believe in my own mind that after all of this that the
people of Mouth Caroling, for example, will bring vengeance u‘mu
the electorate in the manner you pose in the question, And our ability
as a soothzayer—what was the word that Senator Frvin zaid--a pro-
phetie, adviser, or something which he mentioned earlier——

Senator Bavi. That is confined to Members of the U.S. Senate.

Mr, Ricuannsox. Yes, sirg thank you,

Senator Bavir, You may put in the record that was said facetionsly.

Mrv. Ricianpsox, In any event, we are not endowed with it. We
could be wrong, but T just don't feel that the many fine people 1 know
personally and from working here on the Iill and who come from the

South would take personal vengeance. This is what you are saying,
~ On the other hand, T would not engage in a dispute with it with M.
Mitchell.

My, Satrerr, On behalf of Senator Thwrmond, T want to thank vou
for coming and appearing here today.

Senator Bayh, I appreciate the right to ask questions for Senator
Thurmond, '
~ Senator Bavi, That iz all vight. You know, none of us know what

“is going to happen. T know there are increasingly large numbers of
- white people—I haven’t been in South Carolina recently, but I have
“been in some of the other States, and T know there is a reawakening
“and a realization as a need to move in this divection. It still seems
“tome that we have to recognize that right now. '
- In the last year or two there have been overt efforts made on the
- part of some and unfortunately it really isn't suflicient standard to
- say that the majority of counties in the State meet qualifications or
~do the job right, Tn my judgment we need to have a svstem that guar-
~.antees as much as it can that every county is giving every voter the
- right to vote if he meets the standards across the board. Yet we have,
~in the things concerned here, the effort made to take those county

—connriissioner districts thiat were individually elected and now that
the Negro citizen has a right to vote for a Negro commissioner and
instead of going ahead with that, abolish the district and we oleet
~ “them conntywide, '
 Now, the reports made in the Civil Rights Commission report, and
some of our colleagues on this conmittee do not look kindly on that
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report. 1 would have to say that I would feel that those who made
it did =0 in good faith, and perhaps the instances that they portray
there are not characteristic of what is going on all over the States
in question. But I don’t believe they would contrive these instances
where poll watebers were foreed to leave precinets, where illiterate
black voters denied to take a rvelative o someone they trusted into a
voting hooth witl them, where loration precinet eaucuses were carve-
fully hidden, where there was intimidation to keep black voters from
going inte these precinet eancnses, where people were reportedly
thrown out of their houses when they went to the polls—the landlord
threw them out, s long ax we have this type of environment existing
I think we have some need to do more than just treat. these problems
categorieally. That is the feeling that many of us have when we think
the temptation is going to he here,

My, Ricpaensox, May I comment /

Senator Bavn, Yes, please, I don't want to prolong this, but [

Mr. Ricuarpsox, Well, this is the interesting parvt of the whole
thing, when you get down to the philosophy of it,

I would ngree with you, 1 feel t‘mt it is very bad, but [ would point
ont to you, Senator, that what you are talking about now—and 1 ngree
with it 100 percent—is what comes from the heart of an individual.
Now, if a landlord throws a tenant out, to me it shows a lack of an
understanding heart. What we are trying to do, it secms to me, talking
philosophieally, 15 to change the hearts of people. I think history will
~how that if we become repressive in onr governmental actions we will
not change their hearts. .1l you will do is drive them against the wall
and they will fight back with like kind, fire with fire. ”

The burden of our approach here, we offer to you, is a compromise,
you might say, not a compromise of gouls but a compromise to effec-
tunte the same goals with a different attitude. 1 would hate to think
that if we make this law even stronger and stronger and stronger until
we finally get that last person down there who has thrown a tenant
ont—1 don’t know what is going to happen. We have only hardened
the position. We have not. softened the position. ‘This is the thing we
are trying to accomplish, We want everyone to vote and everyone
registered, hecause tllmti is the only way our democratioc system will
work, But at the same time, the repressive nature against the South
is such that you can see it yourself. 1 don’t have to comment on it.
This is what T think we should try to work out. o |

Senator Bavin The changing of the hearts of individuals, of course,
is what we are trying to do. My face isn't black and neither is yours,
and neither is yours, Mr, Smith, So we can’t very well express the feel-
ing we would have if we had to go through this experience of being
denicd and our parents and grandparents being denied the right to
vote just beeause our face is black. | ' |

I wonder—I think there is a lot in what you say. Mr, Smith, about -
the constitueney involved in some of these State legislatures, T wonder
if tha constitueney is sufliciently aflected by new registered voters, T
think when all of the prospective Negro voters are registered, as near
ax they can, not 100 percent—T don’t think that is a reasonible goal—
but they are registered, then the incentive is going to he there not to
diseriminate against them. But right now T don’t think we have gone
that far, and I think there may well be some white State legislators

47N To—. . 1
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who really don't want to discriminate, who really want to give the
Negro the right to vote, but reqlizing the majority of their con-
stituency that otherwise if they didn’t have that Federal law sm,'mﬁ
“ thou shalt not discriminate, would yield to the temptation to go back
‘and pass some law which would not be discriminatory on its face, such
as a requirement that you had to reregister every 2 years, which is not
an inconceivable types of vehicie that could be used—this would in
effect undo everything that has been done. That is the type of thing
that concerns me,

Mr. Ricuarpson, Gettin}i back to your comment about none of us
being of the Negro race and not knowing how we would act. I would
hope we would be ns gracious in that situation as Mr, Mitchell appears
to be. |

Senator Barn, You know what, I doubt if many of us would be.

My, Ricnarosoxn, Well, I said I hope that we wonld be,

Senator Bayu, It is just so easy and it is so easy for those of us who
haven't the foot in the center of that circle and haven’t been treated
that way to examine how we would act. It would be very trying.

I np%)reciato your patience and your willingness to give us your
ideas, I know in the future you will follow our activities and I will
be glad to hear from you at any time.

Ve will recess until tomorrow at 10 o’clock, and this will be in room
2228, tomorrow, which will be to hear the Attorney General,

Thank you,

(Wherenlgl?n at 4:13 p.m., the committee was in recess, to reconvene
tomorrow, i(fuy, July 11,1969, at 10 a.m.,)



AMENDMENTS TO THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965

FRIDAY, JULY 11, 1968

1.8, Sexare,
Suncoyanrrer ox Consrrrurionan Rions,
or rur CoMMUITEE ON FIHE JUDICIARY,
Washington. D.C.

‘I'he subcommittee met, pursuant to recess, at 10:10 a.m,, in room
4200, New Senate Office fiuilding, Senator Sam J. Ervin, Jr, (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding,

Present: Senators Frvin (presiding), McCellan, Kennedy, Bayh,
Byrd of West Virginia, Hruska and Thurmond.

Also present: Lawrence I1. Baskir, chief counsel, Glenn Ketner and
Le\\l:is Svans, counsel, and Glenn Smith, of Senator Thurmond’s
stafl,

Senator IXrvix, The subcommittee will come to order.

Counsel will eall the first witness,

Mr. Baskm, Mr. Chairman, the first witness this morning is Mr.
Lawrence Speiser, director of the Washington office of the Ameriean
Civil Liberties Union.

Senator Ervin, I welcome you to the subcommittee, You may proceed
in your own fashion.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE SPEISER, DIRECTOR OF THE WASH-
INGTON OFFICE OF THE AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION

Mr. Seerser. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. T have a prepared state-
ment. T will not read all of it. I will try to summarize it. T would like to
have it submitted for the record at the conclusion of my testimony.

I am here to testify on the three bills that are before the sub-
committee, two'of which would extend the Voting Rights Act of 1965
with respect to the discriminatory use of tests and devices, literary,
literacy tests and character tests, and the third, which is the ad-

‘ministration proposal, S. 2507 which would amend the Voting Rights
Act of 1965 in several respects.

The Voting Rights Act of 1965 was a major breakthrough in pro-
viding an effective instrument to meet the problem of racial diserim-
ination against‘potentinl Negro voters. Prior to its enactment, it was
‘clear that earlier laws, inch'xﬁing the Civil Rights Acts of 1957, 1960,
and 1964, had failed to remedy the persistent and ontrngeous denials
of the right to vote to Negro citizens primarily in the South. Hundreds
of thousands of Negroes were continuonsly disenfranchised in flagrant
defianze of the provisions of the 15th amendment,

The major methods to disenfranchise them were the literacy tests,
the tests requiring good moral character and the understanding of

(157)
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prts of the State constitution and State Tnws, and similay devices
which wore utilized in Southern States, ‘

As o result A7 percent of all voting age Negroes, 2,500,000 of them,
living in 11 Sonthern States, were not pegistered to vote as Inte as
Novemboer 1964,

The Vating Rights Aet of 1965, ns 1 said, was a major hreakthrough
Beenuse i suspended the use of these torts or deviees inany State orany
politieal subdivision in which less than 50 lwm:vn! of the persons of
voting age resided or voted during the presidentinl election of Novem-
hoer 1961,

At the present time the Voting Rights Aet has suspended the use of
these tests o deviees in Mabmmn, Georgin, Louisinn, Missizsippi,
South Cavoling, Virginia and 39 counties in North Carolina,

The result of the suspension is to require each of these Sintes oy
politienl subdivisions, before the passage or the utilization of uny
new legislation affecting voting standards or procedures, o seek the
approval of the Mtorney General or the approval of the court in the
Distriet of Colunbin,

I the court Huds that no test or deviee hus heen used durving the
preceding H vears for the purpose of or with the effect of diseriminm-
tion, then the har will he fi fted, Sinee the Voting Rights et of 1965
will he in effeet for b yenrs by Augast 6, 1970, unless it is extended all
of these tests which have been suspended will be able to be reinstituted
by the jurisdictions where they are now presently unenforeed.,

We believe this would permit history to repeat itself,

After the Civil War, Negroes participated in the politieal life of
Southern States on a broad basis, In many States they atfained some
politieal power, Nevertheless, throngh a series of strategems, fraud
and violence, Negroes were effectively cut ont of all of the politieal
life in the South, ‘

Under pressure, intimidation, and lawless dizerimination, most
simply abandoned their efforts to vote, A< documented in the very
excellent report issned by the 1.8, Commission on Civil Rights, en-
titled **Political Parvticipation,” Negroes were barred from voting by
the use of these “good charaeter™ tests, by civie understanding tests, by
poll taxes, property qualifieations, vesideney requirements and a list
of disfranchising evimes which were thought to be committed more
often by Negrovs than by others,

The story is not a pretiy one, and it should not he pormitted to
happen again, ,

Since the Yoting Rights et of 1085, registration of Negroes has
skyrocketed. Although it has not yet reached the same percentage as
that of the white population, the change is indeed improssive. For
example, in the following States the percentages have gone up in
this fashion s ‘ ‘ :

In Alabama before (he 1965 Aet, 19.3 percent were registered, after
the aet 56.7 pereent: for Gieorgia it was 27.4 percent, it is now 56,1
pereent: Louisiana, 31,6 percent. hefore, 59.3 percent now, Mississippi
6.7 percent. and now 59,1 percent,

There have heen 200,000 Negroes who have registered in the Sonth
sinee the 1965 act, These spectacnlar ehanges would clearly seem to
indieate that Congress without further ado shonld confinie on this

“tried and true path and extend the provisions of the Voting Rights
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Act of 1905 for an additional 5 yenrs as provided in S, 818 and LR,
1233006,

However, the administration has introduced a new hilly X, 2007,
which would amend the Voting Rights Act in a number of substantial
wavs and which deserves serious consideration,

‘I'he sdministiation proposal is designed to extend the coverage of
the Voting Rights Aet to the entive Nation by five provisions:

1. There would be u tempornry nationwide ban on all literacy tests
or devices used to qualify voters in any Federal, State or local election,

2, "There would be abolition of Siate resideney vequirements for vot-
ing in presidentinl elections,

3, Tt would authorize the Attorney General to dispateh voting ex-
aminers and observers anywhere in the Nation where voter disfran-
chisement. is suspected,

4. 1t would grant nationwide anthority 1o the Attorney General to
start voting right suits and to ngk for a freeze on diseriminatory vot-
ing laws, :

o, Creation of a Presidential Commission to study voting diserimi-
nation and other corrapt practices.

some of these gonls in the administration proposal are highly com-
mendable, The abolition of literacy tests and residency vequirements
wre objectives that the Amerienn Civil Liberties Union has long sought,

There are some who helieve that illiterates shonld not he permitted
to vota, However, this is to penalize illiterates for the failure of their
Government to provide adequate education for all. It is within the

wower of the Federal Government to insure that every citizen is
iterate,

It is outrageous to diseriminate against. those who have no power
to remedy their conditions: to keep from them the only power they
have to improve their condition by denying them the right to vote for
their representatives,

Miterates are very much affected by the results of elections; they
ought, to be able to participate in them.

Contrary to popular belief, literacy is not a prerequisite for intelli-
gent voting, Given the means of modern mass communieation, radio
and television, there is no reason why any citizen cannot he well in-
formed on the issues involved in any election, There is no justifiea-

“tion for maintaining tests which disfranchise illiterntes.

By the sume logic there is no veason for a State to deny anyone
within a State the right. to participate in an election for President and
Vice President of the United States beeanse of failure to meet a yesi-
dency requivement. No one is less qualified o make an intelligent.

- choiee in sueh an eleetion simply hecause he has not lived in any given
State for a specified period of time, |

The President. and Viee President ave the leaders of the conntry
Aor all of us. There is no special interest. in a State in setting qualifi-
cations for who ean vote for President. or Viee President,

Noone is less qualified to make an intelligent. choice merely because
he has failed to satisfy residence requirements which rank as high as
Qlyom*s in =ome States, in order to vote for President and YVice Pres-
ident,

. The ACLAUs attempt several years ago to establish this constitu-
‘tional prineiple wis lost in a case called Drveding v. Devlin, which
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wus o challenge to the Maryland State provision requiring 1 year's resi-
dence in order to vote for the President and Viee President,

The Supreme Court summarily afivmed without briefs and without
argument. Although we lost the battle I sup‘mm yvou might. say we
won n minor victory heeause during the pendency of the. action the
State attorney general recommended to the State legislature that- it
drop the 1-vear rosideney vequiresaent to 45 days which was adopted
hy the State legislature, co

It is vory ‘nteresting to note that the very smme issue is now heforo
the Supreme Court in the cuse of Halls v, Beals, challenging the 6-
month reside, -y requirement of the State of Colorado,

Although we find much to commend these two amendments proposed
by S, 2507, we believe that come of the other proposed amendments
wonld, in fact, he disustrous vetrogressions, ’

Seetion () of the Voting lezhls Act of 1065 bars the use of any
literaey, “gond moral characier” or edineational achievement {est in
any State or political subdivicion where less than 50 percent of the
eligible adults werve registered or voted in the 1964 presidential
election,

However, the ban may be lifted by the filing of an action by the
State in a three-judge Federal court in the District. of Columbin
and by proving that the test had not been used in a diseriminatory
fashion for the preceding 5 years.

Thas the test in seetion 4(a) and seetion b is really one aimed at
acinl diserimination,

S, 2507 would amend seefion 4 (a) to ban all tests and devices, nsed
to qualify voters thronghout the country, whether or not racial dis-
crimination is involved.

The Supreme Court has upheld the provisions of the Voting Rights
Act of 1965 in the pazt hused on the sweeping powers given to Congress
by the 15th amendment, in the ease of South Carolina v. Katzenbach.
It had another case, Kalzenbach v, Morgan, in which they based their
decision under the 14th amendment, which barred the use of Tnglish
literaey tests in States where individuals had completed the sixth grade
inan American-flag ~chool in some other language.

The court rensoned in these two eages that the enabling clauses of
the Hth amendment and 154h amendment were intended to give
Congress all the power necessary to pass legislation which was appro-
wiate to bring ahout the objectives of the amendment <, Yet the m‘lmiw |
1stration’s proposed seetion 2 iz not directly aimed at racial disérimina-
tion, even though it has heen shown that sueh diserimination exists
outside of the seven States that are presently covered by the Voting
Rights Aet. | |

There arve, for example, disevepancies between voting registration
by Negroes and by whites in other States, some of which do not have
literaev teste, Sueh States as A rkansas, Flovida, Oklahoma, Tennessee,
and Texns have also heen accused, and there has heen documentation
of the accusations by the Civil Rights Commission, of diserimination
and yet they would not be affected hy section 2 of the administration
proposal, because it is only aimed at baring literacy tests throughout
the country, ' ‘

Tn those States which do have literacy tests, many of them have not. .
been charged with diserimination, and Congress has not vet conipiled -
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tools for discrimination,

What T am suggesting is another kind of record hus to be made
before yon ean adopt section 2, which bans the literncy tests or the
other qualifications nationwide, ' |

1t has to be shown that those arve standing in the way of franchise,
whether or not racial dizcrimination is ‘nvolved, and that kind of
record has not yet heen made before Congress.

Senator Bavi, Mr, Chairman, would you indulge me to ask one
brief question right here?

Senator Favix, Yes, sir

Senator Bavu, Mr, Speiser, I apologize for interrupting your testi-
mony.

My, Seriser, Please do not hestitate,

Senator Bayn. I appreciate yonr contribution here, It will be very
helpful to the committee and to the Congress. Would you elaborate on
that particular point, because T think this is the nub of being either
for or agninst the administration’s position as far ns an outright ban
cven for 8 vears and 4 months of literacy tests, Could you be more
specific as fo what criterin Congress has to meet. hefore it ean con-
stitutionally ban literacy tests or suspend them? ‘

Mr. Seeiser. It seems to mo that Congress, in trying to ban literacy
tests—if Congress cannot show that literacy tests in States ontside of
the South are having the effect of barring Negroes or other minority
gvoups from voting, because they are racially motivated or they operate
in a racially diseriminatory fashion—there must he shown some other
basis than the 15th amendment which is aimed at preventing dis-
crimination based on race, color, or previous condition of servitude, in
order to establish the congressional basis for passage of section 2,

Senator Bavin T want to ask that same question of the Attorney
General very frankly, and T imagine that he will say, and T want to
yut this in the equation, that as a vesult of the Gaston County case, it
is true in the southern part of our country that where you have nnequal
education literacy tests discriminate per se, then as he mentioned in
the Flouse, ns these same people that are poorly edueated move Norih,
the application of the literacy test there is diseriminatory per se al=o.
Would vou put that in your equation in your answer?

Mr. Spriser. Yes. Tn Gaston County they showed there had heen
searegated and unequal schools in Gaston County.

Tf you are going to move outside of the South and are raising the
question nbout literacy tests in the North, about States that have
them, you are going to have to establish the fact that either the schools
there were segregated and provided unequal edneation or you are
going to have to cstablish how many Negroes moved there who had
come from States with nnequal schools, and you are going to have to
establish the fact that this type of bar is based on that unequal school-
ing. I do not helieve that Congress yet has had that kind of informa-
tion. | .
There are some States that do not have very much migration in it
which have literacy tests. Now what is the theory on which you can
han literacy tests in those States. N
~ Also, some of the tests that are going to be affected by this are good
~ character tests. For example, the State of Tdaho bars prostitites from
voting or people who live in house of ill-fame. You don’t have any

the necessary evidentinry revord that literncy tests ave being nsed s
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racinl motivation that 1 ean think of there in the State of Idaho hut

‘there has fo be some kind of congressional basis, It is authority to
set aside State Jaws, This is really a States vights kind of nrgument,
that before the Federal Government———

Senator Bavu, Tt is vather unique coming from Larry Speiser.,

Mr, Speiser, T am not embarrassed by it, Before the' Federal Goy-
ornment can set aside or suspend State-passed lnws or tests or devices,
there is going to have to be n renson for the Federal nuthorit ¥y moving
into this aven, and it ceems to me that the authority is going to have
to come under either the 14th or the 15th amendment. Tf you ennnot
do it under the 15th amendment beeause you cannot. show' racial dis-
crimination, then you are going to have to show that there is some
kind of diseriminntion, perhaps not hased on race, whicl provides the
basis for the Federal Government {o operate, That kind of vecord
has not heen made heeansge the foeus in the past when the Voting
Rights et eame up was entively on the questio nof the use of these
tests in States where they had been implemented—they had been put
into existenco——specifienlly to bar Negroes from voting,

Senator Bavu, How large a burden of proof do we have there?
What wumber of examples do we need {0 have? For example, let us
suppose if you conld pernse statistically the significant nmumbers of
poorly edueated people from the southern part of the conntry that
moved North, thie would be one evidence. How many evidences of
school systems which diseriminate in the Novth wonld be needed. to
really o to constitutional eases ?

Mr. Seraser, T eannot answer that question, AN T can sav is that if
you held hearings on the administration proposal o that that kind of
record conld he built up, foeusing on that problem, then it seems to me
that it wonld sort of he n self-answering kind of question, hut von
have not had that. You did not have that when the Voting Riehts Aot
was heing congidered. The foeus there was on the South, The focus
there was on the wse of literacy tests and other devices in the South.
When you talk ahont stopping the use, suspending the nse of literacy
tests, good moral charvacter tests, whatever (he fests ave in other areas,
and you have not the proof that thev are racinlly motivated, vou shonld
have a hearing on that specifie problem to provide the kind of evidence
on which the Congress ean aet. T think that Coneress ~hould bave
that kind of evidence and shold hold heavines on that, but that it
seems Lo e, and as von may know from my statensem is n problens
](‘llll;i should he considered after the extension of the Votinge Right«
ill.

Fhe Votine Rights hill was aimed at a specifie problem, Tt has done
excellent work, Tt should be: continued. After that it =eems to me the
administration proposal shonld he given earnest congiderafion, and-
give the administration the opportunity to present that Lind of evi-
dence, ’ o

One problem is that under the Civil Rights Aet of 1964 there was
supposed to have heen a census, but it was never made. The funds were
never anproprinted. The Bxeentive never asked for thau, and we do
not reallv have the facts about the effect of literacy tests an black and
white alike. simply hecanise that eensus was never made, the funds were
never a<ked for and the Burean of the Census never eonducted i,

Senator Bave. Thank vouvery mueh,

.

~Thank you, My, Chairman.
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My, Npriser, AN of this and the colloguy suggests the answer that
even if there were no defeets in 8, 2007 the expansion of the Voting
Rights Aet to nationwide covernge respecting literey and other tests
muzt he granted on a ditferent factunl busis than the Voting Rights
Aet of 1965, That record has not been mnde, and for this reason alone,
ax I said, the Voting Rights Aet should be extended for 5 years while
consideration is given to the administeation proposal S, 2507,

In addition, there is a seeond, und more important veuson why we
nre opposed to the enaetment of S, 2507 in its present form, Tt would
not «m‘y fail to achieve its gonl of expanding the profection for vot-
inge vights, but. it would also netunlly decrease rather than increase the
effectiveness of the Voting Right= \et of 1085,

Secetion 3 of the bill would vepeal the present section 5 which is in
many ways most vital to its overall effectiveness, Seetion b is what is
enlled [|n'ovh‘m*nnm procedine, It requirves any State or politieal sub-
division hefore it changes uny qualificntions or procedures that come
under the coverage of the bill at the present time either to ohtain the
approvai of the Attorney General ov to initinte a suit in the U.S, Dis-
triet Conrt for the Distriet of Columbin, If the Attorney General
objects to any of the changes they may not be enforeed antil the conrt
rales that they do not have the purpose and will not have the effect of
denying to any person the right to vote heeanse of his race or color,

It the Attorney General does not object, then the new qualifien-
tions or procedures may be enforeed 60 days after theiv submission.

seetion 3 of the administration hill would repeal this provision and,
instend, wonld authorvize the Attorney ( h»noral| to ceek an injunetion
in a three-judge distriet court against the enforcement of any voting
qualification or procedure which Tas the purpose or effect of hridging
the right to vote on account of yace,

T'he objections to this proposed change, and to the elimination of
the preclearance procedure, are many, First of all, it would reinsti-
tute civil litigation as the basic means of tryving to proteet the right
to vote, and the expericnee has been that it simply does not. work.
You eannot keep up with the changes, Litigation is slow. The amount
of time and manpower that goes into a case is formidable, The
Supreme Court in Sowth Cacoling v, Katzenback case said it took
about. 6,000 man-hours, combing through registration records alone
in preparation for trial, o

It simply does not work to nse civil litigation, Tt is a useful back
stop method, Tt exists nnder the present law, but to switeh from the
the preclearance procedure back to that really would be to turn history
backwards and to invite disaster, ‘

Seeondly, it puts the burden on the Attorney General to keep in-
formed of any changes in the Inw, whereas the burden i now on the
States and the politieal subdivizions to inform the Attorney General

“of any new changes in the Iaw, ' |

‘The burden of proof that: the lawe are not going to have a racial
dizeriminatory effeet is on the State, and the Supreme Court upheld
that hifting of the hurden of proof as heing baszed on the fact that
there had been systematic vesistance to the 15th amendment and Con-
grvesz might well deeide to shift the advantage of time and inertia
Fram the pervetrators of evil to its vietime, o S
Phe individual saits which ave presently allowed under the Voting
Rizhts Aet and which were sustained in‘the Supreme Court’s decision
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last month in Alen v, Board of Fducation would seem to he elimi-
nated under the change in the law, and it i< to be noted that it was
private litigants in Allen who brought to the Court’s attention the
faet. that there had been changes that were racially motivated or
would have the effect of racial diserimination in voting processes,

The Attorney Goneral argues against the preclearance procednre
by saying only 225 voting lnws hve been submitted to the Attorney
General for approval and of those only four were objected to by the
Attorney General, a very small percentage, and three of those four,
it should be pointed out, were involved in the Allen case,

He also points to the fact that a number of States and politieal
subdivisions have failed to submit their lnws for approval, From
these facts he recommends the elimination of the preclearance pro-
cedure, I find this to be a strange position for an Attorney General
to take, that becanse a law is heing ignored it should be repealed.

Secondly, the mere fact that so few of the proposals snllnuittod to
the Attorney General have heen found ohjectionable does not prove
that the precleavance procedure does not work,

On the contrary, it can be argued that it shows that hecause it is
there, the States are doing their best to comply with the procedures,
and are doing their best to ;]:et. approval, On the other hand, they are
not going to submit proposals to the Attorney General that they think
are going to ho turned down, so the very existence of the preclenrance
procedure does have that kind of impact,

In place of the present section 5, the administration wonld substitute
a provision authorizing the Attorney General to sue in a Federal court
whenever he believes a State has enacted or is administering a voting
procedure that is racially diseriminatory,

However, he already has that power under prior civil rights acts,
and he can presently sue in a three-judge court under the provisions
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

The administration alzo proposes a new commission to <tudy voting
rights. The administration fails to make a very persuasive caze or even
a persuasive case at all as to why a new commission is necessarv, There
is presently existing a U.S. Commission on Civil Rights which has
done yeoman's work in the past. If it has had any defects it is becanse
it has not had the kind of exceutive backing it shonld have, and it
has not had the financing it should have.

There is simply no justification for setting up a new commission. The
old commission, which was set up incidentallv during the Eisenhower
administration when President Nixon was Vice President, has been
giving a lot of attention to the problem of voting rights. o

It has developed a stafl' with expertise. It has compiled a backlog
of information and setting up a new commission would seem to me to
be n wasted and duplicative step. -

In conclusion let me summarize by saying we are heartily in favor of
proposals which would eliminate literacy tests and residency require-
ments for voting in presidential clections, However, we think the first
thing to do is to extend the provisions of the Voting Rights Act of
1965, which has worked in the past, and should continue to work in
the future, It has been responsible for the registering of 800,000 Ne-

ros who had not registered before, There is still a contititting need
or it. ‘ | ' ‘ ‘
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We would be opposed, after the extension of the Voting Rights Act
for 5 years, to the provisions in 8. 2507, the ndministration proposul,
which would make radical changes in the procedures, the preclearance
procedures that have worked up until now, It is good to be aware of
tho still continning concern on the pavt of the Executive, on the part
of Congress in this very vital field, _ .

A great deal of progress has been made. More needs to he made until
wa can be assured that all ndult citizens ave actively able to participate
in the election process,

Thank you, Mr, Chairman,

(‘The prepared statement of Mr, Speiser follows:)

TESTIMONY OF LAWRENCE SpEIsEnR, Digkctor, WASHINGTON OF¥FICE, AMERICAN
Civin LInERTIES UNJON

The Voting Rights Act of 1905 was a major breakthrough in providing an
offective instrument 1o meet the problem of racinl diserimination against poten-
tial Negro voters, Prior to its emuctment, it was clear that earlier lnws, including
the Civil Rights Actz of 107, 1960, and 194, had failed to romedy the persistent
and outrageous deninls of the right to vote to Negro citizens. Each of those
earlier statutes required extensive litigation, heenuse of the “massive resistance”
to their enforeement. Hundreds of thousands of Negroes were contihiuously dis-
franchised in flagrant deflance of the provisions of the Fifteenth Amendment,

The major method of barring Negro citizens from voting was the use of
Hteracy tests and other voter registration tests and deviees In many Southern
states, As n result, an estimated 57% of all voting nge Negroes—2,843,000—

‘ '1'(;&’:“ in eleven Southern states were not registered to vote ax Inte as November,

The key provisions of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 suspended the use of these
tosts or deviees in any state or any politienl subidivision where less than 9%
of the persons of voting age residing registered or voted in the Presidentinl
election of November, 1904,

At the present time, under the Voting Rights Act, the ure of literacy tests and
other voter registration tests and devices are suspended in Alnbama, Georgia,
TLouisinna, Mississippi, South Carolina, Virginia and 39 comnties in North Caro-
ling. Al of these named states and countles are required, before passage of any
new legislation affecting voting, to seek conrt approval or to submit such legis-
Ition to the Attorney General for his determination that it does not violate the
Fifteenth Amendment, )

According to the provisions of the Voting Rights Act of 1905, the states and
connties which are presently barred from using these literaey tests will be per-
mitted to petition a three-fudge Federal court. in the District of Colnmbila after
August 6, 1970 for the right to escape from these provisions of the Act. If the

~ Conrt finds that no test or device has been used during the preceding five years
for the purpose of, or with the effect of diserimination, then the bar will be 1ifted.
Phose states nnd connties will then be able o reinstitute the exact snme types
of tests that were previously outawed by the Voting Rights Act beeause they had
been n=ed to disfronchise Negroes. 4
~ "I'his would permit history to repeat itself, After {he Civll War, Negroes particl-
pated in the political life of Southern states on a broad basis. In many states they
attained some political power. Nevertheless, throngh n scries of strategems,
fraud and violence, Negroes were effectively cut out of all the political life in
" the South. Under pressure, intimidation, and lawless diserimination, most simply
. abandoned their efforts to vote. As documented in the excellent report issued
May, 1068, by the U.8. Commission on Civil Rights, intitled “Political Participa-
tion,” Negroes were barred from voting by the use of “good character” tests and
the reguirement that applicants pass literacy nnd “eivie understanding® tests.
There were also other means used to disfranchise Negroes such as poll taxes,
property qualifieations for registering. residency requirements and a list of ‘as-
franchising crimes expanded to include offenses believed more often committed
“hy Negroes, The story is not a prelty one, and it shonld not be permitted to
. happen again, . : : : S I N
_Under the Votlng Rights Act of 1965, registration of Negroes in all Southern
states has skyrocketed, Allhiough it has not yet reached the same percentage a8
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the white population. the chunge s Impressive, For example, in the following
stittes the percentages huve gone up in thig fashion :

{in percent]
Praact Postact
tepistration registration

e

Alabama. ..., ..

. 19.3 5.7
Georgid., ... o L, . . . a4 5.1
Lovisama .. . ... . ..., . e e e . 3.6 5.3
Mls*mup e e e s 6.7 59.4

These speetaenlar changes would seem to indiente thut Congress withont
further ado should continue on this tried and true path and extend the provi.
stons of the Voting Rights Aet of 1963 for an additionnd five years as provided
In K, 818 nnd R, 2404,

However, the Administration has Introdueed a new Wil 8, 2507, which wonld
amend the Voting Rights Aet In o nitmber of substantind ways and whieh deserves
serlous conslderition,

The Administeation proposal Is designed to extend the coverage of the Votlng
Right= et to the entive natlon by aceomplishing lve sopurate goals

(1Y N untionwide ban on all Hieraey tests or devices nsed togalify voteps
inany Federal, Stute or loeal election,

2 Abolition of stte resideney requirements for voring in presidentin
elections,

o Autharvizing the Atorney General (o dispateh vaoting exioniners and
observers anywhere in the pation where votor disfranehisoment is suspeetod,

ch Granting antionwide anthority to the AMtorney Goeneral to start voting
right ~uits und to ask for a frevze on diseriminatory voting laws,

) Creation of a presidentinl conmmmission to stndy voting diserhimination
snd other corrapt practices,

Soae of these goitls aee bighly commendable, The abolition of Hteriaey tests
s restdeney reguirements are nhjwmm the ACLU has long ~ouuht, ‘P hore are
sape who heliove that illiterates sl uot be permitted (o vote, Howevey, this
ix to penadize terntes for the faflure of thelr Governmoent to provide adeguate
eddueation for all, Tt is within the power of the federdd govermment to fnsnre
e every citizen Is Hterate, It is oiteageous to diseriminafe against {hose who
have no power to remedy their condition; to keep from them the only power
they have (o improve their condition hy depying them the vighit (o vote for thejr
representatives, Hliterates arve very mueh affected by the resnli: of elections:
they onght to he able to partlelpate in them.

Contrary (o popwlar belief, literacy Is not a prerequisite for intelligent voting.
(Given the weans of modern mass compamieition, radio aud television, there is
no rewson why any eitizen eannot be well informed on the issues involved in
any oleetion, There is no fustification for maintalning tests which disfranehise
Hiterates,

By the sitme logle there is no reason for a state to deny anyone within a
state the right to participate in an eleetion for PPresident and Viee President of
the United States by fallure to meet o residency requirement, No one is less
mrliied 1o make an inteltigent eholee In sueh an election simply becanse he h.w
not lived in any given state for a speeitied poriod of time,

The ACLI s attempt to establish this constitutionnl principle was lost several
yeurs ago in the caxe of Draeding v, Devlip, 2348 ¥, Sapp. 720, aff’d 350 U8, 129
(965, in which we challen ged the conztitutiondility of Maryland's olie year
rmlduwv requirement for mling for President amd Viee President, Although
we tost the batte, hecause the decision of the three-judge Foderal conret was
stummarily atfirmed by the Suprane Court, we did score o minor vietory in havs
ing the state l«-gi~lnlurv on the recommendiation of the ~(~m- Abtorney General,
drop the resideney reqiroment to 455 days.

It is interting to note that some fmn“\'(‘urx later, the Supreme Conrt has
Just ngreed to hmr a similar ease, Hall v, Beals, m'ab. jur., noted 37 .8, Law
Week DS (1060, challenging the six month resideney requirement for presi-|
dential elections in the State of Colorado,

Although we find much to cominend these two amendments proposed hy
8, 2507, we believe some of the other prnpos-ml zmwnﬂnwnﬂ would. in faet,. lm
dl'~ wstrous retrogressions, ‘ .
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Section 4(a) of the Voting Rights Act of 1085 bavs the use of any Heraey,
*woud morn) character” or cducntionnl aefdevement tost In any state or politienl
subdivision where less than 500e of oligible adults were registered or voted In
the 1961 presidential election, However, the bun may be Hfted hy the tiling of an
netion by the State fn o three-Judge Pedeenl Court In the Distriet of Columbia
and by proving that the test has not heen used or had the effect of denying the
right {o vote for the previous five years, The only stundard which the court may
apply e entering its judgment Is whether the “test or device has been Wsed
during the five years preceding the filug of the aetion for the purpose or with
the effect. of denying or abridging the right to vote on gecount of rice or coloe”
Thus, the test In this Sectlon and in §8 which applles to arens covered hy
40 I8 clearly one concerned with the existepce of vaeinl diserimination.

8, 2507 would amend §4(n) to ban all tests and devices, wsed to qualify
voters such as lteracy, “good moral climracter” tests, or edueatioml achieve.
wents or knowledge in any Federal, Rtate op locil election whethier or not yacla)
discrimination Ix involved,

The Supreme Court has upheld provisions of the Voting Righis Act of 1965
in the past based on the sweeping powers given to Congress by the Fifteenth
Amendment, See, South Caroling v, Kalzenbach, 33 U8, 301 (1968, Katzens
bach v, Morgan, 38§ U8, 641 (1987) Indicietes that the Fourteenth Mmendment
can nlso he used.

The Court rensoned in these two cases that the cnabling elnnsex of the Pouy-
teenth and Fifteenth Amendinents were intepded to glve Congress all the power
necessary to puss legislation which was approprinte to bring about the objec.
tives of the amendments, Yet Section 2 of 8, 2507 is not diveetly afmed at ending
racinlly motivated voting discviminntion even though it has been shown that
such diserimination exists outside of the seven states presently covepsl hy the
Votlug Rights Aet, There ave, for exmmple, diserepaneies botween votlng vegls
tration by Negroes and by whites in stiutes ontslde of those in the deep South
some of which do not have literacy fest<, For exmmple, Arkansas, Florlda, Okla-
homa, Tennessee and Texas have been ftecused of racially diseriminatory voting
practices, hut none of these states nre among the fourteen which have JMteracy
festg and therefore would not be affected by this Neetion of the hill,

In those giates which do have Hteracy tests and which have not been eharged
with discrimination, Congress hax not yet compiled the necessary ovidentinry
record that the lteracy tests are heing used as tools for dixerimination,

1t has been argued that beciiiuse the psreentage of Negro voters in some dis-
triets which have literacy tests is lower than it Is in some distriets which do
not have Mteraey tests, the literacy tests are the cause of discrimination. It is
deplorable that Negro (or for that matter any minority group) participution
in elections is low in any district, But the mere presence of a Hteracy test tn
that district cannot be conclusive evidence that it is boing used to diseriminate,
Often there are other explanations, For example, Negroes may he psychologienlly
intimidated hy the fact that they were rejected before, or by unfoiinded fenrs
that they would he persecuted or by fears that they will not be qualified.

All of this suggests the answer that even If there were no defects in S, 2007,
that its expansion of the Voting Rights Act to natlonwlde coverage in barring
literacy tests and other devices and residency requirements for presidentinl
clections, must be grounded on a different factuanl basis than the Voting Rights
Aot of 1965, Scction 4 of the Voting Rights Act was bused on the Fifteenth
Amendment’s prohibition against discrimination in voting based on race, color,
or previous econdition of servitude. ‘ ,

Iut the new expanded scope must be based on the Fourteenth Amendment’s
probibition against aiy kind of diserimination whether racially niotivated or not.

“hat record-has not been mide and for this reason alone, the Vofing Rights A\t
should be tmmediately extended for five years, while consideration is given to
the hroader proposg] in S. 2507, ‘ s

T siddition, thereis a second and more hmportant reason why we are opposed
to the enactment of 8. 2507, It wounld not only fall {o dchieve itx gonl of ex-
panding the protection for voting rights, hnt it would also actually deerense
rather than increase the effectiveness of the Voting Rights Act of 1965,

Section 3 of the bill would repeil the present §5 of the Act which is in
many ways most vital to its overall effectiveness. Sectlon 5 of the Voting Rights
Act requires any state or -political subdivision covered by the Act which sceks
to change its voting qualifications or procedures either to obtain the approval

“of the Attorney General or to initlite n suift in the U.S, District Conrt for the
Distriet of Coulmbia, If the Attorney General dbjects to the changex they may
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not be enforeed until the court rules that they do nol have the purpose nud will
not have the effect of denying to any person the right to vote beeause of Wis race
or color, 1f the Attorney General does not object, the new qualificationg or proce-
thares may be enforced 60 days after their submission,

Scctlon 8 of 8, 2507 would repeal this provision and, instead, would authorize
the Attorney General to seek an injunction in a three-judge Federal distriet
court agalnst the enforcement of any voting qunlificatton or procedure which
has the purpose ov effect of abridging the right (o vote on account of ee,

The obfectious to this proposed change In the Inw are mauy, Fivst of ali, it
would reinstate the old clvil litigntion method which existed prior to the 1905
Act and which was found to be so defective and jnefliclent, It was clearly the
congressionn? fntent 1o elfminate the necessity tor relying ou such elvil ltga-
tlon In order to strike ut the evil of racinlly diseriminatory practices, The
Supreme Court In South Cuiolina v, Katyenbach, 383 UK, 301 (1960) persnusively
stated why the old method simply did not work :

“Votlug sults are usually oncerous to prepare, sometimes rvequiring as many
ax 6,000 man hours spent combing through registration records In proparation
for trinl. Litigation has been exceedingly slow , , . Even where favorable decislons
huve flnally been obtained some of the states affected have merely switched
to diseriminatory devices not covered by the Federal decrees or have enacted
dilicult new tests designed to prolong the existing disparity between white
and Negro registeation,” (at p. 314)

To reinstitute the system of civil ltigation as the bhasie method of preventing
states or polltical subdivisions from instituting roclally diseriminatory voting
procedures s to invite disaster, Lven if the Attorney General were successful
in a sult there would he nothing preventing a state or politicaul subdivision from
adopting some new racially motivated procedure in order to bar Negroes or other
minority groups from voting. Surely the fact of 800,000 new Negro registrants
who have been enfranchired since the adoption of the Voting Rights Act of
1905 cannot be Ignored as a most persuasive argument against relinnce on
ejvil lHtigation as a means for keeping the voting process pure,

This new proposal places on the Attorney Geuneral the almost insurmountable
burden of keeping himself informed of every new voting law whereas under
the current provision the states are required to inform him or the District
Court of any new law thoey propose. Even after he discovers what appears to be
a raclally motivated discriminatory law, he must carry a heavy burden of
proof. In many cases, it would be almost virtually impossible for the Attorney
General to prove a law will have a raclally discriminatory effect unless he
allows the law to be instituted and then {o investigate its actual fmpact, This
procedure would necessnrili' allow the law to do a great deal of damage before
it could be invalidated by the courts, Many thousands of Negroes could be effec.
tively disfranchised during this time. ‘

Facts developed prior to the passage of the Voting Rights Act provide the
basis for placing this burden on some states and political subdivisions. The
‘ﬁumﬁme Court pointed this out in South Carolina v. Katzendach, supra, when

sa ,

“After enduring nearly a century of systematic resistance to the Fifteenth
Amendment, Congress might well declde to shift the advantage of time and in-
ertia from the perpetrators of evil to its vietims,” ‘

Finally, §5 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 presently allows fndividunls to
sue governmental bodies to enjoin them from enforcing rieially diseriminniory
laws. In Alen v. State Board of Eleetions, 37 U8 Law Week 4168 ¢ 1960y,
the Supreme Court held that the language “no person shall be denfed the right
to vote for failure fo comply with [a new stitte enactient covered by it nat
approved under Scction 5] 37 U.S. Law Week 4170 gives individual lMtigants
the power to seek declaratory judgments that new vofing laws fall wider
§ 6. The Court noted “the achievement of the Act's lavidable goal could be ~everly
hampered, however, il each citizen were required to depend solely on litiga-
tlon instituted at the discretion of the Attorney General . . , The Attorney
General has limited staff and often might be unable to uncover quickly new
reguintions and enactments passed at the varying levels of state government.”
37 U.8. Law Week 4170-71, The language on which this declslon was based

{8 deleted by §. 2607, It is, therefore, doubtful whether individuals could still
- seck declaratory judgments if this bill were enacted, R ‘ -

The Attorhey @eneral in his testimony before the House Judiclary Commit-
~tee pointed uot thiat since the passage of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, ap-
~. proximately 225 voting laws have heen submitted to the Attorney General for
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appeoval, Of those, the Attoruey General objected to only four, Three of the
four objections involved statutes which were before the Supreme Court in the
Aen case,

The Attorney General points ont that n a number of caxes, states and pollti-
eal subdivisions have failed to submit thelr laws for approval, and they had to
be discovered by other meuns,

From these fuets he recommends ellmination of the *“preclenrance” pro-
cedure, That deex, ndeed, scem to be gt strange position for the Miorney
Genornl to (ake—that beeateo 0 law s being ignoved, It shonld be repended.
Secondly, the mere fiuet that <o fow of the proposils submitted to the AQorhey
General have bwen found objectionable dovs not prove that the “preclenrance”
procedure hus bad no fmpact, On the contrary, it can be argaed thut =tates
are pueh wore cirefal not to pass laws that will be found objectionuble,

In place of the present §5, the Administration would substitute a provision
authorlzing the Attorney General to sue i Federal conrt whenever he believes
a rtate has enncted or i administering a voring procedure that is racinfly dis-
eriminntory, However, the Attorney Generstl alveady has sneh a power under sove
erul provisions of the Voting Rights Act of 1905 as well as the Civil Rights
Act of 1957, He alko can presently sue in a three-judge court with the right
of «lh;:-x’-( appenl to the Nupreme Court under the provisions of the Civil Rights
At of 10614,

The Administration also proposes the crention of n new presidentludly ap-
pointed voting vights study conumission, It is difieult to see the necessity for thixs,
The U.8. Commisston on Civil Rights already existz, 1t has done yeoman work
it has u trained staff and has gained expertise in its 12 years of existence since
1957 when it was fonnded. If there are any deficlencles in the Civil Rights
Commission, it s because of lack of proper financing and lack of wholehearted
backing by the Executive.

In conclusion, although we are heartily in favor of elimination of lteraey tests
throughout the conntry and eliminating residency requirements as a bar fov voting
in presidential elections, we belleve that these are problems that shonld be han-
dled In separate pleces of legislution. The Voting Rights Act of 1065 has proved
its effectiveness in the fact that 800,000 Negroes are registered who were not
registered before. Its procedures have been useful and expeditious. The wisest
course for Congress to follow would be the five year extension of the ban on
- literacy devices and tests which is presently covered by the Voting Rights Act of
1965, Subscquent to that there could bhe considered some of the substantive
changes recommended in the Administration’s bill 8. 2507, However, we would
be clearly opposed to the radieal changes In procedures provided in 8. 2507 which
would climinate many of the existing safeguards in protecting voting rights,

Tt Is good to know of the concern of Congress in this very vital fleld. Great
progress has been made; more needs to be made until we reach the time when
all adult citizens actively participnte in the election process,

Senator Ervin. Am I to construe your statement to mean you favor
both the enactment of the extension of the Voting Rights Act of 1963
and also the enactment of the bill proposed hy the administration?

Mr, Seeiser, 1 think you have overstated my position. Tam in favor
of the extension of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, I am in favor of
two of the provisions of the administration’s proposal. T am not in

“favor of the changes in procedures that arve provided for in the nd-
~ ministration proposal. T also suggest a time schedule. You, Mr. Chair-
‘man, have spoken about how things come in their due time, and it
seems to me that first things should come first. |

The first. thing is to extend the voting rights bill of 1965 for an
additional 5 years and then take up the administration bill, in order
to make a record for those two provisions of which T am heartily in
favor.

Senator Ervin. You suggested that there is no basis for the enact-
ment of the administration’s bill, and there is no proof that outside

of the South there is any racial discrimination in registration and

voting in the United States.
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My Seeser, Nog D did not say that, 1 said that there was no puoof
that tests and devices, sueh as literaey tests, and good moral chaynetor
tests, have been used for rucinl diseriminatory purposes ontside of the
south, T said that they exist outside of the Sonth, they exist in some
14 other States, but 1 said that there is ne record that has been made
to show that those tests have been nsed or have the effect of racial
dizerimination in their use in the States ontside of the South,

senator Kevin, Well, you could apply the 1965 Voting Rights At
to every State in the Union which has literacy tests, ﬁ' yon wonld
merely rise the percentage of those who nimst come ont and vote to
keep them from applying.

M, Seeser, | suppose vou could,

Senator Ervin, Now the Voting Right Aet does not condemn nny-
hody on the basis of diserimination, but it says that diserimination
exists when either less than 50 pereent of the persons of voting age
in a State are registered, or less than 50 percent of those of voting
nge, even of those who may be registered, come ont and vote,

Mr. Seriser. You are entively correct, My, Chairman, and what
Congress did was to develop a trigger mechanism, They did not wuse
the word “race” and they did not get involved in trying to prove
something, They had facts before them, They created a trigger mecha-
nism to cover certain arens, and T think it was well recognized that
ixexactly what they were doing,

Senntor Ervin, And under the trigger mechanism which they de-
veioped, a State could register everybody of voting age in the Stute
irvespective of the vace, If they had 100 percent of the people on the
registontion hooks, thus giving them an opportunity to come out and
vote, and if less than 50 percent of them availed themselves of the
opportunity the State stands condemned of diserimination, does it
not, under the——

Mr. Seeisen. It comes under the provisions of (he act. T gness the
difference is, Mr. Chairman, as to whether it is condemned, to u-e
your term, It comes under the provisions of the act, so that those de-
vices and tests are suspended.

Senntor IKrvix, Don’t they stand condemmned of having violated the
15th amendment. which only applies to discrimination based on race

My, Seriser, There were jin'imfiot'iuns that came under the provisions
of the act. in which there had been no aceusation of racial diserimi-
nation, They came under the formula that was developed, and the
Supreme Court =aid, perhaps it is a little overbroand, but it accomplishes
the major purpose it sought to. Alaska eame under it. There were
connties in Arvizona, one in IHawaii, which ~till comes under the pro-
vision, where tests are suspended, and there has not lieen any acensa-
~tion of racial disevimination involved in those jurisdictions. Tt was a
trigger mechanism that was deafted and 1 grant you, Mr. Chairman,
it does 1ot say anything about race in that trigger meelianism, I it
wis drafted in feaming it at jurisdietions where the problem was most
acute, and i it was overly broad, the Supreme Court said. well, von
atfempt to draw zome kind of line. and the line may operate a little
overbroadly inean avea like this, T think you have different standards
of overbreadth for eriminal statutes as compared to other kinds of
statutes,. .~ ’ S

‘Senator Egvix. Tn other words, the bill was deavn in such a fashion
“that it put the innoeent with the guilty? o '
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Mr, Sprrser, You ave posing this in tevms of innocent or guilty, and
if it were n problem of putting people in juil or taking their hiherty
away then 1 would say that Congress has to be a good deal move careful
in drawing-—-

Senutor Brvix, 1 thought you shaved that point with me that nobody
ought to he convieted of evildoing without ‘uis guilt heing proven,

My, Sersee 1oagree with you, I do not think anyone ottgrht (o be
convieted withont——-

Senator Ervix, But it does not apply in this ease,

Mr. Seeser, There nre ditfevent standards thai are utilized for
different types of congressionnl ennetments. When you get into the
eriminal law field, 1 grant vou that standard, and we will be standing
side by side on that, My, Chairman, but when you get into another
field, there are different kinds of standards in which there i< good
deal morve flexibility, ‘There is a greater chanee for overbreadth on the
part of Congress,

senator Barvix, Yes: and in every ense-—this applied in several
instances north of the Mason-Dixon line. did it not/

My, Seeiser. Yes, |

Senator Ervix, Yes; and it applies in the Watts avea of California.
It applies in certain congressional distriets and counties in New York
State, hoth of which, California and New York, have literaey tests,

My, Seeisenr. Yes,

Senator Krvin, And it would apply to them, but a politically
niotivated Attorney General considered they were not guigt v of dis-
erimination, The only people guilty of diserimination were helow the
Mason-Dixon line. , o

Mr. Serser, There is a way (o get out from under the provisions
of the act- which is to sue and Wake Connty in North Carolina got
out from underit, ‘ ‘ 3 ,

Semitor Brvin. Yes, it got ont, Tt got under it beeause the Census
Burean went down to the county and counted all of the felons serving
sentences in the State penitentinry which ix loeated in Wake Comnty.,
most. of whom came from other cotinties heeause there ave 99 other
counties, They counted them. Then they went over to Dix Hill, a_hos-
pital for the mentally ill, and counted all of the insane peaple theve,
most. of whom eanie from other connties, and when they counted
the insane people and the felons in the State prison none of whom
conld have voted anyway, they got Wake County about one one-
thousandth of an inch below the 50 percent requirement. Now that
is the way the act wasadministered,

My, Speeisenr. Mr, Chairman, any argument T owonlld attempt to
get into with vou on what is true in North Carolina I am bhound to
lose,

Senator Ervix. That about. covers that. You agree with me that
under the formula a State could register every person of voting age in
the State withont dizerimination; afford them the right to oo out
to vote and if less than 50 percent of them go ont and vote they =tand
condemned in violation of the 15th amendment.,

My, Seeiser. Yes: there is a historieal ‘basis for that. 'T'he problem:
is not just vegistration and as the Civil Rights Commission pointed
out. in its report, there are all kinds of ways of preventing people
from participating in the electoral process, It can start with party
machinery: it ean start with precinet organization; it ean involve

37-409—70—-1% ~
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election witehers, poll watchers, All of that ean be involved in it,
So even though you may have 100 percent registration, if less than
30_percent vote, it comes under the trigger mechanism.

I grant you it may be in some cases that the mechanisi is triggered
sim)g]y beenuse individuals ave not interested, and T nnderstand that -
that can happen, and can be a problem, but. the fact is that the proof
of the pudding of the Voting Rizhts Act is what the results have
been, ‘The results have heen S00,000 Negroes have registered under it
that were not pegisteved before, You compare that with the tiny
increment of numbers of Negroes that registered, prior to the 196%
act, even with the fact that we have had acts in 195}(, 1960, and 1964,
and compare that with what has happened in Mississippi, for ex-
nmple, sinee then, and it seems elear that. this operates effectively.

Now i in fact there are jurisdictions that come under the pro-
vision (hat. perhaps should not, then T do not agree with you that
this is n eonvietion, and 1 do not agree with you that it is depriving
theny of their liberties gimilar to a penal statute,

It is nnfortunate, but the faet is that this formmla has worked. Tt
has worked eifectively and worked well, and T do not. see any reason
to tamper with it.

Senator Ervin, I am intrigued. You know I have always heard
there are three kinds of liars, There are liars, damn liars and stat-
isticians, Now in North Caroling——-

My, Seriser, You have me at o disadvantage if you are going to
keep talking about North Carolina, |

Senator Irvin. Yes, North Carolina in 1062 had 258,000 blacks
registered, Tn 1067 it had 277,404 registered, an increase of 19,409 in
o years, When you contrast 47,000 in 1968, as an increase over the
258,000 in 1962, I would infer that the reason thore was an incrense
in most of those cases was hecause of these people having come of age
during that 6-year period. A lot of people do become 21 every year.

My, Seeisen. Right, ‘ ' |
__ Senator Envin, But let us go back. Don't you agree with me that a
State has no way to compel people to come out and vote

Mvr, Seersen, T am sorry, I did not hear you. :

Senator Ervin, Don'’t you agree with me there is no way in exist-
“ing law by which the State can compel people who are registered to
come out and vote? |

M. Seriser, Under present law that is right. |

Senator Ervin. And so the fact that 50 percent of the people fail
to vote for a President does not. prove there has been any diserimina-
tion at all, does it really? If less than 50 percent are registered it
- might prove it, but the fact that less than 50 percent failed to come -

out and vote ‘ ‘ A

My, Seriser, You are vight, it does not prove it, hut there are suf-
ficient. 7acts on which that trigger mechanism was created, and in the
jurisdictions to which it applies to show that it has hit at the States
where the problem was primarily the greatest. As I pointed out in
my statement there are States that are not covered by it in which
there is racial discrimination, and it has been documented that there
is racial discrimination, and they are not. covered by it. The argument
is made *Look, you did not cover all the racial diserimination that
should be covered by a Voting Rights Act nimed at eliminating racial
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dizerimination in voting, and, perhaps, you have covered jurisdictions

in which there has been no ul‘ogntinu of racinl diserimination.”
Senator v, There is another thing that makes it an unreliable
fest. Tako n State like North Carolina where the white population is
larger than the Negro. ‘Ihe Negro population is about 25 percent.
Every Nogro in North Carolina could come out and vote and if the
white people stayed at home, then North Carolina would stand con-
“denmed under this formula of practicing racinl discrimination against

Negroey, could it not?

M, Serser. Me, Chairman, you could have that kind of conclusion
and there perhaps are other kinds of trigger mechanisms which could
have been suggested, 11 the problem really 1s the fact that there is
diserimination ngainst Negroes in Southern States agninst registering
and voting and participating in the political process, then there conlc
have heen a trigger mechanism based on the percentagoe of Negroes
who are not registered, and who do not vote, It could have been framed
in that way.

'Phere was n good deal of experimentation I think in discussing
this when it was first proposed, It was framed in this way. It works
this way. There is still n job to'be done, and if the bill is not extended,
then it seems to me that you are going to have the same problem of
the States, the flagrant violators reinstituting the exact samne kinds
of tests and devices that they instituted hefore. You eannot_keep up
with the changes. You go to court. You knock one out and thero is
another one to replace it, and in the meantime people are not permitted
to vote and rogister. ‘

Now if you are arguing against any kind of trigger mechanism,
then, My, Chairman, I tl%nk you still have to acknowledge that a

trigger mechanism, putting it in this fashion without proving in every
ﬂ ;‘:uso, there is racial discrimination is really the only effective way

o | ‘

" Senator Envix. Before this we had some laws under which the Gov-
ernment or the taxpayers could have gone into Federal court and
allegred diserimination against Negroes, and the judge could have tried
“the ease without a jury, go there would not be a’chance to have south-
erners on the jury rendering a verdiet, You would have a Federal
" judge. And then you could order Federal registrars to go in and regis-
ter everybody, couldn’t they # They had that power?

Mr., Seeiser. That is exactly what was on the books, and under that
kind of provision the percentage of Negroes who were able to vote T
think in the State of Mississippi went up about 2 percent in about
an S-year period,

Senator Brvix, They could have heen registered, if the law had
heen enforeed it could have been done, could it not.?

A Seriser. No, Mr, Chairman, it is not a question of diligence or
enforcement. of manpower or willingness, The eivil litigation method
unfortunately just does not operate as a means of protecting voting
1'iglxl£s where there is a massive disenfranchisement. It just does not
work.

Senator Envin. It does not work with impatient people, People are -
so impntient to get what they deem to be right they are willing to
suspend provisions of the Constitution, '

Mr. Seeiser. Except the Supreme Court has upheld the provisions
that are involved. |



174

Senittor Ervix, Oh, yes, they did,
Mr, Seriser, In the Voting Rights Act.

Senator Lpvix, But they adopted a new method of interpretation
which had never thevetofore heen employed in the history of this
Nation. Up until the time of Nouth Carolina v, Katz ubach ‘and Ket-
zenhach v Morgan, it had always been held by the Supreme Court
that the Constitution should he interpreted to b 1 harmonious whole,
consisting of provisions of equul digmity, and it should be interpreted
in steh o way as to give ench provision itz meaning without dest roy-
ing the other provisions of the Constitution,

Now, hefore | nsk my next question I want (o Iny down a premise,

1 think you will agree with me that under section 2 of article 1 of the
original Constitution it provides that the---
House of Representatives shall be composed of members eliosen every second
yeur by the people of the severnl States and the electors Iy onch Siate shull have
the qualiflentions requisite for electors to the most numerous branel of the
State Tegislature, .

3 will usk you if it has not heen uniformly interpreted, that provision
of the Constitution, throughont the history of this Nation ax wiving
the States the right to preseribe qualifientions for voting including n
literary test,

My, Seiser, Yes,ap until the pussage of the 14th and 15h amend-
ments which places a lmitation on it—which gives Congress the power
to implement the provisions of the Hth mmendment to prevent. any
kind of diserimination, and the Congress wnder the 15th mmendment
to implement its provisions to prevent diserimination based on race,
color, or condition of previous servitude, What you have read, von are
right, is the original Constitution, but that is amended untler the
] ;Hh‘ and 15th ameifdments giving Congress that bronder power over
that; ‘ - '

“Senator Krvix, The only difference mnde by the 15th amendinent
was that no qualifications could be based on race, ,
- Mr. Sepisenr, That is the 15th; you are right,

Senator Envix. The only other Specific provision on that point is
the women’s suflvage amendment whieh provides that you enn stil)
preseribe (ualifications but: yon cannot preseribe qualifications hased
on race oy sex, '

Mr. Sepisen. Yeos; but—ro ‘ ‘ A

Senutor Exvix. And the courts have interpreted those clanses to give
the States the power to adopt qualifieations for voting, including lit-
eracey tests, in every ease subjeet to these exceptions, Iirst, that under
the equal protection clause of the 14th amendment, the first seetion of
the 14th amendnient, it must apply to evervbody in like eircumstances,

Second, there could not be any qualifications on race,

~Third, there conld not be any qualifieations hased on soy.

Mr. Seriser. Yes. 1 would add an addition to the first one, which
i that qualifieations apply to evervone in a like fashion-—also quali-
fieations must not- be unrensonable ones which is another way of stat-
ing both of these are covered by the Hth amendment’s equal protec-
tion clanse. ‘

Senator Exvix, Up to that time there had been the prineiple of law
that. nobody could be condemned for violat ing the 15th amendinent
without it being proved that they had diseriminated. Either they
had a law to diseriminate on the basis of race, or that it was shown
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that the Jaw was so manipulnted as to econstitute diserimination on
the basis of race, ‘

Mr. Segiser, The answer to that is the Supreme Court’s opinion
in South Cavolivav, ICatzenbach, :

Senator Frvin. T am talking abont what was the lnw bhefore then
and what was the interpretation of the Constitution before then,

In the South Carolina case the Supreme Court threw out the
window the Constitution ns a hnrmonious document, congisting of
provisions of equal dignity, which should be interpreted <o as to muke
every provision apply. In the South Carolina case they adopted the
theory that the Constitution is an instrument composed of mutually
repugnant and nmutually destruetive provisions of unequal dignity.
What they held in the South Caroline case, boiled down to its es-
sonce, is that the seeond scetion of the 15th amendment, which merely
gave the Congress power to enforce the prohibition agninst discrimi-
nntion on the bagis of race in voting, gave Congress the power to nul-
lifv the provisions of the second section of the first article, the provi-
sions relating to electors of the first section of the second article of thoe
C'oustitution, the provisions of the 10th amendment veserving to the
States the right to preeribe a literacy test if they wighed and the pro-
visions of the 17th amendment reluting to popular election of Sena-
tors, whieh ix identienl with the second seetion of the first article,

Mr. Speser. [ do not vead it that way, Senator, It seems to me that
to muke all these mesh, the Constitution, the body of it, «till permits
the States to set qualifieations for voting subject to the congressional
power under the implementing elanse of the 1th and 15th amend-
ments to do things to accomplish the purposes that were provided
for in those amendments, so there is a limitation which does not seem
to me to be inconsistent. ' |

The amendments ave wmeridments to the Constitution, The body of
the Constitution really only vestidets the Federal Government,

Senator Ervis, Bat the 17th wnendment was adopted after the
Lith and theith, ‘ : :

Mr. Sepiser, Yes, and therefore it hins to mesh into this as well.

Sentor Ervix, When vou get down to theovy of the decision in the
Nouth Ciaroliveease, the Court held that the second seetion of the {35th.
anendment was so powerful that it gave Congress suel vast powers
that Congress vould =uspend powers reserved to the States under the
second seetion of the first article, the first seetion of the second article,
‘the 10th amendment and the 17th amendment. Now is that not teve

M Seeiser, Youare putting it in snel-----

Senatopr Kevix. T am just putting it down on bedrock truth,

M, Seeiskne Onoan either/or basis, 1 guess’T would vespond with a
question, Tf that is the ease, and you feel that this ix uneonstitutional
‘lul' Cengress fo engage in that activity, then T assume yon wonld be
appesed to the aaministration proposal as well, for example, to knock
out the literacy test or suxpend them throughont the entive country,
no matter what the constitutional hasis iz, simply heeanse yon think
that iseonteary to the administeation’s o0 : :

Nenator Fuvis, 1 think i is aneonstitutional in certain vexpeets, hut
the difference hetween it and the Voting Rights Aot i< that the Votine
Right< At is muconstitntional in every respeet notwith=tanding what
the Mupreme Court said, In the Vorgmn cave the Sapreme Court said
the ~erond section of the Hith amendment which merely gave the
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Congress the power to enaet legislation appropriate to enforeing other

wovisions of the 14th amendment gave Corpress the power to pass a
aw which would nullify a State law which was in perfect harmony
with the other sections of the 14th amendment, and not only to do that,
but to substitute for the State voting qualifications in New York a
Federal qualification which Congress was forbidden to pass by the
second section of the first article of the Constitution, the first section
of the second article of the Constitution, the 10th amendment and
the 17th amendment.

Mr, Seriser, The amendments to the Constitution amend the Con-
stitution. They do change what existed hefore, For example, the fivst
10 amendments to the Constitution did not apply against the States,
They only applied against the Federal Govermment, But the 14th
amendment made the provisions or some parts of the provisions of
tha Bill of Rights applieable to the States, <o vou do change what.
exists before, The Congress, or rather the country, in passing nnd
adopting the 14th and 1ith amendments, did in fact limit in 0 way

“that had not existed before the provision in the hody of the Constifu-
tion that the States have a right to set qualifications for voting.

Senator Envixn, T take the position,all the Supreme Court's decisions

“to the contrary notwithstanding, that there ix no power in Congress to
destroy any provision in the Constitution, That is exnetly what they
held in both of these enses, , o _

T am one of these sort of antiquated individnals who believes (hat -
the Supreme Conrt spoke the truth in e parte Milligan when it said
that no motion more pernicious was ever invented by the wit of man
than the notion that any part of the Constitution could be suspended
at any time under any cireumstances, and that the Constitution was
a law for the Government, the rnlers, that is the Supreme Conrt. and -

the Congress, as well as for the people, - '

~ Tet's go back and talk about the Gaston C'ounty case. This bill was
passed to condemn violators of the 15th amendment. State election offi-
cinlz, innny Stete eoming under this formnla.

My, Seriser, Al the provisions of the Voting Rights Act ax T un-
derstand it are baged on the 15th amendment except for the Ameriean-
flag school provision which is based on the 14th amendment, A1 {he
rest is based on the 15th amendiment, . '

Senator Ervix, T cay it was paseed ostensibly for this parpose, Tt
condemned by an artificial rule, it condemned olection officiuls in all
the States it applies to by an artificial formula. ‘I'hen it. provided that
if they wanted to get velief from the insult and the condemmnation of
‘that formula, they could not_go to the nearest Federal comrt to get
relief. They couldn’t go anywhere on the face of the carth, not to any
judicial tribunal, except. to a court sitting here in the District of
- Colmmnbina, | | '

Mv., Seriser, That vepresents somewhat of a change but not that
major change, |

“Senator Tnvix. T flatter myself by thinking you and T share some of
the same concepts of due process of law. - :

Mr. Serigen, T know we do, '

Senator Trvin, Don't you think it is a rather shabby form of due
process of law to close the doors of the cowrts where canges of action
arise and say that parties have to journey anywhere from 100 to
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. 1,000 miles with their witnesses before they can find a court that is
- open to them? | )
T Mpr. Seeiser. Up until 1062 that is exactly what Congress required
individual citizens to do when they wanted to sue the Government,
They had to come to the District of Columbin no matter whether
they were 3,000 miles way or not, and attacks on the constitution-
ality of that principle lost consistently Congress finally—-
~ Senator Enrvix. Congress finally got so enlightened tha’ it abol-
ished that principle.

My, Serisenr. Exactly right,

Senator Ervin. It opened all the Federal courts of the country to
litigants who could get service on a_Government official.

Mr. Seriser, That is right, but before 1962 everybody who wanted
to sue the Government had to come to Washington, D.C. Now granted
that this is an inconvenience, but political subdivisions are more
capable of weathering that than individuals, and I think we can all
recognize the reason it was done. It was done to get the cases here
in the District of Columbin. It was done for uniformity, It was done
hecause the—a-

Senator Envix. It was done because you have some judges in the
District of Columbia, in the words of the U.S. News & World
Report, which said a few weeks ago, take off in flights of legal fantasy.

Mr. Seriser, I trust that the statement was not made while Judge
Burger was on the Cowrt,

Senator Enrvix. No, I think an exception wax made of him, I live
vight close to Gaston County. I am familiny with it, It was in the
snme congressional district as my connty for many years, and 1 have
held many courts in Gaston County. T am familiar with it. The
blacks in Gaston County vote the Democratic ticket and Democratic
“election officials put them all on the books, on the register. And every-
body in North Jltxi'()lilxa knows that Gaston County has practiced no
discrimination in voting. Civeunit judge, Judge Skelly Wright, said
in his opinion, 684 Federal Supplement 288 “Insofar as we are here
concerned with that part of the act which speaks for purpo=eful dis-
erimination. we must agree that Gaston County Board of Ilectors
has made commendalle efforts to have vegistration of all citizens re-
siding in that county irrespective of race or color.” And their com-
mendable efforts got them condemnation, in addition to heing con-
demned by act of Congress. They were condemned by the distriet
court up here and also by the Supreme Court of the United States,
~ beeause the distriet conrt and the U7.S. Supreme Court added another

thing you had to do to get exemption under the act that Congress
had not put in, namely you must not have had segregated schools in
times past. ‘ |

Now Congress could have put xomething like that in the act if they
had wanted to. T wonld c’]ml}en;re the constitutionality of it but Con-
gress did not do it so the conrts did that.

ITere is what District Judge Gaseh =aid in page 690 in that same
opinion : ' ' -

“Tndeed there is no evidence of any Negro who has been denied
~registration because of his race.” | |
) Now that is the way justice is administered in the year of our Lord

069.

Mr. Seriser. EExcept they were looking to the future.
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Senator Kuvin, In-a country which theoretienlly is wedded to the
wineiple that justice is every place attempted, there is no temple of
Justice to whiv%u these States and counties are given necess to except
the distriet court of the Distriet of Columbia. Notwithstanding t‘}m
fuct that he =aid there is no evidence of any Negro heing diseviminated
against in Gaston County, Gaston Connty still stays condemned under
this act,

Mr. Seriser, Coming buek to the questioning of filing in the Distriet
of Columbia in your very excellent bill which we supported, S, 3 1
think the number is, you provided that suits challenging Federal fi-
tmneial programs which would be considered violative of the first
amendient. establishment: clause, would have to be filed here in the
Distriet of Columbin,

Senator FKrvix, I put that in there and I put that in there with
shume and humiliation, beenuse 1 recognized 1 had to do that to got
the votes of some Members of the Congress, and I am ashamed of it.

My, Sepiser, Al T am showing is the fact. that it has been done
before,

Senator Ervis, The Civil Rights Commission put come statisties in
the vecord, They stopped off il midsummer, I am not eastin any
aspersion on them beeanse the evidence just was not available but
after these figures stopped, the registration period extended from
midswnmer down to November, and so these figures are incomplete
and short, Most people tend to register in the fall vather than in the
spring. Now these figures show that in Noeth Careling there nie
126971 white people of voting age who ave not vegistered in North
Carolina and only 136,524 Negroes of votifig nge not registered,

Now why did not those 426,971 whites vegister to vote ‘

My, Secesin 1 do not know, There is a problem of apathy, and if
muy very well have affected those States or those mmAi\'isiousa that
Aame under the provisions of the 1965 aet, and T just have to rv}wn‘t'
again what 1 sadd hefore— that the (vigeer meehanism miay have beon
overly broad ax far as covering jurisdictions that. perhaps, should
ot have been hrowght under it, Tn fact, though. it has worked. Tinker-
ing with it T think would be a mistake, and 1 think that as long as you
can <how how well it has worked by the nmmber of Nearoes who have
registered, 1 think it ought to be extended. ‘

Senator Erviy, Well, now, it is alleged here by inference that (he
1024 Negroes of voting age not registered in North Cavolina did
not register hecanse they were diseriminated against hy the literaey
fest, but that the 126971 whites did not register heenuse of apathy,
That would tend to prove that the races are not equal netwithstanding
elforts to make them so, that Negroes waiit to vegister and vote and
white people donof, :

Me, Seeicc, You have the sane kind of judgment in Alaska which
comes under the act, and you have the same kind of judgment in the
other jnrisdictions ontside of the Sonth as to why it was less than 50
pereent. Thers were preblence, Part of it wag military serviee and there
wereother kivds of problews that were involved, The trigeer mechan-
s s L Reen savipe, Bas worked i the past. Tt is sGH peeessary fo
cortinne i he fuonee, M doss not cover the entire problem. and if may
fake in peaple or jorvisdictions that <hogld not be eovered. bt {he
faet that it has worked, the fact that it has had the impaet it has
i seenis to e 1= nstification for its coptinuation. But a fter that, then
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"I quite agree we ought to go on to considér the administeation proposals
for literncy tests and abolition of residency requirements.

Senator Ervix, Now another question, These Civil Rights Comniis-
sion ligures show that the middle of the sminmer of 1968'in 11 Southern
States there were 4,304,735 whites of voting age not registered, and in
the sume States there were 1,904,000 Negroes of voting age not
registered. o .

Can you tell me why those whites did not vegister, 304,755 ¢

My, Seeiser. It mny have been apathy. it may have been all kinds of
rensons—disinterest, inconvenience, goographical isolation, "There
are all kinds of rensons why they may not have registered. The trigger-
ing mechanism does not say that ‘in each and every case there is
diserimination against Negroes, It was broadly framed. Tt covers the
jurisdietions that were intended to be covered, nnd it has worked in
wetting Negroes registered and voting,

Senator Ervix, 1 notice that my legisluture lins submitted i amend-
ment to the people of North Cavolina to-abolish the literaey test, and
I hope the people adopt it, beenuse 1 liave been for years hearing Norvth

Carolina condemned on the basis of having a litevacy test, The North
Carolina literacy test, ns it was administered at the time the Voting
Rights Aet went into efieet conld be passed by anyhody who merited
promotion tothe fourth geade. .

Under regulations of our State hoard of elections, an applicant was
given in most enses n sheet. of paper with the shortest sentence they
could find in the Constitution printed-on the top of it -and a blank line
“for the applicant. for registration to eopy that on. e was allowed un-
limited time to copy it, and yet we stand condemned. ¢

Of course the bill worked. We could put an end to the crime wave
“in the United States if we do the same thing, Just-pass a law declaring
everybody guilty of a crime and say they cotld not obtain freedom un-
Tess they eame up to the District of Coltimbia, and could not get a-trial
~in the other Federal courts, but thank God the Constitution does not

allow that., ‘ l ' o .

N, Seriser, The faet that North Carolina literaey tests may have
heen utilized in a fair and impartial fashion does not prove that very
cimilar kinds of literney tests whiclh were used in other States in the
Routh, were not used in'an arbitrary fushion, I recall an example in «
footnote in one ease, freedom of speeeh was supposed to have been
“copied and it was completely misspelled by a white person yet he passed
the literaey test,and college graduate Negroes were dixqualified on fail-
ure to pazs the very ~sume literacy test. ‘ '
~The faet is that literary fests frave heen historically used as @ means
of disqualifying Negroes, Now they may nol have been nsed in some
jurisdictions or most of the jurisdictions in North Carolina, but they
have been used and Congress was right (o use that as parvt of the trig-
gering mechanism in order to bring the provizions of the Veting Rights
Aet into being.

Senator Ervix. As 1 eonstrue your testimony, you disapprove of the
administration bill beeause it treats evervbody alike, You approve of
the Voting Rights Act, 1 consider that ihe due proces elause
properly interpreted vequives that every person be allowed to try their
ense where the witness is available and where the ease arises. You make
people travel from 100 to LO0D iles to get a frinl and have them (irst
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condemned by an act of Congress withonut a judicial trial—which I
contend is a bill of attainder %v‘ all the precedents until they handed
down this decision, it which they said the bill of attainder did not
apply tothe States, , | {

}Snt n bill of attainder a}:plios‘ to State oflicials, A State does not
exist except in the contemplation of lnw. So this bill condemns every
State election ofticinl in 30 countics of my State, and in six othér States
for violating the 15th amendment, without a i‘udicinl trial; it gave
thc{n the shabbiest form of due process of law by making them come
up here,

lUnder this South Carolina cuse, Congress would have the power to
pass & law saving that every civil ense that avose under the Constitu.
tion and the laws and treaties of the United States would have to be
tried in one district court sitting in Alaska,

I do not think Congress would do that, hecause that would not he
nearly as politieally remunerative as horsewhipping the South, so T
do not think there is any danger of that.

“Thank you.

My, Seriser, You at the end attempted to summarize my position,
I do not think you did it ncenrately, Mr, Chairman, but T think I
did state it on a number of oceasions so I will leave it as stated in
the record. ‘

Senator Frvix, This law I do not think hurts North Carolina
too much, But I am like the man who went. to the circus and the cirveus
attendant tapped him with a stick and he raised an awful howl. The
cirens owner went around and said. T saw the man hit von, e just
barely tapped you. He didn’t hurt you.” - |

The fellow =aid, “No, but what makes me mad, he tapped me with
a stick with which he stirs the monkey’s wheel." ‘

So when you take an unconstitutional law which iz interpreted in
a manner contrary to every prior decision of the Supreme Court, and
which allows Congress to suspend four sections of the Constitution
and hold that 39 counties in my State cannot even exercise their con-
stitutional rights in the United States, to me it is like tapping North
Carolina with u stick stirring the monkey’s wheel,

COf cowrre, some advocate hoth of these bills, That reminds me
of another story al:ont the man who went home and got a teleeram
from the undertaker saying his mother-in-law had died, Tt <aid “Shall
we eremate or bury her?™ The man wired hack, “Take no chanees,
cremate and hury her,” So some people recommend hoth of these laws,

Mr. Seerrn, Let me state my position, T am in favor of extending
~the voting vights bill for an additional 5 years. T believe the admin-
istration bill has two very commendable provisions in it, the temporary
han on literacy tests or other qualifications, and secondly the han on
residency requtirement in presidential elections, T think these shonld
be taken up as separate legislation after the extension of the voting
rights hill, beeanse T think they have much {o commend them,

T disagree with the administration’s proposal on eliminating the
preclearance procedire heeause T think that has been very effective
and has worked. T would hate to see that eliminated, | |

T believe that a record has not yet been made for Congress, if it is
going {0 ban literacy tests throughout the country as well as residency
requirements. Tf Congress is to ontweigh the provisions of the body
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of the Constitution giving the States the right to set qualifications, it
is going to have to make more of a congressional record to authorize
that, Wa are heartily in favor of eliminating both literacy tests and
residency requirements thronghout the country but thal 15 4 matter
to be taken up after this. ‘ | g

Sonntor 18rviN. Just to show how the lnw wonld apply : Tn Robeson
County, N.C.. 679 percent of all Nogroes—or, rather, generally
speaking, all persons of voting age, 670 pereent of all people of vot-
ing nge, ave registered to vote in that county. In that conaty 68.3

sareont of the Negroes over 21 are registered to vote, When they voted
in the 1908 eleetion, only 42.2 percent voted, Robeson County would
bo covered by the act, if it was moved up to 1968 figmres,

Now, that is a county vou can hardly eateh a Republican in,
and the Democrats do their voting in the primavy, They do not hother
to go out in an election to vote, Yet they would be condemned just
beenuse they voted in the primary instead of the election,

One other thing T overlonked and that is this: This bill would ex-
tend the condemnation to States and counties based on what they did
or failed to do in 1964, Don’t you think that. it ought to be amended
at. lenst to provide that the test would-be applied to the 1068 election?

Mr., Seriser. No. The oviginal proposal, when it came out, was for
10 years. 1t was amended to cover a j-year period as a political com-
promise, and that was the ]‘n'ice that was paid for getting it through.
Phe 1964 figures wore the basis for the triggering device, The prob-
Jem is by no means over, and if you go up to the 1968 figures, you are
going to have every jurisdiction out from under. .

Senator ErviN, 6!1, you don’t want any people to escape. I don’t
mean vou but the proponents of the bill don’t want anybody to escare.

My, Spiasenr. The purpose of the bill was to preveat massive ¢ is-
~_crimination agninst Negroes exercising the right to vote and partici-
~ pating in the clectoral process. The ones who came under the provi-

sion on the whole, not all but on the whole, were those most auilty
of that, and the triggering device was based on the 196+ figures. You
“can play around with triggering devices any way you wish, but the

.

fact is that there is still lots more to be done, there are still many
instaneces involving digerimination against Negroes in the voting proe- -
ess as documented by the Civil Rights Commission, As long as that
exists the bill ghould be extended hased on the 1964 figures and no
tampering should be done to any part of the trigeering device, -
Senator Beviy. T would hate to think the Tord is going to judge us
on the basis of our conduet hefore we have repented and behave our-
<elves rather than on the trath of our repentance, Here we have the
proposal that people who acted righteously in 1968 must remain con-
demned beeause they allegedly acted unrighteously in 1964,
[f the record works on that principle there is no hope for salvation
of any of us,
Senator Bayi. T have some questions, but T see that the Attorney
]( ieneral has arrvived, Mr. Chairman, and T think out of courtesy to
Hn—— ‘ :
Mr. Spriser. T ain somewhat embarrassed becaunse I recognize he
i< sitting here,
Senator Erviy, T ain just not going to sit silently by and have him
tap North Carolina with a stick to stir the monkeys' wheel. 1 think
that. is engaging in rather iniquitous conduet.,
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My, Seesen, 1 just think yon ave putting the wrong intevpretation
on what the set does. You make it a question of condemnation and
gailt and matters of that kind. It is a triggering mechanism to do
certnin things. |

Senator Ervix, 1f they passed a law like that about a crapshootey
it would have been unconstitutional as n bill of attainder.

My, Speisen, Tdo not know abount whill of attainder.,

Senator Ervix, As a erap shooter it wonld, a murderer or any other
criminal,

Mr, Seriser, If you had an overly hroad statute—a penal stutufe—
then I think youn are right, that, it may be knocked down us uneonsti-
tutional, but there is a different kind of standard for a eviminal statute
by which individuals to gage their behavior as compared to other
kinds.

This is 0 broader type,

Senator Ervix, The trouble is some of ns think theve i= a different
standard in one seetion of the country in which 1 happen to live than
inother sections of the conntry, They nsed to hold that when Congress

“passed a Jaw that was so brond that it eaught: the gnilty and the inno-
cent both within the net, that. the Inw was unconstitutional, that it was
not the funetion of the conrt to segregate the guilty from the innovent.
They vepudinted that doctrine in legislation agninst the South throngh
the Voting Rights Aet., |

My, Seeisen, T do not think that is a proper interpretation of it, Mr,
Chaivman,

Thank you for the opportunity of appenring.

Senator Krvin, Thunk you,

Counsely eall the next witness, |

My, Basiar, Mr, Chaivian, the next witness is the Attorney General
of the United States, ' - \

Senator Ervix, Mr, Atorney General, T want to apologize ax my
~questioning of Mr. Speiser deluyed your appearance, - |

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN N. MITCHELL, U.S. ATTORNEY GENERAL,
ACCOMPANIED BY JERRIS LEONARD, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY
GENERAL, CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION o

Attorney General Myrenere, Quite to the contrary, siv, T enjoved the
lesson in constitutional lnw. May T proceed, Mr. Chairman /

Senator Irvin, Yes, :
-~ AMtorney General Mrrenre, T have o statement,

Mr. Chairman, and members of the subcommittee, T want (o thank
~ you for the opportunity to testifv today, 1 appreciate the courtesy

“you have shown in seheduling the date of this hearing. <o that T could
“attend,

The right of ench citizen to participate in the cleetoral provess is
fundamental in our system of Govermment, 11 that svetem ix to func-
tion honestly, there musi_be no arbitrary or diseriminatory denial
of the voting feanchise. The President hae commifted this adminis-
tration to the view that it will countenance no abrvidgment of the right
to vote heeaise of race or color or other arbitrary restrictions, "

FFurthermore, the President i< committed to the poliey that it is in
the national interest. to encournge as many citizens as possible to vote
i to discourage the applieation of unrensonable legal requirements,
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L the last several months, we have made a thorough review of the
yossible consequences nrising from the expiration of the 1965 Voting
highm Aet. We have dlso examined the general theories and facts un-
derlying voting pinctices in the Nation and the need for Federnl
legislntion. | o

We have come to the iirm conelusion that voting rights is no longer
a regional e, 16 s anational eoncern for every Ameriean which
st be treated on a nationwide basis, Owre conmuitment must he to
offer ns muny of onp citizens as possible the opport unity to express
their views nt the polls on the ixsues and eandidatos of the day.

‘Therefore, we prapose the following winendments to the 1965 Vot-
ing Rights Aet designed to greatly strengthen and extend existing
covernge in order to protect voting rights in all parts of the Nation.

Fivst: A nationwide ban on literney test< until at least January L.
1974, ' ‘

Second : Nationwide restrietions on State yesideney requirements
for presidential elections,

‘hivd: The Attorney Generanl is to have nationwide anthority to
dispateh voting examiners and ohservers where recuired,

Fourth: The Attorney General is to have nationwide authovity:
fo start voting rights low suits and to ask for a freeze on discriminatory
voting laws, |

IFifth: The President is to nmmiut a national voting advisory com-
mission to study voting diserim’nation and other covrupt practices
relatci thereto, o o :

Before deseribing our proposuls in detail, T would like to review
the situation as it exists at this time. S

“Phe 15th amendment to the Constitution was ndopted in 1570. Tt
provides that B » S

Phe right of citizens of the United States (o vote shill not be denjed or abridged
hy the United States or hy any State on neconnt of race, colov or-provious condi-

~ton of servitude. : o

Sinee the passage of the Tith amendment, the Congress has been
repeatedly told that Negro citizens were subjected to racinl diseriminn-
tion in many areas of the Nation, particularly in the South. Asn vesult,
Congress enacted the Civil Rights Act of 1057, followed by the Civil
Richts Act of 1960 and the Civil Rights Aect of 1964,

sach of these three nets provided additional procedures to assure
equality in voting. Tn 1965, the situntion was this:

The ‘Department of Justice was pursuing ense-hy-case, eounty-hy-
“county remedies under the Voting Rights Aets then existing. The
" Congress believed that more progress could be made by the passage
of udditional legislation, ’ ’

Beeause the six States which had the lowest voter turnout in the
1964 eleetion also had literacy tests—and because these States also
had the Nation's highest ratios of Negro population and the lowest
ratios of Negro voter registration—certain corrections were legislated
by the Congress. These corrective measures were contained in the
Voting Rights Act of 1965,

T'he act provided for suspension of literncy and similar tests and
devices in States and counties where such tests were utilized; and
where less than 50 percent of the total voting-nge population was reg-
istored to vote or voted in the November 1964 election, This suspen-
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~sion could be removed if the State or county could show that it had
not used such tests with a discriminatory mr{mse or effect. (Section 4.)

Other provisions of the act. suthorize the Attorney General to direct:
the assignment of Federal examiners, and election observers to coun-
ties covered by the act, (Secs. 6 and 8.) \lso, covered States and
counties are prohibited from adopting new voting laws or procedures
unless they have received the approval of the Attorney General or the
1.8, District Court for the District of Columbin, (Section 5.)

Areas now subject to thoe coverage of the net ave the States of Ala-
bamn, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, South Carolina, and Virginia,
49 counties in North Carolina, one county in Arizona, and one county
in Hawaii. These jurisdictions have not applied to Federal courts ask-
ing for removal of the ban, except for Gaston County, N.C., which I
will discuss later.,

The State of Alaska and some isolated countics clsewhere were
within the formula, but sought and obtained judgments indieating
that their tests had not heen used discriminatorily, | |

The results of the 1965 act are impressive, Since 1965, more than
800,000 Negro voters have been registered in the seven States covered
hy the act, ‘ '

_Moreover, according to the figures of the voter education project of
the Southern Regional Council, more than 50 percent of the e{igible
N(:groes are registered in every Southern State,

“he Voting Rights Act also provides another means for termination
of such coverage, Section 4(:\& provides that the suspension of tests
will end if tlie yurisdiction obtains from the U.S; District Court for the
District of Coiumbin n declaratory judgment that there has been no
discriminatory use of a test or device during the preceding 5 years.

Theo statute directs the Attorney General to consent to such n judg-
‘ment if no such test or device was 8o used. No covered jurisdiction wﬁl
have employed a literacy test since August 1965, Thus the awarding
of the declaratory judgments after August 1970 will be virtually auto-
matic for six States and 39 counties in the South. ‘ ‘

However, scction 4(a) provides that the distriet court is to retain
jurisdiction of the action for 5 years after judgment and is to reopen
the matter upon motion of the Attorney General alleging discrimina-
tory use of a test or device, L L

Highly relevant to this provision is the recent decision of the
Supreme Court in Gaston County v. United States. |

énston County,; N.C., filed an action for a judgment to end the sns-
pension of its literacy test under the 1965 act. The county sought to
prove that, when the literacy test was in effect, it liad been administered
on anondiscriminntory basis, o

The United States” introduced evidenee showing that, in Gaston
County, the adult Negro population had attended segregated sehools
and that these schools were in fact inferior to the white schools, Relving
on such evidence, the district court ruled that literacy tests had the
“effect of denying the right to vote on account of race or color.” Tt said

“the county had deprived its Negro citizens of equal educational oppor-
tunities in the past and therefore had deprived them of an equal chance
“to passthe literacy test. |

n June 2, 1969, the Supreme Court aflirmed the decision of the

district court,
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The Supreme Court ruled that offering today’s Negro youth equal
educational opportunities “will doubtless prepare them to meet future
literacy tests on an equal basis.” The Court added that equal education
today “does nothing for their parents.” It ruled that Gaston County
had sy .matically denied its black citizens equal educational oppor-
tunity and that “‘impartial’ administration of the literacy test today
would serve only to perpetuate those inequities in a different form.”
Accordingly, the Court held such tests unlawful under the Voting
Rights Act.

Under the Gaston County decision, any literacy test has a discrimi-
natory effect if the State or county has offered not only education which
is separate in law, but education which is inferior in fact to its Negro
citizens. Ilvidence in our possession indicates that almoest all of the
jurisdictions in which literacy tests are presently suspended did otfer
educational opportunities which were inferior,

‘Therefore, it is my view that, in regard to most of the jurisdictions
presently covered by the 1965 act, I would be obliged to move, shortly
after reimntroduction of the literacy test, to have the test suspension
reimposed in the seven covered States. I believe that the lower courts,
under the Gaston County ruling would suspend the literacy test and
would continue to do so until the adult population was composed of
persons who had had equal educational opportunities. In short, in my
opinion, the ban on literacy tests would continue for the foresceable
future in the States presently covered by the act, even if no new legisla-
tion were to be enacted by the Congress.

Furthermore, I believe that the Gaston ("ounty decision would con-
tinue to suspend existing literacy tests or would ban the imposition
of new literacy tests in those areas outside of the seven States covered
by the 1965 act where publicly proclaimed school segregation was prev-
aKznt, prior to 1954, This would include all or part of Florida, Arkan-
sas, Texas, Kansas, Missouri, Maryland, the District of Columbia,
Kentucky, and Tennessee.

To protect against future denials of the right to vote and to encour-
age fuller utilization of the franchise, I propose the following amend-
ments to the 1965 Voting Rights Act:

Iirst: No State or poﬁtic: subdivision may require any person to
pass a literacy test or other tests or devices as'a condition for exercis-
Ing the fundamental right to vote, until January 1, 1974.

‘he reason behind this suggestion is as follows—and this reason-
ing not only strongly supports our proposal but shows the inadequacy
of a simple 5-year extension of the 1965 act.

My personal view is that all adult citizens who are of sound mind
and who have not been convieted of a felony should be free to and
encouraged to participate in the electoral process. The wide-
spread and increasing reliance on television and radio brings candi-
dates and issues into the homes of almost all Americans. Under certain
conditions, an understanding of the English language, and no more,
is our national requirement for American eitizenship.

Perhaps more importantly, the rights of citizenship, in this day
and age, should he freely offered to those for whom the danger of
alienation from society is most severe—because they have heen dis-
criminated against in_the past, because they are poor, and because
they are undereducated. As responsible citizenship does not necessarily
imply literacy, so responsible rating does not necessarily imply an
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education. Thus, it would appear to us that the literacy test is, at best,
an artificial and unuecessary restriction on the right to vote.

““he history of the literacy test in this country shows quite clearly
that it was< originally designed to limit voting by foreign-horn and
other minortty groups! Available information today shows that
present enforcement of literaey requirements in States not covered
by the 1965 act indicates constderable variance in procedure.

In ~ome States literney requivements are no longer enforced or arve
enforeed onty speradieally. In other States the literacy test is not
applied wniformly but is applied at the diseretion of local election
oflicials-

Today, a total of 19 States have statutes prescribing literacy us a
precondition for voting. ‘This number includes the seven Southern
States, where as a result of the 1965 act, the literacy test i suspended
in all or part of the State. Alco, there are 12 States outside the South
which have constitutional or statutory provisions for literacy tests.”

Thus, following the Sapreme Court’s reasoning, it wonld appear
inequitable for a State to administer a literacy test to such a person
because he wonld still be under the edueational disadvantage offered
ina State which had legal segregation.

The Supreme Conrt appeared to tell us in the Gaston County case
that any Jiteracy test woulil probably discriminate against Negroes in
those States which have, in the past, failed to provide equal edueca-
tional opportunities for all races.

Many Negroes, who have received inferior cducations in these States,
have moved all over the Nation.

The Bureau of the Census estimates that, between 1940 and 1968,
net migration of nonwhites from the South totaled moie than 4 mil-
lion persons.* Certainly, it may be assumed that part of that migration
was to those Northern and Western States which employ literacy
tests now or conld impose them in the future: and that, as was true in
Gaston County, the eflect of these tests is to further penalize persons
for the inferior education they received previously. [For example, in
the South. 8.3 percent of the white males over 25 have only a fourth
arade education as opposed to 30 percent for Negro males.®

[Furthermore, the Oflice of Education studies and Department of
Justice lawsuits have alleged that areas outside of the South have
provided inferior education to minovity groups. Following the gen-
eral reasoning of the Supreme Court in the Guston County case, 1
believe that any literacy test given to a person who has received an
inferior public education would be just as unfair in a State not cov-
ered by the 1965 act.

1 Bromege, Literaey and the Electorate,” XXIV Amerlcan 'olitical Science Review 044,
G931 (19300 ; Porter, *“A History of Suffrage in the United Statex,” p. 118 (1918).

Nee, ez, Katzceubach v. Morgun, 384 U.S. 641 (1966).

? Letters to Congressman F. Thompson from Deputy Attorney General of Dolaware, 113
Coaressional Record E3996 (dafly ed., May 135, 1969), and from Assistant Seeretary of
State of Oregon, 115 Congresslonal Record E3900,

B, Iotter to Congressman Thompson from the Attorney General of Californta, 115
Congressional Record E4N00 (daily od.. May 15, 1969).

TThese States are Alaska, Arizona, California, Connecticut, Delaware, Malne, Massa-
chuxetts, New Hampshire, New York, Orecon, Wuashington, and Wyoming, Idaho has a
::?(N]l ch;:rm‘tnr requirenient which ix a “test or deviee” within the weaning of section t(e)
of the 1985 aet.

fDBureau of the Census, Current Population Reports. Serles I’ 23, No. 26, “Social and
Lconomie Conditions of Negroes in the United States (Jnuly 106%), p, 2.

*Buorean of the Census, Current Popatlation Reports, Series 1'-20. No. 182 (1969), “Iudu-
cational Mttainment (March 1068} tahle 3.
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187

Unfortunately, the statistics appear to support this argument. Tn
the Western States, 3.5 percent of the white males have only a fourth
grade education as opposed to 10.6 percent of the Negro males over
25 vears of age; in the North Central States, 2.1 percent of the white
males have only a fourth-grade education as opposed to 14.6 percent
of the Negro males; and in the Northeast, 4.2 percent of the white
males have only a fourth-grade education as opposed to S percent of
the Negro males. Thus, inferior education for minority groups is not
limited to any one section of the country.

The proposal for a simple d-year extension of the 1965 Voting
Rights Act leaves the undereducated ghetto Negro as today's forgot-
ten man in voting rights legislation.

He would be forgotten both in the 12 States outside the South which
have literacy tests now and in the 31 other States which have the
ability, at any time, to impose them.

It is not enough to continue to protect Negro voters in seven States.
That consideration may have been the justification for the 1965 act.
But it is unrealistic as of today.

I believe the literacy test is an unreasonable physical obstruction
to voting even if it is administered in an evenhanded manner. It un-
realistically denies the franchise to those who have no schooling. It
unfairly denies the franchise to those who have been denied an equal
educational opportunity because of inferior schooling in the North and
the South.

But perhaps, most importantly, it is a psychological obstruction in
the minds of many of our minority citizens. I don’t have all the an-
swers to this problem. But T suggest to this subconnnittee that it is the
psychological barrier of the literacy test that may be responsible for
much of the low Negro voter registration in some of our major cities.

Because records on voter registration and voting are not kept on
a racial basis in the North, it is difficult to determine conclusively the
level of Negro voting participation.

In most Deep South counties subjected to literacy test suspension,
between B0 and 75 pereent of the Negroes of voting age arve now
vegistered to vote. It is elear that this level is higher than Negro
voter participation in the ghettos of the two largest cities outside
the South—New York and Los Angeles—-where literacy tests are
still in use. Furthermore, in noniiteracy test northern jurisdictions
like Chicago, Cleveland, and Philadelphia, Negro registration and
voting ratios are higher than in Los Angeles and New York.

Constder, for example, the 1968 voter turnout in New York City.
In the core ghetto areas of Iarlem, Bedford-Stuyvvesant, the South
Broux and Brownsville-Ocean Hill, six nearly all-Negro assembly
distriets (55th, 56th, 70th, T2d, 77th, and 7S8th) cast an average of
only 18,000 votes in 1968 despite 1960 census eligible voter popula-
tion of 45500 to 55000, On average, fewer than 25,000 voters were
registered in these distriets.

In addition since congressional distriets are ronghly equal in popu-
lation, voting statistics from such distriets may be used for the pur-
pose of comparing New York and California Negro vote twrnouts
with those of other States.

In the nine northern big city States—>Massachusetts, New York,
New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Michigan, Tllinois, Missouri, and

37-499—70-- ---13
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California—there were only 10 congressional districts where fewer
than 100,000 votes were east for (‘«mglou in 1968,! Ot the 10, one
was in (‘ahfonna; and eight were in New York. Fach of the nine
distriets—the 21st California; the 11th, 12th, t4th, 18th, 19th, 20th,
21st, and 22d New Y ork— consists largely or p(ntlv of Negro ghetto
areas.

These statistics illustrate a prima facie relationship between north-
ern literacy tests and low voter participation by Negroes.

We clearly believe this amendment to snspend ll(m.u'\ tests and the
other amendments we propose are within the jurisdietion of the C on-
gress under its ability to implement the I4th and 15th amendments, in
view of the U.S. Supreme Court opinions in United States v, (Fuest.*
Katzenbach v. Morgan? South Cavolina v. Katzenhuch. ond Gaston
County v. United States?

Mr. Chairman, I urge this committee not to permit the Negro citi-
zens outside of the Sonth to be forgotten. I urge this commiittee to
erant them the encouragement to vote and the pmtectmn for voting
that are now granted to \o'rro citizens in the South. This encourage-
ment has pm\cd co successful that there have been SO0.000 \'(wrm
voters registered since the passage of the 1965 act,

Second: It is our opinion that no person should be denied the right
to vote for Precident or Vice President if he has resided in a State or
county since September 1 of the election year. Persons moving after
September 1, who eannot satisfy the residency _requirement of the new
State or u)unt\ shounld he penmttod to vote in the presidential elee-
tion, in person or by absentee ballot, in the former State or connty.

‘This proposal would authorize the Attor ney General to svek judicial
velief against any abridgment of these resideney right=x,

Ouwr reasons for this proposal follow :

Our society is mohile and transient. Our eitizens move freely within
States and from one State to another. Aceording to the Bureau of
the Census, in reference to the 1968 presidential election, more than
2.0 million persons were unable to vote hecause they conld not meet
loeal vesideney requireinents.

A resideney requirement may be reasonable for loeal elections to
insure that the new resident has suflicient. time to familiavize him-
self with local issues. But such requirements have no relevance to
presidential elections because the issues tend to be nationwide in
scope and receive nationwide dis<emination by the communications
media. The President is the representative of all the pmplo and all
the people should have a reasonable opportunity to vote for him.

Third: The \Attorney General is to be empowered to send ederal
examiners and election ohservers mm any connty in the Nation if
he determines that their presence is nevessary to protect the rights
of eitizens to vote.

Our reasons for this proposal follow:

This proposal would grant to the Department of Justice the right
to send voting examiners and ohservers to any county in the Nation
where such action is waranted hecause of reported violations of the

1 Congressional Directory for the 91st Cong,, pp. 359-366.
383 UK, 745 (1066),
2354 U.S. 641 (1966).
s 383 U.S. 301 (1966).
27 Law Week 4478 (1969). toe
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15th amendment. Our use of voting observers in the South has provided
information to the Department of Justice which has enabled us fre-
quently to ward off in}’mctions of the 15th amendment. Similarly, in
come counties, use of Federal examiners to list persons as eligible to-
vote has been necessary hecaunse local officials have refused to register
them. .- . :

Under the 1965 aet, the Attorney General is required to go to conrt
to request voting examiners and observers in non-Southern States.
Under our bill, Iie has the authority to send the observers and exam-
iners any place withont first applying to a court.

Tourth: The courts, on the application of the Attorney (ieneral,
wonld be permitted to temporarily enjoin diseriminatory voting laws
and to freeze any new voting laws passed by the State or county
against whom the lawsuit is filed.

Our reasons for this provision follow:

Beeause of the nature of elections and the fact that it is diflienlt
at a mueh later date to corvect the result of any illegal inequities, T
believe that the Attorney Gieneral should have the diseretion, in cases
which appear to have serions consequences. to ask the conrt to tem-
porarily freeze the situation in a particular area,

This was basically the philosophy adopted by the 1965 YVoting
Rights Act which provided that no election laws passed by States
covered by the act could be changed without approval of either the
courts or the Attorney General. In contrast to the 1965 act, our pro-
posal leaves the decision to the court, where in our opinion it belongs;
it properly places the hurden of proof on the Government and not the
States.

The preclearance requirements of section 5 of the 1965 act have heen
diflienlt to administer effectively. To date there have been some 343
submissions to the Department of Justice. We have 60 days to deter-
mine if @ law has a diseriminatory purpose or etfect. Unless we are ex-
tremely familiar with the political structure of a given jurisdiction or
are eapable of detailing investigators to make appropriate injuiry, or
receive complaints from loeal sources—it is virtually impossible to
know if changes in the rules of a State election hoard, relocation of a
polling place, consolidation of an election district, or some technical
change in the election laws has such a diseriminatory purpose or eftect.

Despite the terms of the 1965 act, when local officials have passed
discriminatory laws they have usnally not submitted them to the At-
torney (feneral for approval. Rather, the Department of Justice has
had to seek Federal court assistance to void them. Sinee 1965 only 10
laws submitted to the Department for approval have been disapproved,
six of them this vear.

Areas which passed diseriminatory voting laws are likely to quickly
pass substitutes. Our new proposal would eliminate this practice by
woving the courts the authority to issue blanket orders against voting
law changes.

The penalty for this violation of the comrt order would be contempt.

1 might insert here that there is of course no penalty provided in the
1965 act for the failurve to file any statutes with the Attorney General,

Under the present laws outside of the seven covered States, the At-
torney General is limited in voting rights cases to & claim of constitu-
tional violation. Under our proposal. he could institute a lawsuit any
place in the country hased on a broader statutory protection of a dis-
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criminatory “purpose or eflect™ of a particular voting law or set of
voting laws,

This would make it clear to the courts that it is unnecessary to prove
that the intent of the local or State officials was racially motivated.

Ior all of these additional safeguards, we have only modified one
section of the act. States and counties would no longer he required to
autometically submit all changes in their voting laws,

With the entire Nation cov ored it would be | nnpowhle for the Clivil
Rights Division of the l)cp.ntment of Justice to xcreen every voting
clmn"o inevery country in the Nation.

To jll\tlf\' this single modification of scction 5, I would like to point
out that the incidence of reported racial diserimination in voting has
substantially decreased.

FFor o\.lmplo stnee August 1965, we have received u total of 312 com-
plaints of voter diserimination—231 from the covered States and Sl
from the noncovered States.

In fiscal 1966, there were 157 complaints: in fiseal 1967, there were
92 complaints, in fiseal 1968, there were 45 complaints and through
April of tiseal 1969, there were 18 complaints

‘T'his sharp decrease would seem to indicate that the dangers to vot-
ing rights, which existed prior to the passage of the 1965 act, appear
to have substantially decreased in the seven covered States—decreased
to the point where we no longer think it is necessary for these States
to automatically present their voting law change fo the Department
after \ugust 1970,

Fifth: A presidential advizory commission would be established to
study the effects which liter: acy tests have upon minority groups, to
study the problem of election frauds, and to report to Congress its
findings and recommendations for any new legislation protecting the

right to vote.

"Ourreasons for this proposal follow :

In order to determine whether additional legislation will be neces-

sary or appropriate, a presidential advisory commission would study
the eticets which literacy and similar requirements for voting have
upon minorities and upon low-income persons.

The Bureau of the Census would be directed to conduct special sur-
veys regarding voting and voter registration and to make the data
available to the Commission. The Connmission wonld also study election
frauds. It would be required to submit to Congress, not later than
Januay 15, 1973, a report containing the results of its study and
reconimendations for any new Federal \'otmo' laws.

Our \ocomnmn(l.ltlon to gtud\ \'otmg fmu(l stems fmm our slrong
interest in insuring that each citizon’s vote will count equatly with the
vote of his fellow citizen. For too long, we have failed to take as
aggresive action ax we might in view of frequent evidence of false

(-"xctmtmn illegal vote purchasing and the misveporting of ballots
ca<t

My previous testimony concerned encouragement of pmtcctlon for
and the exercise of the franchise prior to ontormtr a voling booth. 'This
fraud study, a logical extension, may help to mmantm . the sanctity
of the hqllot once it is cast. Certainly, if we have a Federal interest in
encouraging persons to vote, we have a Federal interest in insuring
that their ballot be correctly processed.
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Finally, there have been some suggestions that our proposal is
merely a (iohvmn' tactic to tie up any attempt to extend the 1965 Vot-
ing nghts Aect. T certainly disagree with this assessment.

Tirst: As'T said previously, the Gaston Counly case extendx the
literacy test han for the foreseeable future in those States which
previously maintained segregated and inferior school systems. Nee-
ond: Tt would s appear that any propesed amendment to this hill—no
matter how well motivated and how comprehensive—would be open
to eriticism as a delaying tactic. Under this charge, it is diflicult for
me to see how we can propose an extension of the coverage to those
citizens who need it in any way. Third: We do not want to see the act
lapse in August 1970. We favor its extensions Loth in time and in
its croogmp]ncql coverage. T believe there should e sufficient time for
the necessary hearings and debate on our proposal pr ior to the termi-
nation of parts of the 1965 act in August of 1970. T believe that it is
worth the extra effort to extend the act to the ontn‘e Nation. I would
hope that this subcommittee would support S. 2507, introduced by
Senator Dirksen.

We will cooperate with this committee and with the Congress to
assure a strong and tmmlv bill. ’

My (“h'nnnml that is the end of my statement. T have with me Mr.
Jerris Leonard, \\'HH\”I(‘ Assistant Atiorney General in charge of onr
Civil Rights Division. and perhaps, if T cannot answer the questions,
he can.

Senator Ervin. What use would it be to extend the Voting Ri:shts
Aet of 1965 i the bill which yonadvorate were enacted ?

Attorney General \Iu(‘mn, I think it is a matter of context. M.
Chairman. There are provisions of the 1965 act which dovetail with
owr proposals. So when we talk of extension of that act, we mean of
its mechanical provisions which fit into the proposal thar we have
made.

Senator Ievix. If that were done, we would =till he under the
limitation that any suits by any of the States or counties eovered by
the 1965 act would have to be in the District Conrt of the 1 nited
States for the District of Columbia.

Attorney General Mavenenn, No, siv. Our bill provides with respeet
to voting laws and p ‘ocednres that these suits he brought in the dis-
triet where the complaint arises, hefore a_three-judge Trederal court
with direct appeal to the Suprome Court. Tn view of the strong meas-
ures that are provided in the act for the halting of action by a mu-
nicipality or other governmental body, we feel that these cases should
he considered by a three-judge court and that appeal should he
expedited.

Senator Tnvix, ‘They would be left as far as the covered counties
under your administe ation bill are concerned. The covered counties
would really be denied even the right to come to the District of Colum-
hia and show to the district court of the District of Columbia that they
had not discriminated beeause your bill wonld put a total han en all
literacy tests.

Attorney General Mirenern, Yes, siv: omr proposal would han all
literacy tests, and would vemove the question of whether or nat clee-
tion officials had applied the literacy tests in a diseriminatory manner
during the 5 years of the existing act. It would remove the relevaney

of that guestion,
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Senator Envix. We would still be left with the provision of the 1965
act that even though the 1965 act makes 39 counties in my State and
six other States guilty, they could not even come to the District of
Columbia because there would be no oceasion to. Thev wounld he fore-
closed from even litigating thé matter.

Attorney General Mrrennnn, Yes, sive it would have that eflect. T
believe that it is appropriate that literacy tests be removed thronghont
the country; this would eliminate the necessity of determinations in
the district court of the effect of the literacy tests or the method of theiv
application.,

Senator Ervix., They would be precluded from the right to even
litigate the question whether the administration of the act was un-
constitutional, would it not? :

Attorney General Myrcurre. The administration of the literaey test?

Senator Ervin. ‘They could not even litigate the constitutionality of
The administration act.

Attorney General Myrcirerr., Oh, I am quite certain that. theve wonld
e grounds for litigating the constitutionality of this act by testing
the application of its procedures in the amendment to section 5 relat-
ine to voting laws, ordinances, practices, et cetera,

SRenator Ervin. That would only he with respect to their right to
exercizse their constitutional powers to change the laws,

Attorney General Mircnern., Yes, sir,

Senator Ervin, That is a little less obnoxious than having it passed
on by an executive ofticer. namely the Attorney General of the United
States. T was very much impressed and heartened by your statement
that laws should be uniform, that this should be regarded as one
comntry, and that the Congress shonld not indulge in regional legisla-
tion. But it looks like to me with your advoecaey of extension of the
1965 act, we still have one law applying to 39 counties in my State and
six other States that do not apply to the Nation,

Attorney General Mirciert. No, siv: that wonld not be true wider
the amendments that our bill proposes,

Senator Ervix. It would leave us under the ban of the 1965 act,
and say to us that you cannot even litigate that question whether yon
should escape from that ban. You have got two bans on us then and
only one ban on the rest of the country.

Attorney General Murcnerr. No. The provisions of the bill that
we propose remove the double standard. We would be abolishing lit-
eracy tests, and hence the provisions of section  would bhe removed,
and section » of the act would be changed as we have discussed
previously.

Senator Ervix, You would remove the trigeer device, from the 1965
aet 3 would you not ¢ :

Attorney General Mircrrrr, Yes, sir,

Senator Krvin. I do not know what the Supreme Cowmt is going to
hold about the flat prohibition of the literacy test. It has already held
that the Congress has the power to nullify three sections of the Consti-
tution. What happens to the Constitution in somne respects reminds
me of the story (L)\\'n in my conuntry. John Watts, a good bricklayer
decided that he was called on to preach, and he was preaching away.
e was a pretty good hricklayer hut a rather poor theologtan and
he was preaching away in this little country church one Sunday after-
noon and Joe Hicks, who had taken several drinks of pure country
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corn, saw John Watts the preacher. Ile did not approve of his preach-
ing so he grabbed him by the coat collar and dragged him to the door
and threw him out. Joe Tlicks was tried for disturbing the peace and
he was found guilty. The judge, Judge Robinson, who evidently did
not approve too much of John's preaching himeelf, was trying to
find some way to let Joe down as light as possible. Tle said, “Mr.
Tlicks, you are guilty of this unseemfy conduct on the sabbath day.
You must have been so drunk as not to realize what you were doing,”
and Mur. Hicks said, *Your Honor, I had several drinks but I would
not want Your lHonor to think I was so drunk I could stand by and
see the word of the Tord being muddled up like that.”

I will have to confess the Constitution has been muddled up so much
I cease to predict anything the Court will hold. But I do think if you
go back to the original Constitution and what it meant prior to the
Nouth Carolina case, you will have difficulty in holding a ban on all
the States of the right to preseribe the use of literacy test is consti-
tutional. ‘That is what worries me.

Attorney General Mercinr, Mr. Chairman, our Oftice of Legal
Counsel has made a study of this question, and it feels that there is a
basis in hoth the H4th and 15th amendment to support this provision
in the bill,

Senator Ervin, Undoubtedly under the decision in South Carolina
v. Watzesibook the Supreme Court held that the second section of the
1oth amendment gave Congress such tremendous power that the Con-
gress could suspend the fourth sections of the Constitution. 1 guess it
you can =urpend them, you could do exactly what this bill says. I have
diftienlry in tinding anything in the Constitution that says that under
one section of the Constitution Congress can abolish the other sec-
tions but the Court did hold that I will have to confess.

There being no occasion, of course, to seek to get out from under the
bans of the 1965 act on the part of those who were denounced as cul-
prits under it by act of Congress, hecause the trigger device would
be abolished: is there anything in the bill that you advocate that would
deny access to the courts, a Iederal court sitting in North Carolina?

Attornev General Myrcurer., No, sir.

Senator Ervin. Or any of these States to contest the validity of the
total ban on the lteracy tests?

Attorney General Mircnrnrn. No, sir. The bill does not deny nor
prohibit access to the local courts. In fact, as 1 stated before, we have
provided for three-judge courts to hear voting law cases. We think
that it is appropriate that these cases be heard in the distriet in which
the gquestion arises. Under the 1965 act, the Attorney General, and his
staff, have to make judgments beyond those of Solomon in order to
determine whether these voting laws, ordinances, and procedures may
he applied in a diseviminatory manner. I believe that that question
should most properly be determined in the courts, where the questions
of intent and motives can he fully explored and accurately deter-
mined.

I use by way of an illustration one of the resolutions submitted to
us concerning whether a school superintendent should be appointed
instead of elected. Well, obviously you can dvaw all kinds of implica-
tions from such a echange, on hoth sides of the fence, 1t may be that
the purpose is to deny the vight to vote in the election of the school
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superintendent. Or, on the other side of the fence, it is a fact that more
and more school oflicials are being appointed and not elected, and
they are being appointed for their educational ability and not their
political standing. It is our opinion that the Attorney General is really
not equipped to make these findings within the 60-day period required.

Senator IXrviN. You could have a situation where laws would be
invalid in one county and valid in another. In other words, the State
would certainly have the power to pass a law like that, with nothing
else appearing, and so you could have the law invalidated in one
county on the ground that it is intended to prevent a member of the
minority race from being elected to superintendent and then the law
could be valid in the next county, which would be a queer thing from
a constitutional point.

Attorney General Mrrcurer. It is a question of intent and the man-
ner of application. Tt is awfully hard, after the law has been passed,
to sit up here in Washington and make a determination as to what this
application is going to be. I think the courts found that problem
themselves in the New Y ork case, the Rockefeller case, where the claim
was that gerrymandering had taken place to put Negroes and Puerto
Ricans into particular voting distriets. The court itself said they
could not make that determination in the absenee of a trial. That
case, as you know, went all the way to the Supreme Court.

Senator Erviy. Do you have any questions?

Senator Bayir. Yes, Mr. Chairman,

M. Attorney General, Mr. Leonard. we ave very grateful to you for
taking time to give us your thoughts on thiz matter which is of great
intevest to all of us,

I do not want to put words in your mouth or give vou eredit for
=omething that may be lacking, but. as T wnderstand your statement. in
the opening remarks, you referred to the fact that eivemstanecs priov
to the 1965 act were sufliciently ~trong that the 1965 act was needed :
15 that ecorvect

Attorney Geveral Mrrenrin, We are lookine at it from the vear 1968,
We pointed ont, ax 1 ~aid in my testimony, that the 1965 aet produced
the registration of a substantial nmmber of Negro voters,

Senator Bavi, Was that good or had? Tlave we secomplished salu-
tarv results?

Attorney General Murenern, There is no question about. it. Tt pro-
duneed a salutary effect with respect to the registration. 1 presume that
that is the result of the act. ‘There does not xcem to be much doubt
about. it.

Senator Bavir. Do you feel that there is a continued need to he on
wuard against the very activities, the verv inclinations that existed
prior to the 1965 act?

Attorney General Mrrengrn, Yes. As T pointed out in my testimony,
the occasions for the application of the provisions of the act under the
powers of the Department. of Justice have decreased measurably over
the period of the act. Tn our hill, we provide all of the mechanisms to
maintain onr guard and to act appropriately, not only within the
seven States, but thronghont the Nation.

Senator Bavi. Yes, Well, verv frankly, T respectfully take issue
with some of vonr conclusions. On page 19 vou say there were 315
submissions by the State legislatures to the Department. of Tustice,
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Then you point out that 10 laws submitted o the Department of Justice
were not. approved, six of them this year. You go on over to page 22,
I think it 15, and point out the decreasing munber of complaints, 1t
would scem to me that a reasonable interpretation would e that this
decrease i€ not just a whim or an act of nature or fortuitous but that
it is a result of positive action, positive neccomplishment under the 1965
et and without it this deerease would not have orenered,

Attorney Genernl Merenees, I donot disagres with that, THowever, I
sy that now the ciremmstanees are much different than they were in
LIS ‘ ‘

Senator Bavi, Tt has some eather detailed analyses of practices that
“Political Participation™? ' |

Attorney General Mirvcnrer, Very generally,

Senator Bayit. Tt has some rather detailed annlyses of practices that
are still going on right now. Would you carve to suggest that these
practices ave not. going on or that the information contained herein,
compiled hy the Civil Right< Commission is false!

Atorney General Mrrenene, 16 we could get 1o the specitic practice
perhaps Teonkd answer definitely, As fur as the Depnrtment of Justics
i< concerned, the faets that we have submitted here are acenrate,

Senator Bavi, 1 do not intend at all to infer that you arve falling
down on your job, What 1 think it is important for us to get. is com-
mon ground s to whether there is suflicient practice, suflicient tempta-
tion to discriminate against voters presently going on, that it wonld
increase if we repeal the very salutary legislation which T feel is
responsible for the progress which has been made, Now, if yon want
me to, I can

Attorney General Myrenere, Senator, mayhe we can get on conmmon
grownd by my pointing out that our proposed aet does not vemove any
of the safegnards that currently exist i the 1965 act, ‘There js one
difference, and that is the change with respeet to the submizsion of
legislation, As 1 have testified here, T thimk that our ‘pmpm-;nl is
stronger than the existing statute, heeause of the failure of the people
who pass discriminatory legislation to submit it to the Department
of Justice. I would point out that when they do that the Department
of Justice is requived to go into the distriet in a one-judge court and
bring legal proceedings to tey and reverse diseviniinatory practices,
1 think that the precedures that we have provided in owr bill are
hetter: aside from that we have retained all of the strength that is in
the 1965 act.

Senator Bayi. T would like to look at the specifie provisions here,
T respectfully look at them with a somewhat different final judgment.
but that is of course not nnusual when people look at a similar set of
civenmstances, but. still if you are not !':nu!lisn{ with the details, per-
haps Mr. Leonaxd is, since he is in charge of that department, I do
not want to go and bother the committee with respeet {o matters of
diserimination which ave contained in this veport,

1 just point out. that it has been necessary to send examiners to 64

‘connties and parishes in five States in the Inst 40 days, You have had
ause to send poll observers to two elections in Mississippi and one in
Louisiana, A number of these things have heen going on,

The /Allen case pointed out three or four very devious means to which

- State legislatures wonld resort, changing district elections for connty
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supervisors to at large, changing the qualifications in which one may
Jist. himself on the ballot as an independent candidate, the example
of appointment versus clection of snperintendents of public instrue-
tion to which you referved a while ago but at least in the Allen case
the Court found in that particular instance it was discriminatory.,

All of these things and many others are listed in here.

1 personally feel we have ample grounds to suggest that we cannat
let our guard down. I do not think you really want to let our gnard
down.

Attorney General Mrrcnrrn, We are not doing so, Senator. All of
the safeguards that are in the 1965 act are certainly going to be
continued. We have made only one change in secticn 5 as to the man-
ner of enforcement of that provision.

Senator Bayi. Would you he so kind as to tell the committee spe-
cifically, I would like to look at section 5 but frankly I am concerned.
I cannot help but believe it was not just an act of God that we sud-
denly got al} of these people registered and that we suddenly had a
decrease in cases. I think this frankly can be argued very effectively
to weaken your ease that section 5 was not important, but that is a
matter of judgment.

Attorney General Mircsiere., We are not saying that section 5 is
not important. We are saying that it is important. What we are say-
ing is that the mechanics we have proposed for the enforcement of
that seetion are an improvement over the present act.

Senator Bavi. Would you deseribe, please, just as quickly as yon
can how under 5. 2307 you would handle the safegnards of section
S, please?

Attorney General Mrrenern, Te gives the Attorney General power
to go into a three-judge Federal conrt and request a restraining order
or temporary or permanent. injunction against any public body that
deals with elections to enjoin any activity that \muld impinge upon
the right of a person to vote.

Senator Bavin In other words, here again we nmay have a little dif-
ferent judgment on this, but it seems to me that this is very similar to
the provi<ions which provided not just in section d hut in section 2,
section 3 and inplemented in section 12 of the present act and which
were tried before the 1965 act involving this tedious business of going
from one conrt to the other which got very little results.

Attorney General Mircueer. This is restrieted in our case to the
legislative enactments, which are much easier to identify than arve prac-
tices or any other devices that might be used to keep people from
voting,

Senator Bavn. 1 would suggest that if yon compare the means by
which vou ave providing the policing, yvou are really making it more
diflicult to bring weight to bear.

IFor example, right now 1 personally believe this business of having
the State have the burden of proof in those areas where you have
had a long chain of circumstantial evidence of diserimination is goad,
What you ave saying, that in cach one of these eases before the suﬁ)joct
can be suspended, hefore the case ean be adequately litigated, yvou
have to prove diserhnination. .

In the :A/len case the court pointed out in some detail, you may
have mmore personal experience m this than 1 have, I am sure, having
practiced law for a long while, but the eout just struck off a figure
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of some 6,000 man-hours needed to prove overt discrimination and
that is the only way you are going to be able to prevent a legislative
act from taking effect.

Attorney General Myrcukcn., This bill that we have here does not
involve the question of intent. It only requires proof of eflect.

Senator Bavir, It requires proof of diserimination though, does it.
not.?

Attorney General Mirciern, It requires.that there be the effect of
discrimination, and this relates to legislation solely.

Senator Bavi, Under the present act and under the Aen case,
individuals have the opportunity to bring cases; is that not the case/?

Attorney General Mrrenxre, In the avea of this bill, yes. :

Senator Bayi. Yes!?

Attorney General Mircirersn. Surely, section 3 of the existing 1965
act.

Senator Bavie. This would greatly inerease the burden that an in-
dividual must prove. Under the present act, under the present seetion
dy an individual need only lpre.sent to the comrt evidence that that
legislature did not approach you as Attorney General before this
act was implemented. This would not be the case now, They would
have to prove the diserimination, That is the effect that you re-
ferred to.

Attorney General Mrrcikrnr, This is true, and this is the issue that.
T raise. Under the provisions of the existing section 3, those who want
to evade the apy-lication of the \ttorney General’s power do not come
to us, and therefore we have to go into a one-judge district court in
tle area where the charge arvises, and hring the suit, without the
powers suggested in omr bill with respeet to restraining orders and
temporary and permanen. injunctions,

Senator Bayvi, Right now vou have to tind these casges fivst. Under
the present act if you lind these cases you can stop them, and instead
of proving diserimination all you have to prove is that you were not
approached before and they are automatically discharged by the
court as being diseriminatory and violating section )/

Attorney General Myrenrir, Yes, Senator, That is why I =ay there
is no difficulty finding these cases; they become public issnes. We
had one here this last month, the /siers Point case. There iz no prob-
lem about finding them. And when you do, you have to go into the
distriet conrt with fewer weapons than we have proposed in this hill,
in order to stop procedures which are dizeriminatory, or violative of
constitutional rigglts.

Senator Bavirn I respect fully suggest, Mr. Attorney General, you do
not. need nearly the weapons. If all you have to do is prove that the
Louisiana Legislature dicd not come to you and get. your approval
before this legislation was implemented, they are out of court. They
are out of conrt under section 5. You cannot do that under vour bill,
S. 2507,

Attorney General Mircitere. That is correct, hut we do not believe
that that is an appropriate function of the Attorney General for the
reasons that T stated.

Senator Bayi. Yes, but are we on common gronnd heie? In my
apinion it is mveh easier to prove that a legislative act ix invalid if
all you have to prove ix that yvou were not approached than it ix to go
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hefore a conrt whether it ix a district conrt or a three-judge panel, and
prove that it is diseriminatory. ™\

Attorney General Mrerenzny., 1 do not think you prove that the act
is invalid. You prove that they did not comply with the existing stat-
ute requiring submission.

Senator Bavn. That is all you have to do under =ection 5 or they are
out of court. You give up that remedy under the administration bill,

Attorney General Mrrcners. Senator, ag 1 testified, I donot believe
that the Attorney General can appropriately excreise Hnt power for
the reazons that T have stated,

Senator Bavn, You mentioned that you had to have t'm \\ltdmn of
Solomon,

Attorney General Mitenven. In order to make some of these
determinations.

Senator Bayn. Is it fair to suggest that you as Attorney (mnoml are
not. antomatically goine to try all of these changes that are made by
Stitte legislatures, that vou are going to have to make come judement
as to which ones need to be adjudicated and which ones do not ?

Attorney General Mirenent. No,heeause we have the eonrts fo make
thix determination. ‘

Senator Bayir, Yes but you have to—-—

Attorney General Mirenierr. We will lay the proof hefore the courts
as ta the effect and intent, 1f that is necessary in ceriain eases,

Senator Bavi, But vou have to make the determination, do you
not, a1~ to whicl eases are brought and whieh are not 7

Attorney General Mirenrre. We have no problem with vespeet to
bringing cases. The problem we have is making the judgment concern-
ing effect, a question which properly helongs in the omut

Senator Bavi. [\ll"’"(“t toyou that in my judgment, and here again
it i~ just one Senators ]udmnmlt that you are ser ionsly we ll\omnn’
your position, which has in my judgment resulted in a great number,
i lessening of the number of eases of legiglative efforts to try to get
around these laws,

What do you do about this example? Yon bring a ease in comrt and
the conrt says, “That practice eannot be followed.” The legislature
has <pecial session in ertomlmr passes a new law, which is to he
in eflect by November 1. Evervbody who is covered by that is denied
the riglt to vote, and you do not find out ahont it until December. There
is nothing you can (!n ahout that, Under the seetion 5 provisions while
thisx whole matter is heing adjudicated those who ave being denied or
are reeking to deny the nf'ht to vole are at least polmmml to vote.
Under your provision they arve denied the vight to vote until the matter
i< .uhm}h ated.

Attorney General Mrrcngrr. Senator, we have no pmhlmn with
Sinte legislatures, We are quite cognizant of what they are doing and
we lave no problem.

Senator Bavir. On the one hand you tell me yvou do nnt have any
probletas and on the ot her hand you tell me it is impessible to find all of
them.

Attorney General Mirenenr, T am talking about State statutes, the
1|I||sh.ztmn in your ease. We have no problem with respect to that.
There 1 no pml)h-m about finding the State laws, There is a great
deal of problem if the powers that ave given to the Attorney General
under the 1965 act are to be reasonably and properly administered.
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We must conduet extensive investigations so that owr judgments.are
not arbitrary with respect to statutes that relate to changes of howtida-
ries or anything that aftects the voting proces=. :

Senator..Ervin. If the Senator from Indiana will pardon me.for
interjecting myself, I would suggest it would be quite simple to in:
vest. those. who have the power to prosecute with the power of making
adjudications. Then we would not have any need for the courts and
we would have no congestion in the courts at all and there would not
be anything hurt except the constitutional doctrine of separvation of
powers. :

Senator Hruska. Mr. Chairman, one could go a step further and
invest in the Attorney General the power to change thes» laws the
way he sees fit in order to get things done the way he wants them
to do: then we could =ave a lot of high-priced Congre~snten and
Senators. [Laughter.]

Senator Bavien I would be swrprised if the people of Nebraska or
North Carolina would find favor with cither of the suggestions that
my worthy colleagues just made, but I would be glad to consider them
tf you want to proposze them.

Senator Eevix, 1 disagree with the inference that T necessarily
draw from the questions and obszervations of the Senator from In-
diana. 1 think that the power to pass on the validity of the laws is
vested by the Constitution in the courts, and wnlike the Senator from
Indiana, 1 do not favor putting the power to pass on validity of
Jawsin an executive official.

Senator Bavm. 1f T might. just make one stummary observation
about section 5 here, we obviously have differences of opinion. I would
like to get your thoughts on a couple of other quick matters.

It seems to me that you ave giving up a valuable tool. Tlere again
it is just my judgment that it is gomg to he much more ditlicult for
vou to prevent legislators or indeed election hoards from yielding to
pressurve and the temptation which they might not want to yield to.
They may be grateful to have this type of supervision, this backstop
provision, but. under the act as it now is, all you have to do to prove
an act is-diseriminatory is to prove that you weren’t approached and
informed of it. You lose that opportunity under the present aet, I
mean under the administration act. As the aect as it now is, while this
whole maitter i< heing adjudicated, hundreds of thousands of people
are given the chanee to vote, but under your proposal, as T read it,
they are denied the opportunity to vote until the matter is adjudi-
cated, and if there is any doubt I would rather come dovn on the side
of giving the person the right to vote.

Senator Hevsioy, Would the Senator vield /

Is it true. M. Attorney General, that cections 8 and 9 of the pre=ent.
bill are not only retained but that seetion S is improved and strength-
ened? Under the proposed amendment, if the Aftorney General finds
that there are denials of the right to vote under cireumstances just
described by the Senator from Indiana, then the Civil Service (fom-
misston shall send in these obzervers and registrars. The regiztrars will
proceed to register any voters who comply with the simple application
form that is preservibed and used by the Civil Service registvar, Isn't
it true then that any proceeding in the court would not :ﬁwidgo these
provisions of section S and section 9 which afford the people who want
to vote the immediate right to vote after registering ?
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Senator Bayir. Is that your answer?

Attorney General Mircnerr, That is a correct analysis, Mr., Chair-
man,

Senator Bayi. That sounds like a very good answer to my question,
but I do not. agree with it,

Senator Hruska, It is a pertinent answer hecause the Senatoyr from
Indiana suggested and stated in fact that while & court case is pend-
ing, thousands upon thousands of people ave denied the vight to vote.

Senator Bayur. That is exactly vight,

Senator Hruska. It is not correet.

Senator Bayu. My hometown election board, for example, or
Sam’s

Senator Ervix. PPat it on mine.

Senator Bavi, T must take another State other than North Caro-
lina beeause it does not happen down there, but let us take county X.
The election board 60 days before election comes up with a change that
totally changes the qualifications for voting. You could concoet a
whole number of devious schemes and unfortunately many of them
have been used.

Now these people arve disqualified under the administration until
the matter is adjudicated.

Senator Hruska, That is the point whieh I——

Senator Bavm. That is exactly the point. Whereas under the sec-
tion 5 provisions right now there is no adjudication necessary. All that
needs to he proved by either an individual or the Attorney General is
that -the result was not submitted to the Attorney General of the
nited States, That is a much less burden of proof than to try to prove
the effect of diserimination.

Senator Hruska. Let me read to the Senator from Indiana the pro-
visions of K, 2507 which will be inserted at the ontset of section 8 and
T quote from the bill:

Whenever the Attorney General determines with respect to any potitical sub-
division that in his judgment the designation of observers is necessary or appro-
priate to enforce the guarantees of the 15th Amendment, the Civil Service Com-
mission shall assign * % ¢ one or more persons ¢ * ¢ to enter into the place for
ho)llding an election, to enter tnto the place of registering, and to put themn on the
Tolls,

That is in section S.

Senator Bavi. We are talking about two different things, I think,
We ave talking about what makes a legislative law or election regula-
tion valid, and what are the powers of appointing examiners and
observers. Frankly you have the apportunity of getting a restraining
order, but before you can get that restraining order, the burden of
proof is on the United States of America or an individual who is
agerieved. The burden of proof is upon them to prove discrimina-
tion, which is a significantly higher hurden than a burden of proof
which is on the other party, and the whole matter is whether the reg-
ulation was submitted to the Attorney General in advance of its appli-
cation. It is an entirely different degree of proof.

Senator Hruska. To that I agree, but the Senator from Indiana
then went one point further and said, pending that proof and that
litigation, thousands of voters lost their right to vote, and that second
stateiment is not true under the present law, nor would it be true under
‘the law as it would be amended by S. 2507.
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Senator Bavn. With all respect to my distinguished colleague from
Nebraska I would like to get the opinion of the Attorney General.

Senator ISrvin. Will the Senator permit me to interject? His sup-
positious case could not happen in North Carolina because county
boards of election have no legislative powers in the first place.

In the second place the Legislature of North Carolina always ad-
journs 4 or 5 months before election,
© Senator Bayu. 1 never cease to he amazed at the fact that not only
is the Senator from North (‘arolina beyond reproach but so are his
constituents,

Senator Ervix, That is the reason I take some small degree of
umbrage at the Senator from Indiana for saying North Carolina Legis-
latave should be required to come to Washington to the Attorney Gen-
eral’s oftice, and bow and scrape and make obeisance before him and
say, " Please allow this act of our legislature to go into effect.”

It sort of delays things because if you want to go to court you have
to wo there first under these decisions.

Senator Bavu. I have the greatest respect for my distinguished
chairman from North Caroling, and as I told him earlier, T do not
in any way doubt his feeling, his veracity, his integrity on what is
happening. But I will point to a case in Mississippi here, to one
case where the fifth circuit court of appeals ism('({ an injunetion
pending appeal enjoining the vegistrar of voters of Forrest County.
Miss., from committing such acts as denying Negro applicants the
right to make application for registration on the same basis as those
of whites and the Mississippi Legislature immediately turned around
and changed the wording enough so that they got around and got out
from under the prohibition which was set down by the court.

Now what do you as Attorney General have to prove, and what
action do you have to take, if you are going to prevent this kind of
thing from happening? Do you not indeed first have to bring the
caze? You have to get some sort of a judicial determination, and you
have to prove diserimination,

Attorney General Mitcnerr. Senator, may I find out exactly what
kind of event you are discussing?

Senator Bayn. The act of the legislature, an act of the registration
board, any of these some 345 matters that have heen hronght before
the Department of .Justice.

Attorney General Mitcueirn. We are restrieting onrselves to the
question of legislative action?

Senator Bavir. To section 4.

Attorney General Mitcnrnn. Yes,

Senator Bavi. T think we oot into section 4 material here with
Senator Hruska.

Attorney General Miveuern. I think it was appropriate for Senator
ITruska to point out that if these people are being denied their
right to register and vote, those sections that he quotes would be
applicable. Qur examiners and our obzervers would he registering
and qualifying people to vote. ‘

Senator Bayn, You were just felling me vou were going to let
the conrt._ make the determination as to whether this rule was good
or bad. You did not possess the wisdom of Solomon. Now is it true
or is it not that you had to bring that case, yon had to get a judicial
determination of some kind and we *ave to verify diserimination?
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Attorney General Mrrcuern. Are we still disenssing legislative ae-
tions only?

Nenator Bavir, That is what T have been sticking with from the very
beginning. That is what really worries me.

Attorney General Mirenerr. Our proposed statute ineludes added
powers in section 3 that permits us to go into a three-judge Federal
court, and obtain restraining orders, iemporary or permanent in-
junctions, which will not only nullify the existing discriminatory
practices adopted hy the legislature, but will enjoin any future
diceriminatory laws.

Senator Bavn. What do vou have to prove hefore you get that
order from a three-judge court?

Attorney General Mirenerrn, We have to prove that it hus the effect
of diseriminating in the voting process.

Senator Bayir. And that is a much more difticult thing to prove than
to prove that you were not approached and did not give vonr agree-
nent to the act in question ?

Attorney General Mirvenewn., [ think we ean agree to that, yes.

Senator Bayu. Thank you, I appreciate that.

Now let me move on to anothey,

Senator Frvin. Let me inject myself on one point. State legislative
acts are in writing; are they not? Legislative acts aflecting anything
are available in printed form?

Attorney General Mrrenkrn. They certainly ave.

Senator Irvix. The Attorney Geneval can pass on

Senator Bavi. But my distinguished colleague yesterday in the
hearing suggested there were some matters and both of them could
incidentally refer to the appointment of the superintendent of public
instruction, which on the face, which on the writing of the act is not
discriminatory per se, so there has to be some judicial determination.
It is a much greater burden of proof than just proving that you were
ignored and that the law was not adhered to.

Now let me move on quickly because T know Senator Kennedy, who
is one of the orviginal leaders

Senator Kexxepy. I think if the Senator would vield, T think this
section is really one of the most important sections, section 5. As I
gather from the most recent response of the Attorney General, he does
feel that the burden of proof is a much heavier burden on the adminis-
tration's bill obviously, in the starting of legislation, than under the
1965 Voting Rights Aet, and T think this was really the point which
[ understand_the Senator from Indiana was trying to establish, T
think that it is veally quite clear on its face, and T think the fact that
the Attorney General has recognized this is really a most. significant,
useful and important. point developed in this exchange and T just want
to say that Tam extremely appreciative. '

Attorney General Mitcrery. Senator, T testified at great length on
the change and the reasons why I thought it was appropriate that the
change be made.

Senator KKexxepy. That. is correct. You gave as T understand it vonr
reasons on why you felt that there shonld be less of a burden of proof
or the reasons that support it in your testimony, but it does not get
away from the fact, Mr. Attorney General, as you yourself have sug-
gested, that it does mean that the provisions under the 1965 act, of
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section 5, are a stronger provision in terms of meeting what are recog-
nizable needs I think as pointed out by even your own testimony.

Attorney General Mitchell. Well, Senator, it is not ql;lite that stimple.
It is not a question of burden of proof; there is no burden of proof
required other than submission. That is not a burden of proof.

The point is thix. 1 would make two additional point-. No. L is the
question of who should be deciding this question, | believe the courts
should mnd owr suggested procedure would do just that.

No. 2, I make, is that the additional powers that arve provided for
the Attorney General are to help in eases where the legislation is not
submitted. T'he nuinber of cases that have been turned down by the
Justice Depuartment is not as numerous as the number of cazes that
have not heen submitted, and which have required lawsuits be brought.

Senator Daviu. 1f 1 may vespectfully suggest, and here again 1t is
rather obvions we ave looking at this with two ditferent yard-ticks
as far as what we think we can accomplish, 1 do not at ail ini .d to
discredit the purpose and the intent of the distinguished Attorney
General, but in my judgment under the administration bili, whether
it is the intent or not 1 really do not think it is the intent. with full
faith and credit here. This 15 going to greatly inerease the burden.
Now instead of an individual being able to just come into court and
say “Wait aminute, this registration provision ov this voting regula-
tion was not submitted to Xttorney General Mitchell”™ anid thus the
court =ays “That is right,” it is atomatically out, they are going to
have to prove not only that it was not submitted but that it i< dizerim-
natory. .\nd that is going to be significantly greater.

Attorney General Mrrcnern, Senator, it is not quite that simple.
The legislatures contention is that they are not required to submit it.

Senator Bavie, Well, if just half a job is going to be done with a
strong law, it is going to get better if you have a weak law is rather
inconsistent. L am not =0 naive as to suggest that the present law has
gotten all of those rvegulations out, that there are not zome people
who are discriminating, but if you have a large club or a close mag-
nifying glass to look for them and the ease of getting a court deter-
mination it seems to me you are in a much better position than you
are going to be when yon repeal it.

Attorney General Mrrenenn, Senator, you have not given credit
to the revisions we have made in the enforcement powers in section .

Senator Bavit. Very frankly 1 do not think you are getting any
additional power that you do not now have under the 1957 and 1961 acts
and under seetions 2, 3, and 12 of the 1965 Voting Rights Act. I think
you have these very powers, and it is these powers, this power of
having to go into court, that proved so inellective as far as the per-
centage of registered voters and the amount of Negroes who were
participating i the South. 1t did not work when we used that, M.
Attorney General.

Attorney General Myrenrer, "These powers are quite distinet from
the ones we currently have and, of course, they are divected at the
Tegislation and not the plethora of other voting rights cases that might
conte to the conrt.

Senator Bavn. Perhaps we should agree to disagree, Let me look
to this matter of literacy tests if [ may. ’

Senator Kexxeoy. Just before moving into that, My, Attorney

Teneral, Mr. Leonard, would you have seen the need for thi= section
ST-409 70 M
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5 in the 1965 Voter Registration Act or did you have reservations
about including it in the first place?

Attorney General Mrrcuers, \re you talking about section 5 of the
existing bill?

Senator Kexxepy. Of the existing bill.

Attorney General Mrircuernn. No, I would not. I would not have
that portion of the 1965 act as it was structured, because I think the
processes provided under which the .\ttorney General must make a
decision are not adequate. They result in arbitrary decisions without
suflicient information.

Now I am not talking about the blatant cases that are clear on their
face, but I can go on and give you illustration after illustration of
questions that get down to intent, and you never find out what the
intent is until after the legislation is effected.

Senator Kexxeoy. 1 think it becomes increasingly clear that you
would not have supported thoze provisions in the 1965 act and are not
supporting them in 1969. I think what we have really gathered here
is that vou did not agrvee with those provisions in the 1965 act and you
do not agree with them today in spite of the fact that in the past it has
had the support of 77 Members of the U.S. Senate in 1965, and 333 of
the 385 in the House of Representatives, so I am not really so surprised
at the exchange which has taken place between you and the Senator
from Indiana, because I think that you just do not agree with those
provistons.

Attorney General Mrrcnrrr. Senator, T hope you will put that in the
singular. Weare talking about a single provision.

Senator Kex~epY. Yes.

Attorney General Mircuerr. It is a technical provision for enforce-
ment of rights, T say that in my opinion our proposal provides a better
mechanizm that will work better tfmn the 1965 act.

Senator Bayn. Mr. Attorney General, a moment ago you said, and
I hate to get back to section 3, but this is so critieal. I do not see how
when you have 354 applications before you that you can just shrug
this off and say that the fact that the great percentage of these were
validated is a positive effect

Attorney General Mrreienr. There are 10 of them.

Senator Baym. Pardon me?

Attorney General Mrrersrr. There ave 10 ont of 344, There are 10
statutes that the Justice Department has disapproved. The Justice
Department leaned over backward in those cases to make sure that
they were not used in an arbitrary and diseriminatory basis. We may
have been wrong in connection with some of them. '

Senator Bavi. It seems to me that you just are arguing contrary
to what you said a while ago. that these decisions would be arbitrary
when the decisions that have been made have not heen arbitrary, and
[ would be willing to wager. and T am not a wagering man and we
have no way of proving, but T would be willing to wager that instead
of 10 caseg that were invalidated we would probably have been lucky
to have 10 cazes that were validated if it had not heen for the fact
that those who were making these decisions knew they could not get
away with it. )

Now you said just a moment ago, in response to Senator Kenuedy.
that this whole business, a great many of these cases were a matter
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of intent, and that intent could never be probably determined until
things were put in the act. Now are you saying that under your bill
that you are not. going to be able to bring one of these cases in a_great
number of these until you have had a chance to see whether it is dis-
criminating or not? .

Attorney General Mrrcrer, Quite the contrary, if statute shows
diserimination on its face we can go into court and have a determina-
tion in the proper forum. This is preferable to the Attorney General
sitting here in the Justice Department, without the neeessary inves-
tigating staff or the proper means of factfinding.

Senator Kexxepy. That does not have an investigating staff, M.
Attorney General?

Attorney General Mrreneni, To the extent required to take care of
this question.

Senator Kex~eby. Are you going to make recommendations that you
want more investigating stait?

Attorney General Mitcnerr, No. My recommendation ix rather that
our proposed statute be adopted.

Senator Kexxeny. They ask for FBI agents, My, .\ttorney General.

Attorney General Mitcurrr, I do not believe that the FBI agents
should be making determinations on a matter which should involve a
judicial decision.

Senator Kex~eny. I was just using that as an example for request
for additional agents, for the I'BI, I did not see why you might not
be requesting more investigators vourself if you do not have the staft.

Attorney General MircrrrL. We think we have a better solution in
onr proposed bill.

Senator Bavs. Let me look if T may to the matter of literacy
tests. I eannot help but be of the opinion that if all the facts which you
have presented ave true, and 1 would take them at face value that
theyv are, that indeed we should be making a maximum effort m thi-
Congress to repeal literacy tests. Now if that is the case, [ have two
concerns, One, if it is that important, why is it that you just sug-
gest. the suspension until January 1, 1974, instead of wanting to do
the job permanently?

Attorney General Muveneri, Senator, as I stated in my testimony.,
the information

Senator Bayir. I think you said, if you will excuse me, I think you
said in your testimony that from your standpoint that these circum-
stances involved in the Gaston case would be prevalent in the fore-
seeable future, Now that is a long time. Excuse me,

Attorney General Mircnere, This is correet, but you ave talking
about the date of 1974 A= 1 am certain you are well aware, there is
very little information available outside of the South with respeet
to registration and voting vis-a-vis color, The date is related to the
recommerndation for an advisory commission, which, with the informa-
tion available from the 1970 census, will inquire into voting patterns
and hehavior, and report back to the President and Congress by Jan-
pary 15, 1973, Congress can then examine the matter further, =cc
whether additional legislation is required, if any, and adopt appro-
priate action, based on all the facts, prior to 1974,

Senator Bayi. Let me agree wholeheartedly with yvou after you have
had a chance to look at the evidence as far ax what should be done
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as far as literacy tests are concerned, heeause I have tended to feel
that if in doubt let the man vote, and our State does not have titeraey
tests, never has, In those St ltos that du, the great bulk of them in
the North by your own admission there is very little evidence as to dis-
ummmtmn You ave looking at statistics a~ far as the | impact ol vot-
ing, and I am concerned about whether we can constitutionally do
this, even until Janwary 1, 1974,

1 mean it is no more unconstitutional 1o waive the lteracy test,
take away that State right between now and 1974 than it i< 1o do it
permanently, o I think Tefore we do it, we have to take the necessary
steps to make a sound case.

You cite these statistics which are very dramatie, and yon say
it may be asswned that this is the vesuit ol the applieation of the
htm'm\ test, Tlow can it be assumed? How can 16 be wsumed

I have heard the Senator from North Cavoling, and we have dis-
agreed on this matter, but 1 have heard him very dramatically argue,
and I agree with lh|- that there are a number of eircimstances that
can eonsider the rate of turnout at the polis. how many people vore,

You point out in your statistics on page 4, you point out that in
the South 50 to 75 pereent of the Negroes of \onntr age are registered,

“andd it is clear that this level is lnghm' than \o:rm voter pdltt(‘lpl—

tion,” Well now, are we talking about two dlllmom thing=4 Are we
talking about the number of l("'l\t(‘l(‘(l voters in the South and the
pereentage of those who .lL‘(ll(l") vote in the North!?

We go down. You assume per se that just beeause in those nine
northern citiez, those big cities, you point out here, and I will not
repeat them, that just hecause there are 100000 votes cast or fewer
than 1('(),000 votes cast, that this automatically means there has been
discrimination and this is the impaect of the literacy test, whether
overtly or through the Guston rule.

\0\\ how can you as Attorney General ask us to flivt with something
that is 0 franght with constitutional questions without =ome s wmh-
cant and detailed data to support this, based on the matter of dis-
erimination?

Attorney General Murcnerr, We are not asking you to flire with
constitutional problems. We feel that there ix an ‘l(lvqn tte constitu-
tional hase for it.

As I point out in my testimony, there are over 4 million under-
edueated Negroes who have moved ontside the South, We feel that the
Gfaston ('ounf:/ case is not a cumulative restriction on an avea eovered
by the 1965 act.

The (aston County case was protecting rights of undereducated
Negroes whether in New York, California, North Carolina or any of
the other States that ave now vnder the 1965 act.

Senator Bavir. Can you tell us the number of Negro voters in the
Sounth who have moved to Alaska. for example, or to any of the other
States that are covered l)v tho literacy test? This is the kind of infor-
mation that the Court is going to want before they will hold the con-
stitutionality of this.

Senator TTrvska, And that is why they are going to have a commis-
sion_that is provided for here in this bill to determine facts of that
kind, just like the commission has done heretofore under the act of
lfm.». Towever, instead of limiting their activities to seven Southern
States they wonld treat the other 43 States as part of the Republie.
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Senator Bavi, never thought 1 would hear my friend from Ne-
hraska suggest that while a study was goig on, hefore conelusive evi-
dence was i, we should antomatically “do mmoﬂmw which might he
unconstitutional even for a 3-vear aml + months pmmd

Senator Teeska. The Senator from Nebraska does no sueh thing.

Serator Bavin, This is the eflect.

Senator Hreeska, The Supreme Court did not hold that the lit-
eracy tests would he indefinitely banned hecause they are a basis for
diserimination. They simply said that as long as there are generations
who attended school where tlmv received lmdoqmto e(lu('.tlmn it will
be almost per se discriminatory. When that condition is remoy: ed. then
we do not have a ban.

Now, does this condition apply to the North? One of the duties of
the commiszion provided for in S. 2507 would he to diveet their atten-
tion to that fact. They will sce how many of these 4 million Negroes
moved into Los \ngzolm and into New York, to sce whether or not
the literacy tests in those States there are under the same restrictions
that are contained in the Gaston County case. T wounld think the
Senator from Indiana would weleome additional information that
would allow the extension of the Goston County vule to other parts
of the Republic that are similarly affected.

Senator Bavir, [ must <av as [ think [ sid earlier. and T s catd yes-
terdayv, that if we have people being direriminated against in the
North, that i 1< as much of a problem as far as each individual ix eon-
cerned as it i in the Sonth. But there are a number of questions that
have to be azked that weve posed by the Guston caze. Only one of them,
the matter that the Attorney General referved to. the fact that wn-
edueated Negraes have mov ed nm!h. that 1= only one of them. What
about the mlml.m of school distriets in the North that have been dix-
criminatory in the way they have educated young people? This is an-
other question.

Attorney General Mircurin, T mentioned that in my tetimony.

Senator Bavi. I salute vou for recommending a study whether it is
by this independent commission or the Civil Rights Commission, Imt
why, hefore we get the results of the study, do we automatically outlaw
the right to f\ppl\ these tests in the States where they are now bheing
held?

Senator Hervska, The reazon is the Supreme Conrt’s Gaston Covnty
decision. The triggering device was created, based on a |ne~mnptmn.
it has served its purpose. Now, on the. hasis of Zuston Connty. this
legislation wounld beecomie national vather than just regional,

Senator Bavin. The GGustoi Counfy ease, that was the siemificant step.
Frankly T think it wos a eood step. My friend from North Carolina
and others probably will disagree, but T think if we really laok at the
impact of that, T think it was good. But they had solid evidence. Thev
had olid grounds to take away what had lievetofore heen a constitu-
tionally given vight to cach State in this country if they wanted to
take advantage of it. We do not have these grounds now as far as the
other States ave concerned.

Can vou recite to this committee the number of instances in which
there has been diseriminatory practices as far as the applieation of
literaey tests in the Novth ?

Attorney General Miteneni. T would point to the faets recited in my
testimony. They make ont a prima facie ease with respeet to the denial
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of the right to vote through the application of literacy tests to wler-
educated people; T would add that if we are going to wait until 1974,
there are going to be a lot of people dentied the right to vote in the
interim period. The Geston C'ounty case may result in a proliferation
of litigation, just as hefore the 1965 act.

Our legislation would eliminate the possibility of that proliferation
of litigation, and would guarantee these people the right to vote until
the Commission reports and Congress acts on the matter.

Senator Kexxeoy. Mr. Attorney General, if that is the case, then
why don’t you go into court and knock down the literacy tests like
the Attorney General did with the poll tax?

Attorney General Mirenerr, Senator, this is a double-edged argu-
ment. Certainly, we can go into all of the remaining 12 or 13 States,
show that people have moved from the South into those States, that
they are undereducated, and that they are being discriminated against
through the use of a literacy test. But this is a very long and compli-
cated project.

What we are really doing here by our statute is providing the rest of
the country the same formula that was used in the 1965 act in the
South—getting at the problem by means of legislation instead of a
proliferation of litigation.

Senator Kexxepy. Why ean’t you just pick one case such as you
did with the poll tax in Virginia and then ask the court for a general
order?

Senator Ervix. The plain objection——

Senator Kexxepy. I would hke to hear from the Attorney General,

Attorney General Mrrcuenn. I am afraid that we could not get a
general order that would apply in all of the States where there e
literacy tests. Ilach has its own particular et of facts.

Senator Kexxepy. Certainly the effect of the Virginia case in eflect
abolished the poll taxex in virtually all of the States where it was had.
I am just wondering if all of the things which you have pointed out
in your testimony heve and in recent formmns ax a hasis for vour testi-
mony this morning, then why have you not come up here and asked
for legistation and why have younot tried it in the courts?

Attorney General Mrrenenn., The fuston County case came down
as recently as the 2d of June. We feel that legislation will be more
effective than a proliferation of litigation in the different States.

Senator Hruska., Wonld the Senator yield ?

Senator Kexxeby. I do not see why you say there would be a pro-
liferation of suits. I do not understand that, why you cannot just go
on in and get it tested, bring this in one jurisdiction, and why that
wonld not be consideved, and act immediately and expeditiously on this
and resolve this question.

Attorney Generval Mrrenern, I think, Senator, you have different
facts with respect to the number and educational background of the
people involved in the different States.

In other words, if you carry throngh the concept of the Gaston
Connty case T would have to show in, for example, the State of Cali-
fornia, that in a particular avea where they do apply literacy tests.
that there are so many undereducated people or that the loeal school
board provided unequal education. You are required to prove a series
of factual questions in every case.
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Senator Kexxeoy. I mean it seems to me yon could take what conld
be considered the worst ease of the States that retained the literacy
test and make that case there, and if you go about and suggest that
vou have not got the information on California or Massachusetts, yon
come on up here for us and ask us to act on evidence which you your-
self do not have.

Attorney  General Mircnerr. The testimony shows a prima
facie

Senator Kexxeoy. Tt seems to me you cannot have it both ways on
this point.

Senator Hruska, 11 the Senator will yield——

Senator Kexxeny. No, [ do not yield. 1 would like to heay from
the Attorney General,

Attorney General MircurLi., Senator, as I stated before, my testi-
mony contains a prima facie case, and this conpled with the Gaston
County case, convinces us that Congress should act now to end dis-
crimination and shonld then reexamine the question in 1974 when all
of the facts are in, The reason for action is to put more people on the
voting rolls now being kept off hecause of undereducation coupled
with the use of literacy tests in Northern States.

Senator Bavi. There is absolutely no proof of that, Mr. Attorney
General, absolutely no proof.

Senator Kexxeny, It seems to me, Mr. Attorney General——

Senator Ervix. T would say at the rizk of heing impolite there is
exactly the same proof about New York State, in about 10 congres-
sional districts in the North and in California as in the South. In
other words, figures prove one thing in the South and another thing
in the North, The mistake you apparently make, Mr. \ttorney Gen-
eral, is in advocating a Iaw covering the whole country instead of
seven Ntates picked out for harasinent.

Senator Hevska. A primary argament on behalf of the trigger de-
vice has been its simplicity as compared to a proliferation of lawsuits
on eounty-hy-county or precinet basiz. Now a further effort is made
in N, 2507 to vet away from a proliferation of Gaston County type
snits.and the diseretion to sue is given to the Attoruey General.

It seems to nie therein lies a reason for the differences,

Attorney General Mrrcurnn, I think, Senator——--

Senator Bavie. I I might suggest-

Attorney General Mircnern, Senator, can 1 put in one other item
that may be helpful / If you will go back to President Wennedy's Com-
mission organized to study this question, I think you will find informa-
tion in its report to substantiate our proposal. Incidentally, that Com-
mission recommended the same thing—an end to literacy tests.

Senator Krxxipy., Are you going to consider bringing cases, Mr.
Attorney General, in these States or in any one of the States?

Attorney General Mircirers., Senator, I would hope that this legisla-
tion would make it unnecessary to institute suits,

Senator Krxxepy. It seems to me you are going to have to gather
the information, the statistics to make—-1 mean you make the state-
nent in your testimony that the Oftice of the Education Studies® De-
partment of Justice Lawsuits has alleged that areas outside the South
provided inferior education to minority groups. FFollowing the general
reasoning of the Supreme Cowrt I believe that any literasy test given
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to any pei=em who has veceived inferior education \\'ould be just as
unfair in a State not covered by the 1965 act.

Now if von have the information to substantiate that s tfomr-nt. and
in which caze if you have that information it seemns to me that youn
have a responsibility to hring a case, or if you do not have the informa-
tion. 1 do nat know how you can expeet us to respond in support of
the legislation,

Attorney General Mireners, Semator, T have no problem about
bringing the cases. What I am saving is that if this legislation is
nsced, it will eliminate the necessity of bringing a proliferation of
individual cases in those States outside of the seven covered by the
1965 aet that have literacy tests.

Senator Kexxeoy., It seems to me, Mr. Attorney General, that it is
not unreasonable to suggest that yon could bring one suit and hring
the other 1 States on it. You brought in New York. T am sure it was
suecessful there. I am sure Massachusetts wonld abolish theirs, It docs

.t =een to me to add all the questions of cases, additional eases which
von have sugvested here.

Attorney General Mrrerinr., Senator, 1 get hack again to niy pre-
vious statement that this raires factual questions as to whether nnder-
edueated citizens live in aveas where literacy tests ave applied. This
ix not a sabject matter that can be taken cave of in all of the Staies
ont=ide of tie South with one suit.

Senator Bavi. It is not only a factual matter, Mr. Attorney General,
it ix a means by which the tests involved are applied, and it.ix a much
different test if you have a sixth-grade test i which you say auto-
matically if vou do not pass the sixth grade yon apply and you prove
u person can punctuate plupml\. but T want to reiterate, umtmum"
to keep you in the batter's hox on this thing, but first of all I have
absolutely no objection to the effort to try to deal with this problem
on a nationwide basis, and the idea as comeone said a while ago, T think
perhaps you. that it is our intention to put this past 1971, Not at all.
[et ux go forward with it vight now. But when we go let us have some
facts in that (Fuston Connty case they had the onﬁw educational ex-
perience in the State. We do not have that at all. You have not pre-
sented s any evidence of that as far as these other States ave concerned.

We have the diseriminatory tacties involved in the State of South

Carvolina. We do not have any evidence at all that these tests are being
used diseriminatorily. We do not. have all this information about the
orvamg to vote.

Senator Tutryoxn, Mr. Chairman, will the Senutor vield?

I deny diserimination in South Cavolina and 1 ask for'the Senator’s
proot.

Nemator Eevin, We are running out of time.

Senator Bave I think theve are going to he cases, and 1 for ane
say that that is the impact of the literaey te<i, and T want to take care
of i Imt T want to take eare of it o we will be on a cound constitutional
stool and not he left hanging up heve,

Another matter just like this if T might go on, T know the Senator
from Massachusetts has questions that ho wants to ask. hut this Iisiness
of residency requirements-—- -

Sepator Ervin. T think mavhe we had better recess now. Tt s ¢
quarter afier 1.
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Senator Bayu. Could I take just a short period of time? One more
question is basically all that T would like to pursue.

Attormey General Mircnerr, Senator, would von like ne to answer
the Jast one?

Senator Bavir. I want to suggest to you I personally feel that von

need to be complimented for that. I think it is a good goal. But Lere
again this is a very thick constitutional problem. It is a very tricky
one. .
For example, Senator Goldwater is of the opinion that this shounld
be done, but he thinks it should be done by a constitutional amendment.
The American Bar Association Study Group, which studied the elec-
toral reform procedure, suggested that uniform rvesidency require-
ments shou!d be done hut that this should be included in the con-
stitutional amendment, and outstanding pane! of lawvers across the
country and for you to cavalierly suggest that we can do this by
statute I think issubject to question.

I think my friend from Massachusetts thinks it can be done by
statute but to get this all embroiled in this controversy and thus
perhaps cause us to defeat a bill which has produced such salutary
results I think is very questionable.

In fact I cannot help but think that the problem of can it pass, what
this does to damaging the possibilities of any legislation being enacted
as far as the recideney requirement and the literacy requivements heing
included in here reminds me of a similar conversation that vou and 1
have had or your deputy and T have had relative to the President’s
position on electoral reform, in which his main thrust was that ai-
though he had said on two oceasions during the election he thought the
man =hould be elected who had the most votes, he was reluctantly cvoing
to suggest two alternatives which would not provide that guarantee
heeause hie thought the other one could not pas«.

I would hike for vou to consider the danger involved in these two
areas as far ax pulling down all efforts, and that we would separate
them.

I. for one. would give vou all the cooperation and I think our chaiv-
man would. Let us go forward to consolidate the progress we have
made, and then in another effort going forward smmilarly to shove
up the weak spot= which yvoubring to our attention. )

[ thank you for your patience, 1 hape that we ean disagree without
guestioning anyone'’s motives, I certainly did not intend to do that.
and I appreciate your response.

Senator Ervin. T do not know whether it ix constitutional but 1
think it istime we got something to eat.

Mr. Attorney General, can yon come back this afternoon?

Attorney General Myvcienn. I cevtainly shall. T do not know what.
my schedule is but T am enjoying this o much that T will cancel any
other appointments.

Senator Ervix, What time would be convenient ?

Attorney General Mrrcunkrt. Any time the committee wonld want
me back.

Senator Hruska. Mr. Chairman, I presume there are others who
would like to get into the matters as extensively as onr friend from
Tndiana. This afternoon we do have a debate on a very important
subject, the ABM. T would very much dislike to miss out on the fun
over thore. We ean have all kinds of fun avound herve. T wounld suggest
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we coneider some future dates, rather than today, because to the cx-
tent we rit here, we are going to miss out on the action over there.

Senator Ervix. T might say that I had hearings set and I canceled
this week in order to give the Attorney General a chance to present his
views, They are set for Monday, Tuesday, and Wedne=day. Thursday
I will be away. It may be wise to do that and see if we can reach a
mutually convenient date.

[ am holding hearvings next week on Monday, Tuesday, and Wednes-
day and T have a speaking engagement which will take me out of
Washington Thursday. If there is no objection the subcommittee will
stand in recess subject to the call of the Chair on a date that is mu-
tually convenient *o the committee and to the Attorney General.

Attorney General Mircuern. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

(Whereupon, at 1:20 p.m. the committee adjonrned, to reconvene
suibject to the eall of the Chair.)



AMENDMENTS TO THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965

WEDNESDAY, JULY 30, 1969

U.S. Sexuarr,
Sexate Jupniciany CoMMITTEE,
Suncomymrrire ox CoxstirurioNan Richrs,
Vorixe Rucirrs LecisraTioN,
Washington, D.C.

The subeommittee met, pursnant to recess, at 10:30 a.an., in room
1114, New Senate Oftice Building, Senator Sam Ervin (chairman of
the subeommittee) presiding.

Present: Senators rvin, Bayh, Hruska, and ‘Thurmond.

Also present: Lawrence . Baskir, chief connsel, Lewis W, Evans,
connzel, and Glen Smith, Senator Thurmond's stadl.

Senator Ervix, The subcommittec is eallted to order.

This morning the subecommittee resumes its hearings on proposals
to extend the provisions of the 1965 Voting Rights Act for another
o vears, and on S, 2507, the bill introduced hy Senator Dirksen on
hehalf of the administration, to extend its application to all States
using literaey tests,

Before the Attorney General vesumes his testimony, T would like
to offer some additional evidence which demonstrates that the 1965
act was poiitically motivated for the purpose of applying only to
the Southern States. T believe this information shows that at the very
least the act should be based on the results of the 1968 election, and
should not be restricted to the South alone.

In the 196X election, only three counties of North Carvolina failed
to register at least 50 pereent of their population over 21. They were
Craven County with 47.7 pereent, Cumberland County with 32.8 per-
cent,and Onslow county with 30.3 percent.

Cumberland County is the site of Fort Bragg, with a military popu-
Iation of 55.0600, all hut a few of whom do not vote in that county.
Onslow is the site of Camp Lejeune, with a military population of
33,5000 Craven, the thivd county, missed the 50-percent mark by only
2.3 pereent, and its military population is 9,000. When military per-
sonnel are zubtracted, Craven had a registration figure of 65.2 per-
cent, Cumberland, 625 pereent. and Onslow, 95.5 pereent.

By contrast, according to figures supplied to me by the Staie of
New York, Frie County registered only 7 pereent of its population
cstimated to be over 21, ‘T'o the best of my kuowledge there are no
significant :ntlitary installations in Erie Count v,

As T have said before, T see no logical connection between the exist-
ence or norexistence of a literacy test and the mumber of persons
who actually vote in a given clection. Dislike of the candidates,
weather, and any number of factors may influence the turnout in

(2130
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an election. In North Carolina, there are many counties in which
Republicans are rarely to be found and =o the important election is
the Democratic primary. Ior this reason, the turnout in the general
election is often quite low.

Nonetheless, the Voting Rights Aet condemns many counties in
North Carolina on the basis of low voting turnout. Of the 39 counties
now covered because of 1964 voting statistics, only cight countics
would be covered if 1968 results were used. Of the nine New York
counties for which T have figures, four failed to achieve a voting
turnout of 50 percent or better. These were the Bronx, with 49.4 per-
cent ; Kings with 47.7 pereent ; and New York County with 47.9 per-
cent, in addition to Irie with 39.5 percent.

If we disregard percentages and look at numbers of eitizens, the
comparison between North Carolina and New York is even more
interesting. ‘The total number of persons over 21 in the 39 counties
of North Carolina who did not. register in 1938 was 461.337. For the
nine New York counties, a total of 2,977.262 did not register, or almost
four times as many. I we compare the North Carolina and New York
counties in terms of persons who did not vote, the figures are 629,522 as
against 3,866,211, or more than six times as many in New York.

The act applies to States or to political ~ubdivisions, If it applied
to election districts, sueh as congressional or assembly districts, many
additional localities in New York and California would be covered,
not to mention other possible States. As the Attorney General's state-
ment. shows, the voting turnout in a number of New York and Cali-
fornia election districts fell well helow the 30 pereent figure. even
though the results for the connty as « whele may have exceeded that
mark.

There has been much valk to the etfeer that the other States besides
North Carolina and the Southern «ix have no need for a law tike
the Voting Rights Net. In my judgment. that argument iz based upon
the revulsion that the other 13 States wounld feel if they were -nb-
jected to the indignity of the 1965 Votine Rights Net. Tt is not hased
upon the fact that these States might not deserve to he subject to the
act,as well.

At this time, T would like to insert in the record tables prepared
by the subecommittee staff showing 1968 figures for certain counties
in North Carolina, New York, and California. \lso, a letter from
Senator Havrison Williams and my veply.

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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{'T'he material veferred to follows:)

TABLE A.—19€8 VOTING PARTICIPAT(ON IN THE 39 COUNTIES OF HORTH CAROLINA COVERED UNOEIR
“THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1365"

e e e T 2

Percantaze of

: Percentage of estimated
Estimatad estimated poputation
populatipa t papulstion over 21 who
ovar 21 Total over 2] *iamber voted in 1968
Counties Rov. 1, 1953 registered? registered ~ating?  general election
Anzen 14,27 8,518 60.4 3 014 56.4
Baaufo 22.10) 14,360 649 11,638 Se.7
Battie. . 13,00) 10,415 80.1 L33 56. 4
Bladen. 14,299 9.327 69.2 8.4 59. 4
€Camgen . _ . . 3,13 2,632 849 1,933 64.5
Caswell. . R 11,732 , 040 63.7 5,819 50.2
Chovan ... ...... .- 6, 7d 4,172 62.2 3,137 55.8
Cleveland. ... ... . 42,520 29,050 68.2 22,801 53.6
Caaven ... ... 33,32 15, 500 16.7 13,233 3.5
25939y ... ... ... (63.9) R (50.9)
Cumberland. .. __._......... 117, 0m 37,135 32.3 29,063 A,
B2,137)y..... ... (60.7) e e (46.8)
Edgacembe. .. ..._..._..... 73.27) 18,408 63.0 14,432 49.4
Franktin.___.. .. 16,63 11,163 6.2 9, 000 5.2
Gisten ... . 83.4% , 064 68.4 32,814 513
Gates_ ... .- 5,310 3,110 8.7 2, 52.8
Gracwille. . 22,04 14,091 641 8,544 38.8
reene ... R 8,400 $,910 70.4 5.1 6L 1
Guiliord. 16%,29) 115,09 63.8 81,407 $3.0
Hilfax . 23,10) 22,923 71.4 15, 4.7
Hertlord. 13,500 9,055 67.1 6, S1.5
Harnett . 23,430 19,561 66.5 15,822 53.8
Hake__ . 9.100 5,423 536 4,532 43.8
Lee._. . 18,20 12,875 70.7 9,240 50.8
Lenoir_ 32,000 22,404 10.0 15,835 49.5
tartin 14,59 19,822 7.6 8,25 5.9
Nash.. ... 5, 200 24,403 62.4 13,251 $3.2
torthamplon. .- 13,907 12,244 9.7 7,931 59.2
ORS00V, _ e e 43,100 4,860 3.3 12,309 5.1
(19.544) (35.6) (79.2)
Pasquotank. ... ... 15,99 8 m 95.2 1,131 49.0
Perquimans. . . S, 47 3,755 6.5 3,01 5.9
Parsan. ... 15,90% 12,351 1.1 33 55.6
44,20) 26,076 5.9 22,146 S1.5
46,70 3,718 65.3 19,452 4.7
41,57 21,5719 61.9 219 54,7
14,700 3,302 .5 125 4.7
23,700 13,158 61.1 13,307 46.6
19,809 15,276 1.2 11,43t $2.7
7,800 6,420 823 4,814 61.7
, 500 26,986 $1.6 20,103 39.8
(44,635 (53.5) (44.9)
33,50 13,7213 53.0 16,203 48.4
1,185,900 T3 556,318 . ...
t Bureau of the Census. Estimates except thase in brackets includ2 Armad Forces statransd iv country.
2 Alex K. Brock, executive secretary, North Carolina Stata Baard of Elections.
Tab'e prepared by staff of subcommittee on Constitutionas Rights.
TAELE B.—YOTING PARTICIPATION IN 1968 GENERAL ELECTION tX 4 COUNTIES OF CALIFORNIA
Percentage of
X Peccentage of estimated
Estimated estimated © population
populationt . Total2 population over 21 why
. aver 21, registration; qver 21 Number voled in 1968
Counties Hov. 1, 1968 ov. 5, 1954 registered voting?  general election
Los Angeles.........o..... 4,387,126 3,130,962 7.4 2,700,170 61.6
PANZ@. . it 172,27 , 886 75.2 507,162 65.7
San Diego.. ... ... 195, 600 542,813 68.3 419,350 59,2
SaataClara_..._........_.. 573,00} 422,103 73.8 363,429 63.4
Tot. ... 6,527,325 4,677,364 ... ... Lo Y

Note: Tatle prepared by slaff of Subcommittze an Constitutiona! Rights.
Sources: 1. Planning commissions of each county. 2. Frank M. Jordan, Secretary of State, State of California, “‘Statement

of Vote,'’ general election, Nov. 5, 1968, pp. 4-5.
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TABLE C.—VOTING PARTICIPATION IN 1938 GENERAL ELECTION IN 9 COUNTIES OF NEWN YORX STATE

Percentage of

Fercentage of estimated
Estimated estimated population
population population over 21 who
over 21,1 Tota} cver 21 Numbar voted in 1968
Counties Nov. 1, 1968 1egistration? registered wvatirgt  g2aeral electizn
...... 942,372 §70,404 £0.5 455,415 29.4
1,699,225 1,072, 590 63.1 810,619 7.7
.......... 1,155,675 691,023 $9.8 $33,629 41.9
L e 1.372.85? : £8.1 183, 1%} 57.2
.......... 174,811 112,549 61.2 101,425 $7.9
........... ! 322,112 76.9 293,475 115
................ 1,166,627 548.633 1.0 461,299 39.5
628, 522 441.045 70.2 407,256 64.8
€41,812 . 651,343 7.4
8,405,449 4,539,233

Note: Table prepared ty staff of Subcommittze on Constitutionat Rights.

Sources: 1, Al population estimates except those for Monroe and Erie Counties were prepared by Or. Ayraham Burstein,
“Demographic Projection for New York State Counties,”” New York State Pianning Coordinatias, Huran Rasources Ad-
ministration. Estimates for Monroe and Erie Counties aere extrapolated from statistics supptied by New Yaork State Oe-
rartment of Commerce. 2. New York State Depart-nent of State.

TABLE D.—COMPARISON OF ILLITERACY OF YOTING AGE POPULATION IN 19 ILLITERACY TEST STATES

Percentage
. which com-
Volingage ~ Tetal pleted less
population,  illiterates of than § years
1960 1 voling 332 of school?

l
|

1aaMa. i i 1.834,000 238,912 16.3
Georgia 2,410,000 424,16) 1.6
Louisiana. . 1,804,000 384,252 21.3
Mississippi_ - 1.171.000 220,143 18.8
North Carotina. 2,557,000 21,935 16.5
South Carclina. 1,266,000 256,933 20.3
Virginia. ..ol L. . 2,313,000 393,003 13.1

States with titeracty tests not covered by Yoting Rights Act:
ARaSka_ . . L liiiiiiiiieiiiieiiiio . 134.000 10,933 82
Arizona. .. 732,000 13,200 10.0
California. 9, 660, 000 $90,620 5.7
Connecticut 1, 591,000 100,233 6.3
Delanare 267,000 17,622 6.6
Maine. .. 581,000 27,307 47
Massachus 3,245,000 194,700 6.0
Hew Hampshi 373.000 16,412 44
New York 10. €81, 000 818,718 1.8
Oregon_ .. ... ... 1.023,000 35,409 33
Washinglon___._____. ... 1,218,000 53,412 3.4
L7 T S, 190, 000 " 3.6
Total in States covered by Yoting Rights Aet.. ... ____._._... 13, 355,000
Total in States not covered by Voting Righls Act but having literacy
[ S 30, 345,000
Total in 2!l States having iteracy tests_ ... ... .. .. .. ... 43,700,000

ticte: Table prepared by staff of Subcommitiee on Constitutional Rights.

t Source: Bureau of the Census, Cutrent Pogplalion Repotts, series P-23, No. 14 (1365), technical studies, table 1,
3Scurce: Bureau ¢t the Census, County and City Data Book 1967: A Stalistical Abstract Supplement, p. 3.
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TABLE €.—COMPARISON OF VOTING PARTICIPATION IN 1968 GENERAL ELECTION IN SELECTED COUNTIES OF
o : 3 STATES WITH LITERACY TESIS

Total Tatal Tetal

) population  popclatian iViteratest

Estimated . Tetal over 2] ov2i 21 of voting

paputation Teta} voles not wha di g ;e

State over 21 registration c2st  tegistered ritvate  population

North Carotina :(39 counties). ... ... 1, 185,900 724,513 596,378 461,387 723, £ 421,9C5
California 3 (4 counties).. ... . 6,522,326 4,677,364 4,041,111 1,849,962 2, 4%5 215 550, 620

New York 3 (9 counties)...

8,405,449 5,427,187 4,539,238 2,977,962 3.855,2U1 218,718

1 Number of voting-age people in entire State who had not completed 5 years of school in 1960,
1 Covered by 1965 Voling Rights Act.
3 Not covered by 1965 Voling Rights Act.

Note: Table prepared by staff of Subcommittee on Constitution2) Rights from tatles A, B C, and 6.

JuLy 22, 1969,
Hon, SAMCEL J. ERVIN, JR.,
Chairman, Subcommittec on Constitutional Rights, Judiciary Commitice, U.N.
Scnate, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR, ("HAIRMAN : The ability to control one's own destiny ared have a pro-
portionat voice in directing the course of one’s country is the rounrdation of the
democratic principle upon which this nation purports to rest. In the tifteenth
Amendment to the Constitution, this right was assured to all citizens of the
United States regardless of ‘‘race, color, or previous condition of servitude.”
The Amendment commands the state governments not to deny the right to vote
to anyone on this basis,

For 93 years, this promise was ignored and often repudinted. In 19635, however,
the Congress enacted {he Voting Rights Act. The Act stands as a landmark of
political equality as it implements the Constitutional mandate. However, the
hedging, indecision, and recent pronouncements of the present Administration
concerning extension of this Act might prove to be catastrophic for the rich
promises of democracy contained in the law.

At present, we have three courses of action with regard to the Voting Rights
Act of 1965, The first is to do notining and merely allow the integral! parts of the
act to expire (as of August 6, 1970). Our second alternative is to accept At-
torney General Mitchell's position. Thirdly, we can extend the application of
the Act and then explore other avenues to broaden the scope of the Act. As a
sponsor of 8. 2456, I have formally approved the last alternative—the only
approach we can choose in good conscience,

Thoxe who would urge that we permit the et to explire have twn possible
arguments: The Act has failed to fulfill its objectives; or, the Aet hax xerved its
total purpose, thus it is useless, Statistics alone will invalldate these arcnuments,

Here are facts that clearly demonstrate great strides nnder the Act:

{ln percent)

States 1954 19¢9

L R L7 1 2 SR 6.7 9.4

Ahbamf.p. . 19.3 6.1

Georgia. . a4 52.6

L I
It rolina . .

VIR, - oo e et 333 55.6

These figures represent non-white voters registered to vote immediately prior

to the passage of the Act, as compared with the present, in the six Southern
states primarily covered under the legislation. This laudable increase of S00.000
new voters has contributed to the election of 400 hiack offielals it the past four
years.
" he Act has not failed. Rather, it has created a political citizenry that is es-
sential if our legislators and clected officials are to represent «!! Mmericans.
Token representation is not democracy. “Palitical power” is democratic and
within the American spirit.

In 1083, we believed that tive years under the Aet wonld be sufticient time to
enfranchise afl tue politically deprived. We were inaccurate. Foresight i< be-
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coming increasingly more difticult ; in any case, the legislation has certainly not
finished the task for which it was designed.

The disparity between white, registered, eligible voters and non-whites still
borders on the absurd. Here are some factx:

1969 PERCENTAGE OF ELIGIBLE YOTERS REGISTERED

{In percent]

Stales White Nonahite
Hississiggi 9.4 59.4
Alabama. 8.5 56.7
Georgia. . 84.7 36.1
Louisiana. __ . 87.9 59.3
South Car0lina. L. . i iiiaiieaiian 65.5 53.8
R {41 67.0 58.4

We cannot permit the Act to expire when we have so much to accomplish.

In 1063, I believed that through this Act Blacks would be able to volce their
views in a responsible and effective manner. 1 still adhere to this opinfon. We
cannot stop here. How can one say that this Act has completely done what it
was designed to do, when thiere are no blacks serving in the State Senate or
State House in Alabama, Mississippi, Louisiana, South Carolina or Virginia
when there is 26%, 36%¢, 29¢z, 29% and 19¢% non-white population in the
respective states.

The Administration’s proposal has merit; however, it unfortuntaely docs not
stand as strongiy for the disenfranchised as would the extension of the present
Act. For example, the call for a nationwide ban on literacy tests, and state
residency requirements for Presidential elections is certainly noteworthy. But
the .\dministration’s proposal fails to extend the section of the Act which has.
and hopefully will in the future, provide for a critical review by the Office of
the Attorney General of all proposed new electoral procedure by those states
already covered. Under the Administration plan, the possibility of prohibitive
voting laws would shine anew. Perhaps after a simple extension of the Voting
Rights Act we can censider these recommendations., We must not altow all past
and future progress to disappear.

We are left with the last and only responsible choice: a five-year extension
to the Voting Rights Act of 1965 before August 6, 1970.

We have no other alternative than to extend the present Act. We have an
obligation as responsible legislators and public officials to guarantee that all will
liave a voice in our political process.

This obligation is founded upon written law and informally imposed through
personal involvement in the problem. Those who have been aware of the history
of the fight for political equality and freedom have a strong sense of obligation;
an obligation to see the promises of cquality fulfilled; to see predictions become
a reality.

Ilow are we to explain to the disenfranchised in this country that we are
forsaking them—denying to them the promises exposed for decades? We cannot
afford to lose the confidence of these people—these Americans. The politically
deprived of this country are expecting our assistance—our concern—the exten-
sion of the Voting Rights Act.

We must respond to the cry of the disenfranchised.

With best personal regards,

Sincerely,
(Signed) TPete Williams
(Typed) HarrisoNn A. WiLriass, Jr.

Jurry 30, 1969,
Ifon. HarrisoNn A, Wrirriavs, Jr,
U.S. Scnatce,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Pete: Thank you for your letter of July 22. It is a most most eloquent
statement of the position of those who favor extension of the Voting Rights Act
of 1755 and with your permission, I would tike to insert it into the Subcommit-
tee's hearing record.
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You realize that we disagree on this subject, and while I have little hope ot
converting you to my views, perhaps I can explain the basis for North Carolina’s
opposition to extension of the law.

The 1065 Act was a politically motivated effort carefully designed to impose the
full might of the federal law upon a few selected states. The law was drafted to
apply only to six states and to some counties in my own State, North Carolina.
The bill’'s objective is laudable. I wholehieartedly approve of insuring that every
qualified citizen regardless of race is given full opportunity to exercise the fran-
chise. North Carolina adheres to this principle, and does not deny to any qualifled
citizen his right to vote.

The 1065 Act created an artificial standard of legislative condemnation through
adoption of the 50% “trigger device.” While there may arguably be some logical
connection between a literacy test and the number of persons who register, there
is no such relationship between use of the test and the number who actually vote.
By the peculiarity of this provision, and the unreasonable addition of non-resi-
dent military personnel and inmates of mental justitutions, a number of North
Carolina counties were covered by the Act.

One can take the 1968 statistics and argue that the law was effective because
800,000 unregistered citizens have been registered; or one may argue that most,
it not all, would have registered even without the taw. But it is clear that the
objectives of those who supported the Act in 1963 have been met fn the 1968 elec-
tion. Each of the six States covered by the Act met the 507 test of registration
and veoting last year. Of the 39 counties of North Carolina covered by the 1004
election, only three failed to register 509 this time. Cumberland County is the
site of Fort Bragg, and Onslow County contains Camp Lejeune, The third county
is Craven, and that fell below 509 registered by only 2.85%.

By way of comparison, according to tigures supplied to me by the State of Now
York. the November, 1968, registration in Erle County was only 4762 of the esti-
mated population over 21. In Bronx, Kings, New York, and Erie Counties, the
percentage of those voting in 1968 fell below 50% in each case, and was less than
40%¢ in Erie. New York alzo employs a literacy test.

{ can see no justiticatiion for not releasing from the coverage of the law those
Jurixdictions which have satisfied the standards of guilt imposed upon them in
1965. The typical response to this reasonable suggestion has been that the southern
states would regain their power to order their own elections, and that this must
be prevented.

This is a peculiar argument. An arbitrary and illogical test of righteousness is
created. The victims meet that test. They are then denied absolution for fear they
may sin again. So the test of righteousness is changed to make certain they re-
main sinners. : '

The Attorney General's proposal has only the small virtue of applying like
unconstitutional law:s uniformly to like subjects. In my view, the Congress has no
constitutional power to suspend constitutionally guaranteed powers of the states.
But at least the law should apply equally to all, and insure all the right to vote
regardless of literacy tests.

The Attorney Genveal's bill makes only a few small substantive changes in the
1965 Act, but it does eliminate the unjust and repressive aspects which are so
objectionable to North Carolina. First, it opens the doors of all federal courts on
thiet assumption that every federal judge can be relied upon to uphold the law of
the land and the Constitution, even if he is born or living in the South.

The other change is to permit the states, their elected officials, and their
representatives to change the laws of the community without seeking the prior
approval of a federal official who is a political appointee. I am certain that the
pepole of New Jersey would rise up agaist any proposal that they and their
representatives conld not legislate without the approval of the U.S. Attorney
General. That is why the people of North Carolina object so strongly to this pro-
vision, and to other parts of the law that make North Carolina little more than
a conquered province, The elimination of this provision would have great sym-
holic meaning to my State, because it would signify, in part, its readmittance on
equal terms into the Union. As a practical matter, it would have little effect on
the ends of the law or its enforcement.

In my view, the 1965 Act was a repressive, unfair, and unconstitutionat law.
Tt would be best if it were left to expire. It would be better to recognize the
1948 clection results, or to apply the terms of the law equally to all states, such

37-499—70----15
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as New York and California where the literacy test in 1968 worked to the advan-
tage of black voters, than to extend the law for another five years.

With all kind wishes, I am,

Sincerely yours,
Say J. ErvIx, Jr., Chairman.

Senator Irvix. I believe you were cross-examining the Attorney
General. .

Mr. Attorney General, maybe you would like to make some state-
ment yourself before we proceed further with questions.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN NEWTON MITCHELL, ATTORNEY
GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES—Resumed

Mr. Mrrcurnn. No, Mr. Chairman. 1 stand on my statement before
the subcommittee on July 11th, but T would like to thank the chairman
and the staff for providing additional information concerning the
subject matter contained in that testimony of July 11.

Senator Bavi. Mr, Chairman, I had the opportunity to question
the Attorney General at length at our last session. You were very
kind and patient with me then.

Without trying to monopolize the time of the committee, let me
ask just one or two other questions, which I didn’t have a chance to
ask the Attorney General, and he has been good enough to come back.

Mr. Attorney General, let me just start my questioning this morn-
ing in a broader scope than the act to which we address owrselves
this morning, and I do =o in the light of some events that transpired
between the last opportunity and this opportunity to discuss this
problem with you.

I think you are certainly aware of the critical problems that we
have in this country which revolve around the efforts that we have
beon making over the past years to bring equal opportunity into some
areas where it has been lacking, not only 1 the avea of voting, but
education, housing, and job opportunities, this whole business.

We realize the critical natnre and the volatile nature of this, and
a great deal of our ability to succeed depends on our ability to express
ourselves and to act both at the congressional level and the executive
level and the judicial level so that those who live in these conditions
have faith in the ability of the system to respond, and thus they will
keep their cool and let the system work and remedy the injustices
which have been perpetrated on them for these many years instead
of trying to work outside the system in unlawful activity.

I wanted to address myself to the great concern that large numbers
of Negro leaders, black leaders, in the civil rights movement have to-
ward the administration’s attention in this area of civil rights. The
reason that T think it is appropriate now is that in the Urban League
meeting, which is presently going on, and has gone on over the last
2 or 3 days, there have been several statements made—1I think the key-
note address was by Whitney Young, the executive director—to the ef-
fect that he and others are getting impatient with inactivity, the dif-
ference between what is said and what is done. The administration’s
refusal to extend the Voting Rights Act hasbeen interpreted by a broad
number of leaders in the black community as less than “keeping the
faith,” and as evidence that the administration doesn’t intend to
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keep the faith. They say you really don’t want to provide voting
opportunities. ) . .

I think you should have the opportunity to give your opinion, speak-
ing on behalf of the administration, because I think it is critical to
you and us, Democrats, Republicans, white, black, and brown, that
we {ake the steps necessary to show these people that we are going to
act and that we are addressing ourselves to this problem in good faith.

My, Mirciern, Senator, T haven’t read Mr. Young’s statement——

Senator Bayir. Let me just, if you like, read

Mr. Mrrcniers. As the press reported the statement on the Voting
Rights Act, it related to the fact that he felt that we were spreading
our resources too far afield in connection with the application of the
act to the entire Nation compared to the small number of States cov-
ered at the present time by the 1965 act.

Senator Bayi. To be fair to you and put this in proper perspective,
let me read just two very quick paragraphs comprising about three
sentences, in which he said :

Instead of the national conunitment that is needed, evidence is mounting that
indicates massive national withdrawal from the urban racial problem that

should be at the top of the list of priorities. We secmn to be moving backward in an
age of indifference and repression.

And then in the second paragraph thence he says—

One example in this list of several, the Justice Department tried to kill ex-
tension of the 1933 Voting Rights Act by offering a substitute which would have
spread already limited resources and weakened enforcement.

So you are giving in to his concern as far as this area is concerned.

Mpr. MircHeLL. Yes, sir. T think the first part of the statement that
you have just read was gratuitous without any hard facts to back it
up. To get to the specifics of the Voting Rights Act and the legisla-
tion upon which we are now commenting, I would point out that my
testimony given before this subcommittee 2 weeks ago, denied any in-
tention on the part of the administration to remove or limit the rights
that exist under the 1965 act. To the contrary, we are expanding these
rights into areas where we think they should be applicable.

pecifically, commenting on his statement with respect to the use
of our resources. I would point out—and this is contained in my testi-
mony of July 11—that there were 312 complaints of voter discrimi-
nation filed from the time of the enactment of the statute in August
of 1965 to the time of that testimony. And I would point out that in
the year 1966 there were 157 of these complaints: in 1967 there were
Sl)g; in 1968 there were 43 ; and through this year there have heen only

Tighty-one of these complaints were filed in noncovered States.
With respect to the effectiveness of registrars, most of the complaints
we receive are resolved by their use, a very limited number of law-
suits have been brought in relationship to the number of complaints.

The figures I have just recited indicate that our manpower require-
ments to attend the complaints are decreasing rapidly. I would also
point out that in our budget applications, we have requested a sub-
stantial number of new persomm]l in the Civil Rights Division. ‘They
have been authorized to a degree in the House, and we expeet we wiil
receive the same treatment in the Senate. Qur resources to take care
of this problem on a national basis are far in excess of those that
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existed in the Department to take care of it on a regional basis under
the 1965 act.

Senator Baym. How many additional assistants have you requested
to carry thisburden?

My, Mitcuern. The total with the 1969 supplemental and the 1970
budget is 92. The way the allocation is provided, we will be able to
add 1n 1970, on top of the 30 wo received in 1969, some 40 new attorney

»ositions, For the first time in quite a number of years, the Civil

ights Division of our Department is being significantly strengthened.

enator Bayn. I compliment you for this. How many do you have
now, Mr. Leonard,or Mr. Attorney General?

Mr. Mircierr. Mr. Leonard advises me that the Division, when
we came in, had 219. That number had not changed since 1964.

Senator Bay. So yon have 219 now to police the——

My, Mitcrrenn. Plus 70.

Senator Bavyir. Pardon me, sir?

My, Mrrenrrr., Plus the 70 that we will add through the supple-
mental 1962 budget, and the allocation under the 1970 budget—if the
Senate goes along with the House authorization.

Senator Baym. T am sorry, I misunderstood. I thought the figure was
40. Tt will be 70 new places instead of 40?2

Mvr. Myrcuern, There are 30 already aboard through the 1969
supplemental——

Senator Baxm. Plus 40, which would be a total of 70,

My, Mrircnern (continuing). Plus 40 we will allocate if the author-
ization in the Ylouse Appropriationsis sustained.

Senator Bayi. Well. as I said when you testified before, I think the
goal is giving everyone the right to vote whether he’s in the North,
South, East, or West. But, as I recall from the testimony before the
House. at that time there was no mention made of additional mem-
bers. That’s not important. The fact that you are getting 70 new
ones, I think is a step in the right direction.

T would like to suggest if yon have 219 ofticials now in this divi-
sion to police the act as it applies to six States, it would scem to me
hardly sufticient to request only 70 more when it is going to apply to
a0 States.

Mr. Mrrcnerr. Senator, the requirements of Civil Rights Divi-
sion personnel in connection with the Voting Rights Act is very
limited. As I know you are well aware we have many other programs
that are overseen by the Civil Rights Division.

As I pointed out earlier there have been throngh fiscal 1969 only 18
complaints filed nationwide; the resources of our Department are
more than adequate to take care of these.

Senator Bavu. But this is under the present act, and I think the
evidence that you cite indicates how eflective the present act has
heen. Tt has lessened the incidents of discrimination because those who
would involve themselves in this type of activity know they can’t get
away with it. But by your own admission in your testimony the other
day, as far as section 5 is concerned, it is going to he more diflicult
to police it.

In my judgment it is going to increase the temptation to involve
legislative and other lawmaking bodies in this type of hanky-panky
that is going to lead to discrimination. It is going to increase your
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burden in those areas where, because of the effectiveness of the 1965
act, the complaints have gone down. This is what concerns me, that
vou are really opening a I’andora’s box and you are going to turn the
clock of history buack and restore some of those conditions that existed
prior to the 1965 act.

Mr. Mrrenren, Senator, T disagree with that entirvely. I would point
ont that of the 312 complaints which have been received by the Depart-
ment, S1 of them were in States not covered by the 1965 act. The
number of complaints received from the covered States each successive
vear has materially decreased. And I believe this is because of the use
of registrars and ob-ervers in the covered States. In the future, under
any type of statute, we will not have the problems that previously
existed, We will have more than adequate stafl to take care of them.
The provisions of our bill, strengthened as they are with respect to
nationwide enforcement will provide such an appropriate measure
that we anticipate no return to the problems as they may have existed
at the time of the 1965 act.

Senator Bay. I feel very much like a person in the story that one
of my former colleagues in the State legislature used to tell every year
when there was a difference of opinion. He recited the story about
the blind man who was asked to describe an elephant, and it sounds to
me like youn are describing the elephant by feeling its tail and I am
describing the elephant by feeling its tusks, because T don’t see how
you are getting any new enforcement provisions under this act that
aren’t provided in one way or the other in the present act. And what
adds to my concern is not that the job doesn’t need to be done in 50
States, but that if you have limited resources, you better concentrate
where the problem is the greatest. You are not going to have the
resources necessary to really do the job where the problem is the
greatest and do it elsewhere in the other States. This is my point.

Mr. Mitcnerr, Senator, in the area of the voting vights, we have
more than adequate resources in the Department; under this bill, we
will have adequate tools to protect voting rights.

Senator Bayn. Well, this is your judgment. It isnot my judgment, of
conrse, and this is why I originally brought in the question. There are
really hundreds of civil rights leaders throughout the country that
look at this well-intentioned move on your part in the administration,
not for what you intended, but as a retreat from confrontation with
discrimination, This concerns me.

M. Mircnern, I am afraid, Senator, that those gentlemen are not
fully informed with respect to the substance of our proposal with
respect to the number of complaints that have been received how thev
have been handled, the available resources in the Department to take
care of them, and the fact that we have made progress in this area to
the point where we are not going to require the resources nationwide
that at one time weve required in the covered States.

Senator Bayn. Under section 5 of the present act, legislative bodies
are pretty well put on notice that it is folly for them to involve them-
selves in this type of diseriminatory practice.

Under the administration’s approach, during our discussion the
other day, we agreed that it was going to be more difficult to prove
discrimination under the administration’s bill than to prove refusal
to submit changes in plans and procedures to the Attorney General.
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Thus, one, it is going to take more assistants to do this job, and two,
it is going to increase the incidence of discriminatory practices and
procedures that will be promulgated. I think that you are going to see
the caseload go up, rather than go down, in addition to add those
few States. But I am just not going to find common agreement on this,
I can see.

Mr. Mircsiern, Shall T answer that question again,if Imay?

Senator Bavi. You may, since I asked it again.

Mr. MrreneLr. To start, determinations as to whether legislation or
ordinances discriminate under section 5, properly belongs in the court,
and I would point out that, as T testified before, where jurisdictions
have sought to impinge upon the rights of voters, they have not
submitted their legislation or their practices or procedures to the Jus-
tice Department for consideration. They have proceeded with the
disecrimination. Under those circumstances, the Justice Department
has had only one recourse—to go into a one-judge district court to try
and set aside these practices. We had to prove that they were dis-
criminatory, in violation of the act or the 15th amendment.

I point out now that under our revised section, 5 we go to a three-
judge district court, with direct appeal to the Supreme Court, and
with broad powers of injunctions and restraining relief. This relief
can be made applicable to the jurisdiction on a more definitive basis
than just the individual statute or ordinance that might have been
pasced at a particular time.

We think that the revised language gets at some of the problems
that really exist in this area, as distinguished from the legislation
submitted for review to the Department.

Senator Bayn. T don’t think yon eet to the meat of the problem. In
the Alen case, the ruling held that a three-judae court could be re-
sorted to, as T recall it, under the present act, plus as you agreed, it
would be more diflicult to police this act no matter what court you go
to, whether you are seeking final determination or injunction, because
vou have to prove some facts of discrimination, or the effect of dis-
crimination, under the act. This is more difficult to prove whether it
is a one-man court or a three-man court or the Supreme Court than
it is merely to prove that the regulation involved was 